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This is an initial public offering of shares of common stock of Cricut, Inc. We are offering to sell          shares of common stock in this
offering.

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for the common stock. It is currently estimated that the initial public offering price
per share will be between $          and $          . Cricut, Inc. intends to list the common stock on the                     under the symbol “CRCT.”

We are an “emerging growth company” as defined under the federal securities laws and, as such, have elected to comply with certain
reduced reporting requirements in this prospectus and may elect to do so in future filings.

Following the completion of this offering, investment entities owned by, and other entities affiliated with, Petrus P.C. LLC will
beneficially own approximately % of the total voting power of our outstanding common stock. As a result, we will be a “controlled
company” within the meaning of the corporate governance rules of the Exchange. See the section titled “Management—Controlled Company
Exemption” for additional information.

See the section titled “Risk Factors” on page 16 to read about factors you should consider before buying shares of the
common stock.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any other regulatory body has approved or disapproved of
these securities or passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this prospectus. Any representation to the contrary is a
criminal offense.
 
 

  Per share   Total  
Initial public offering price  $ —  $ — 
Underwriting discounts and commissions(1)  $ —  $ — 
Proceeds, before expenses, to Cricut, Inc.  $ —  $ —

 

 

(1) See the section titled “Underwriters” for a description of the compensation payable to the underwriters.
 

We have granted the underwriters an option for a period of 30 days to purchase up to an additional                    shares of our common
stock at the initial public offering price, less the underwriting discounts and commissions.

The underwriters expect to deliver the shares against payment in New York, New York on                      , 2021.
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Prospectus dated                         , 2021.
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Through and including          , 2021 (the 25th day after the date of this prospectus), all dealers effecting transactions in these

securities, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This is in addition to a dealer’s
obligation to deliver a prospectus when acting as an underwriter and with respect to an unsold allotment or subscription.

 

Neither we nor the underwriters have authorized anyone to provide any information or to make any representations other than those
contained in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectuses we have prepared. We and the underwriters take no responsibility for, and
can provide no assurance as to the reliability of, any other information that others may give you. This prospectus is an offer to sell only the
shares offered hereby, but only under circumstances and in jurisdictions where it is lawful to do so. The information contained in this
prospectus or in any applicable free writing prospectus is current only as of its date, regardless of its time of delivery or any sale of shares of
our common stock.

For investors outside of the United States: neither we nor any of the underwriters have done anything that would permit this offering or
possession or distribution of this prospectus or any free writing prospectus we may provide to you in connection with this offering in any
jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required, other than in the United States. You are required to inform yourselves about, and
observe any restrictions relating to, this offering of the shares of our common stock and the distribution of this prospectus and any such free
writing prospectus outside of the United States.
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As used in this prospectus, unless expressly indicated or the context otherwise requires:

References to “common stock” refer (i) prior to our redomicile as a Delaware corporation to the Class A common stock, par value
$0.01 per share of Cricut, Inc., a Utah corporation and (ii) after we redomiciled as a Delaware corporation in September 2020, to the common
stock, par value $0.001 per share of Cricut, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

References to “Cricut,” “we,” “us,” “our,” the “company” and similar references refer: (i) prior to the consummation of the Corporate
Reorganization described in the section titled “Corporate Reorganization” to Cricut Holdings, LLC and its consolidated subsidiaries and (ii)
after the Corporate Reorganization to Cricut, Inc., and its consolidated subsidiaries.

The term “Corporate Reorganization” means the series of transactions as described under the section titled “Corporate
Reorganization.”
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information contained in more detail elsewhere in this prospectus. This
summary does not contain all the information you should consider before investing in our common stock. You should
carefully read this prospectus in its entirety before investing in our common stock, including the sections titled “Risk
Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Special Note
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and our consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes,
provided elsewhere in this prospectus. Our fiscal year ends on December 31, and our fiscal quarters end on
September 30, December 31, March 31 and June 30.

 

CRICUT, INC.

At Cricut, our mission is to help people lead creative lives.

We have designed and built a creativity platform that enables our engaged and loyal community of
million users to turn ideas into professional-looking handmade goods. With our highly versatile connected

machines, design apps and accessories and materials, our users create everything from personalized birthday cards,
mugs and t-shirts to large-scale interior decorations and more. Our cloud-based software enables us to update the
functionality and features of existing physical and digital products and to release new products that seamlessly
integrate with our platform. This makes our platform broadly extensible and empowers our users to unlock ever-
expanding creative potential. 

Cricut often becomes a huge part of our users’ creative lives, serving as the foundation for their journey of
creativity. Our users’ journeys typically begin with the purchase of a connected machine and expand across our family
of products as users harness the power of our platform. Our users have demonstrated continued engagement with
their connected machines over time, which results in purchases of subscriptions and accessories and materials long
after they first purchase a connected machine. As of September 30, 2020, 63% of our users created on their
connected machines in the last 90 days.

We enable our users to be inspired, create and share projects with the Cricut community and to follow others
doing the same. Our community of users has scaled significantly over time, and our number of users grew by 50%
from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019.

Our software integrates our connected machines and design apps, allowing our users to create and share
seamlessly. Our software is cloud-based, meaning that users can access and work on their projects anywhere, at any
time, across any desktop or mobile device. Our software aggregates billions of data points of our users’ contributions,
giving us valuable insights into our users’ preferences and behaviors. We use our data science capabilities to
continuously improve our software and products, driving further engagement. As a result, our business model is
characterized by strong user engagement and diversified sales across product categories. 

Our portfolio of connected machines cut, write, score and create decorative effects using a wide variety of
materials including paper, vinyl, leather and more. We strive for our users’ journeys to be both inspiring and intuitive, so
we take great care to design connected machines that are beautiful and easy to use. Our connected machines are
designed for a wide range of uses and are available at a variety of price points:

 • Cricut Joy for personalization on-the-go, $179.99 MSRP

 • Cricut Explore for cutting, writing and scoring, $249.99 MSRP

 • Cricut Maker for cutting, writing, scoring and adding decorative effects to a wider range of materials,
$399.99 MSRP
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We offer free design apps, in-app purchases and subscription offerings that enable our users to create and
complete projects. On our apps, users can find inspiration, purchase or upload content like fonts and images, design a
project from scratch or find a vast array of ready-to-make projects on both mobile and desktop devices. All users can
access a select number of free images, fonts and projects from our design apps or upload their own. In addition, we
offer a wider selection of images, fonts and projects for purchase à la carte, including licensed content from partners
with well-known brands and characters, like major motion picture studios. We also provide two subscription offerings,
Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium. Cricut Access provides users with a subscription to a curated and growing
design library of over 125,000 images, 6,000 ready-to-make projects and hundreds of fonts, as well as other member
benefits, such as discounts and priority Cricut Member Care, our customer support service. Cricut Access Premium
includes all of the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and preferred shipping. As of                   ,
2020, we had nearly          Paid Subscribers to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium.

We also sell a broad range of accessories and materials that help bring designs to life, from advanced tools like
heat presses to Cricut-branded rulers, scoring tools, pens, paper and iron-on vinyl. These products are designed to
work seamlessly and easily with our connected machines, which is why we see many of our users purchase Cricut-
branded accessories and materials. Creating projects often drives repeat purchases of accessories and materials for
years after a user first buys a connected machine, demonstrating ongoing engagement with our platform. 

Many of our users share a love of our brand, products and mission, which fosters a loyal community of users
who are deeply engaged with Cricut. Every project is an opportunity to start a conversation, both with us and with each
other. We often see our users inspire, teach and create together. There are over three million Cricut followers and
many independently-run Cricut groups across social media. Users often self-organize, host independent events and
meet up in person across the globe. 

Our community creates a reinforcing network effect. As the number of our users grow, so does the number of
projects made and shared physically or digitally. This generates even more shared projects and word-of-mouth that in
turn helps to grow our community. This community network effect has allowed us to efficiently acquire new users and
drive sales by word-of-mouth referrals, complimented by our targeted sales and marketing efforts. 

We generate revenue from the sale of our connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials.
We sell our products through brick-and-mortar retail partners, including Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann, Michaels, Target
and Walmart, as well as through online channels such as Amazon and cricut.com. 

We are a fast-growing, scaled and profitable business. For 2018 and 2019, we generated:

 • Total revenue of $340 million and $487 million, respectively, representing 43% year-over-year growth

 • Net income of $27 million and $39 million, representing 43% year-over-year growth

 • EBITDA of $46 million and $63 million, respectively, representing 36% year-over-year growth

Our Industry
We both influence and benefit from powerful secular tailwinds:

 • Personalization is a Global Mega Trend. Today, more and more people want to be surrounded by
personalized items. According to a study by Deloitte, one in four consumers are willing to pay more to
receive a personalized product or service. We empower individuals to personalize, and the number one
reason why people buy our connected machines is personalization.

 • Digitization of Tools. Consumers have access to more tools in the digital world than ever before. Cricut
has built on this trend by offering both digital and physical tools and, more importantly, bridging these two
worlds together.
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 • Technology is Enabling a New Generation of Entrepreneurs. The rapid growth of marketplaces and

commerce enablement platforms creates economic opportunities for millions of creative entrepreneurs.
Individual entrepreneurs value supplemental income, flexibility and the opportunity to do what they love for
a living. Twenty-nine percent of our users make projects to sell.

 • Social Media is Enabling a New Wave of Creativity. The ubiquity of social media is a key driver of global
consumer engagement with new creative endeavors. Billions of people globally engage on social media
every month and spend an average of more than two hours per day on social networks and messaging
apps. Through social media, people can be inspired by new ideas or projects anywhere and anytime. We
have a powerful social media presence, and help our users turn virtual inspiration into beautiful, physical
things. 

Our Opportunity

We believe that everyone is innately creative and thus anyone can be a part of the Cricut community of users.
This presents us with a large, untapped market opportunity in addition to our current user base. We quantify our market
opportunity in terms of a Serviceable Addressable Market, or SAM, and a Total Addressable Market, or TAM. We
commissioned a study from YouGov America in September 2020 across 11 countries. The sample size of those
surveyed in each country included over 1,000 individuals ages 18 and older. To calculate our SAM and TAM, we
extrapolate these survey results across the general population ages 18 and older in each country.

Our SAM consists of the portion of individuals surveyed who said they have made at least one creative project in
categories addressed by our current products in the last 12 months, whom we call “active creatives.” Our TAM includes
the individuals in our SAM as well as the portion of individuals surveyed who said they like, buy, used to make or are
interested in creating personalized, handmade or custom items, whom we call “potential creatives” but who have not
made at least one creative project in categories addressed by our current products in the last 12 months. Our SAM
includes active creatives who we address with our current product and price points. Our TAM includes potential
creatives who we believe we can reach over the long term as we make products for new uses and products that are
even more accessible, easier to use and available at a broad set of price points. We assess our SAM and TAM in the
United States and Canada and internationally. Today, a small portion of our revenue is generated from countries
outside the United States and Canada. We currently classify four of these countries, Australia, France, Germany and
the United Kingdom, as our primary international target markets and include them in our international SAM and TAM.

Based in part on the YouGov America study we commissioned, we estimate that our SAM in the United States
and Canada consists of over 85 million people. As of December 31, 2020, we have             million users, the
vast majority of whom are in the United States and Canada, implying less than            % penetration of our SAM in
those markets. We estimate that our SAM among our primary international target markets consists of over 44 million
people. Accordingly, we estimate our total SAM is over 129 million individuals.  

We estimate that there are over 163 million potential creatives in the United States and Canada and over 109
million potential creatives in our primary international target markets. We estimate that our United States and Canada
TAM includes over 248 million individuals, which reflects our belief that all people, regardless of demographic, can be
creative and part of the Cricut community. Our TAM among our primary international target markets includes over 153
million individuals, for a combined TAM of approximately 402 million individuals. We believe our products could achieve
broader adoption in a number of countries beyond our primary international target markets that also have large
populations engaging in creative activities and represent a similar product-market fit.
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Because our products make creativity accessible, we believe our opportunity is much larger than the estimates

of the size of the traditional craft market. We put production power into the hands of our users by allowing them to
create their own professional-looking homemade goods instead of purchasing manufactured goods from a third party,
meaning that our products and the projects created by our users touch a broad array of markets that go beyond the
traditional craft market.

The Cricut User Journey
Creative individuals come to Cricut and quickly become engaged users who can express themselves both

individually and as part of a large and passionate community. As of September 30, 2020, 96% of our users are women.
Many users also earn income through products they create on Cricut. According to a survey of our users that we
conducted in October 2020:
 

 • 88% of new users want to make a broad range of products

 • 29% make projects to sell

 • 78% say crafting helps them with their mental well-being

 • 87% say crafting inspires feelings of accomplishment

A user’s journey evolves after their first purchase. New users typically intend to create a broad range of products
but may start with one or two intended uses and grow with Cricut over time. For example, a user may buy a connected
machine and begin by making cards but later branch out to t-shirts, wall decals and more. As we launch new software
and products, and as our community continues to grow and share on our platform and on social media, we have the
opportunity to continually refresh this relationship and expand the versatility of our platform.

Our large and loyal community of users engage with Cricut and each other across our design apps and on social
media. Users can share projects they created, and other users can be inspired and access and create that same
project. These teaching and inspiration moments enhance our monetization opportunities as projects often lead users
to purchase images, fonts, accessories and materials.
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How We Go to Market
Many of our users hear about our products through word-of-mouth. With 91% of our users creating products for

their friends and family, word-of-mouth marketing continues to be one of the most efficient and effective ways we
attract new users. In 2020, 42% of new users first heard about Cricut through friends and family. We also use digital
and social media marketing to attract users.

We sell our connected machines and accessories and materials through our brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners, as well as through our website at cricut.com. In 2019, 52% of our revenue was generated through brick-and-
mortar sales and 48% was generated through online channels.

Our Competitive Strengths
Our competitive strengths include:

 • Our Vertically Integrated Platform Encourages Continual Engagement. Our platform accompanies a
user from an idea to a finished project, with Cricut providing the connected machines, design apps and
accessories and materials to make this a seamless journey.

 • We Build Beautiful, Inspiring and Easy-to-Use Products. Our mission is rooted in our passion for
design, and this passion comes to life in the beautiful products we build and experiences we create. Our
goal is to provide users with an experience that is both inspiring and intuitive, and we take great care to
make our products easy to use. Our elegant products are backed by deep user experience, software,
technology and engineering expertise.

 • We Designed our Platform to be Able to Constantly Evolve so We Can Find New Ways to Delight
Users. We constantly innovate and offer new products and functionality to provide users with new
capabilities for their existing connected machines. New products are integrated seamlessly into existing
connected machines with updates to our software, infrastructure and content. We aim to give our users the
freedom to create without limitations while improving their experience along the way.

 • We Have a Strong and Loyal Community of Users. Creating with Cricut can be a highly social activity.
We have a strong and loyal community of users who are deeply engaged with Cricut and in turn help grow
our community. This engagement has allowed us to efficiently acquire new users and drive sales by word-
of-mouth referrals, complimented by our targeted sales and marketing efforts. 

 • We Have a Positive Impact on Our Users, in Good Times and in Bad. Our products enable users to
express their creativity, which makes them feel accomplished and confident, powerful emotions that help
create a relationship and love between our brand and our users. Crafting allows people to save money by
creating their own gifts or to earn income selling handmade goods. Given the positive emotions connected
with crafting, our users create to celebrate and also as a respite during difficult times. 

Our Growth Strategy
These are key elements of our growth strategy:

 • Reach More Users. We have a significant opportunity to bring more users to our platform by enhancing
our brand and product awareness in both the United States and Canada and in the other geographies
where we currently sell our products. We intend to pursue this opportunity in part through digital and social
media marketing, retail partners and word-of-mouth referrals. 

 • Increase Monetization from Current Users. We believe that by finding new ways to inspire our users
with their existing connected machines, we can sell more content and accessories and materials. By
enhancing our subscription offerings, we also believe we can grow our subscription base over time. 
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 • Continuously Improve Ease of Use and User Experience. We plan to continue to broaden our

demographic appeal, further penetrate our SAM and continue to expand and penetrate our TAM by making
our products even easier to use and educating users on our products and their capabilities.

 • Launch New Products in New Categories. We plan to keep current users engaged by launching new
products and services that attach seamlessly to our existing platform. We also plan on expanding our
offerings to serve a larger portion of our SAM, including connected machine offerings with new uses to
capture additional customer segments.

 • Expand Internationally. We believe there is a significant opportunity for Cricut to grow internationally. We
began our international expansion by launching in Australia, Canada, France, Germany and the United
Kingdom. We have also localized our design apps in several languages such as French, German,
Portuguese and Spanish. We will continue to pursue disciplined international expansion by targeting
countries with large populations of active creatives where we believe the Cricut value proposition will
resonate.

Summary of Risk Factors
Our business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including those highlighted in the section titled “Risk

Factors” immediately following this prospectus summary and elsewhere in this prospectus. These risks include, but are
not limited to, the following:

 • risks regarding our ability to attract and engage with our users, including anticipating their product
preferences;

 • competitive risks in each of our three segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and Accessories and
Materials;

 • supply chain, manufacturing, distribution and fulfillment risks, including our being primarily dependent on a
single China-based manufacturer and on limited sources of supply for components, accessories and
materials;

 • international risks, including regulation and tariffs that have materially increased our costs and the potential
for further trade barriers or disruptions;

 • sales and marketing risks, including our dependence on sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners
and our need to continue to grow online sales;

 • risks relating to the complexity of our business, which includes connected machines, custom tools,
hundreds of materials, design apps, e-commerce software, subscriptions, content, international production,
direct sales, and retail distribution, particularly for a company of our relative size;

 • risks related to product quality, safety and warranty claims and returns;

 • risks related to the fluctuation of our quarterly results of operations and other operating metrics;

 • risks related to protection of our intellectual property, as well as to cybersecurity and potential data
breaches;

 • risks related to our dependence on our Chief Executive Officer; and

 • risks related to our status as a “controlled company” within the meaning of the Exchange’s corporate
governance standards and our exemption under the Exchange’s standards from the obligation to comply
with certain corporate governance requirements.

If we are unable to adequately address these and other risks we face, our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may be adversely affected.
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Summary of Corporate Reorganization
Prior to the consummation of this offering, we will engage in a series of related corporate reorganization

transactions as follows:

 • Cricut, Inc. will engage in a forward stock split;

 • Cricut, Inc. will file an amended and restated certificate of incorporation; and

 • Cricut Holdings, LLC, or Cricut Holdings, will dissolve and liquidate in accordance with the terms and
conditions of its existing limited liability company agreement, pursuant to which the holders of existing units
in Cricut Holdings, or the Existing Unitholders, will receive 100% of the capital stock of Cricut, Inc., its sole
asset, assuming it was liquidated at the time of this offering with a value implied by the initial public offering
price of the shares of common stock to be sold in this offering. We refer to this transaction in this
prospectus as the “Cricut Holdings Liquidation.” Cricut Holdings will cease to exist following the Cricut
Holdings Liquidation.

We refer to the foregoing transactions, collectively, as the “Corporate Reorganization.”

As a result of the Corporate Reorganization and the subsequent consummation of the offering described in this
prospectus:

 • investors in this offering will collectively own            shares of common stock (or             shares of common
stock if the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of our common stock from us is exercised in
full);

 • Existing Unitholders will collectively own             shares of common stock of Cricut, Inc.; and

 • Existing Unitholders will collectively own             shares of either restricted stock or restricted stock units, or
RSUs of Cricut, Inc.

In connection with the Corporate Reorganization, all of the outstanding equity awards of Cricut Holdings (which
are currently comprised of purchased units, incentive units and zero strike price incentive units) will be converted into
shares of the common stock, restricted stock or RSUs of Cricut, Inc., as applicable, and all of the outstanding phantom
units of Cricut Holdings will be equitably adjusted and converted into either shares of restricted stock of Cricut, Inc. or
paid in cash, to the extent permitted in each applicable jurisdiction. The portion of each outstanding equity award that
is vested as of immediately prior to the consummation of the Corporate Reorganization will be converted into shares of
our common stock and the portion of each outstanding equity award that is unvested as of immediately prior to the
consummation of the Corporate Reorganization will be converted into shares of Cricut, Inc.’s restricted stock or RSUs,
as applicable. The shares of restricted stock and the RSUs will be subject to the same vesting conditions that apply to
the unvested units or unit equivalents, as applicable, underlying the outstanding equity award from which such shares
are converted.

See the sections titled “Corporate Reorganization” and “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions”
for additional information.

Channels for Disclosure of Information
Investors, the media and others should note that, following the completion of this offering, we intend to announce

material information to the public through filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC, the
investor relations page on our website, press releases, public conference calls, webcasts, our company news site at
cricut.com/press and blog posts on our corporate website.

The information disclosed by the foregoing channels could be deemed to be material information. As such, we
encourage investors, the media and others to follow the channels listed above and to review the information disclosed
through such channels.
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Any updates to the list of disclosure channels through which we will announce information will be posted on the
investor relations page on our website.

Corporate Information
We were originally incorporated under the laws of the State of Utah in June 1969 as Provo Craft & Novelty, Inc.

and changed our name to Cricut, Inc. in March 2018. In September 2020, we redomiciled as a Delaware corporation.
Pursuant to the terms of the Corporate Reorganization that will be completed prior to the consummation of this offering,
Cricut Holdings will dissolve and, in liquidation, will distribute all of the shares of capital stock of Cricut, Inc. to its
members in accordance with the limited liability company agreement of Cricut Holdings.

For more information on the Corporate Reorganization and ownership of our common stock, see the sections
titled “Corporate Reorganization” and “Principal Stockholders.”

Our principal executive offices are located at 10855 South River Front Parkway, South Jordan, Utah 84095, and
our telephone number is (385) 351-0633. Our corporate website address is cricut.com. Information contained on or
accessible through our website is not a part of this prospectus, and the inclusion of our website address in this
prospectus is an inactive textual reference only.

“Cricut,” “Cricut Access,” “Cricut Access Premium,” “Cricut EasyPress,” “Cricut Explore,” “Cricut Maker,” “Design
Space,” “Infusible Ink,” “Adaptive Tool System,” “Cut Smart,” “QuickSwap,” our logo and our other registered or
common law trademarks, service marks or trade names appearing in this prospectus are the property of Cricut, Inc.,
Cricut Holdings and their subsidiaries. Other trademarks and trade names referred to in this prospectus are the
property of their respective owners. Solely for convenience, the trademarks, trade names and service marks
referenced in this prospectus are listed without the ™, ® and SM symbols, but we will assert our rights to our
trademarks, trade names and service marks to the fullest extent under applicable law.

Implications of Being an Emerging Growth Company
We qualify as an “emerging growth company” as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or

JOBS Act. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified reduced reporting requirements that are
otherwise generally applicable to public companies. These reduced reporting requirements include:

 • an exemption from compliance with the auditor attestation requirement on the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting;

 • an exemption from compliance with any requirement that the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
may adopt regarding a supplement to the auditor’s report providing additional information about the audit
and the financial statements;

 • reduced disclosure about our executive compensation arrangements;

 • an exemption from the requirements to obtain a non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation or
golden parachute arrangements; and

 • extended transition periods for complying with new or revised accounting standards.
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We may take advantage of these provisions until we are no longer an emerging growth company. We would
cease to be an emerging growth company upon the earliest to occur of: (i) the last day of the fiscal year in which we
have more than $1.07 billion in annual revenue; (ii) the date we qualify as a large accelerated filer, with at least $700
million of equity securities held by non-affiliates; (iii) the issuance, in any three-year period, by us of more than $1.0
billion in non-convertible debt securities and (iv) the last day of the fiscal year ending after the fifth anniversary of this
offering. We may choose to take advantage of some but not all of these reduced reporting burdens. We have taken
advantage of certain reduced reporting burdens in this prospectus. Accordingly, the information contained herein may
be different than the information you receive from other public companies in which you hold stock.

The JOBS Act permits an emerging growth company like us to take advantage of an extended transition period
to comply with new or revised accounting standards applicable to public companies. We have elected to use this
extended transition period until we are no longer an emerging growth company or until we affirmatively and irrevocably
opt out of the extended transition period. As a result, our financial statements may not be comparable to companies
that comply with new or revised accounting pronouncements as of public company effective dates.
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THE OFFERING

 
Common stock offered by us            shares
  
Common stock outstanding after this offering            shares
  
Underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of common
stock from us            shares
  
Use of proceeds We estimate that the net proceeds to us from the sale

of shares of our common stock in this offering will be
approximately $            (or approximately $             if
the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares
of our common stock from us is exercised in full),
based upon the assumed initial public offering price of
$            per share, which is the midpoint of the
estimated offering price range set forth on the cover
page of this prospectus, and after deducting estimated
underwriting discounts and commissions and
estimated offering expenses payable by us.

  
 The principal purposes of this offering are to increase

our capitalization and financial flexibility, create a
public market for our common stock and enable
access to the public equity markets for us and our
stockholders. We intend to use a portion of the net
proceeds from this offering to pay $          for the cash
settlement of  outstanding phantom units of Cricut
Holdings (or approximately $             if the
underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of
our common stock from us is exercised in full), based
upon the assumed initial public offering price of
$            per share, which is the midpoint of the
estimated offering price range set forth on the cover
page of this prospectus. We intend to use the
remaining net proceeds we receive from this offering
for general corporate purposes, including working
capital, operating expenses and capital expenditures.
Additionally, we may use a portion of the net proceeds
we receive from this offering to acquire businesses,
products, services or technologies. However, we do
not have agreements or commitments for any material
acquisitions at this time. See the section titled “Use of
Proceeds” for additional information.
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Voting rights Shares of our common stock are entitled to one vote

per share. See the section titled “Description of Capital
Stock” for additional information.
 
Entities affiliated with Petrus P.C. LLC, or Petrus, who
after this offering will control more than        % of the
voting power of our outstanding capital stock, will have
the ability to control the outcome
of matters submitted to our stockholders for approval,
including the election of our directors. See the section
titled “Principal Stockholders” for additional
information.

  
Controlled company After the consummation of this offering, we will be

considered a “controlled company” for purposes of the
rules of the          , or the Exchange, as entities
affiliated with Petrus will, in the aggregate, control
approximately          % of the voting power of our
outstanding common stock. As a result, we will be a
“controlled company” under the Exchange corporate
governance standards. Under these standards, a
company of which more than 50% of the voting power
is held by an individual, group or another company is a
“controlled company.” See the section titled “Principal
Stockholders” for additional information. As a
“controlled company,” we will not be subject to certain
corporate governance requirements, including that: (i)
a majority of our board of directors consists of
“independent directors” as defined under the rules of
the Exchange, (ii) our board of directors have a
compensation committee that is composed entirely of
independent directors with a written charter
addressing the committee purpose and responsibilities
and (iii) our director nominations be made, or
recommended to the full board of directors, by our
independent directors or by a nominations committee
that is composed entirely of independent directors and
that we adopt a written charter or board resolution
addressing the nominations process. As a result, we
may not have a majority of independent directors on
our board of directors or an entirely independent
compensation committee or nominations committee,
unless and until such time as we are required to do so.
See the section titled “Management—Controlled
Company Exemption” for additional information.

  
Dividend policy We do not currently intend to pay dividends on our

common stock in the foreseeable future. Our ability to
pay dividends on our common stock is also limited by
our credit agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank,
N.A., Citibank, N.A. and Origin Bank, or the New
Credit Facility, and may be further restricted by the
terms of any future debt or preferred securities
incurred or issued by us or our subsidiaries. See the
sections titled “Dividend Policy” and “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital
Resources” for additional information.
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Proposed trading symbol “CRCT”
  
Corporate Reorganization The issuer in this offering, Cricut, Inc., is a Delaware

corporation and is a wholly owned subsidiary of Cricut
Holdings. Pursuant to the terms of the Corporate
Reorganization that will be completed prior to the
consummation of this offering, Cricut Holdings will
dissolve and, in liquidation, will distribute all of the
shares of capital stock of Cricut, Inc. to its members in
accordance with the limited liability company
agreement of Cricut Holdings. See the section titled
“Corporate Reorganization” for additional information.

 
The number of shares of our common stock that will be outstanding after this offering is based on an aggregate

of                shares of our common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020, and includes:

 •                shares of our common stock that were outstanding as of December 31, 2020, upon
consummation of the Corporate Reorganization (based on an assumed initial offering price of $       per
share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover page of this
prospectus); and

 •                shares of our common stock that are issuable upon conversion of              phantom units, in
jurisdictions where permitted, that were outstanding as of December 31, 2020, which conversion will occur
in connection with the Corporate Reorganization (based on an assumed initial offering price of $          per
share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover page of this
prospectus).

The number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020 excludes the following:

 •                shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under our equity compensation plans,
consisting of:

 ○                shares of common stock, reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Equity Incentive
Plan, or our 2021 Plan (including shares of common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock
options and vesting and settlement of RSUs which we intend to grant in connection with this
offering as set forth below), as well as any annual increases in the number of shares of common
stock reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Plan, which plan will become effective in
connection with the completion of this offering;

 ○                shares reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Plan include             shares of
common stock (based on an assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the
midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus)
issuable upon the exercise of stock options which we intend to grant in connection with this
offering; and

 ○                additional shares of common stock, subject to increase on an annual basis, reserved for
future issuance under our 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or our 2021 ESPP, which plan will
become effective in connection with the completion of this offering.

Except as otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all information in this prospectus assumes:

 • the completion of the Corporate Reorganization;

 • no vesting and settlement of outstanding incentive units, zero strike price incentive units, or phantom units,
as applicable, subsequent to December 31, 2020; and

 • no exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase up to an additional              shares of common
stock from us in this offering.
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

The following tables summarize our consolidated financial and other data. We have derived the summary
consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019 and the consolidated
balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 2019 from our audited consolidated financial statements and related
notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. Our historical results are not necessarily indicative of our future results.
The following summary consolidated financial and other data should be read in conjunction with the sections titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” “Selected Consolidated
Financial and Other Data” and the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this
prospectus. The last day of our fiscal year is December 31.
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:  (in thousands)  
Revenue:         

Connected machines  $ 147,081  $ 198,144 
Subscriptions   31,300   53,829 
Accessories and materials   161,407   234,581 

Total revenue   339,788   486,554 
Cost of revenue:         

Connected machines(1)   127,546   176,894 
Subscriptions(1)   5,027   8,827 
Accessories and materials(1)   96,119   158,483 

Total cost of revenue   228,692   344,204 
Gross profit   111,096   142,350 
Operating expenses:         

Research and development(1)   24,056   26,674 
Sales and marketing(1)   30,698   40,110 
General and administrative(1)   18,363   22,005 

Total operating expenses   73,117   88,789 
Income from operations   37,979   53,561 
Other income (expense):         

Interest income (expense), net   (1,934)   (3,291)
Other income (expense), net   108   (2)

Total other income (expense), net   (1,826)   (3,293)
Income before provision for income taxes   36,153   50,268 
Provision for income taxes   8,721   11,057 
Net income  $ 27,432  $ 39,211 
Net income attributable to Class A common stockholders(2)   49,337   39,211 
Earnings per share attributable to Class A common stockholders, basic
   and diluted(2)  $ 15.23  $ 12.11 
Weighted-average Class A common shares outstanding used to
   compute earnings per share attributable to common stockholders,
   basic and diluted(2)   3,238,427   3,238,427
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(1) Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows:
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

  (in thousands)  
Cost of revenue:         

Connected machines  $ 11  $ 2 
Subscriptions   51   11 
Accessories and materials   —   — 

Total cost of revenue   62   13 
Research and development   5,467   881 
Sales and marketing   2,843   623 
General and administrative   2,006   328 

Total stock-based compensation expense   10,378   1,845
 

 

(2) See Note 1, Note 2 and Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus for an explanation of the
methods used to calculate basic and diluted net loss per share.

 
  As of December 31, 2019
  Actual   As Adjusted(1)(2)

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:  (in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 6,653   
Working capital   111,604   
Total assets   317,645   
Term loan, net of current portion   17,843   
Total liabilities   196,503   
Total stockholders’ equity   121,142   
 

(1) The as adjusted column in the balance sheet data above reflects the sale and issuance of shares of our common stock by us in this offering, at
the assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover
page of this prospectus, after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

(2) The as adjusted information is illustrative only and will change based on the actual initial public offering price and other terms of this offering
determined at pricing. Each $1.00 increase (decrease) in the assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of
the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, would increase (decrease) each of our cash and cash
equivalents, working capital, total assets, term loan, net of current portion, total liabilities and total stockholders’ equity by $          million,
assuming that the number of shares offered by us, as set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, remains the same and after deducting
estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us. We may also increase or decrease the
number of shares we are offering. Each increase (decrease) of 1.0 million shares in the number of shares offered by us would increase
(decrease) cash and cash equivalents, working capital, total assets, term loan, net of current portion, total liabilities and total stockholders’
equity by $          million, assuming the assumed initial public offering price remains the same and after deducting estimated underwriting
discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.
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Key Business and Non-GAAP Financial Measures
In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements, we use the following key

business metrics and non-generally accepted accounting principles financial measures to help us evaluate our
business, identify trends affecting our business, formulate business plans and make strategic decisions. For more
information regarding our use of these non-GAAP financial measures and reconciliations to the most directly
comparable financial measures calculated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States, or GAAP, see the section titled “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data—Key Business Metrics and
Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”
 
  As of December 31,  

  2018   2019  
Users (in thousands)   1,685   2,525 
Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days  N/A   64%
Paid Subscribers (in thousands)        

 

 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
Subscription ARPU  $ 23.19  $ 25.57 
Accessories and Materials ARPU  $ 119.61  $ 111.44 
EBITDA (in millions)  $ 46.10  $ 62.67
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RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks and uncertainties described
below, together with all of the other information in this prospectus, including in the section titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” our consolidated financial statements and related notes and all of the other information in this
prospectus, before making a decision to invest in our common stock. If any of the risks actually occur, our business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects could be materially and adversely affected. In that event, the market price of our common stock could
decline, and you could lose part or all of your investment.

Summary of Risk Factors

Investing in our common stock involves a high degree of risk because our business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, as
described below. The principal factors and uncertainties that make investing in our common stock risky include, among others:

 • risks regarding our ability to attract and engage with our users, including anticipating their product preferences;

 • competitive risks in each of our three segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and Accessories and Materials;

 • supply chain, manufacturing, distribution and fulfillment risks, including our being primarily dependent on a single China-based
manufacturer and on limited sources of supply for components, accessories and materials;

 • international risks, including regulation, tariffs that have materially increased our costs and the potential for further trade
barriers;

 • sales and marketing risks, including our dependence on sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and our need to
continue to grow online sales;

 • risks relating to the complexity of our business, which includes connected machines, custom tools, hundreds of materials,
design apps, e-commerce software, subscriptions, content, international production, direct sales, and retail distribution,
particularly for a company of our relative size;

 • risks related to product quality, safety and warranty claims and returns;

 • risks related to the fluctuation of our quarterly results of operations and other operating metrics;

 • risks related to protection of our intellectual property, as well as to cybersecurity and potential data breaches;

 • risks related to our dependence on our Chief Executive Officer; and

 • risks related to our status as a “controlled company” within the meaning of the Exchange’s corporate governance standards
and our exemption under the Exchange’s standards from the obligation to comply with certain corporate governance
requirements.
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Risks Related to Our Industry and Business
If we are not able to attract and engage with our users, our business and rate of growth could be adversely affected.

Since launching our first connected machine, we have built a loyal and growing community of users that has reached substantial
scale. Our business and rate of growth is dependent upon our ability to attract and engage with our users. We cannot ensure that our efforts
to attract and engage with users will be successful or that we will be able to maintain sales to our users. There are a number of factors that
could impact our number of users and our ability to increase sales to users, including:

 • a decline in the public’s interest in do-it-yourself, or DIY, crafting activities;

 • pricing, perceived value and ease of use of our connected machines and accessories and materials as well as our
subscriptions;

 • our ability to satisfy demand for and deliver quality products and value for subscriptions;

 • sales of competitive products;

 • our failure to broaden our demographic appeal;

 • our ability to continue to improve the user experience in each aspect of our business and successfully educate our users about
our products;

 • our failure to capitalize on growth opportunities;

 • our inability to meet the challenges resulting from fast-paced changes in technology;

 • the failure of our connected machines to communicate or sync properly with Cricut-authorized design apps, including our
Design Space apps, or other third-party applications such as Android, iOS and Windows;

 • unsatisfactory experiences with our products, including with respect to the use, purchasing or delivery of our products or with
Cricut Member Care, including public disclosure of those experiences through social media or other communications from our
community;

 • our failure to increase our international presence, including the failure to translate and localize our digital content and
subscriptions, or the failure to further expand internationally;

 • decreased word-of-mouth referrals from our community or failed marketing efforts; and

 • deteriorating general economic conditions or changes in consumer spending preferences or buying trends.

As a result of these factors, we cannot be sure that we will be successful in attracting and engaging with users, or increasing sales to
our users, at levels that will be adequate to maintain or grow our business.

Our revenue growth rate and financial performance in recent periods may not be indicative of our future performance, and we
expect our revenue growth rate to decline compared to prior years.

We have experienced rapid revenue growth in recent periods, with revenue of $340 million and $487 million for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively. You should not rely on our revenue for any previous quarterly or annual period as any indication
of our revenue or revenue growth in future periods. As we grow our business, we expect our revenue growth rates to decline compared to
prior years due to a number of reasons, including more challenging comparisons to prior periods as our revenue grows, slowing demand for
our products and subscriptions, increasing competition, a decrease in the growth of our overall market and our failure to capitalize on growth
opportunities. For example, during the COVID-19 pandemic, we have seen significant growth in sales online through the online channels of
our brick-and-mortar or online retail partners as well as through our website in 2020, but there can be no assurance that online sales will
remain at these levels in the future or that we will be able to continue to significantly grow our online channels.
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If we are unable to anticipate user preferences and successfully develop and introduce new, innovative and updated products
in a timely manner, our business may be adversely affected.

Our success in maintaining and increasing our user community depends on our ability to identify trends, as well as to anticipate and
react to changing preferences, which cannot be predicted with certainty. If we are unable to introduce new or enhanced products, or
additional designs and projects, in a timely manner, if such new offerings are not accepted by our user community or if our competitors
introduce similar offerings faster than we do, our business may be adversely affected. We also need to successfully educate our users on
new offerings or improvements to current offerings. Moreover, our new offerings may not receive market acceptance if preferences change
rapidly to different types of personal DIY offerings or away from these types of offerings altogether. Our future success depends in part on our
ability to anticipate and respond to these changes as well as to improve the user experience in each aspect of our business. For example,
some users find our connected machines to be challenging to use or may require user education in order to operate them efficiently or have
the best user experience. If we are not able to make our connected machines easier to use or improve user education and experience, it may
have an adverse effect on our business. In addition, failure to anticipate and respond in a timely manner to changing user preferences could
lead to, among other things, reduced word-of-mouth referrals, lower sales, lower subscription rates, pricing pressure, lower gross margins,
discounting of our existing products and excess inventory levels.

Even if we are successful in anticipating user preferences, our ability to adequately react to and address them will partially depend
upon our continued ability to develop and introduce innovative, high-quality products. Development and launch of new or enhanced products
is time-consuming and requires significant financial investment, which could result in increased costs and a reduction in our profit margins.
We have experienced, and may in the future experience, delays in the planned release dates of new products. Delays could result in adverse
publicity (if potential new product announcements are leaked and then delayed), loss of sales and delay in market acceptance, any of which
could cause us to lose or fail to engage with existing users or impair our ability to attract new users. In addition, the introduction of new
products by competitors could adversely affect our ability to compete. Any delay or failure in the introduction of new products could harm our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

Moreover, we must successfully manage the introduction of new or enhanced products, which could adversely affect the sales of our
existing products. For instance, users may choose to forgo purchasing existing connected machines in advance of new product launches,
and we may experience higher returns from users of existing products after a new product launch occurs. As we introduce new or enhanced
products, we may face additional challenges related to managing a more complex supply chain and manufacturing process, including the
time and cost associated with onboarding and overseeing additional suppliers, contract manufacturers and third-party logistics partners. We
may also face challenges managing the inventory of new or existing products, which could lead to excess inventory and discounting of such
products. In addition, new or enhanced products may have varying selling prices and costs compared to legacy products, which could
negatively impact our gross margins and results of operations.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from sales of our connected machines, and a decline in sales of our connected
machines would adversely affect our future revenue and results of operations.

We derive a significant portion of our revenue from sales of our connected machines. Any factors adversely affecting sales of our
connected machines, including introduction by competitors of comparable machines at lower price points, a maturing product lifecycle,
shortages in our supply or inventory of connected machines, a decline in consumer spending or other factors discussed elsewhere in this
Risk Factors section, could result in a decline in sales of our connected machines, which would adversely affect our future revenue and
results of operations. Moreover, because we derive a significant portion of our revenue from the sale of subscriptions and accessories and
materials as an extension of the sales and use of our connected machines, any material decline in the sales and use of our connected
machines would also have a pronounced impact on the sales of subscriptions and accessories and materials, which would adversely affect
our future revenue and results of operations.
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Our results of operations could be adversely affected if we are unable to accurately forecast consumer demand for our
products or adequately manage our inventory, the manufacturing capacity of our contract manufacturers or their component
supply.

Our ability to accurately forecast demand could be affected by many factors, including changes in consumer demand for our products,
changes in demand for the products of our competitors, unanticipated changes in general market or economic conditions or changes in
consumer confidence in future economic conditions. This risk may be exacerbated by the fact that we do not have the manufacturing
capacity or supply-chain flexibility to satisfy short-term demand increases. For example, during the COVID-19 pandemic and stay-at-home
orders, we saw significant growth in sales in 2020, which has strained our inventory levels and caused shortages that likely resulted in lost
sales. If we fail to accurately forecast consumer demand, we may experience insufficient or excess inventory levels or a shortage or surplus
of products available for sale. If we underestimate demand or are otherwise unable to meet consumer demand, we could experience loss of
revenue, reputational harm and damaged relationships, including through social media or other communications from our community, and
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. If we forecast inventory levels in excess of consumer demand,
this may result in inventory write-downs or write-offs and the sale of excess inventory at discounted prices, which would cause our gross
margins to suffer and could impair the strength and premium nature of our brand image.

We depend on sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, including a limited number of sophisticated key brick-and-
mortar and online retail partners. The loss or substantial decline in volume of sales to any of our key brick-and-mortar and online
retail partners could adversely affect our financial performance.

Our financial performance has been and will continue to be significantly determined by our success in attracting and retaining brick-
and-mortar and online retail partners. For the year ended December 31, 2019 our top six brick-and-mortar and online retail partners
accounted for 64% of product revenue. We anticipate that this concentration will continue for the foreseeable future.

We are dependent on our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to manage the sales of our products in their stores and on their
websites. For example, we depend on brick-and-mortar retail partners to provide adequate and attractive space for our products and point of
purchase displays in their stores and to employ, educate and motivate their sales personnel to sell our products. We also depend on our
brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to adequately market our products on their websites and provide a positive online shopping and
shipping experience for their customers. However, we generally do not have significant input or control over the display or promotion of our
products by our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, and they are generally not prohibited from promoting products of our competitors.

Our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners have demanded and may in the future demand heightened security, product safety
or packaging requirements and specified service levels. If we fail to meet these requirements, we may not only lose a brick-and-mortar and
online retail partner, but we may have to pay significant punitive costs or retailer-imposed fines for such failures. We also impose policies and
guidelines on our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners through our contractual agreements. If a retailer fails to follow the policies and
guidelines in our sales agreements, we may choose to temporarily or permanently stop shipping product to that retailer, which could
adversely affect our revenue and results of operations.

Because our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners have dominant positions in their markets, a loss of any key retailer may
not be easily replaced. The loss or substantial decline in volume of sales to our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners would
adversely affect our financial performance. Moreover, if we are not able to meet demand from our key brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners, they may limit or eliminate our shelf space, fail to feature our products on their websites or cease to offer our products and instead
offer or promote products from our competitors who are able to meet their demands.
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If the financial condition of one or more of our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners weakens, a key retailer stops selling our
products or uncertainty regarding demand for some or all of our products causes one or more of these brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners to reduce its ordering and marketing of our products, it could decrease revenue from sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners and adversely affect our total revenue. Financial difficulties for one or more of our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners
could also expose us to financial risk if such retailer were unable to pay for the products purchased from us. We may not be able to collect
our receivables from our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, or we may incur significant expense in attempting to collect receivables,
which would materially and adversely affect our profitability and cash flows from operations. For example, the COVID-19 pandemic has had a
material adverse effect on many retail chains generally, many of whom were required to close their stores for periods of time, and some of
which have gone out of business. While the challenges that many retail chains experienced during the COVID-19 pandemic have not had a
material adverse effect on our business, such challenges could negatively affect our business and results of operations in the future.

Our long-term growth is dependent upon our ability to increase online sales through the websites of our brick-and-mortar and
online retail partners as well as through our own website. If we do not effectively grow our online channels while reducing our
reliance on our other sales channels, our business, financial condition, results of operations and profitability could be harmed.

Our ability to continue our revenue growth and increase our profitability depends in part upon our ability to successfully implement
certain strategic go-to-market initiatives, including expanding our online sales presence while continuing to work with key brick-and-mortar
and online retail partners. Our online sales include online sales through the websites of our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners as well
as through our own website cricut.com. In the year ended December 31, 2019, 48% of our revenue was generated from these online
channels. During the COVID-19 pandemic, we have seen significant growth in sales from online channels in 2020, but there can be no
assurance that online sales will remain at these levels in the future or that we will be able to continue to significantly grow our online
channels.

To successfully grow our sales through cricut.com, we must continue to drive traffic to our website, convert a larger percentage of
potential brick-and-mortar and online retail partner sales to our website and create and maintain a streamlined and intuitive online shopping
experience. Increasing sales through cricut.com may be costly and may place increased demands on our operational, managerial,
administrative and other resources. We are dependent on our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to manage their own e-commerce
operations effectively and to promote our products through those channels. We or our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners may be
unable to effectively address the challenges involved with increasing online sales, which could negatively affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

Sales through online channels, either through cricut.com or our online retail partners’ websites, could reduce sales by our current
brick-and-mortar retail partners, which could adversely affect our relationship with our brick-and-mortar retail partners, particularly those that
do not have a strong online presence. Based on our strategic initiative to increase sales through online channels, our brick-and-mortar retail
partners may decide not to adequately display our products in store, choose to reduce the in-store space for our products, locate our
products in less than premium positioning in their store, choose not to carry some or all of our products or promote competitors’ products
over ours in store, and as a result, our sales could decrease and our business could be harmed.

If we are not successful in effectively and sustainably growing our online sales channels, through cricut.com and our brick-and-mortar
and online retail partners’ websites, our business, financial condition, results of operations and profitability could be harmed.
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If we are unable to maintain or increase our subscriptions, or if existing users do not renew their subscriptions, our future
revenue and results of operations could be harmed.

As of                        , 2020, approximately one in            of our users was a Paid Subscriber. If we are unable to maintain or increase
subscriptions, which have higher margins than our other products, our future revenue and results of operations could be harmed. Our Paid
Subscribers have no contractual obligation to renew their subscriptions to Cricut Access or Cricut Access Premium after the expiration of
their initial subscription term, and our subscriptions may be offered on a monthly and annual basis. The images and designs on our platform
are available for purchase à la carte, which may limit the incentive for users to purchase subscriptions. Our ability to increase new
subscriptions may decline or fluctuate as a result of a number of factors, including seasonality, the quality of images and projects we offer,
the number of new features and capabilities only offered through our subscriptions, the prices of products offered by our competitors and the
budgets and consumer spending habits of our users. If our users do not renew their subscriptions or if additional users do not purchase
subscriptions, our future revenue and results of operations could be harmed. To the extent that users of our free design apps do not
purchase images, projects or products à la carte or convert to a subscription, our future revenue and results of operations could be harmed.
Finally, any future changes to our subscription model could make our subscriptions less attractive to users or reduce our margins on
subscriptions, which could negatively affect our future revenue and results of operations.

We operate in a highly competitive market and we may be unable to compete successfully against existing and future
competitors.

The markets in which we participate, including the traditional craft market and the other creative or DIY markets we touch, are highly
competitive with limited barriers to entry. We operate and manage our business in three reportable segments: Connected Machines,
Subscription and Accessories and Materials. We face competition in every aspect of our business, but particularly in Accessories and
Materials. Many accessories and materials produced by our competitors, including the private label products of some of our retail partners,
are compatible with our connected machines and are often available for purchase through our retail partners. Our competitors may offer
competing accessories and materials at lower price points or with different features than our products. Moreover, we expect the competition
in the accessories and materials DIY market to intensify in the future as new and existing competitors introduce new or enhanced products
that may compete with our product lines. Because we derive a significant portion of our revenue from the sales of accessories and materials,
any material decline in such sales would have a pronounced impact on our future revenue and results of operations.

We also experience competition in connected machines from sellers of both connected and manual cutting and other machines. For
example, Brother, Graphtec and Silhouette America sell cutting machines, and a number of companies sell heat press machines. Our
Subscriptions business, which provides users with fonts and images for making designs, competes with free content available on the
Internet.

With respect to all of our segments, introduction by competitors of comparable products at lower price points, a maturing product
lifecycle, a decline in consumer spending or other factors could result in a decline in our revenue derived from our products, which may
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

As our product categories mature, new competitive forces and competitors may emerge. As we expand our product offerings, we may
begin to compete in new product offerings with new competitors. Our competitors may develop, or have already developed, products,
features, content, services or technologies that are similar to ours or that achieve greater market acceptance, undertake more successful
product development efforts, create more compelling employment opportunities or marketing campaigns or may adopt more aggressive
pricing policies. Our competitors may develop or acquire, or have already developed or acquired, intellectual property rights that significantly
limit or prevent our ability to compete effectively in the public marketplace. In addition, our competitors may have significantly greater
resources than we do, allowing them to identify and capitalize more efficiently upon opportunities in new markets and consumer preferences
and trends, quickly transition and adapt their products, devote greater resources to marketing
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and advertising or better position themselves to withstand substantial price competition. If we are not able to compete effectively against our
competitors, they may acquire and engage our users or generate revenue at the expense of our efforts, which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Sales of copycat products or unauthorized “gray market” products by brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or
distributors could adversely affect our authorized distribution channels and harm our reputation, business and results of
operations.

Copycat companies or products may attempt to imitate our connected machines and accessories and materials, our brand or the
functionality of our products. When consumers purchase copycat products in lieu of our products, it negatively affects our business and
results of operations. In the past, when we have become aware of such products, we have employed technological or legal measures in an
attempt to halt their distribution, and we plan to continue to employ such measures in the future. However, we may be unable to detect all
copycat products in a timely manner, and, even if we could, technological and legal measures may be insufficient to halt their distribution. In
some cases, particularly in the case of brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors operating outside of the United States, our
available remedies may not be adequate to protect us against the effect of such copycat products. Regardless of whether we can
successfully enforce our rights against the producers of these products, any measures that we may take could require us to expend
significant financial or other resources, which could harm our business, results of operations or financial condition. For example, we are
currently aware of certain unauthorized copycat products, such as mats and other accessories, that are actively marketed for use with our
connected machines and are available through certain major online retail partners. We have taken legal action against certain of the
producers of these copycat products and anticipate expending significant financial or other resources in the future to combat these products.
In addition, to the extent that sales of copycat products create confusion or experiences with our products among consumers, our brand and
business could be harmed. For example, in some cases, users purchase copycat products believing them to be Cricut products and then
inaccurately attribute defects with those products to Cricut, which would adversely affect our reputation. In other cases, our users purchase
copycat accessories to use with their connected machine, but since the copycat accessories are not calibrated correctly to work with our
connected machines, they may have a negative experience and attribute it to the connected machine.

Further, some of our products may find their way to unauthorized outlets or distribution channels. This “gray market” for our products
can undermine authorized brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors who promote and support our products and can
damage our reputation and business, and we may have to spend significant time and resources in the future to challenge such copycat
products and unauthorized “gray market” products.

Competitive pricing pressures, including with respect to our products, subscriptions and shipping, may harm our business
and results of operations.

If we are unable to sustain pricing levels for our products and subscriptions, whether due to competitive pressure or otherwise, our
gross margins could be significantly reduced. Our portfolio of connected machines range from $179.99 to $399.99 MSRP, and subscription
offerings range from $9.99 per month to $95.88 per year for Cricut Access or $119.88 per year for Cricut Access Premium, which includes all
of the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and preferred shipping. Within our accessories and materials, our SKUs range
in price from $0.99 to $279.99.

Demand for our products can be sensitive to price, especially in times of slow or uncertain economic growth and consumer economic
conservatism. Many factors can significantly impact our pricing strategies, including production and personnel costs, as well as other factors
outside of our control, such as consumer sentiment, increases in the price of raw materials, and our competitors’ pricing and marketing
strategies. Changes in our pricing strategies have had, and may continue to have, a significant impact on our revenue and net income. From
time to time, we have made changes to our pricing structure to remain competitive, because if we fail to meet our brick-and-mortar and online
retail partners’ and users’ price expectations, we could lose sales. Furthermore, brick-and-mortar and online retail partners may choose to
offer promotions
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or sales on our products, including our connected machines, and we may have to match those prices on our own website to continue to
attract users to our website to make purchases, which could affect our business and results of operations.  

Many of our accessories and materials, including vinyl, iron-on vinyl, paper, metal, laminate, leather, fabric, stationery, stickers and
other merchandise, are also offered by our competitors at lower prices or with free or accelerated shipping timelines that we either are unable
to or choose not to match. Accordingly, if a user runs out of materials during a project, they may opt to purchase a replacement from a
competitor or other online retail partner, such as Amazon, to receive one or two-day shipping, which we may not be able to offer. In addition,
many of our competitors discount our accessories and materials or competitors’ accessories and materials at significant levels, and, as a
result, we may be compelled to change our discounting strategy, which could impact our business and results of operations. If in the future,
due to competitor discounting, shipping or other marketing strategies, we significantly reduce our prices on our products without a
corresponding increase in sales volume, it would negatively impact our revenue and could adversely affect our gross margins and overall
profitability.

Further, our decisions around the development of new products and subscriptions are grounded in assumptions about eventual
pricing levels. If there is price compression in the market after these decisions are made, our business and results of operations could be
adversely affected.

If we are not able to accurately estimate variable consideration from sales incentives each quarter, it could affect revenue in
future periods.

We participate in promotional and rebate programs with our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to enhance the sale of our
products. These promotional programs consist of incentives or entitlements to our customers, such as advertising allowances, volume and
growth incentives, business development, product damage allowances and point-of-sale support. Sales incentives are considered to be
variable consideration, which we estimate each quarter using the expected value method or most likely amount, based upon the nature of the
incentive. Sales are reduced by the cost of these promotional and rebate programs and we record a related customer rebate liability in our
consolidated balance sheets at the date of the transaction. To the extent that our estimates of variable consideration from sales incentives
each quarter are not accurate, it could affect our revenue in future periods.

We have grown rapidly in recent years and have limited operating experience at our current scale of operations. If we are
unable to manage our growth and the complexity of our business effectively, our brand, company culture and financial
performance may suffer.

We have grown rapidly in recent years and have limited operating experience at our current size. For example, our revenue has
grown from $340 million to $487 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively. In addition, between January 1,
2019 and September 30, 2020, our employee headcount increased from over 350 to over 510, and we expect headcount growth to continue
for the foreseeable future. Further, as we grow, our business becomes increasingly complex, particularly for a company of our relative size.
To effectively manage and capitalize on our growth, we must continue to forecast demand and manage our supply chain, expand our sales
and marketing, focus on innovative product development, upgrade and secure our management information systems and other processes
and obtain more space for our expanding staff. Our continued growth and complexity could strain our existing resources, and we could
experience ongoing operating difficulties in managing our business across numerous jurisdictions, including difficulties in hiring, training and
managing a diffuse and growing employee base. Failure to scale with growth could harm our future success, including our ability to
effectively focus on and pursue our corporate objectives. Moreover, the complicated nature of our business, in which we design our own
products, develop our own design apps, rely on third-party manufacturers and sell our products through brick-and-mortar and online retail
partners, as well as through our website, exposes us to risk and disruption at many points that are critical to successfully operating our
business and may make it more difficult for us to scale our business. If we do not adapt to meet these evolving challenges, including hiring
and maintaining the right number of employees for each aspect of our business, or if our
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management team does not effectively scale with our growth, we may experience erosion to our brand, the quality of our products may suffer
and our company culture may be harmed.

Our growth strategy contemplates an increase in our advertising and other sales and marketing spending, which represented 9% and
8% of revenue in the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively. Successful implementation of our growth strategy will require
significant expenditures before any substantial associated revenue is generated, and we cannot guarantee that these increased investments
will result in corresponding and offsetting revenue growth.

Because we have a limited history of operating our business at its current scale, it is difficult to evaluate our current business and
future prospects, including our ability to plan for and model future growth and anticipate the risks that may affect our business. This limited
operating experience, combined with the complexity of our business and rapidly evolving nature of the market in which we sell our products,
raises substantial uncertainty concerning how these markets and other economic factors beyond our control may develop and reduces our
ability to accurately forecast quarterly or annual revenue. Failure to manage our future growth effectively could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our business is affected by seasonality.
Our business has historically been influenced by seasonal trends. We generate a disproportionate amount of sales activity related to

our products during the fourth quarter, due in large part to seasonal holiday demand. For example, in 2018 and 2019, our fourth quarter
represented           % and           % of total revenue for the year, respectively. Our promotional discounting activity is also higher in the fourth
quarter as well, which negatively impacts gross margin during this period. Accordingly, adverse events that occur during these months could
have a disproportionate effect on our results of operations for the entire fiscal year. In contrast, sales of accessories and materials typically
slow in the second quarter of the year in connection with school summer holidays. Seasonality in our business can also be affected by
introductions of new or enhanced products, including the costs associated with such introductions. Furthermore, our rapid growth in recent
years may obscure the extent to which seasonality trends have affected our business and may continue to affect our business. Accordingly,
yearly or quarterly comparisons of our results of operations may not be useful and our results in any particular period will not necessarily be
indicative of the results to be expected for any future period. Moreover, we have experienced a significant increase in sales since the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the development of a vaccine and/or normalized full-time return to work trends may negatively
impact demand for our products and subscriptions, and our sales activity may diminish as a result.

Our quarterly results of operations and other operating metrics may fluctuate from quarter to quarter, which makes these
metrics difficult to predict.

Our quarterly results of operations and other operating metrics have fluctuated and may continue to fluctuate in the future.
Additionally, our limited operating history at our current scale of operations makes it difficult to forecast our future results. As a result, you
should not rely on our past quarterly results of operations as indicators of future performance. Our financial condition, results of operations
and operating metrics in any given quarter can be influenced by numerous factors, many of which we are unable to predict or are outside of
our control, including those discussed in this Risk Factors section and:

 • the continued market acceptance, and the growth, of the personal craft market;

 • our ability to attract and engage our users, leading to increased sales to them;

 • our development and improvement of the quality of our user experience, including enhancement of existing products, creation
of new products, technology and features and licensing of new content;

 • the continued development and upgrading of our proprietary software;
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 • the timing and success of new products, features and content introductions by us or our competitors or any other change in the

competitive landscape of the markets in which we operate;

 • pricing pressure as a result of competition or otherwise;

 • delays or disruptions in our supply chain;

 • errors in our forecasting of the demand for our products, which could lead to lower revenue, increased costs or both;

 • increases in marketing, sales and other operating expenses;

 • seasonal fluctuations in subscriptions, engagement by users and purchases of accessories and materials;

 • the mix of our products sales from period to period;

 • our ability to maintain gross margins and operating margins;

 • system failures or breaches of security or privacy;

 • adverse litigation judgments, settlements or other litigation-related costs;

 • changes in the legislative or regulatory environment, including with respect to privacy, data protection and security, consumer
product safety and advertising or enforcement by government regulators, including fines, orders or consent decrees;

 • fluctuations in currency exchange rates and changes in the proportion of our revenue and expenses denominated in foreign
currencies;

 • changes in our effective tax rate;

 • changes in accounting standards, policies, guidance, interpretations or principles; and

 • changes in business or macroeconomic conditions, including the impact of the current COVID-19 outbreak, lower consumer
confidence, recessionary conditions, increased unemployment rates or stagnant or declining wages.

Any one of the factors above or the cumulative effect of some of the factors above may result in significant fluctuations in our results
of operations.

The variability and unpredictability of our quarterly results of operations or other operating metrics could result in our failure to meet
our or investors’ expectations or those of analysts that cover us with respect to revenue or other results of operations for a particular period. If
we fail to meet such expectations, the market price of our common stock could fall substantially, and we could face costly lawsuits, including
securities class action suits.

Our future growth depends in part on further penetrating our SAM and TAM and we may not be successful in doing so.
We believe that our growth depends on our ability to reach our market opportunity in terms of our SAM, which includes active

creatives who we address with our current products and price points, and our TAM, which includes potential creatives who we believe we can
reach over the long term as we make products for new uses and products that are more accessible, even easier to use and available at a
broad set of price points. See the section titled “Business – Our Opportunity.” We assess our SAM and TAM in the United States and
Canada, as well as internationally. We believe that in order to further penetrate our SAM and TAM, we must continually improve ease of use
and user experience, launch new products in new categories and expand internationally. For example, some users find our connected
machines to be challenging to use or may require user education in order to operate them efficiently or have the best user experience. If we
are not able to make our connected machines easier to use or improve user education

-25-



 
and experience, we may not be able to expand our SAM and TAM. Our SAM and TAM are representative of a broad demographic. However,
historically we have served a largely female demographic representing 96% of our users as of September 30, 2020. We continue to explore
additional offerings that address new categories that will appeal to a wider demographic. Any new offerings may not appeal to current
consumer preferences and may not be accepted by our user community or potential new users. While we believe our growth depends on our
ability to expand our sales into our SAM and our TAM, we cannot be certain that we will be successful in doing so.

Our focus on delivering a high-quality product, which may not maximize short-term financial results, may yield results that
conflict with the market’s expectations and could result in our stock price being negatively affected.

We focus on delivering a high-quality product, which may not necessarily maximize short-term financial results. We operate on the
conviction that focusing on the needs of our users and our employees will produce positive results for our owners over the long term. We
frequently make business decisions that may reduce our short-term financial results if we believe that the decisions are consistent with our
goals to improve our users’ experience, which we believe will improve our financial results over the long term. These decisions may not be
consistent with the short-term expectations of our stockholders or produce the long-term benefits that we expect, which could hinder the
growth of the number and engagement of our users and harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Any failure to successfully implement new technology or upgrade our information technology systems, or any major
disruption or failure of our information technology systems or websites, could adversely affect our business and operations.

Certain of our information technology systems are designed and maintained by us and are critical for the efficient functioning of our
business, including the manufacture and distribution of our products, online sales of our products and the ability of our users to access their
content and designs. Our rapid growth has, in certain instances, strained these systems. As we grow, we continue to implement modifications
and upgrades to our systems, including sunsetting the use of internal servers and the implementing a company-wide product lifecycle
management system. These changes subject us to inherent costs and risks associated with replacing and upgrading these systems,
including, but not limited to, impairment of our ability to fulfill brick-and-mortar and online retail partners orders and other disruptions in our
business operations. Further, our system implementations may not result in productivity improvements at a level that outweighs the costs of
implementation, or at all.

Our platform is complex and multifaceted, and operational and performance issues could arise both from the platform itself and from
outside factors, such as cybersecurity attacks or other third-party attacks. Errors, failures, vulnerabilities or bugs have been found in the past,
and may in the future be found. Our platform also relies on third-party technology and systems to perform properly, and our platform is often
used in connection with computing environments utilizing different operating systems, system management software, equipment and
networking configurations, which may cause errors in, or failures of, our platform or such other computing environments. Operational and
performance issues with our platform could include the failure of our user interface, outages, errors during upgrades or patches,
unanticipated volume overwhelming our systems, server failure or catastrophic events affecting one or more server farms. While we have
built redundancies in our systems, full redundancies do not exist, and some failures could shut our platform down completely. As our user
community grows and their usage of our services increases, we will be required to make additional investments in network capacity to
maintain adequate data transmission speeds, the availability of which may be limited, and the cost of which may be on terms unacceptable to
us. If adequate capacity is not available to us as our users’ usage increases, our network may be unable to achieve or maintain sufficiently
high reliability or performance. In the event that our users are unable to access our platform or suffer operational issues with our platform, it
could negatively affect their experience with our products and platform and harm our reputation.
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In addition, any unexpected technological interruptions to our systems, internal servers or websites could disrupt our operations,
including our ability to process orders, timely ship and track product orders, project inventory requirements, manage our supply chain, sell our
products online, provide Cricut Member Care and otherwise adequately serve our community. Specifically, a portion of our online sales
comes directly from cricut.com, and any system interruptions or delays could prevent potential customers from purchasing our products
directly from us. If users or potential customers fail to purchase our products directly from us, or if we are otherwise unable to maintain an
efficient and uninterrupted operation of online order-taking and fulfillment operations, our revenue will be negatively impacted. In the event
we experience significant disruptions or are unable to repair our systems in an efficient and timely manner, it could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our sales to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners can be subject to lower gross margins, heightened product or
packaging requirements or long ramp up times.

Our top six brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, measured by the product revenue we derive from them, accounted for 64% of
product revenue in 2019. Gross margins from sales to retailers may decline as a result of a number of factors outside our control, including
tariffs as a result of trade wars and our reliance on a primary contract manufacturer which holds influence over the supply chain. This may
magnify the impact of variations in revenue and operating costs on our results of operations, which in turn could adversely affect our overall
margins and profitability. We had in 2018 and 2019, and may continue to have in the future, low gross margins in the early stages of our
relationships with certain brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, particularly international brick-and-mortar and online retail partners that
often require significant ramp-up periods, which has and may in the future adversely affect our total revenue. To compete effectively, we have
been, and may in the future decide to offer significant discounts to large brick-and-mortar and online retail partners at lower margins or
reduce or withdraw from existing relationships with smaller brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, which could negatively impact our
revenue and could adversely affect our gross margins and overall profitability.

We rely on a limited number of distributors to generate a portion of our sales, particularly in our international target markets.
The loss of, or a substantial decline in, volume of sales from any of our key distributors could adversely affect our financial
performance.

We rely on a limited number of distributors for certain domestic sales, including to help establish relationships with certain retailers,
and primarily sell through distributors internationally. If we lose any of our key distributors, particularly in our international target markets, if we
are unable to meet our key distributors’ demand requirements or if our key distributors sell competing products, our business and results of
operations could be adversely affected. Moreover, because certain of our key distributors may have dominant positions in their markets, such
key distributors may not be easy to replace and the loss of a key distributor could also impact our relationships with certain retailers. Any loss
of market share or financial difficulties faced by our key distributors, including bankruptcy and financial restructuring, could adversely affect
our financial performance.

We also continue to pursue direct to retailer sales, which may impact our relationships with existing distributors. In the future, we may
choose to temporarily or permanently stop shipping product to distributors who do not follow the policies and guidelines in our sales
agreements, which could adversely affect our revenue and results of operations.

Additionally, our international distributors generally buy from us in U.S. dollars and generally sell to retailers in local currency, so
significant currency fluctuations could affect their profitability, and in turn, affect their ability to buy products from us in the future. For
example, the COVID-19 pandemic has created significant short-term volatility in global stock markets and has caused currency exchange
rate fluctuations that make it more expensive for international distributors to purchase our products. Any reduction in sales by our
international retailers could harm our international expansion and adversely affect our future growth.
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Our future success depends on the continuing efforts of our key employees and our ability to attract and retain highly skilled
personnel and senior management.

Our future success depends, in part, on our ability to continue to identify, attract, develop, integrate and retain qualified and highly
skilled personnel, including senior management, engineers, designers, product managers, logistics and supply chain personnel, retail
managers and Cricut Member Care personnel. In particular, we are highly dependent on the services of Ashish Arora, our Chief Executive
Officer and the founder of our current product family and business model, who is critical to the development of, future vision for and strategic
direction of our business. We also heavily rely on the continued service and performance of our senior management team, which provides
leadership, contributes to the core areas of our business and helps us to efficiently execute our strategic direction. If our senior management
team, including any new hires that we make, fails to work together effectively and to execute our plans and strategies on a timely basis, then
our business and future growth prospects could be harmed.

Additionally, the loss of any key personnel could make it more difficult to manage our operations and research and development
activities, reduce our employee retention and revenue and impair our ability to compete. In connection with this offering, we will enter into
employment letters with our key personnel. These letters have no specific duration and constitute at-will employment. We do not maintain
key person life insurance policies on any of our employees.

Competition for highly skilled personnel in our industry is often intense. We may not be successful in attracting, integrating or retaining
qualified personnel to fulfill our current or future needs. We have from time to time experienced, and we expect to continue to experience,
difficulty in hiring and retaining highly skilled employees with appropriate qualifications. In addition, job candidates and existing employees
often consider the value of the equity awards they receive in connection with their employment. If the perceived value of our common stock
declines, it may adversely affect our ability to hire or retain highly skilled employees. In addition, we may periodically change our equity
compensation practices, which may include reducing the number of employees eligible for equity awards or reducing the size of equity
awards granted per employee. If we are unable to attract, integrate or retain the qualified and highly skilled personnel required to fulfill our
current or future needs, our business and future growth prospects could be harmed.

Our success depends on our ability to maintain the value and reputation of the Cricut brand.
We believe that our brand is important to our large and loyal community of users, many of whom become deeply engaged with our

brand. Maintaining, protecting and enhancing our brand depends largely on the success of our marketing efforts, our ability to provide
consistent, high-quality products, services, features, content and support and our ability to successfully secure, maintain and defend our
rights to use the Cricut, Cricut Access, Cricut EasyPress, Cricut Explorer, Cricut Maker and Design Space marks and other trademarks
important to our brand or that we develop in the future. Our brand value also depends on our ability to maintain a positive user perception of
our corporate integrity and culture. We believe that the importance of our brand will increase as competition further intensifies and brand
promotion activities may require substantial expenditures. Our brand could be harmed if we fail to achieve these objectives or if our public
image were to be tarnished by negative publicity, including through social media or other communications from our community. Unfavorable
publicity about us, including our products, technology, Cricut Member Care, content, personnel and suppliers could diminish confidence in,
and the use of, our products. Such negative publicity also could adversely affect the size, engagement and loyalty of our user base or the
effectiveness of word-of-mouth marketing, and result in decreased revenue, or require us to expend additional funds for marketing efforts,
which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We rely on Amazon Web Services for a substantial portion of our computing, storage, data processing, networking and other
services. Any disruption of or interference with our use of Amazon Web Services or other third-party services could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We rely on Amazon Web Services for a substantial portion of our computing, storage, data processing, networking and other services.
Any significant disruption of, or interference with, our use of Amazon Web Services could adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations. Amazon Web Services has broad discretion to change and interpret the terms of service and other policies with
respect to us, and those actions may be unfavorable to our business operations. Amazon Web Services may also take actions beyond our
control that could seriously harm our business, including discontinuing or limiting our access to one or more services, increasing pricing
terms, terminating or seeking to terminate our contractual relationship altogether or altering how we are able to process data in a way that is
unfavorable or costly to us. Although we expect that we could obtain similar services from other third parties, if our arrangements with
Amazon Web Services were terminated, we could experience interruptions on our platform and in our ability to make our content available to
users, as well as delays and additional expenses in arranging for alternative cloud infrastructure services. Any transition of the cloud services
currently provided by Amazon Web Services to another cloud provider would be difficult to implement and will cause us to incur significant
time and expense.

Additionally, we are vulnerable to service interruptions experienced by Amazon Web Services and other providers, and we expect to
experience interruptions, delays or outages in service availability in the future due to a variety of factors, including infrastructure changes,
human, hardware or software errors, hosting disruptions and capacity constraints. Outages and capacity constraints could arise from a
number of causes such as technical failures, natural disasters, fraud or security attacks. The level of service provided by these providers, or
regular or prolonged interruptions in that service, could also affect the use of, and our users’ satisfaction with, our products and services and
could harm our business and reputation. In addition, hosting costs will increase as user engagement grows, which could harm our business if
we are unable to grow our revenue faster than the cost of using these services or the services of other providers. Any of these factors could
further reduce our revenue or subject us to liability, any of which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

If we fail to offer high-quality customer support, our business and reputation will suffer.
Once users purchase our products, they depend on Cricut Member Care to resolve technical and operational issues relating to our

products. Our ability to provide effective customer support is largely dependent on our ability to attract, train and retain qualified personnel
with experience in supporting customers using complex products and software such as ours. We spend significant time and resources in
training our Cricut Member Care team to effectively use our software and to resolve any issues that may arise with Design Space, Cricut
Access and Cricut Access Premium. A variety of factors including an increase in sales or fluctuation in demand for support due to seasonality
or other factors, have and will continue to put additional pressure on our customer support team. In particular, the COVID-19 pandemic-
related closure of our offices has forced our Cricut Member Care staff to work from home, which has and may continue to result in work-
productivity issues or a decrease in efficiencies, particularly during times of high call volume as we have seen when delivery lead times get
longer. We may be unable to respond quickly enough to accommodate short-term increases in demand for technical support. In addition, as
we continue to grow our operations and expand internationally, our Cricut Member Care team will face additional challenges, including those
associated with delivering support, training and documentation in languages other than English and across various time zones globally. If we
are unable to provide efficient customer support globally at scale, our ability to grow our operations may be harmed, and we may need to hire
additional support personnel, which could negatively impact our results of operations, particularly if it is not accompanied by a corresponding
increase in revenue. In addition, we provide self-service support resources to our users, some of which rely on engagement and collaboration
by and with other users. If we are unable to continue to develop self-service support resources that are easy to use and allow our users to
resolve their technical issues, or if our users choose not to collaborate or engage with other users on technical support issues, our self-
service support resources may not be effective, and our users’ experience
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with our platform may be negatively impacted. Any failure to, or market perception that we do not, maintain high-quality support, including
through social media or other communications from our community, could harm our reputation, our ability to attract new users, the
engagement of our existing users with our platform and our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our business depends on the integration of our software across a wide range of desktop and mobile devices and operating
systems that are outside of our control.

Users engage with our software across a wide range of desktop and mobile devices and from a number of operating systems that are
outside of our control. We are dependent on the interoperability of our software, as well as Cricut Access, Cricut Access Premium, Cricut Joy
App, Design Space and other design apps, with popular desktop and mobile operating systems, such as Android and iOS. Any changes in
such systems that degrade the functionality of our software or design apps or give preferential treatment to competitors could adversely
affect our software’s usage on desktop and mobile devices. To deliver high-quality images and projects, it is important that our software is
designed effectively and works well with a range of third-party desktop and mobile systems, networks and standards. We may not be
successful in developing relationships with key participants with original equipment manufacturing or mobile industry or in developing
software that operate effectively with these technologies, systems, networks or standards. For example, mobile network operators or
operating system providers could block or place onerous restrictions on the ability to download and use our software.

Outside of the United States, it is possible that governments of one or more countries may seek to censor images or projects
available on our software or website or even attempt to block access to our website or design apps. If we are restricted from operating in one
or more countries, our ability to attract and engage users in those regions may be adversely affected, and we may not be able to grow our
business as we anticipate.

Failures in Internet infrastructure or interference with broadband access, including regulatory actions, could cause current or
potential users to believe that our platform system or design apps are unreliable, possibly leading our users to switch to our
competitors or to avoid using our products and subscriptions.

Many of our products and our subscriptions depend on our users’ high-speed broadband access to the Internet. Increasing numbers
of users and increasing bandwidth requirements may degrade the performance of our users’ Internet access and therefore their access to or
experience with our services and design apps. In particular, during the COVID-19 pandemic, many people are working or attending school
from home, significantly increasing the number of users and volume of data on residential Internet systems. If Internet access service
providers have outages or deteriorations in their quality of service, our users will not have access to our platform or may experience a
decrease in the quality of our services. Frequent or persistent interruptions, even if resulting from users’ personal Internet access rather than
our systems, could cause current or potential users to believe that our systems or services are unreliable, leading them to switch to our
competitors or avoid using our products and subscriptions, and could permanently harm our reputation and brands.

In addition, users who access our subscriptions and design apps through mobile devices, such as smartphones and tablets, should
utilize a high-speed connection, such as Wi-Fi, 4G, 5G or LTE, to ensure the best experience with our services and design apps. Currently,
this access is provided by companies that have significant and increasing market power in the broadband and Internet access marketplace,
including incumbent phone companies, cable companies and wireless companies. These providers could take measures that degrade,
disrupt or increase the cost of user access to high-speed Internet connections, any of which would make our design apps and subscriptions
less attractive to users, and reduce our revenue. Failures of Internet infrastructure or interference with broadband access may also impact
our international expansion in countries that lack widespread high-speed Internet.

Further, in January 2018, the Federal Communications Commission, or the FCC, released an order reclassifying broadband Internet
access as an information service, subject to certain provisions of Title I of
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the Communications Act of 1934. Among other things, the order eliminates rules adopted in 2015 that prohibited broadband providers from
blocking, impairing or degrading access to legal content, applications, services or non-harmful devices or engaging in the practice of paid
prioritization, e.g., the favoring of some lawful Internet traffic over other traffic in exchange for higher payments. The order was contested in
federal court, but was largely affirmed by a three-judge panel; the request for rehearing was denied and the parties declined to appeal the
decision to the U.S. Supreme Court. A number of states have enacted or are considering legislation or executive actions that would regulate
the conduct of broadband providers. We cannot predict whether the FCC order or state initiatives will be modified, overturned or vacated by
legal action of the court, federal or state legislation or the FCC. Under the new FCC rules, broadband Internet access providers may be able
to charge web-based services such as ours for priority access to customers, which could result in increased costs to us and a loss of existing
users, impair our ability to attract new users and materially and adversely affect our business and opportunities for growth.

We may be subject to warranty claims and brick-and-mortar and online retail partner return policies that could result in
significant direct or indirect costs, or we could experience greater product returns than expected, either of which could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We generally provide a one-year limited warranty on our connected machines and customer satisfaction guarantees on certain other
products, and we permit returns of certain products for a full refund within 15 days of receipt of order. Additionally, our brick-and-mortar and
online retail partners and distributors provide users with their own respective warranty and/or return policies relative to our connected
machines, accessories and materials and other Cricut products they sell, which in turn flow down to us as a contractual obligation and/or
allowance that we must honor. The occurrence of any material defects in our connected machines or certain other products, or the flow-down
obligations for brick-and-mortar and online retail partner and distributor returns, could result in an increase in product returns or make us
liable for damages and warranty claims and/or returns in excess of our current reserves, which could result in an adverse effect on our
business prospects, liquidity, financial condition and cash flows if warranty claims were to materially exceed anticipated levels. In addition, we
could incur significant costs to correct any defects, warranty claims or other problems, including costs related to product recalls. We have
experienced negative publicity related to the perceived quality and safety of our products, including social media or other communications
from our community, and we may experience such negative publicity in the future. Such negative publicity could increase the number of
warranty claims made, affect our brand image, decrease user confidence and demand and adversely affect our financial condition and
results of operations. Also, while our warranty is limited to repairs and returns, warranty claims may result in litigation, the occurrence of
which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition to warranties supplied by us, our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners may offer the option for users to purchase
third-party extended warranty and services contracts in some markets, which creates an ongoing performance obligation beyond the
warranty period. Extended warranties are regulated in the United States on a state level and are treated differently by each state. Outside the
United States, regulations for extended warranties vary from country to country. Changes in interpretation of the insurance regulations or
other laws and regulations concerning extended warranties on a federal, state, local or international level may cause us to incur costs or
have additional regulatory requirements to meet in the future. Our failure to comply with past, present and future similar laws could result in
reduced sales of our products, reputational damage, penalties and other sanctions, which could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Product recalls and/or product liability, as well as changes in product safety and other consumer protection laws, may
adversely affect our operations, merchandise offerings, reputation, results of operations, cash flow and financial condition.

We are subject to regulations by a variety of federal, state and international regulatory authorities, including the Consumer Product
Safety Act, amended by the Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act of 2008, California Proposition 65 (officially known as the Safe
Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986), the European Union’s, or EU’s, European Regulation on Registration, Evaluation,
Authorisation
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and Restriction of Chemicals and Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive. While our contracts with our suppliers and manufacturers
require them to comply with product safety requirements and quality control standards, one or more of our suppliers or contract
manufacturers may fail to adhere to such requirements or standards, and we may not identify the deficiency before merchandise ships to
brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users. These issues may be exacerbated in the case of products like ours that are
manufactured outside the United States, as the product safety regimes in some countries may be less robust than in the United States. Any
issues of product safety, including but not limited to those manufactured in foreign countries, could cause us to recall some of those products.
Furthermore, to the extent we are unable to replace any recalled products, we may have to reduce our product offerings, resulting in a
decrease in sales, especially if a recall occurs near or during a period of seasonally higher demand. If our suppliers or manufacturers are
unable or unwilling to recall products failing to meet our quality standards, we may be required to recall those products at a substantial cost to
us. Moreover, changes in product safety or other consumer protection laws could lead to increased costs to us for certain merchandise, or
additional labor costs associated with readying merchandise for sale. Long lead times on merchandise ordering cycles increase the difficulty
for us to plan and prepare for potential changes to applicable laws. The Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act of 2008 imposes
significant requirements on manufacturing, importing, testing and labeling requirements for our products. In the event that we are unable to
timely comply with regulatory changes or regulators do not believe we are complying with current regulations applicable to us, significant
fines or penalties could result and could adversely affect our reputation, results of operations, cash flow and financial condition.

Furthermore, any product defects could make our products and services unsafe, create a risk of property damage and personal injury,
harm our reputation and subject us to the hazards and uncertainties of product liability claims and related litigation. For example, we are
aware of several situations in which our products were investigated as the potential cause of a fire. While we believe that in each of those
cases, the investigations determined a different cause of the fire, any perception that our products are unsafe could harm our reputation and
sales and use of our products. We maintain general liability insurance; however, design and manufacturing defects, and claims related
thereto, may subject us to judgments or settlements that result in damages materially in excess of the limits of our insurance coverage. In
addition, we may be exposed to write-offs of inventory or intangible assets or other expenses such as litigation costs and regulatory fines. If
we cannot successfully defend any large claim, maintain our general liability insurance on acceptable terms or maintain adequate coverage
against potential claims, our business, results of operations and financial condition could be adversely impacted.

Changes in how we market our products could adversely affect our marketing expenses and revenue.
We use a broad mix of marketing and other brand-building measures to attract potential customers. Traditionally, our users have been

our most effective marketing tools, helping to generate robust word-of-mouth referrals, which have been significant drivers of our growth.
However, we also employ traditional online advertising as marketing tools or market through third-party social media. As online and social
media continue to rapidly evolve and grow more competitive, we must increase our efforts to maintain an advertising presence on these
platforms and establish a presence on new or emerging popular social media and advertising and marketing platforms.

If our community of users does not continue to promote our products through word-of-mouth referrals at the same or increasing rates
or we otherwise experience a decline in our ability to acquire new users organically, we will need to expend additional resources on
advertising and increase our marketing expenses. Moreover, we expect our efforts to attract new users outside of the United States and
Canada will require us to spend additional resources, particularly in marketing. If we cannot use marketing tools in a cost-effective manner or
if we fail to promote our products efficiently and effectively, our ability to acquire new users and our financial condition may suffer. In addition,
an increase in the use of online and social media for product promotion and marketing may increase the burden on us to monitor compliance
of such materials and increase the risk that such materials could contain problematic product or marketing claims in violation of applicable
regulations.
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User metrics and other estimates are subject to inherent challenges in measurement, and real or perceived inaccuracies in
those metrics could harm our business, revenue and financial results.

We regularly review metrics, including the number of our users, the number of times users have created on their connected machines
in the last 90 days, the number of Paid Subscribers and other measures to evaluate engagement and growth trends, to measure our
performance and to make strategic decisions. These metrics are calculated using internal company data and have not been validated by an
independent third party. While these numbers are based on what we currently believe to be reasonable estimates for the applicable period of
measurement, there are inherent challenges in measuring how our products are used across our user population. If we fail to maintain
effective analytics capabilities, our metrics calculations may be inaccurate, and we may not be able to identify those inaccuracies.

An economic downturn or economic uncertainty may adversely affect consumer discretionary spending and demand for our
products.

Our products and subscriptions may be considered discretionary items for consumers. Factors affecting the level of consumer
spending for such discretionary items include general economic conditions, consumer confidence in future economic conditions, fears of
recession, the availability and cost of consumer credit, levels of unemployment and tax rates. While we have seen an increase in demand for
our products and subscriptions during the COVID-19 pandemic, there is no guarantee that such trends will continue at the same rate in the
future or at all. To date, our business has operated almost exclusively in a relatively strong economic environment and, therefore, we cannot
be sure the extent to which we may be affected by recessionary conditions. Unfavorable economic conditions may lead consumers to delay
or reduce purchases of our products and subscriptions, and consumer demand for our products and subscriptions may not grow as we
expect. Our sensitivity to economic cycles and any related fluctuation in consumer demand for our products and subscriptions could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Covenants in the New Credit Agreement governing our secured revolving New Credit Facility may restrict our ability to grow
our business, and if we do not effectively manage our business to comply with these covenants, our financial condition could be
adversely affected.

In September 2020, we entered into a credit agreement, or the New Credit Agreement, with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Citibank,
N.A. and Origin Bank, providing for a three-year secured revolving New Credit Facility with aggregate lender commitments of $150 million.
We have the option to increase the lender commitments by up to $200 million (for maximum aggregate lender commitments of up to $350
million), subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions under the New Credit Agreement, including obtaining the consent of the
administrative agent and each lender being added or increasing its commitment. The New Credit Facility is a standard asset-based lending
facility, meaning that notwithstanding the aggregate lender commitments, we can only borrow up to an amount equal to our borrowing base
at any given time. For example, as of             , we were able to borrow up to $           . Our borrowing base is determined according to certain
percentages of eligible accounts receivable and eligible inventory (which may be valued at average cost, market value or net orderly
liquidation value), subject to reserves determined by the administrative agent. At any time that our borrowing base is less than the aggregate
lender commitments, we can only borrow revolving loans up to the amount of our borrowing base and not in the full amount of the aggregate
lender commitments.

The New Credit Agreement and related loan documents contain various restrictive covenants, including, among other things, a
minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, restrictions on our ability to dispose of assets, make acquisitions or investments, incur debt or liens,
make distributions to our stockholders or enter into certain types of related party transactions. These restrictions may restrict our current and
future operations, particularly our ability to respond to certain changes in our business or industry or take future actions. Pursuant to the New
Credit Agreement and related loan documents, we granted a security interest in substantially all of our assets. See the section titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources—Credit
Agreement” for additional information.
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Our ability to comply with these restrictive covenants and limitations on our ability to grow our business can be impacted by events
beyond our control and we may be unable to do so. The New Credit Agreement provides that our breach or failure to satisfy certain
covenants constitutes an event of default. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, our lenders could elect to declare all amounts
outstanding under the New Credit Agreement to be immediately due and payable or proceed against the assets we provided as collateral. If
the debt under the New Credit Agreement was to be accelerated, we may not have sufficient cash on hand or be able to sell sufficient
collateral to repay it, which would have an immediate adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

We may require additional capital to support business growth and objectives, and this capital may not be available to us on
reasonable terms, if at all, and could result in stockholder dilution.

We expect that our existing cash and cash equivalents, together with our net proceeds from this offering, will be sufficient to meet our
anticipated cash needs for the foreseeable future. However, we intend to continue to make investments to support our business growth and
may require additional capital to fund our business and to respond to competitive challenges, including the need to promote our products,
develop new products, enhance our existing products and operating infrastructure and potentially to acquire complementary businesses and
technologies. Accordingly, we may need to engage in equity or debt financings to secure additional funds. There can be no assurance that
such additional funding will be available on terms attractive to us, or at all. Our inability to obtain additional funding when needed could
adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. If additional funds are raised through the issuance of equity or
convertible debt securities, holders of our common stock could suffer significant dilution, and any new shares we issue could have rights,
preferences and privileges superior to those of our common stock. Any debt financing secured by us in the future could involve restrictive
covenants relating to our capital-raising activities and other financial and operational matters, which may make it more difficult for us to obtain
additional capital and to pursue business opportunities, including potential acquisitions.

If we cannot maintain our culture as we grow, we could lose the innovation and teamwork that we believe contribute to our
success and our business may be harmed.

We believe that a critical component of our success has been our corporate culture. As we continue to grow, including by expanding
our presence internationally, and develop the infrastructure associated with being a public company, we will need to maintain our culture
among a larger number of employees, dispersed across various geographic regions. The widespread stay-at-home orders resulting from the
COVID-19 pandemic have required us to make substantial changes to the way that the vast majority of our employee population does their
work, and we have faced new and unforeseen challenges arising from the management of remote, geographically-dispersed teams. Any
failure to preserve our culture could adversely affect our future success, including our ability to retain and recruit personnel and to effectively
focus on and pursue our corporate objectives.

Our management team has limited experience managing a public company.
Most members of our management team have limited experience managing a publicly traded company, interacting with public

company investors and complying with the increasingly complex laws pertaining to public companies. Specifically, Ashish Arora, our Chief
Executive Officer, has not previously been the chief executive officer of a publicly traded company. Our management team may not
successfully or efficiently manage our transition to being a public company subject to significant regulatory oversight and reporting obligations
under the federal securities laws and the continuous scrutiny of securities analysts and investors. These new obligations and constituents will
require significant attention from our senior management and could divert their attention away from the day-to-day management of our
business, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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We may experience fluctuations in our tax obligations and effective tax rate.
We are subject to a variety of taxes and tax collection obligations in the United States and in numerous other foreign jurisdictions. We

record tax expense, including indirect taxes, based on current tax payments and our estimates of future tax payments, which may include
reserves for estimates of probable or likely settlements of tax audits. Fluctuations in our tax obligations and effective tax rate could adversely
affect our business.

In the ordinary course of our business, there are numerous transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain. For example, our effective tax rates could be adversely affected by earnings being lower than anticipated in countries where we
have lower statutory rates and higher than anticipated in countries where we have higher statutory rates, by changes in foreign currency
exchange rates or by changes in the relevant tax, accounting and other laws, regulations, principles and interpretations. As we operate in
numerous taxing jurisdictions, the application of tax laws can be subject to diverging and sometimes conflicting interpretations by tax
authorities of these jurisdictions. It is not uncommon for taxing authorities in different countries to have conflicting views with respect to,
among other things, the manner in which the arm’s-length standard is applied for transfer pricing purposes, or with respect to the valuation of
intellectual property. Although we believe that our tax positions and related provisions reflected in the financial statements are fully
supportable, we recognize that these tax positions and related provisions have been challenged and may be challenged in the future by
various tax authorities. These tax positions and related provisions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and are adjusted as additional facts and
information become available, including progress on tax audits, changes in interpretation of tax laws, developments in case law and closing
of statute of limitations. To the extent that the ultimate results differ from our original or adjusted estimates, our effective tax rate can be
adversely affected.

Projected levels of taxable income and tax planning could change the effective tax rate and tax balances recorded by us. In addition,
tax authorities periodically review income tax returns filed by us and can raise issues regarding our filing positions, timing and amount of
income and deductions and the allocation of income among the jurisdictions in which we operate. A significant period of time may elapse
between the filing of an income tax return and the ultimate resolution of an issue raised by a tax authority with respect to that return. Any
adjustments as a result of any examination may result in additional taxes or penalties being assessed on or imposed against us. If the
ultimate result of any audit differs from original or adjusted estimates, it could have a material impact our effective tax rate and tax liabilities.

At any one time, multiple tax years could be subject to audit by various taxing jurisdictions. As a result, we could be subject to higher
than anticipated tax liabilities as well as ongoing variability in our quarterly tax rates as audits close and exposures are re-evaluated.

We continue to analyze our exposure for taxes and related liabilities and have accrued $0.88 million and $3.99 million for the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively, for loss contingencies resulting from potential taxes and related liabilities.

We may incur significant losses from fraud.
We have incurred and may in the future incur losses from various types of fraud, including stolen credit card numbers, claims that a

user did not authorize a purchase, merchant fraud and users who have closed bank accounts or have insufficient funds in open bank
accounts to satisfy payments. In addition to the direct costs of such losses, if the fraud is related to credit card transactions and becomes
excessive, it could result in us paying higher fees or losing the right to accept credit cards for payment. In addition, under current credit card
practices, we are typically liable for fraudulent credit card transactions. Our failure to adequately prevent fraudulent transactions could
damage our reputation, result in litigation or regulatory action and lead to expenses that could substantially impact our results of operations.
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Risks Related to Manufacturing, Supply Chain and Fulfillment
We primarily depend upon a single contract manufacturer, and our operations would be disrupted if we encountered problems

with the contract manufacturer.
We depend on third-party contract manufacturers to produce all of our products, and primarily rely upon one contract manufacturer,

Xiamen Intretech, Inc. and its affiliates, or Intretech, to build our connected machines. The agreements with our top vendors in 2018 and
2019, including Intretech, each have an initial term of five years from 2018 and automatically renew for subsequent periods of one year
unless either party provides notice of non-renewal at least 60 days prior to the expiration of the initial term. Such agreements may be
terminated by the vendors only for cause, such as (i) a breach of our payment obligation for accepted products that is not cured within ten
days after notice from the vendor or (ii) certain events relating to our insolvency or filing a petition for bankruptcy. Such agreements may be
terminated by us for cause, such as (i) failure to deliver products pursuant to the terms of the agreement, (ii) breaches of product warranty,
indemnity or insurance; intellectual property; property and representations and covenants contained in the agreements; (iii) breaches of any
other representations and warranties that are not cured within five days after notice or (iv) certain events relating to our top vendors’
insolvency or their filing a petition for bankruptcy. We may also terminate the agreements for convenience for any reason by giving 60 days’
prior written notice to the vendor.

As is the case generally with contract manufacturers, Intretech may be vulnerable to capacity constraints and reduced component
availability, and our control over delivery schedules, manufacturing yields and costs, particularly when components are in short supply or
when we introduce new products or features, is limited. In addition, we must rely on Intretech to manufacture our connected machines and
other accessories and materials to our quality and performance standards and specifications. Delays, component shortages and other
manufacturing and supply problems could impair the distribution of our connected machines and ultimately our brand, or could negatively
affect our gross margins. Furthermore, any adverse change in Intretech’s or our other contract manufacturers’ financial or business
conditions could disrupt our ability to supply our products to our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors and online sales
channels. In addition, Intretech primarily manufactures our connected machines at one facility located in the People’s Republic of China, or
China, which may be subject to political, economic, social and legal uncertainties that may harm our relationships with these parties. Our
other contract manufacturers are also located in China and Malaysia, which may increase supply risk, including the risk of supply
interruptions.

Our contract with Intretech does not obligate them to supply our connected machines in any specific quantity or at any specific price
and allows us to enter purchase orders with Intretech. Entering into agreements requiring additional purchase orders is a typical part of our
business and is common practice with other vendors that we may use from time to time. If Intretech fails for any reason to continue
manufacturing our connected machines in required volumes, in a timely manner, at high quality levels or at all, we may have to increase
connected machine production at currently qualified contract manufacturers or engage acceptable alternative contract manufacturers, either
of which would be time consuming, particularly given the complexity of our connected machines. Identifying, selecting and onboarding
acceptable alternative contract manufacturers could also be costly. Alternative contract manufacturers may not be available to us when
needed or may not be in a position to satisfy our production requirements at commercially reasonable prices or to our quality and
performance standards. Any significant interruption in manufacturing at Intretech would reduce our supply of connected machines, which
could cause us to delay our orders or breach our purchase orders with our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors and online
sales channels, which in turn would reduce our revenue and user growth.

If our third-party contract manufacturers are unable to meet our needs, as a result of operational issues or other factors, our
business would be harmed. The location of our third-party manufacturers in China and Malaysia may exacerbate some of these
risks.

We believe that we must continue to upgrade and expand our current third-party contract manufacturer production capability to meet
our projected revenue targets and quality control requirements. Operational difficulties, such as a significant interruption in the operations of
or equipment breakdowns in production facilities operated by third parties, could delay production or shipment of our products. In
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addition, events such as inclement weather, natural disasters, government shut-downs as a result of pandemics or civil unrest, labor strikes
or shortages, transportation security vulnerabilities or cyberattacks could impair third-party production capabilities. The inability of our third-
party contract manufacturers to meet our production requirements, particularly in our peak season, could lead to customer dissatisfaction,
impact sales and damage our reputation and brand, which would result in reduced revenue. Moreover, if the costs of meeting production
requirements, including capital expenditures, were to exceed our expectations, our results of operations would be harmed.

Our third-party manufacturers, including Intretech, are largely based in China, though we have moved, and may continue to move, an
increasing portion of our manufacturing to Malaysia. As a result, our manufacturing, and therefore our business, financial condition and
results of operations may be adversely affected by social, political, regulatory and economic developments in China and Malaysia. In
particular, the COVID-19 pandemic has caused, and will likely continue to cause, interruptions in the development, manufacturing (including
the sourcing of key components) and shipment of our connected machines, which could adversely impact our revenue, gross margins and
results of operations. Such interruptions may be due to, among other things, temporary closures of our facilities or those of our contract
manufacturers or other vendors in our supply chain, restrictions on travel or the import and export of goods and services from certain ports
that we use and local quarantines.

Any adverse change in the operations of our manufacturers, including as a result of political, social, economic or transportation
conditions in China or Malaysia, could affect deliveries of our products to our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users, possibly
resulting in business interruptions, substantially delayed or lost sales, loss of inventory or increased expenses that cannot be passed on to
brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users, any of which could ultimately adversely affect our business and financial results.

We rely on a limited number of third-party suppliers, some of which are sole-source suppliers, and many of which are located
internationally, to provide components to our manufacturers, as well as to source our accessories and materials, which may lead
to supply shortages, long lead times for components and supply changes, any of which could disrupt our supply chain and may
negatively affect our business.

All of the components that go into the manufacturing of our products, as well as our accessories and materials, are sourced from a
limited number of third-party suppliers, many of which are located internationally. Some of the key components our manufacturers use in the
production of our products come from a limited or single source of supply. We are subject to the risk of shortages and long lead times in the
supply of these components or accessories and materials, and the risk that our suppliers discontinue or modify components used in our
products. In addition, the lead times associated with procuring certain components or accessories and materials are lengthy and preclude
rapid changes in quantities and delivery schedules and could increase for a number of reasons outside our control, including natural disaster,
a pandemic, social or political unrest or other interruptions. In particular, the COVID-19 pandemic has caused, and will likely continue to
cause, interruptions in the development, manufacturing, sourcing and shipment of our products, which could adversely affect our revenue,
gross margins and results of operations. During the COVID-19 pandemic, we have also purchased components on behalf of our contract
manufacturers to ensure they have sufficient supply, and may continue to do so in the future. To the extent that we do not accurately forecast
the components we purchase, we may be left paying for components that our contract manufacturers do not need. Furthermore, most of our
contract manufacturers’ primary facilities are located in China and Malaysia, which exposes us to certain additional risks in addition to the
above that could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. For example, we have experienced issues with
the import of goods and services from certain ports. If we or our contract manufacturers lose access to components or accessories and
materials from a particular supplier or experience a significant disruption in the supply of products and components from a current supplier,
we may be unable to locate alternative suppliers of comparable quality on terms that are acceptable to us, or at all, which may undermine our
ability to deliver our products to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users in a timely manner and our business could be materially
and adversely affected. In addition, if we experience an increase in demand for our products, our suppliers may not have the capacity or may
elect
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not to meet our needs as they allocate components or accessories and materials to their other customers. Identifying suitable alternate
sources of supply for these components or accessories and materials is an extensive process that requires us to become satisfied with their
quality control, technical capabilities, responsiveness and service, financial stability, regulatory compliance and labor and other ethical
practices. Accordingly, a loss of any of our component or accessories and materials suppliers could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Our reliance on single source, or a small number of suppliers involves a number of additional risks, including risks related to supplier
capacity constraints, price increases, timely delivery, component quality, failure of a key supplier to remain in business and adjust to market
conditions, delays in, or the ability to execute on, a supplier roadmap or components and technologies and natural disasters. Acquiring
additional suppliers could be time consuming and expensive, particularly given the complexity of our connected machines and their
components.

In particular, our connected machines incorporate certain alloys, Bluetooth components and microchips that are critical in the
performance of our connected machines. These components have unique performance profiles, and, as a result, it is not commercially
practical to support multiple sources for these components for our products. We do not currently have alternative suppliers for several key
components. In the event that any of our key or sole suppliers are unable to supply the components that our manufacturers need to meet
anticipated consumer demand, our business would be materially and adversely affected.

Managing our inventory supply chain, including manufacturing and component lead time, is complex and exposes us to risk.
To ensure adequate inventory supply, we must forecast inventory needs and expenses and place orders with our contract

manufacturers sufficiently in advance, based on our estimates of future demand for particular products. Failure to accurately forecast our
needs may result in manufacturing delays or increased costs. Because we bear supply risk under our contract manufacturing arrangements,
any such delays or increased costs could negatively impact our business. Failure to forecast appropriate lead times, significant price
fluctuations or shortages in materials or components, including the costs to transport such materials or components, the uncertainty of
currency fluctuations against the U.S. dollar, increases in labor rates, trade duties or tariffs and/or the introduction of new and expensive raw
materials could adversely affect our contract manufacturers’ ability to manufacture our products in sufficient quality and within sufficient time
to meet our consumer demand, which would adversely affect our business, financial condition and operational results.

If we overestimate our production requirements, we or our contract manufacturers may purchase excess components and build
excess inventory. If we, or our contract manufacturers at our request, purchase excess components that are unique to our products or build
excess products, we could be required to pay for these excess components or products. In limited circumstances, we have agreed to
reimburse our manufacturers for purchased components that were not used as a result of our decision to discontinue products or the use of
particular components. If we incur costs to cover excess supply commitments, this would harm our business. If we underestimate our product
requirements, our contract manufacturers may have inadequate component inventory, which could interrupt the manufacturing of our
products and result in delays or cancellation of orders from brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors and online sales channels.
We may be required to incur higher costs to secure the necessary production capacity and components to meet unanticipated demand,
which could result in lower margins.

The failure of our third-party logistics partners to adequately and effectively staff could adversely affect our brick-and-mortar
and online retail partner and user experience and results of operations.

We currently receive and distribute merchandise through four third-party logistics partners, two of which are located in the United
States and one of which is located in each of China and Europe. The majority of our products are received and distributed through one of our
third-party logistics partners in
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California. These third-party logistics partners assist with online logistics, inventory management, warehousing and fulfillment for both
business-to-business (to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors) and business-to-consumer (drop-ship via retail partners
and direct-to-consumer). If our third-party logistics partners are unable to adequately staff their third-party logistics facilities to meet demand,
or if the cost of such staffing is higher than historical or projected costs due to mandated wage increases, regulatory changes, international
expansion or other factors, these effects could be exacerbated and our results of operations could be further harmed. In addition, operating
third-party logistics partner facilities comes with potential risks, such as workplace safety issues and employment claims for the failure or
alleged failure to comply with labor laws or laws respecting union organizing activities. Any such issues may result in delays in shipping
times, reduced packing quality or costly litigation, and our reputation and results of operations may be harmed.

By using third-party operators for our inventory management, warehousing and fulfillment, we also face additional risks associated
with not having complete control over operations at those facilities. Any deterioration in the financial condition or operations of the third
parties, or the loss of the relationship with any third party, would have significant impact on our operations.

We also rely on our third-party logistics partners, including last mile warehouse and delivery partners, to complete a substantial
percentage of our deliveries to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors and online sales channels. If our third-party logistics
partners do not perform their obligations or meet our expectations, or those of our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, distributors or
our online sales channels, our reputation and business could suffer.

A disruption in the service, a significant increase in the cost of our primary delivery and shipping services for our products or
a significant disruption at shipping ports could adversely affect our business.

We use a variety of shipping services for delivery of our products to users and brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, including air
carriers and ocean shipping services. All of our contract manufacturers are based in Asia, so our products are shipped to our third-party
logistics partner facilities primarily via ocean shipping services. We have experienced and could continue to experience increased congestion
and new import and export restrictions implemented at ports on which we rely for our business. In many cases, we have had to secure
alternative transportation, such as air freight, or use alternative routes, at increased costs, to run our supply chain.

In the event of any significant interruption in service by shipping providers or at airports or shipping ports, we may be unable to
engage alternative suppliers or to receive or ship goods through alternate sites in order to deliver our products in a timely and cost-efficient
manner. As a result, we could experience delays, increased shipping costs and lost sales as a result of missed delivery deadlines and
product demand cycles. For example, at times during the COVID-19 pandemic, shipping of our products has been delayed, which has
inconvenienced our users and brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. Furthermore, if the cost of delivery or shipping services were to
increase significantly and the additional costs could not be covered by product pricing, our results of operations could be adversely affected.

In particular, we are dependent upon major shipping companies, including FedEx, for the shipment of our products to and from our
third-party logistics partner facilities. Changes in shipping terms, or the inability of these third-party shippers to perform effectively, could
affect our responsiveness to our users and brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. Increases in our shipping costs may adversely affect
our financial results if we are unable to pass on these higher costs to our users or brick-and-mortar and online retail partners.
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We have limited control over our contract manufacturers, component suppliers and third-party logistics partners, which may
subject us to significant risks, including the potential inability to produce or obtain quality products on a timely basis or in
sufficient quantity, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We have limited control over our contract manufacturers, component suppliers and third-party logistics partners, which subjects us to
additional risks, including, but not limited to:

 • inability to satisfy demand for our products;

 • reduced control over delivery timing and product reliability;

 • reduced ability to monitor the manufacturing process and components used in our products;

 • limited ability to develop comprehensive manufacturing specifications that take into account any materials shortages or
substitutions;

 • variance in the manufacturing capability of our third-party manufacturers;

 • price increases;

 • difficulties in establishing additional supplier, manufacturer or third-party logistics partner relationships if we experience
difficulties with our existing suppliers, manufacturers or third-party logistics partners;

 • shortages of materials or components;

 • infringement or misappropriation of our intellectual property or cyberattacks;

 • exposure to natural catastrophes, political unrest, terrorism, labor strikes or disputes, pandemics and economic instability
resulting in the disruption of trade from foreign countries in which our products are manufactured or the components thereof
are sourced;

 • changes in local economic conditions in the jurisdictions where our manufacturers, suppliers and third-party logistics partners
are located;

 • the imposition of new laws and regulations, including those relating to labor conditions, quality and safety standards, imports,
duties, tariffs, taxes and other charges on imports, as well as trade restrictions and restrictions on currency exchange or the
transfer of funds; and

 • insufficient warranties and indemnities on components supplied to our manufacturers or performance by our partners.

The occurrence of any of these risks, especially during seasons of peak demand, could cause us to experience a significant
disruption in our ability to produce and deliver our products, affect the quality of our products and harm our business, results of operations
and financial condition.

Our products may be affected from time to time by design and manufacturing defects, and we may face claims related to such
defects, either of which could adversely affect our business and result in harm to our reputation.

Our connected machines and design apps may be affected by design and manufacturing defects. In addition, sophisticated firmware
and applications, such as those offered by us, may have issues that unexpectedly interfere with the intended operation of hardware or
software products. Defects may also exist in software, components and products that we source from third parties. Any such defects could
make our products unsafe, create a risk of environmental or property damage, personal injury or data privacy, security and data protection
harms, and subject us to the hazards and uncertainties of product liability and other claims and related litigation. As a result, our services
may not perform as anticipated and may not meet expectations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to detect and fix all issues
and defects in the hardware, software and services we offer.
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Failure to timely identify, patch, fix or recall products and services with such defects could result in widespread technical and
performance issues affecting our products and could lead to claims against us. We maintain general liability insurance; however, design and
manufacturing defects, and claims related thereto, may subject us to judgments or settlements that result in damages materially in excess of
the limits of our insurance coverage. In addition, we may be exposed to recalls, product replacements or modifications, write-offs of inventory
or intangible assets and significant warranty and other expenses, such as litigation costs and regulatory fines. If we cannot successfully
defend any large claim, maintain our general liability insurance on acceptable terms or maintain adequate coverage against potential claims,
our financial results could be adversely affected.

In the event that we receive shipments of products that have defects or otherwise fail to comply with our technical specifications or
that fail to conform to our quality control standards, and we are not able to obtain replacement products in a timely manner, we risk revenue
losses from the inability to sell those products, increased administrative and shipping costs and lower profitability. Further, quality problems
could adversely affect the experience for users of our products, and result in harm to our reputation, including through social media or other
communications from our community, loss of competitive advantage, poor market acceptance, reduced demand for our products, delay in
new product and service introductions and lost revenue.

Regulations related to conflict minerals may cause us to incur additional expenses and could limit the supply and increase
the costs of certain metals used in the manufacturing of our products.

We are subject to requirements under the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, which will require us
to conduct due diligence on and disclose whether or not our products contain conflict minerals. The implementation of these requirements
could adversely affect the sourcing, availability and pricing of the materials used in the manufacture of components used in our products. In
addition, we will incur additional costs to comply of minerals that may be used or necessary to the production of our products and, if
applicable, potential changes to products, processes or sources of supply as a consequence of such due diligence activities. It is also
possible that we may face reputational harm if we determine that certain of our products contain minerals not determined to be conflict free or
if we are unable to alter our products, processes or sources of supply to avoid such materials.

Significant increases in inflation, commodity prices or transportation costs may adversely affect the costs of our component
suppliers and contract manufacturers, and we may be unable to pass on these higher costs to our brick-and-mortar and online
retail partners or users.

Significant future increases in commodity prices, such as for alloys, or inflation could adversely affect the costs of our component
suppliers and contract manufacturers and result in higher costs to us if we are unable to pass on the increased costs to our brick-and-mortar
and online retail partners or users. Furthermore, transportation costs have fluctuated as a result of a variety of factors, such as capacity
shortages, and we may not be able to pass such costs on to our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users, higher fuel prices and
labor shortages. Our results of operations may be adversely affected if we are unable to secure, or are able to secure only at significantly
higher costs, components for our products or adequate transportation resources in a cost-effective manner.

Key third-party manufacturers are located in China and may be affected by recent and possible future political, social and
economic conditions in China.

We rely on third-party manufacturers in China and Chinese-owned manufacturers in Malaysia through which the substantial majority
of our finished products are prepared and shipped to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, users or third-party logistics partners. Our
business therefore could be affected by social, political, regulatory or economic developments in China. In 2018, the Office of the U.S. Trade
Representative, or the USTR, enacted a tariff of 10% on imports into the U.S. from China, including communications equipment products and
components manufactured and imported from China. Since then, additional tariffs have been imposed by the USTR on imports into the
United States from China, and China has also imposed tariffs on imports into China from the United States. In addition, due to concerns with
the
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security of products and services from certain telecommunications and video providers based in China, the United States government has
enacted bans on the use of certain Chinese-origin components or systems either in items sold to the U.S. government or in the internal
networks of government contractors and subcontractors (even if those networks are not used for government-related projects). It is possible
that the U.S. government may take future measures to impose stricter export controls on items destined for China or additional duties on
shipments made from China. In addition, the U.S. government may add additional parties to the Entity List, which could harm our business,
increase the cost of conducting our operations in China or result in retaliatory actions against U.S. interests. Continued deterioration in trade
relations or adverse developments in political, social or economic conditions in China or future unforeseen problems, including health
pandemics or regulatory changes, could affect deliveries of our products to our retail partners or users, possibly resulting in business
interruptions, substantially delayed or lost sales, loss of inventory or increased expenses that cannot be passed on to brick-and-mortar and
online retail partners or users, any of which could ultimately have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results. In such an
eventuality, we could be forced to relocate our manufacturing, either temporarily or permanently, to another potentially costlier location or find
alternative potentially costlier methods of shipping our finished products to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and users. While we
are taking measures to attempt to maintain the continuity of our product delivery operations notwithstanding the impact on the use of our
international facilities, the continued or deteriorating conditions in China or other future unforeseen problems in China, we cannot ensure that
these measures will be successful in eliminating disruptions in our business.

Developments in the social, political, regulatory and economic environment in Malaysia may have a material adverse impact
on us.

We have been expanding our relationships with contract manufacturers in Malaysia, increasingly shifting our contract manufacturing
presence to Malaysia and expect to continue to do so in the future. As a result, our business, financial condition and results of operations
may be adversely affected by social, political, regulatory and economic developments in Malaysia. Such political and economic uncertainties
include, but are not limited to, the risks of war, terrorism, nationalism, nullification of contract, changes in interest rates, imposition of capital
controls and methods of taxation. In addition, our contract manufacturers in Malaysia are subject to risks of theft, fire, earthquake, flooding
and other similar casualty risks.

Negative developments in Malaysia’s socio-political environment may adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects. Although the overall Malaysian economic environment appears to be positive, there can be no assurance that this
will continue to prevail in the future. Economic growth is determined by countless factors, and it is extremely difficult to predict with any level
of certainty.

Changes in U.S. tax or tariff policy regarding products produced in other countries could adversely affect our business.
A predominant portion of the products we sell is originally manufactured in countries other than the United States. International trade

disputes that result in tariffs and other protectionist measures could adversely affect our business, including disruption in and cost increases
for sourcing our merchandise and increased uncertainties in planning our sourcing strategies and forecasting our margins. Importing and
exporting has involved more risk since the beginning of 2018, as there has been increasing rhetoric, in some cases coupled with legislative
or executive action, from several United States and foreign leaders regarding tariffs against foreign imports of certain materials. For example,
the U.S. government recently imposed significant new tariffs on China related to the importation of certain product categories following the
U.S. Trade Representative’s Section 301 investigation. It is possible that the U.S. government may take further measures in the future to
impose stricter export controls on items destined for China or additional duties on shipments made from China. During fiscal 2019, the
Bureau of Industry and Security, or BIS, of the U.S. Department of Commerce placed certain Chinese entities on the Entity List, limiting the
ability of U.S. companies to do business with those entities. The U.S. government may add additional parties to the Entity List, which could
harm our business, increase the cost of conducting our operations in China or result in retaliatory actions against U.S. interests. A substantial
portion of our products are manufactured in China.
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As a result of recently imposed tariffs, our cost of goods imported from China increased substantially, and could increase further depending
on the outcome of the current trade negotiations, which have been protracted and recently resulted in increases in U.S. tariff rates on
specified products from China. Although we continue to work with our vendors to mitigate our exposure to current or potential tariffs, there
can be no assurance that we will be able to offset any increased costs. Other changes in U.S. tariffs, quotas, trade relationships or tax
provisions could also reduce the supply of goods available to us or increase our cost of goods. We may fail to effectively adapt to and
manage the adjustments in strategy that would be necessary in response to those changes. In addition to the general uncertainty and overall
risk from potential changes in U.S. laws and policies, as we make business decisions in the face of such uncertainty, we may incorrectly
anticipate the outcomes, miss out on business opportunities or fail to effectively adapt our business strategies and manage the adjustments
that are necessary in response to those changes. These risks could adversely affect our revenue, reduce our profitability and negatively
impact our business.

Risks Related to Privacy, Data Protection and Cybersecurity
Our actual or perceived failure to comply with privacy, data protection and information security laws, regulations and

obligations could harm our business.
We are subject to numerous federal, state, local and international laws and regulations regarding privacy, data protection, information

security and the storing, sharing, use, processing, transfer, disclosure and protection of personal information and other content and data,
which we refer to collectively as privacy laws, the scope of which is changing, subject to differing interpretations and may be inconsistent
among countries, or conflict with other laws, regulations or other obligations. We are also subject to the terms of our privacy policies and
obligations to our users and other third parties related to privacy, data protection and information security. We strive to comply with applicable
privacy laws; however, the regulatory framework for privacy and data protection worldwide is, and is likely to remain for the foreseeable
future, varied, and it is possible that these or other actual obligations may be interpreted and applied in a manner that is inconsistent from
one jurisdiction to another.

We also expect that there will continue to be new privacy laws proposed and enacted in various jurisdictions. For example, in May
2018, the General Data Protection Regulation, or GDPR, went into effect in the EU. The GDPR imposed stringent data protection
requirements and provides greater penalties for noncompliance than previous data protection laws, including potential penalties of up to €20
million or 4% of annual global revenue.

Although legal mechanisms have been designed to allow for the transfer of personal data from the United Kingdom, the European
Economic Area, or EEA, and Switzerland to the United States, uncertainty about compliance with such data protection laws remains and
such mechanisms may not be available or applicable with respect to the personal data processing activities necessary to research, develop
and market our products and services. For example, legal challenges in Europe to the mechanisms allowing companies to transfer personal
data from the EEA to the United States could result in further limitations on the ability to transfer personal data across borders, particularly if
governments are unable or unwilling to reach agreement on or maintain existing mechanisms designed to support cross-border data
transfers. Specifically, on July 16, 2020, the Court of Justice of the EU invalidated Decision 2016/1250, which had deemed the protection
provided by the EU-U.S. Privacy Shield Framework, which includes the EU-U.S. and Swiss-U.S. Privacy Shield Frameworks, adequate under
EU data protection law. To the extent that any of our vendors, contractors or consultants have been relying on the EU-U.S. Privacy Shield
Framework, they will not be able to do so in the future, which could increase our costs and may limit our ability to process personal data from
the EU. The same decision also cast doubt on the ability to use one of the primary alternatives to the Privacy Shield Frameworks, namely,
the European Commission’s Standard Contractual Clauses, to lawfully transfer personal data from Europe to the United States and most
other countries. At present, there are few if any viable alternatives to the Privacy Shield Frameworks and the Standard Contractual Clauses
for the foregoing purposes. We continue to monitor and review the impact of any resulting changes to EU law that could affect our
operations.
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Further, following a referendum in June 2016 in which voters in the United Kingdom approved an exit from the EU, the United
Kingdom government has initiated a process to leave the EU, known as Brexit. Brexit has created uncertainty with regard to the regulation of
data protection in the United Kingdom. In particular, while the Data Protection Act of 2018, or the Data Protection Act, which implements and
complements the GDPR achieved Royal Assent on May 23, 2018 and is now effective in the United Kingdom, it is still unclear whether the
United Kingdom’s data protection regime will continue to be deemed adequate and the transfer of data from the EEA to the United Kingdom
will remain lawful under the GDPR. During the period of “transition” (i.e., until December 31, 2020), EU law will continue to apply in the United
Kingdom, including the GDPR, after which the Data Protection Act will convert the requirements of the GDPR into United Kingdom law.
However, we cannot fully predict how the Data Protection Act and other United Kingdom data protection laws or regulations may develop in
the medium to longer term, including those relating to data transfers to and from the United Kingdom. We continue to monitor and review the
impact of any resulting changes to EU or United Kingdom law that could affect our operations. Beginning in 2021, the United Kingdom will be
a “third country” under the GDPR. We may incur liabilities, expenses, costs and other operational losses relating to the GDPR and privacy
laws of applicable EU Member States and the United Kingdom, including in connection with any measures we take to comply with them.

In Brazil, the (Lei Geral de Proteção de Dados Pessoais) – Law No. 13,709/2018, or LGPD, similar in many respects to the EU’s
GDPR, was enacted August 14, 2018 and entered into effect September 18, 2020. Penalties for violation of the LGPD, if and when enforced,
may be up to 2% of revenue in Brazil, capped at R$ 50MM per violation (roughly US$9.5MM as of September 15, 2020). The LGPD applies
to businesses (both inside and outside Brazil) that process the personal data of individuals located in Brazil and provides consumer rights
similar to the GDPR. A Brazilian Data Protection Authority, Brazilian National Data Protection Authority (Autoridade Nacional de Proteção de
Dados, or ANPD), has been established to provide forthcoming rules and guidance on how to interpret and implement the LGPD’s
requirements, including regarding notice of processing, data transfer requirements and other compliance obligations, such as security
measures, recordkeeping, training and governance. Pending such developments from the ANPD and any emerging caselaw, our LGPD
approach may be subject to further change, our compliance measures when implemented may not be fully adequate, we may expend
significant time and cost in developing a privacy governance program and data transfer mechanisms in an effort to comply with the LGPD
and any implementing regulations or guidance, and we may potentially face litigation prior to the implementation of regulations and guidance
regarding the LGPD or before we have had a reasonable opportunity to fully implement measures designed to comply with such regulations
and applicable guidance.

Vietnam’s cybersecurity law went into effect on January 1, 2019 and includes stringent requirements regarding data localization and
data transfers. A draft Decree on Personal Data Protection, with sub-legislation introduced December 27, 2019, elaborates requirements
relating to data protection; however, further notice and comment is anticipated before its requirements enter into effect. As proposed, the
draft decree would require us to further invest in potentially duplicative infrastructure and personnel in Vietnam, establish and maintain a local
data protection program, and incur other costs and expenses related to these new requirements.

California also recently enacted legislation affording consumers expanded privacy protections, the California Consumer Privacy Act of
2018, or CCPA, that went into effect as of January 1, 2020 and was subject to enforcement starting July 1, 2020. Additionally, the California
Attorney General issued regulations that may add additional requirements on businesses. The potential effects of this legislation and the
related CCPA regulations are far-reaching and may require us to modify our data processing practices and policies and to incur substantial
costs and expenses in an effort to comply. For example, the CCPA gives California residents, (including employees, though only in limited
circumstances until January 1, 2023), expanded rights to transparency access and require deletion of their personal information, opt out of
certain personal information sharing and receive detailed information about how their personal information is collected and used. The CCPA
also provides for civil penalties for violations, as well as a private right of action for data breaches that may increase data breach litigation.
Additionally, a new privacy law, the California Privacy Rights Act, or CPRA, was approved by California voters in the November 3, 2020
election. The CPRA significantly modifies the CCPA, potentially resulting in further uncertainty and requiring us to incur additional costs and
expenses in efforts to comply. The enactment of such laws is prompting similar
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legislative developments in other states in the United States, which could create the potential for a patchwork of overlapping but different
state laws, and is inspiring federal legislation.

Further, some countries also are considering or have passed legislation requiring local storage and processing of data, or similar
requirements, which could increase the cost and complexity of operating our products and services and other aspects of our business.

With laws and regulations such as the GDPR in the EU and the CCPA and CPRA in the United States imposing new and relatively
burdensome obligations, and with substantial uncertainty over the interpretation and application of these and other laws and regulations,
there is a risk that the requirements of these or other laws and regulations, or of contractual or other obligations relating to privacy, data
protection or information security, are interpreted or applied in a manner that is, or is alleged to be, inconsistent with our management and
processing practices, our policies or procedures, or the features of our products and services. We may face challenges in addressing their
requirements and making any necessary changes to our policies and practices, and we may find it necessary or appropriate to assume
additional burdens with respect to data handling, to restrict our data processing or otherwise to modify our data handling practices and to
incur significant costs and expenses in these efforts. Any failure or perceived failure by us to comply with our privacy policies, our privacy,
data protection or information security-related obligations to brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users or other third parties or any
of our other legal obligations relating to privacy, data protection or information security may result in governmental investigations or
enforcement actions, litigation, claims or public statements against us by consumer advocacy groups or others, and could result in significant
liability or cause our users to lose trust in us, which could adversely affect our reputation and business. Furthermore, the costs of compliance
with, and other burdens imposed by, the laws, regulations and policies that are applicable to the businesses of our brick-and-mortar and
online retail partners may limit the adoption and use of, and reduce the overall demand for, our products and services.

Additionally, if third parties we work with, such as vendors or developers, violate applicable laws or regulations or our contracts and
policies, such violations may also put our users’ content and personal information at risk and could in turn adversely affect our business. Any
significant change to applicable privacy laws or relevant industry practices could increase our costs and require us to modify our platform,
design apps and features, possibly in a material manner, which we may be unable to complete and may limit our ability to store and process
user data or develop new design apps and features.

Cybersecurity risks could adversely affect our business and disrupt our operations.

Information technology helps us operate more efficiently, interface with users and brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, offer
features for our products and services, maintain financial accuracy and efficiency and accurately produce our financial statements. If we do
not allocate and effectively manage the resources necessary to build, sustain and secure necessary technology infrastructure, we could be
subject to transaction errors, processing inefficiencies, the loss of brick-and-mortar and online retail partners or users, business disruptions or
the loss of or unauthorized access to personal information or loss or damage to intellectual property through a security breach or cyberattack.
Such security breaches or cyberattacks could expose us to a risk of lost, exposed or corrupted information, unauthorized disclosure of
information, litigation and possible liability to employees, users and brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and regulatory authorities. In
addition, a significant portion of our data and information is hosted in a cloud-computing environment, where design apps and data are
hosted, accessed and processed through a third-party provider over a broadband Internet connection. In a cloud-computing environment, we
could be subject to outages, security breaches and cyberattacks by the third-party service provider. In the COVID-19 pandemic, more of our
and our service providers’ personnel are working remotely, which increases the risks of security breaches and cyberattacks.

If our data management systems do not effectively collect, store, process and report relevant data for the operation of our business,
whether due to equipment malfunction or constraints, software defects or deficiencies, computer viruses, security breaches, cyberattacks,
catastrophic events or human error, our ability to effectively plan, forecast and execute our business plan and comply with applicable laws
and
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regulations will be impaired, perhaps materially. Any such impairment could materially and adversely affect our financial condition, results of
operations, cash flows and the timeliness with which we internally and externally report our results of operations. As a result, our information
systems require an ongoing commitment of significant resources to maintain, protect and enhance existing systems and develop new
systems to keep pace with continuing changes in information processing technology, evolving legal and regulatory standards, the increasing
need to protect customer, partner and employee information and the information technology needs associated with our changing products
and services. We will implement reasonable security procedures and practices to help ensure that our data management systems effectively
collect, store, process and report relevant data for the operation of our business, though there are no assurances that these procedures and
practices will be successful or that additional systems issues will not arise in the future.

In addition, security breaches from errors, malfeasance or misconduct by employees, contractors or others with access to our
systems may pose a risk that sensitive data, including individually identifiable data, may be exposed to unauthorized persons or to the public
and may compromise our security systems. We have been, and may in the future be, subject to compromises and other security breaches
impacting such data. There can be no assurance that any efforts we make to prevent against such breaches will prevent breakdowns in our
systems or security breaches that could adversely affect our business. Third parties may also attempt to fraudulently induce employees or
users into disclosing usernames, passwords or other sensitive information, which may in turn be used to access information technology
systems used in our business. For example, our employees have received and likely will continue to receive “phishing” e-mails attempting to
induce them to divulge sensitive information. In addition, unauthorized persons may attempt to hack into our products or systems to obtain
personal data relating to users or employees, our confidential or proprietary information or confidential information we maintain from third
parties, which, if successful, could pose a risk of loss of data, risk to customer safety and risk of product recall. While we provide security and
privacy training to attempt to protect against these risks, the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to systems and data change
frequently and may be difficult to detect, so we may not be able to anticipate and prevent these intrusions or other breaches, to identify them
promptly or to mitigate them when they occur.

Moreover, we manufacture and sell hardware and software products that allow our users to store confidential information, including
their original designs, locally or in our cloud infrastructure. We do not have measures to configure, update or secure our users’ desktop or
mobile devices or any information stored in our users’ own systems or at their locations, which is the responsibility of our users. While we
have implemented security measures to protect our hardware and software products from unauthorized access and cyberattacks, these
measures may not be effective in securing these products, particularly since techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or otherwise
sabotage systems, change frequently and may not be recognized until launched against a target. A breach of network security and systems
or other events that cause the loss or public disclosure of, or access by third parties to, sensitive information stored by us or our brick-and-
mortar and online retail partners, or the perception that any of these have occurred, could have serious negative consequences for our
business, including loss of information, indemnity obligations, possible fines, penalties and damages, reduced demand for our products and
services, an unwillingness of our users to use our products or services, harm to our reputation and brand, and time consuming and
expensive litigation, any of which could adversely affect our financial results.

We maintain cybersecurity insurance, subject to applicable deductibles and policy limits; however, our cybersecurity insurance may
not cover losses from all types of incidents or may provide insufficient compensation that does not cover our total losses.

If the use of “cookie” tracking technologies is further restricted, regulated or blocked, or if changes in technology cause
cookies to become less reliable or acceptable as a means of tracking consumer behavior, the amount or accuracy of Internet user
information we collect would decrease, which could harm our business and results of operations.

Cookies are small data files sent by websites and stored locally on an Internet user’s computer or mobile device. We, and third parties
who work on our behalf, collect data via cookies to track the behavior
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of visitors to our sites, provide a more personalized and interactive experience and analyze and increase the effectiveness of our marketing.
However, Internet users can easily disable, delete and block cookies directly through browser settings or through other software, browser
extensions or hardware.

Privacy laws and regulations restrict how we deploy our cookies, and this could potentially increase the number of Internet users that
choose to proactively disable cookies on their systems. In the EU, the Directive on Privacy and Electronic Communications requires users to
give their consent before cookie data can be stored on their local computer or mobile device. Additionally, the most commonly used Internet
browsers—Chrome, Firefox, Internet Explorer and Safari—allow Internet users to modify their browser settings to prevent cookies from being
accepted by their browsers, and a number of other software tools allow users to block or otherwise limit the functionality of cookies. Users
can decide to opt out of nearly all cookie data creation, which could negatively impact operations. We may have to develop alternative
systems to determine our users’ behavior, customize their online experience or efficiently market to them if users block cookies or regulations
introduce additional barriers to collecting cookie data.

Risk Related to Foreign Operations
We plan to further expand into international target markets, which will expose us to significant risks.

Our primary international target markets include Australia, France, Germany, New Zealand and the United Kingdom, and we plan to
expand our operations further, which requires significant resources and management attention and subjects us to regulatory, economic and
political risks in addition to those we already face in the United States. There are significant risks and costs inherent in doing business in
international target markets, including:

 • difficulty establishing and managing international operations and the increased travel, infrastructure, including establishment of
local delivery service and Cricut Member Care operations, and legal compliance costs associated with locations in different
countries or regions;

 • difficulty accessing and maintaining operations with international brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distribution
channels that may be small, fragmented or complex;

 • the need to vary pricing and margins to effectively compete in international target markets;

 • the need to adapt, translate and localize products for specific countries, comply with country-specific product safety and liability
laws, as well as obtaining rights to third-party intellectual property used in each country;

 • increased competition from local providers of competing or imitation products;

 • the ability to protect and enforce intellectual property rights abroad;

 • the need to offer content and customer support in various languages;

 • difficulties in understanding and complying with local laws, regulations and customs in other jurisdictions;

 • compliance with anti-bribery laws, such as the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, or FCPA, and the United Kingdom Bribery
Act 2010, or U.K. Bribery Act, by us, our employees and our business partners;

 • complexity and other risks associated with current and future legal requirements in other countries, including legal
requirements related to consumer protection, consumer product safety and data privacy frameworks, such as the EU’s GDPR,
including data transfer or localization restrictions, or LGPD;

 • varying levels of Internet technology adoption and infrastructure, and increased or varying network and hosting service
provider costs;
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 • tariffs and other non-tariff barriers, such as quotas and local content rules, as well as tax consequences;

 • fluctuations in currency exchange rates and the requirements of currency control regulations, which might restrict or prohibit
conversion of other currencies into U.S. dollars; and

 • political or social unrest or economic instability in a specific country or region in which we operate, including, for example,
recent social and political unrest in China, which could have an adverse impact on our operations in that location.

These risks can make it more expensive to operate our business outside the United States, meaning that our international business
may be less profitable than our U.S. business.

We have limited experience with international regulatory environments and market practices and may not be able to penetrate or
successfully operate in the markets we choose to enter. In addition, we may incur significant expenses as a result of our international
expansion, and we may not be successful or may not execute our strategy successfully. We currently face limited brand recognition in certain
parts of the world that could lead to non-acceptance or delayed acceptance of our products by consumers in new markets. Our failure to
successfully manage these risks could harm our international operations and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

In addition, Brexit, and the ongoing negotiations of the future trading relationship between the United Kingdom and the EU during the
transition period, have yet to provide clarity on what the outcome will be for the United Kingdom or Europe. Changes related to Brexit could
subject us to heightened risks in that region, including disruptions to trade and free movement of goods, services and people to and from the
United Kingdom, disruptions to the workforce of our business partners, increased foreign exchange volatility with respect to the British pound
and additional legal, political and economic uncertainty. If these actions impacting our international distribution and sales channels result in
increased costs for us or our international partners, such changes could result in higher costs to us, adversely affecting our operations,
particularly as we expand our international presence.

We are subject to governmental export and import controls and economic sanctions laws that could subject us to liability and
impair our ability to compete in international target markets.

The United States and various foreign governments have imposed controls, license requirements and restrictions on the import and/or
export of certain technologies, products, software and services. Compliance with applicable regulatory requirements regarding the export of
our products and services may create delays in the introduction of our products and services in some international target markets, prevent
our international users from accessing our products and services, and, in some cases, prevent the export of our products and services to
some countries altogether.

Furthermore, U.S. export control and economic sanctions laws prohibit the provision of products and services to countries,
governments and persons that are the subject of U.S. sanctions. Even though we take precautions to prevent our products from being
provided to persons and jurisdictions in violation of U.S. sanctions laws, our products and services, including our firmware updates, could find
their way to such prohibited parties, which could have negative consequences, including government investigations, penalties and
reputational harm. Our failure to obtain any required import or export approval for our products could harm our international and domestic
sales and adversely affect our revenue.

Additionally, our supply chain is very complex and compliance with U.S. import laws and regulations requires that we make
determinations based on the best information that we have available at the time. U.S. Customs and Border Protection may not always agree
with those determinations and, at has times, has requested that we modify the information we have provided to them including that related to
country of origin determinations.
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We could be subject to future enforcement action with respect to compliance with governmental export and import controls and
economic sanctions laws that result in penalties, costs and restrictions on export privileges that could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Failure to comply with anti-corruption and anti-money laundering laws, including the FCPA and similar laws associated with
our activities outside of the United States, could subject us to penalties and other adverse consequences.

We operate a global business and may have direct or indirect interactions with officials and employees of government agencies or
state-owned or affiliated entities. We are subject to the FCPA, the U.S. domestic bribery statute contained in 18 U.S.C. § 201, the U.S. Travel
Act, the USA PATRIOT Act, the U.K. Bribery Act and possibly other anti-bribery and anti-money laundering laws in countries in which we
conduct activities. These laws prohibit companies and their directors, officers, employees and third-party business partners and
intermediaries, representatives, contractors and agents from corruptly promising, authorizing, offering or providing, directly or indirectly,
improper payments or anything of value to foreign government officials, political parties and private-sector recipients for the purpose of
obtaining or retaining business, directing business to any person or securing any improper advantage.

Our global operations expand our compliance obligations. For example, we import and export items to and from several countries. In
many foreign countries, including countries in which we may conduct business, including interacting with governmental officials, it may be a
local custom that businesses engage in practices that are prohibited by the FCPA or other applicable laws and regulations. In addition, we or
our third-party business partners or intermediaries, employees, representatives, contractors, suppliers and agents may have direct or indirect
interactions with officials and employees of government agencies or state-owned or affiliated entities, including as governmental customers.
We can be held liable for the corrupt or other illegal activities of our employees or third-party business partners or intermediaries,
representatives, contractors and agents, even if we do not explicitly authorize such activities.

In addition, U.S. public companies are required to maintain records that accurately and fairly represent their transactions and maintain
internal controls and compliance procedures designed to prevent violations of anti-corruption laws. While we have policies, procedures and
training to foster compliance with these laws, we cannot assure you that our employees or third-party business partners or intermediaries,
contractors, representatives and agents will not take actions in violation of our policies or applicable law for which we may ultimately be held
responsible.

Any violation of the FCPA, other applicable anti-corruption laws or anti-money laundering laws could result in whistleblower
complaints, adverse media coverage, investigations, loss of export privileges, fines, damages, severe criminal or civil penalties against us,
our officers or our employees, disgorgement of profits, suspension or debarment from U.S. government contracts, any of which could
adversely affect our reputation, business, results of operations, stock price, financial condition and prospects. In addition, detecting,
investigating and resolving actual or alleged violations of anti-corruption laws and responding to any enforcement action may result in a
significant diversion of management’s attention and resources and significant defense costs and other professional fees.

Changes in legislation in U.S. and foreign taxation of international business activities or the adoption of other tax reform
policies, as well as the application of such laws, could adversely impact our financial position and results of operations.

Recent or future changes to U.S., Canada, United Kingdom and other foreign tax laws could impact the tax treatment of our foreign
earnings. We generally conduct our international operations through wholly owned subsidiaries and report our taxable income in various
jurisdictions worldwide based upon our business operations in those jurisdictions. The intercompany relationships between our legal entities
are subject to complex transfer pricing regulations administered by taxing authorities in various jurisdictions. Although we believe we are
compliant with applicable transfer pricing and other tax laws in the United States, Canada, the United Kingdom and other relevant countries,
due to changes in such laws and rules, we may have to modify our international structure in the future, which will incur costs, may increase
our
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worldwide effective tax rate and may adversely affect our financial position and results of operations. In addition, significant judgment is
required in evaluating our tax positions and determining our provision for income taxes.

If U.S., Canadian, United Kingdom or other foreign tax laws further change, if our current or future structures and arrangements are
challenged by a taxing authority, or if we are unable to appropriately adapt the manner in which we operate our business, we may have to
undertake further costly modifications to our international structure and our tax liabilities and results of operations may be adversely affected.

We may face exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations.
While we have historically transacted the majority of our business in U.S. dollars, we also transact in some foreign currencies, such as

the Australian Dollar, Canadian Dollar, Chinese Yuan, Euro, British Pound Sterling and Malaysian Ringgit, and we may transact in more
foreign currencies in the future. Accordingly, changes in the value of foreign currencies relative to the U.S. dollar can affect our revenue and
results of operations. As a result of such foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations, it could be more difficult to detect underlying trends in
our business and results of operations. In addition, to the extent that fluctuations in currency exchange rates cause our results of operations
to differ from our expectations or the expectations of our investors, the trading price of our common stock could be lowered. We do not
currently maintain a program to hedge transactional exposures in foreign currencies. However, in the future, we may use derivative
instruments, such as foreign currency forward and option contracts, to hedge certain exposures to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange
rates. The use of such hedging activities may not offset any or more than a portion of the adverse financial effects of unfavorable movements
in foreign exchange rates over the limited time the hedges are in place and may introduce additional risks if we are unable to structure
effective hedges with such instruments.

Risks Related to our Intellectual Property
Our intellectual property rights are valuable, and any inability to protect them could reduce the value of our products, services

and brand.
Our success depends in large part on our proprietary technology and our patents, trade secrets, trademarks and other intellectual

property rights. We rely on, and expect to continue to rely on, a combination of trademark, trade dress, domain name, copyright, trade secret
and patent laws, as well as confidentiality and license agreements with our employees, contractors, consultants and third parties with whom
we have relationships, to establish and protect our brand and other intellectual property rights. However, our efforts to protect our intellectual
property rights may not be sufficient or effective, and any of our intellectual property rights may be challenged, which could result in them
being narrowed in scope or declared invalid or unenforceable. There can be no assurance that our intellectual property rights will be sufficient
to protect against others offering products, services or technologies that are substantially similar to ours and that compete with our business.

Effective protection of patents, trademarks and domain names is expensive and difficult to maintain, both in terms of application and
registration costs as well as the costs of defending and enforcing those rights. As we have grown, we have sought to obtain and protect our
intellectual property rights in an increasing number of countries, a process that can be expensive and may not always be successful. For
example, the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and various foreign governmental patent agencies require compliance with a number of
procedural requirements to complete the patent application process and to maintain issued patents, and noncompliance or non-payment
could result in abandonment or lapse of a patent or patent application, resulting in partial or complete loss of patent rights in a relevant
jurisdiction. Further, intellectual property protection may not be available to us in every country in which our products are available. For
example, the existence of prior art – or information that is already in the public domain – may limit our ability to obtain additional patents in
the U.S. and foreign jurisdictions. Some foreign countries also have compulsory licensing laws under which a patent owner must grant
licenses to third parties. In addition, many countries limit the enforceability of patents against certain third parties, including government
agencies or government contractors. In these countries, patents may provide limited or no benefit.
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We have an active program of monitoring, investigating and enforcing our proprietary rights against companies and individuals who
market or manufacture counterfeits and “knockoff” products, particularly ancillary and/or specialized products used with our connected
machines. We assert our rights against infringers of our copyrights, patents, trademarks and trade dress. However, these efforts may not be
successful in reducing sales of imitation products by these infringers. Additionally, other manufacturers may be able to produce successful
personal desktop manufacturing devices which imitate our designs without infringing any of our copyrights, patents, trademarks or trade
dress. Particularly with respect to the accessories and materials we sell to users for use with their machines, counterfeits are known to exist
in the industry. The failure to prevent or limit such infringers or imitators could adversely affect our reputation and sales.

In order to protect our brand and intellectual property rights, we may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and protect
these rights. Litigation brought to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights could be costly, time-consuming and distracting to
management and could result in the impairment or loss of portions of our intellectual property. Furthermore, our efforts to enforce our
intellectual property rights may be met with defenses, counterclaims and countersuits attacking the validity and enforceability of our
intellectual property rights. Accordingly, we may not be able to prevent third parties from infringing upon or misappropriating our intellectual
property. Our failure to secure, protect and enforce our intellectual property rights could seriously damage our brand and our business.

We have faced threats, and in the future may be threatened, by third parties for alleged infringement of their proprietary
rights.

There is considerable patent and other intellectual property development activity in the technology industry, and litigation, based on
allegations of infringement or other violations of intellectual property, is frequent in the technology industry. Furthermore, it is common for
individuals and groups to purchase patents and other intellectual property assets for the purpose of making claims of infringement to extract
settlements from companies like ours. Our use of third-party content, including images, software and other intellectual property may be
subject to claims of infringement or misappropriation. We cannot guarantee that our internally-developed or acquired technologies and
content do not or will not infringe the intellectual property rights of others. From time to time, our competitors or other third parties may claim
that we are infringing upon or misappropriating their intellectual property rights, and we may be found to be infringing upon such rights. Any
claims or litigation could cause us to incur significant expenses and, if successfully asserted against us, could require that we pay substantial
damages or ongoing royalty payments, prevent us from offering our products or services or using certain technologies, force us to implement
expensive work-arounds or impose other unfavorable terms. We expect that the occurrence of infringement claims is likely to grow as the
market for our products and services grows and as we introduce new and updated products and services. Accordingly, our exposure to
damages resulting from infringement claims could increase and this could further exhaust our financial and management resources. Further,
during the course of any litigation, we may make announcements regarding the results of hearings and motions, and other interim
developments. If securities analysts and investors regard these announcements as negative, the market price of our common stock may
decline. Even if intellectual property claims do not result in litigation or are resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and resources
necessary to resolve them, could divert the resources of our management and require significant expenditures. Any of the foregoing could
prevent us from competing effectively and could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We depend upon third-party licenses and the purchase of third-party works for the use of digital content. An adverse change
to, loss of or claim that we do not hold necessary licenses or rights may adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

Digital content is an important element of the overall content that we make available to our users. To secure the rights to use certain
fonts, images, ready-to-make projects, patterns and other digital contents that are used on or with our products and services, we enter into
agreements to obtain licenses from rights holders such as copyright owners or their agents. We pay royalties to such parties or their agents
around
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the world. In other instances, we enter into agreements with various third parties to purchase their pre-existing works or engage on a “works
for hire” basis to procure desired content.

The process of obtaining licenses, purchasing pre-existing works and new engagement involves identifying and negotiating with many
rights holders, some of whom are unknown or difficult to identify, and implicates a myriad of complex and evolving legal issues across many
jurisdictions, including open questions of law as to when and whether particular licenses are needed. Rights holders also may attempt to take
advantage of their market power to seek onerous financial terms from us. Our relationship with certain rights holders may deteriorate.
Additionally, there is a risk that aspiring rights holders, their agents or legislative or regulatory bodies will create or attempt to create new
rights that could require us to enter into new license agreements with, and pay royalties to, newly defined groups of rights holders, some of
which may be difficult or impossible to identify.

Although we expend significant resources to seek to comply with the statutory, regulatory and judicial frameworks, we cannot
guarantee that we currently hold, or will always hold, every necessary right to use all of the digital content that is used with our products and
services, and we cannot assure you that we are not infringing or violating any third-party intellectual property rights, or that we will not do so
in the future.

These challenges, and others concerning the use of licensed content with our products, may subject us to significant liability for
copyright infringement, breach of contract or other claims. For additional information, see the section titled “Business—Legal Proceedings.”

Legislation regarding copyright protection or content review could impose complex and costly constraints on our business
model.

Although our agreements with users submitting designs or other content to our websites and mobile apps specifically require users to
represent that they have the right and authority to provide and license the designs and other content they submit for the purposes used by
us, that the content does not and will not violate any law, statute, ordinance or regulation, and that the content (and our use of it) does not
and will not infringe on any rights of any third party, we do not currently have the ability to determine the accuracy of these representations on
a case-by-case basis. There is a risk that a user may supply an image or other content that is the property of another party used without
permission, that infringes the copyright or trademark of another party or another party’s right of privacy or right of publicity or that would be
considered to be defamatory, pornographic, hateful, racist, scandalous, obscene or otherwise offensive, objectionable or illegal under the
laws or court decisions of the jurisdiction where that user lives. There is, therefore, a risk that users may intentionally or inadvertently order
and receive products from us that are in violation of the rights of another party or a law or regulation of a particular jurisdiction.

The EU has also enacted a new law that will require us to use best efforts in accordance with the high industry standards of
professional diligence to exclude infringing content from our platform that may be uploaded by our users. To comply with this new law, we will
likely have to devote significant time and resources to develop technologies to prevent infringing content from being uploaded to our platform
and, to the extent infringing content makes it onto our platform, to expeditiously remove such content and implement measures to prevent re-
uploads of such content. Although the new law does not mandate monitoring, there may be no practical way for us to comply with the law’s
stringent new requirements without adopting some form of robust content identification systems. We may also be required to enter into
license agreements with various rights holders to obtain licenses that authorize the storage and use of content uploaded by our users. We
may not be able to develop technological solutions to comply with applicable law on economically reasonable terms and there is no
guarantee that we will be able to enter into agreements with all relevant rights holders on terms that we deem reasonable. Compliance may
therefore cause us to encounter increased costs which could substantially harm our business and results of operations.
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Some of our products contain open source software, which may pose particular risks to our proprietary software,
technologies, products and services in a manner that could harm our business.

We use open source software in our products and anticipate using open source software in the future. Some open source software
licenses require those who distribute open source software as part of their own software product to publicly disclose all or part of the source
code to such software product or to make available any derivative works of the open source code on unfavorable terms or at no cost. The
terms of many open source licenses to which we are subject have not been interpreted by U.S. or foreign courts, and there is a risk that open
source software licenses could be construed in a manner that imposes unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to provide or
distribute our products or services. Additionally, we could face claims from third parties claiming ownership of, or demanding release of, the
open source software or derivative works that we developed using such software, which could include proprietary source code, or otherwise
seeking to enforce the terms of the applicable open source license. These claims could result in litigation and could require us to make our
software source code freely available, purchase a costly license or cease offering the implicated products or services unless and until we can
re-engineer them to avoid infringement. This re-engineering process could require us to expend significant additional research and
development resources, and we cannot guarantee that we will be successful.

Additionally, the use of certain open source software can lead to greater risks than use of third-party commercial software, as open
source licensors generally do not provide warranties or controls on the origin of software. There is typically no support available for open
source software, and we cannot ensure that the authors of such open source software will implement or push updates to address security
risks or will not abandon further development and maintenance. Many of the risks associated with the use of open source software, such as
the lack of warranties or assurances of title or performance, cannot be eliminated, and could, if not properly addressed, negatively affect our
business. We have processes to help alleviate these risks, including a review process for screening requests from our developers for the use
of open source software, but we cannot be sure that all open source software is identified or submitted for approval prior to use in our
products. Any of these risks could be difficult to eliminate or manage, and, if not addressed, could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to the Ownership of Our Common Stock and This Offering
There has been no prior public market for our common stock, the stock price of our common stock may be volatile or may

decline regardless of our operating performance, and you may not be able to resell your shares at or above the initial public
offering price.

There has been no public market for our common stock prior to this offering. The initial public offering price for our common stock will
be determined through negotiations between us and the underwriters and may vary from the market price of our common stock following this
offering. The market prices of the securities of newly public companies such as us have historically been highly volatile. The market price of
our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, including:

 • overall performance of the equity markets and the performance of technology companies in particular;

 • variations in our results of operations, cash flows and other financial metrics and non-financial metrics and how those results
compare to analyst expectations;

 • changes in the financial projections we may provide to the public, or our failure to meet these projections;

 • failure of securities analysts to initiate or maintain coverage of us, changes in financial estimates by any securities analysts
who follow our company or our failure to meet these estimates or the expectations of investors;

 • recruitment or departure of key personnel;
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 • the economy as a whole and market conditions in our industry;

 • negative publicity related to problems in our manufacturing or the real or perceived quality of our products, as well as the
failure to timely launch new products or services that gain market acceptance;

 • rumors and market speculation involving us or other companies in our industry;

 • announcements by us or our competitors of new products, accessories, features and content, significant technical innovations,
acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments;

 • actual or perceived privacy or data security incidents;

 • new laws or regulations or new interpretations of existing laws or regulations applicable to our business;

 • lawsuits threatened or filed against us, litigation involving our industry, or both;

 • developments or disputes concerning our or other parties’ products, services or intellectual property rights;

 • other events or factors, including those resulting from war, incidents of terrorism, manmade or natural disasters, pandemics or
responses to these events;

 • the expiration of contractual lock-up or market standoff agreements; and

 • sales of shares of our common stock by us or our stockholders.

In addition, the stock markets have experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have affected and continue to affect the
market prices of equity securities of many companies. Stock prices of many companies have fluctuated in a manner unrelated or
disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. In the past, stockholders have instituted securities class action litigation
following periods of market volatility. If we were to become involved in securities litigation, it could subject us to substantial costs, divert
resources and the attention of management from our business and adversely affect our business.

Upon the completion of this offering, our directors, executive officers and holders of 5% or more of our common stock will
beneficially own approximately      % of our common stock and will be able to exert significant control over us, which will limit your
ability to influence the outcome of important transactions, including a change of control.

Upon completion of this offering, our directors, executive officers and holders of 5% or more of our outstanding common stock, and
their respective affiliates, will beneficially own, in the aggregate, approximately          % of the shares of our outstanding common stock,
based on the number of shares outstanding as of                . Further, entities affiliated with Petrus, collectively, are currently our largest
stockholder. Upon completion of this offering, entities affiliated with Petrus will hold approximately     % of the total voting power of our
common stock based on the number of shares outstanding as of                         . See the section titled “Principal Stockholders” for additional
information. As a result, our directors, executive officers and holders of 5% or more of our outstanding common stock, and their respective
affiliates, if acting together, will be able to determine or significantly influence all matters requiring stockholder approval, including the
elections of directors, amendments of our organizational documents and approval of any merger, sale of assets or other major corporate
transaction. These stockholders may have interests that differ from yours and may vote in a way with which you disagree and which may be
adverse to your interests. This concentration of ownership may delay, prevent or discourage acquisition proposals or other offers for our
common stock that you may feel are in your best interest as a stockholder and ultimately could deprive you of an opportunity to receive a
premium for your common stock as part of a sale of our company, which in turn might adversely affect the market price of our common stock.
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We are a “controlled company” within the meaning of the Exchange rules and, as a result, are entitled to rely on exemptions
from certain corporate governance requirements that are designed to provide protection to stockholders of companies that are not
“controlled companies.”

Because entities affiliated with Petrus own more than 50% of the total voting power of our common shares, we are a “controlled
company” within the meaning of the Exchange’s corporate governance standards. As a controlled company, we are exempt under the
Exchange’s standards from the obligation to comply with certain corporate governance requirements, including the requirements:

 • that a majority of our board of directors consists of independent directors;

 • that we have a nominating committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing the
committee’s purpose and responsibilities; and

 • that we have a compensation committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter addressing
the committee’s purpose and responsibilities.

As a result of relying on the controlled company exemptions, the procedures for approving significant corporate decisions could be
determined by directors who have a direct or indirect interest in such decisions, and our stockholders do not have the same protections
afforded to stockholders of other companies that are required to comply with all of the independence rules of the Exchange.

If securities or industry analysts do not publish research, or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research, about our business,
the price of our common stock and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our common stock will depend in part on the research and reports that securities or industry analysts publish
about us or our business, our market and our competitors. We do not have any control over these analysts. If few securities analysts
commence coverage of us or fail to publish reports on us regularly, or if industry analysts cease coverage of us, demand for our common
stock could decrease, which might cause our common stock price and trading volume to decline. If one or more of the analysts who cover us
downgrade our common stock or publish inaccurate or unfavorable research about our business, our common stock price would likely
decline.

If you purchase our common stock in our initial public offering, you will experience immediate and substantial dilution.
The assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on

the cover page of this prospectus, is substantially higher than the as adjusted net tangible book value per share of our outstanding common
stock of $          per share as of                          , 2021. Investors purchasing shares of our common stock in this offering will pay a price per
share that substantially exceeds the book value of our tangible assets after subtracting our liabilities. Therefore, if you purchase common
stock in this offering, you will incur immediate dilution of $          per share in the net tangible book value per share from the price you paid.
This dilution is due in large part to the fact that our earlier investors paid substantially less than the initial public offering price when they
purchased shares prior to this offering. You will experience additional dilution when those holding options exercise their right to purchase
common stock under our equity incentive plans or when we otherwise issue additional shares of our common stock. See the section titled
“Dilution” for additional information.

We will have broad discretion in the use of the net proceeds we receive in this offering and may not use them effectively.
We will have broad discretion in the application of the net proceeds we receive in this offering, including for any of the purposes

described in the section titled “Use of Proceeds,” and you will not have the opportunity as part of your investment decision to assess whether
the net proceeds are being used appropriately. Because of the number and variability of factors that will determine our use of the net
proceeds from this offering, their ultimate use may vary substantially from their currently intended use. If we do not use the net proceeds that
we receive in this offering effectively, our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects could be harmed, and the market
price for our common stock could decline.
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We do not currently intend to pay dividends for the foreseeable future.
In September 2020, we paid a cash dividend to Cricut Holdings, our sole stockholder at the time. We currently do not intend to pay

any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Additionally, our ability to pay dividends on our common stock is limited by the restrictions
under the terms of our New Credit Agreement. We anticipate that for the foreseeable future we will retain all of our future earnings for use in
the development of our business and for general corporate purposes. Any determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion
of our board of directors. Accordingly, investors must rely on sales of their common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as
the only way to realize any future gains on their investments.

Provisions in our charter documents that will be in effect upon the completion of this offering and under Delaware law could
make an acquisition of us difficult, limit attempts by our stockholders to replace or remove our current management and limit the
market price of our common stock.

Provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws that will be in effect upon the
completion of this offering may have the effect of delaying or preventing transactions involving an actual or potential change in our control or
change in our management, including transactions in which stockholders might otherwise receive a premium for their shares, or transactions
that our stockholders might otherwise deem to be in their best interests. Therefore, these provisions could adversely affect the price of our
common stock.

In addition, because we are incorporated in Delaware, we are governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the Delaware General
Corporation Law, or DGCL, which generally prohibits a Delaware corporation from engaging in any of a broad range of business
combinations with any “interested” stockholder for a period of three years following the date on which the stockholder became an “interested”
stockholder. For information regarding these and other provisions, see the section titled “Description of Capital Stock—Anti-Takeover
Provisions.”

Our charter documents that will be in effect on the completion of this offering will provide that the Court of Chancery of the
State of Delaware and the federal district courts of the United States will be the exclusive forums for substantially all disputes
between us and our stockholders, which could limit our stockholders’ ability to obtain a favorable judicial forum for disputes with
us or our directors, officers or employees.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation that will be in effect on the completion of this offering and our amended and
restated bylaws that will be in effect upon the completion of this offering will provide that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, to
the fullest extent permitted by law, will be the exclusive forum for any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, any action
asserting a breach of fiduciary duty, any action asserting a claim against us arising pursuant to the DGCL, our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated bylaws, or any action asserting a claim against us that is governed by the internal
affairs doctrine. This choice of forum provision may limit a stockholder’s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for
disputes with us or any of our directors, officers or other employees, which may discourage lawsuits against us and our directors, officers and
other employees. This exclusive forum provision will not apply to claims that are vested in the exclusive jurisdiction of a court or forum other
than the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, or for which the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware does not have subject
matter jurisdiction.

Section 22 of the Securities Act creates concurrent jurisdiction for U.S. federal and state courts over causes of action arising under
the Securities Act. Accordingly, both U.S. state and federal courts have jurisdiction to entertain such claims. To prevent having to litigate
claims in multiple jurisdictions and the threat of inconsistent or contrary rulings by different courts, among other considerations, our amended
and restated bylaws will provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the
United States shall be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act.
This exclusive forum provision will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or duty created by the Exchange Act. Any person or entity
purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in any of our securities shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to the foregoing
provision of our amended and restated bylaws.
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Although we believe this exclusive forum provision benefits us by providing increased consistency in the application of U.S. federal
securities laws in the types of lawsuits to which they apply, the exclusive forum provision may limit a shareholder’s ability to bring a claim in a
judicial forum of its choosing for disputes with us or any of our directors, shareholders, officers or other employees, which may discourage
lawsuits with respect to such claims against us and our current and former directors, shareholders, officers or other employees. Our
stockholders will not be deemed to have waived our compliance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the rules and regulations
thereunder as a result of our exclusive forum provision. Further, in the event a court finds the exclusive forum provision contained in our
amended and restated bylaws to be unenforceable or inapplicable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such
action in other jurisdictions, which could harm our results of operations.

General Risk Factors
The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused significant volatility in financial markets. Public health problems resulting from the COVID-19
pandemic and precautionary measures instituted by governments and businesses to mitigate its spread, including government lock-downs,
travel restrictions and quarantines, have contributed to, and could for the foreseeable future contribute to, a general slowdown in the global
economy, adversely impact our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, potential customers, third-party suppliers, contract manufacturers,
third-party logistics providers and other business partners, and disrupt our operations. Changes in our operations in response to the COVID-
19 pandemic have resulted, and could continue to result in, inefficiencies or delays, including in manufacturing, sales, delivery and product
development efforts, and additional costs related to business continuity initiatives, that cannot be fully mitigated through succession and
business continuity planning, employees working remotely or teleconferencing technologies.

During the COVID-19 pandemic we have experienced an increase in demand for our products and subscriptions. For example, from
the second quarter of 2018 to the second quarter of 2019 our revenue from connected machines grew          %, our revenue from
subscriptions grew          % and our revenue from accessories and materials grew          %.  In comparison, from the second quarter of 2019
to the second quarter of 2020 our revenue from connected machines grew          %, our revenue from subscriptions grew          % and our
revenue from accessories and materials grew          %. We believe that some portion of our revenue growth was a result of the COVID-19
pandemic, but we are not able to quantify the proportion of the increase in demand that is attributable to the COVID-19 pandemic as
opposed to other factors contributing to our growth in recent periods.

There is no guarantee that such trends will continue at all or at the same rate in the future. To the contrary, the COVID-19 pandemic
has had and may lead to a negative impact on our business and results of operations due to the occurrence of some or all of the following
events or circumstances, among others:

 • our inability to manage our business effectively due to key employees becoming ill, working from home inefficiently and being
unable to travel to our facilities;

 • our third-party suppliers’, contract manufacturers’, third-party logistics providers’ and other business partners’ inability to
operate worksites, including manufacturing facilities, shipping and fulfillment centers and third-party logistics facilities; for
example, we have experienced longer lead times requirements with suppliers and slowdowns with our contract manufacturers
during the COVID-19 pandemic;

 • prolonged delivery timelines;

 • increased return rates or decreased sales of our connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials, as
applicable, due to a decrease in consumer discretionary spending;

 • inventory shortages caused by a combination of increased demand for our products and longer lead-times in the
manufacturing of our connected machines and certain other products, due to work restrictions related to the COVID-19
pandemic, import and export conditions, such as port congestion and local government orders;
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 • interruptions in manufacturing (including the sourcing of key components) and shipment of our products; for example, in certain

instances, our suppliers, manufacturers and third-party logistic partners have closed and may in the future temporarily close
certain of their facilities for short periods of time;

 • government mandated shutdowns or movement control orders in the countries in which our contract manufacturers and
suppliers are located, specifically China and Malaysia, which may disrupt the operations of our contract manufacturers and
third-party suppliers, which could impact our ability to purchase components at efficient prices and in sufficient amounts; and

 • incurrence of significant increases to employee health care and benefits costs.

The extent of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business and financial results will depend largely on future developments,
including the duration of the spread of the outbreak, the impact on capital and financial markets and the related impact on the financial
circumstances of our customers, all of which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted. This situation is changing rapidly, and additional
impacts may arise that we are not aware of currently.

We are an “emerging growth company” and intend to take advantage of the reduced disclosure requirements applicable to
emerging growth companies which may make our common stock less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company” as defined in the JOBS Act. We will remain an emerging growth company until the earliest of
(i) the last day of the fiscal year in which we have total annual gross revenue of $1.07 billion or more, (ii) the last day of the fiscal year
following the fifth anniversary of the date of the completion of this offering, (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1.0 billion in
nonconvertible debt during the previous three years and (iv) the date on which we are deemed to be a “large accelerated filer” under the
rules of the SEC. For so long as we remain an emerging growth company, we are permitted to, and intend to, rely on exemptions from certain
disclosure requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not “emerging growth companies,” including:

 • not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

 • reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation; and

 • exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval
of any golden parachute payments not previously approved.

We currently intend to take advantage of the available exemptions described above. We have taken advantage of reduced reporting
burdens in this prospectus. In particular, we have not included all of the executive compensation information that would be required if we
were not an emerging growth company. We cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive if we rely on these
exemptions. Furthermore, under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can also delay adopting new or revised accounting standards
until such time as those standards apply to private companies. We plan to avail ourselves of this accommodation allowing for delayed
adoption of new or revised accounting standards. If some investors find our common stock less attractive as a result of these decisions, there
may be a less active trading market for our common stock and the price of our common stock may be more volatile.

Our business is subject to a large number of U.S. and non-U.S. laws, many of which are evolving, including laws specific to e-
commerce.

We are subject to a variety of laws and regulations in the United States and around the world, including those relating to traditional
businesses, such as employment laws and taxation, as well as laws and regulations focused on e-commerce and online marketplaces, such
as online payments, privacy, anti-spam, data security and protection, online platform liability, intellectual property and consumer protection,
the ability to collect and/or share necessary information that allows us to conduct business on the Internet,
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marketing communications and advertising, content protection, electronic contracts or gift cards. In some cases, non-U.S. privacy, data
protection, information security, consumer protection, e-commerce and other laws and regulations are more detailed than those in the United
States and, in some countries, are actively enforced.

These laws and regulations are continuously evolving, and compliance is costly and could require changes to our business practices
and significant management time and effort, or may result in enforcement actions or litigation. For example, California’s Automatic Renewal
Law requires companies to adhere to enhanced disclosure requirements when entering into automatically renewing contracts with
consumers. As a result, a wave of consumer class action lawsuits was brought against companies that offer online products and services on
a subscription or recurring basis. Other laws, like the CCPA and the EU’s GDPR, require us to implement reasonable privacy and security
measures, including applying security requirements by contract to certain service providers and processors acting on our behalf, as well as
requiring certain privacy and security disclosures to consumers and employees. In some jurisdictions, these laws and regulations may be
subject to attempts to apply such domestic rules world-wide against us or our subsidiaries. Additionally, it is not always clear how existing
laws apply to online marketplaces as many of these laws do not address the unique issues raised by online marketplaces or e-commerce.
For example, as described elsewhere in this Risk Factors section, laws relating to privacy, data protection and information security are
evolving differently in different jurisdictions. Federal, state and non-U.S. governmental authorities, as well as courts interpreting relevant laws,
continue to evaluate and assess applicable privacy, data protection and information security requirements.

Existing and future laws and regulations enacted by federal, state or non-U.S. governments or the inconsistent enforcement of such
laws and regulations could impede the growth of e-commerce or online marketplaces, which could have a negative impact on our business
and operations. Examples include data localization requirements, limitations on marketplace scope or ownership, intellectual property
intermediary liability rules, regulation of online speech, limits on network neutrality and rules related to security, privacy, data protection or
national security, which may impede us or our users. We could also face regulatory challenges or be subject to discriminatory or anti-
competitive practices that could impede both our growth prospects, increase our costs and harm our business.

We strive to comply with all applicable laws, but they may conflict with each other, and by complying with the laws or regulations of
one jurisdiction, we may find that we are in conflict with the laws or regulations of another jurisdiction. Despite our best efforts, we may not
have fully complied with all applicable laws and may not in the future. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with any of these laws
or regulations could result in damage to our reputation, lost business and proceedings or actions against us by governmental entities or
others, which could result in significant expenses, fines or penalties. Laws or regulations, or enforcement thereof, could also force us to
change the way we operate, which could require us to incur significant expenses or to discontinue certain services, which could negatively
affect our business.

Additionally, if third parties with whom we work violate applicable laws or our policies, those violations could result in other liabilities
for us and could harm our business. Furthermore, the circumstances in which we may be held liable for the acts, omissions or responsibilities
of these parties is uncertain, complex and evolving. If an increasing number of such laws are passed, the resulting compliance costs and
potential liability risk could negatively impact our business.

From time to time, we may be subject to legal proceedings, regulatory disputes and governmental inquiries that could cause
us to incur significant expenses, divert our management’s attention and materially harm our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

From time to time, we may be subject to claims, lawsuits, regulatory disputes, government inquiries and other proceedings, including
matters related to intellectual property, commercial, employment and tax that could adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. As we have grown, we have seen a rise in the number and significance of these disputes and inquiries. Litigation and
regulatory proceedings, and particularly any intellectual property infringement matters that we may face, could be
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protracted and expensive, and the results are difficult to predict. Certain of these matters may include speculative claims for substantial or
indeterminate amounts of damages and include claims for injunctive relief. Adverse outcomes with respect to any of these legal proceedings
may result in significant settlement costs or judgments, penalties and fines, or require us to modify our products or services, make content
unavailable or require us to stop offering certain features, all of which could negatively affect our subscription and revenue growth. See the
section titled “Business—Legal Proceedings” for additional information.

The results of claims, lawsuits, regulatory disputes, government inquiries and other proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty,
and determining reserves for pending litigation and other legal and regulatory matters requires significant judgment. There can be no
assurance that our expectations will prove correct, and even if these matters are resolved in our favor or without significant cash settlements,
these matters, and the time and resources necessary to litigate or resolve them, could harm our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We may engage in merger and acquisition activities, which could require significant management attention, disrupt our
business, dilute stockholder value and adversely affect our results of operations.

As part of our business strategy, we may in the future engage in investment, merger or acquisition activities involving other
companies, products or technologies. We may not be able to find suitable acquisition candidates, and we may not be able to complete
acquisitions on favorable terms, if at all. If we do complete acquisitions, we may not ultimately strengthen our competitive position or achieve
our goals, and any acquisitions we complete could be viewed negatively by our users or investors. Moreover, an acquisition, investment or
business relationship may result in unforeseen operating difficulties and expenditures, including disrupting our ongoing operations, diverting
management from their primary responsibilities, subjecting us to additional liabilities, increasing our expenses and adversely affecting our
business, financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, we may be exposed to unknown liabilities, and the anticipated benefits of
any acquisition, investment or business relationship may not be realized, if, for example, we fail to successfully integrate such acquisitions, or
the technologies associated with such acquisitions, into our company.

To pay for any such acquisitions, we would have to use our cash and cash equivalents, incur debt or issue equity securities, or a
combination thereof, each of which may affect our financial condition or the value of our common stock and could result in dilution to our
existing stockholders. If we incur more debt, it would result in increased fixed obligations and could also subject us to additional covenants or
other restrictions that would impede our ability to manage our operations. Additionally, we may receive indications of interest from other
parties interested in acquiring some or all of our business. The time required to evaluate such indications of interest could require significant
attention from management, disrupt the ordinary functioning of our business and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Our business is subject to the risk of earthquakes, fire, power outages, floods, public health crises, including the COVID-19
pandemic, and other catastrophic events, and to interruption by manmade problems such as terrorism.

Our business is vulnerable to damage or interruption from earthquakes, fires, pandemics, floods, power losses, telecommunications
failures, terrorist attacks, acts of war, human errors, break-ins, public health crises, including the COVID-19 pandemic and similar events. For
example, our operations are subject to a range of external factors related to the COVID-19 pandemic that are not within our control. A wide
range of governmental restrictions have been imposed on our employees’, customers’ and suppliers’ physical movement to limit the spread
of COVID-19. There can be no assurance that precautionary measures, whether adopted by us or imposed by others, will be effective, and
such measures could negatively affect our sales, marketing and Cricut Member Care efforts, delay and lengthen our sales cycles, decrease
our employees’ or customers’ or partners’ productivity or create operational or other challenges, any of which could harm our business,
results of operations and financial condition. The third-party systems
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and operations and manufacturers we rely on are subject to similar risks. Our insurance policies may not cover losses from these events or
may provide insufficient compensation that does not cover our total losses. For example, a significant natural disaster, such as a pandemic,
earthquake, fire or flood, could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations, and our insurance coverage may
be insufficient to compensate us for losses that may occur. Acts of terrorism, which may be targeted at metropolitan areas that have higher
population density than rural areas, could also cause disruptions in our or our suppliers’ and manufacturers’ businesses or the economy as a
whole. We may not have sufficient protection or recovery plans in some circumstances, such as natural disasters affecting locations that
store significant inventory of our products, that house our servers, or from which we generate content. As we rely heavily on our computer
and communications systems, and the Internet to conduct our business and provide high-quality Cricut Member Care, these disruptions
could negatively impact our ability to run our business and either directly or indirectly disrupt suppliers’ and manufacturers’ businesses, which
could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We are subject to payment processing risk.
Our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and users pay for our products using a variety of different payment methods, including

credit and debit cards, gift cards, electronic fund transfers and electronic payment system and third-party financing providers. We rely on
internal systems as well as those of third parties to process payment. Acceptance and processing of these payment methods are subject to
certain rules and regulations and require payment of interchange and other fees. To the extent there are disruptions in our payment
processing systems, increases in payment processing fees, material changes in the payment ecosystem, such as large re-issuances of
payment cards, delays in receiving payments from payment processors or changes to rules or regulations concerning payment processing,
our revenue, operating expenses and results of operation could be adversely impacted. We leverage our third-party payment processors to
bill users on cricut.com and Paid Subscriber on our behalf. If these third parties become unwilling or unable to continue processing payments
on our behalf, we would have to find alternative methods of collecting payments, which could adversely impact user and Paid Subscriber
acquisition and retention. In addition, from time to time, we encounter fraudulent use of payment methods, which could impact our results of
operation and if not adequately controlled and managed could create negative consumer perceptions of our service.

In 2020, we introduced an integration with a third-party financing provider, Affirm, which allows users to finance the purchase of our
connected machines through third-party consumer financing. There is no assurance that Affirm, or any other company that may in the future
offer financing to our users, will continue to provide users with access to credit or that credit limits under such arrangements will be sufficient.
Such restrictions or limitations on the availability of consumer credit could have an adverse impact on our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

The estimates of market size included in this prospectus may prove to be inaccurate, and even if the market in which we
compete is of the size we estimate, we cannot assure you that our business will penetrate some or all of our SAM or TAM.

Market size estimates are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates that may not prove to be
accurate. The estimates of market size in this prospectus relating to our SAM and TAM, including estimates based on our commissioned
surveys or our own internal survey data, may prove to be inaccurate. Even if the market is of the size we estimate in this prospectus, we may
not further penetrate our SAM or TAM, or at all. Accordingly, the estimates of market size included in this prospectus should not be taken as
indicative of our future growth.
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The requirements of being a public company, including maintaining adequate internal control over our financial and
management systems, may strain our resources, divert management’s attention and affect our ability to attract and retain
executive management and qualified board members.

As a public company we will incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not incur as a private company.
Following the completion of this offering we will be subject to reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the rules
subsequently implemented by the SEC, the rules and regulations and the listing standards of the Exchange and other applicable securities
rules and regulations. Compliance with these rules and regulations will likely strain our financial and management systems, internal controls
and employees.

The Exchange Act requires, among other things, that we file annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to our business and
results of operations and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we maintain effective disclosure controls and
procedures, and internal control, over financial reporting. In order to maintain and, if required, improve our disclosure controls and
procedures, and internal control over, financial reporting to meet this standard, significant resources and management oversight may be
required. If, in the future, we have material weaknesses or deficiencies in our internal control over financial reporting, we may not detect
errors on a timely basis and our consolidated financial statements may be materially misstated. Effective internal control is necessary for us
to produce reliable financial reports and is important to prevent fraud.

In addition, we will be required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act when we
cease to be an emerging growth company. We expect to incur significant expenses and devote substantial management effort toward
ensuring compliance with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. As a result of the complexity
involved in complying with the rules and regulations applicable to public companies, our management’s attention may be diverted from other
business concerns, which could harm our business, results of operations and financial condition. Although we have already hired additional
employees to assist us in complying with these requirements, our finance team is small and we may need to hire more employees in the
future, or engage outside consultants, which will increase our operating expenses.

Being a public company and complying with applicable rules and regulations will make it much more expensive for us to obtain
director and officer liability insurance, and we will incur substantially higher costs to obtain and maintain the same or similar coverage. These
factors could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified members of our board of directors and qualified executive
officers.

If our estimates or judgments relating to our critical accounting policies prove to be incorrect, our results of operations could
be adversely affected.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances, as provided in the section titled
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates.” The
results of these estimates form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity/deficit
and the amount of revenue and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Significant assumptions and estimates used in
preparing our consolidated financial statements include those related to deferred revenue and entitlements. Our results of operations may be
adversely affected if our assumptions change or if actual circumstances differ from those in our assumptions, which could cause our results
of operations to fall below the expectations of securities analysts and investors, resulting in a decline in the price of our common stock.
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We may be subject to sales and other taxes, and we may be subject to liabilities on past sales for taxes, surcharges and fees.
The application of indirect taxes, such as sales and use tax, subscription sales tax, value-added tax, provincial taxes, goods and

services tax, business tax and gross receipt tax, to businesses like ours is a complex and evolving issue. Significant judgment is required to
evaluate applicable tax obligations. In many cases, the ultimate tax determination is uncertain because it is not clear how existing statutes
apply to our business. One or more states, the federal government or other countries may seek to impose additional reporting, record-
keeping or indirect tax collection obligations on businesses like ours that offer subscription services. For example, on June 21, 2018, the U.S.
Supreme Court held in South Dakota v. Wayfair, Inc. that states could impose sales tax collection obligations on out-of-state sellers even if
those sellers lack any physical presence within the states imposing the sales taxes. Under Wayfair, a person requires only a “substantial
nexus” with the taxing state before the state may subject the person to sales tax collection obligations therein. An increasing number of
states (both before and after the publication of Wayfair) have considered or adopted laws that attempt to impose sales tax collection
obligations on out-of-state sellers. The U.S. Supreme Court’s Wayfair decision has removed a significant impediment to the enactment and
enforcement of these laws, and it is possible that states may seek to tax out-of-state sellers on sales that occurred in prior tax years, which
could create additional administrative burdens for us, put us at a competitive disadvantage if such states do not impose similar obligations on
our competitors and decrease our future sales, which could adversely impact our business and results of operations. Although we believe
that we currently collect and remit sales taxes in all states that have adopted laws imposing sales tax collection obligations on out-of-state
sellers since Wayfair was decided, a successful assertion by one or more states requiring us to collect sales taxes where we presently do not
do so, or to collect more taxes in a jurisdiction where we currently do collect some sales taxes, could result in substantial tax liabilities,
including taxes on past sales, as well as interest and penalties. The adoption of new laws by, or a successful assertion by taxing authorities
of such laws, could also require us to incur substantial costs to capture data and collect and remit taxes. If such obligations were imposed,
the additional costs associated with tax collection, remittance and audit requirements could adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus includes forward-looking statements within the meaning of the federal securities laws under the sections titled
“Prospectus Summary,” “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
“Business” and in other sections of this prospectus. These forward-looking statements, which are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties
and assumptions about us, generally relate to future events or our future financial or operating performance. In some cases, you can identify
these statements by forward-looking words such as “believe,” “may,” “will,” “estimate,” “continue,” “anticipate,” “design,” “intend,” “expect,”
“could,” “plan,” “potential,” “predict,” “seek,” “should,” “would,” “target,” “project” or “contemplate” or the negative version of these words and
other comparable terminology that concern our expectations, strategy, plans, intentions or projections. Forward-looking statements contained
in this prospectus include, but are not limited to, statements about:

 • our ability to attract and engage users and attract and expand our relationships with brick-and-mortar and online retail partners
and distributors;

 • our future results of operations, including trends in revenue, costs, operating expenses and key metrics;

 • our ability to compete successfully in competitive markets;

 • our expectations and management of future growth;

 • our ability to manage our supply chain, manufacturing, distribution and fulfillment, including the ability to forecast demand;

 • our ability to enter new markets and manage our expansion efforts, including internationally;

 • our ability to attract and retain management, key employees and qualified personnel;

 • our ability to effectively and efficiently protect our brand;

 • our ability to maintain, protect and enhance our intellectual property and not infringe upon others’ intellectual property;

 • our continued use of open source software;

 • our estimated SAM and TAM;

 • our ability to prevent serious errors, defects or vulnerabilities in our products and software;

 • the adequacy of our capital resources to fund operations and growth;

 • our anticipated uses of net proceeds from this offering;

 • our ability to remain in compliance with laws and regulations that currently apply or become applicable to our business both
domestically and internationally;

 • Petrus’ significant influence over us and our status as a “controlled company” under the rules of the Exchange;

 • expectations regarding the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the related responses by governments and private industry on
our business and financial condition, as well as the financial condition of our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, online
and e-commerce channels and users; and

 • the other factors identified under the section titled “Risk Factors” appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

We caution you that the foregoing list may not contain all of the forward-looking statements made in this prospectus.
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You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. These statements are only predictions based
primarily on our current expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects. There are important factors that could cause our actual results, events or circumstances to
differ materially from the results, events or circumstances expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements, including those factors
discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this prospectus. You should specifically consider the numerous risks outlined
in the section titled “Risk Factors.” Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks and
uncertainties emerge from time to time and it is not possible for us to predict all risks and uncertainties that could have an impact on the
forward-looking statements contained in this prospectus.

Neither we nor any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of any of these forward-looking
statements. Moreover, the forward-looking statements made in this prospectus relate only to events as of the date on which the statements
are made. We undertake no obligation to update any of these forward-looking statements after the date of this prospectus to reflect events or
circumstances after the date of this prospectus or to reflect new information or the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by
law. We may not actually achieve the plans, intentions or expectations disclosed in our forward-looking statements and you should not place
undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. Our forward-looking statements do not reflect the potential impact of any future
acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures or investments we may make.

In addition, statements that “we believe” and similar statements reflect our beliefs and opinions on the relevant subject. These
statements are based upon information available to us as of the date of this prospectus, and while we believe such information forms a
reasonable basis for such statements, such information may be limited or incomplete, and our statements should not be read to indicate that
we have conducted an exhaustive inquiry into, or review of, all potentially available relevant information. These statements are inherently
uncertain and investors are cautioned not to unduly rely upon these statements.
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MARKET, INDUSTRY AND OTHER DATA

Unless otherwise indicated, estimates and information contained in this prospectus concerning our industry and the market in which
we operate, including our general expectations and market position, market opportunity and market size, are based on information from
various sources, including the independent industry publications set forth below, and are subject to a number of assumptions and limitations.
You are cautioned not to give undue weight to these estimates. Although we are responsible for all of the disclosure contained in this
prospectus and we believe the information from the industry publications and other third-party sources included in this prospectus is reliable,
we have not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of the data contained in such sources. The content of the below sources,
except to the extent specifically set forth in this prospectus, does not constitute a portion of this prospectus and is not incorporated herein.

The sources of certain statistical data, estimates and forecasts contained in this prospectus are the following independent industry
publications or reports:

 • Deloitte, Made to order: The rise of mass personalisation, The Deloitte Consumer Review, July 2015;

 • GlobalWebIndex, Social, GlobalWebIndex’s flagship report on the latest trends in social media, 2020; and

 • YouGov America, 2020 Cricut TAM Study Background Information, August 2020.

The industry in which we operate is subject to a high degree of uncertainty and risk due to a variety of factors, including those
described in the section titled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this prospectus. These and other factors could cause results to differ materially
from those expressed in the estimates made by the independent parties and by us.

Certain information regarding users contained in this prospectus is based on annual internal surveys and studies we conduct and has
not been verified by a third party.
 
 

-66-



 
CORPORATE REORGANIZATION

The diagram below depicts our organizational structure immediately prior to the consummation of this offering:

 
Currently, the capital structure of Cricut Holdings consists of: (i) common units, (ii) incentive units, which are profits interests, (iii) zero

strike price incentive units, (iv) purchased units and (v) phantom units. Prior to this offering, Cricut, Inc. has been a wholly owned subsidiary
of Cricut Holdings.

Corporate Reorganization
Prior to the consummation of this offering, we will take a series of related corporate reorganization transactions as follows:

 • Cricut, Inc. will engage in a forward stock split;

 • Cricut, Inc. will file an amended and restated certificate of incorporation; and

 • Cricut Holdings will liquidate in accordance with the terms and conditions of its existing limited liability company agreement. We
refer to this transaction in this prospectus as the “Cricut Holdings Liquidation.” Existing Unitholders will receive, as a result of
the Cricut Holdings Liquidation, 100% of the capital stock of Cricut, Inc. The capital stock of Cricut, Inc. will be allocated to
such unit holders pursuant to the distribution provisions of the existing limited liability company agreement of Cricut Holdings
based upon the liquidation value of Cricut Holdings, assuming it was liquidated at the time of this offering with a value implied
by the initial public offering price of the shares of common stock to be sold in this offering. Cricut Holdings will cease to exist
following the Cricut Holdings Liquidation.

We refer to the foregoing transactions, collectively, as the “Corporate Reorganization.”
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As a result of the Corporate Reorganization and the subsequent consummation of the offering described in this prospectus:

 • investors in this offering will collectively own               shares of common stock of Cricut, Inc. (or               shares of common
stock if the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of our common stock from us is exercised in full);

 • Existing Unitholders in Cricut Holdings will collectively own               shares of common stock of Cricut, Inc.; and

 • Existing Unitholders will collectively own               shares of either restricted stock or RSUs of Cricut, Inc.

Treatment of Outstanding Equity Awards
In connection with the Corporate Reorganization, all of the outstanding equity awards that have been granted will be converted into

shares of common stock, restricted stock and RSUs of Cricut, Inc., as applicable, and all of the outstanding phantom units that have been
granted will be equitably adjusted and converted into either shares of restricted stock of Cricut, Inc. or paid in cash, to the extent permitted in
each applicable jurisdiction. The portion of each outstanding equity award that is vested as of immediately prior to the consummation of the
Corporate Reorganization will be converted into shares of our common stock, and the portion of each outstanding equity award that is
unvested as of immediately prior to the consummation of the Corporate Reorganization will be converted into shares of Cricut, Inc.’s
restricted stock or RSUs, as applicable. The shares of restricted stock and the RSUs will be subject to the same vesting conditions that apply
to the unvested units or unit equivalents, as applicable, underlying the outstanding equity award from which such shares are converted.

The diagram below depicts our organizational structure immediately following the consummation of this offering:
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that the net proceeds from the sale of                shares of our common stock in this offering will be approximately
$          , based on an assumed initial offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth
on the cover page of this prospectus, after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses
payable by us. If the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of our common stock from us is exercised in full, we estimate our net
proceeds will be approximately $          after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses
payable by us.

Each $1.00 increase or decrease in the assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the
estimated offering price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, would increase or decrease, respectively, the net proceeds that
we receive from this offering by approximately $          , assuming the number of shares offered by us, as set forth on the cover page of this
prospectus, remains the same and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses
payable by us. Similarly, each increase or decrease of 1.0 million in the number of shares of our common stock offered by us would increase
or decrease the net proceeds that we receive from this offering by approximately $          , assuming the assumed initial public offering price
remains the same and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

The principal purposes of this offering are to increase our capitalization and financial flexibility, increase our visibility in the
marketplace, create a public market for our common stock and enable access to the public equity markets for our stockholders.

We intend to use the net proceeds we receive from this offering for general corporate purposes, including working capital, operating
expenses and capital expenditures and payment of outstanding phantom unit awards in certain jurisdictions. We also intend to use $          for
the cash settlement of  outstanding phantom units of Cricut Holdings, based on an assumed initial offering price of $          per share, which is
the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus. Each $1.00 increase or decrease in the
assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover
page of this prospectus, would increase or decrease, respectively, proceeds for the cash settlement of outstanding phantom units of Cricut
Holdings by approximately $          .

Additionally, we may use a portion of the net proceeds we receive from this offering to acquire businesses, products, services or
technologies. However, we do not have agreements or commitments for any material acquisitions at this time. We cannot specify with
certainty the particular uses of the net proceeds that we will receive from this offering. Accordingly, we will have broad discretion in using
these proceeds. Pending the use of proceeds from this offering as described above, we may invest the net proceeds that we receive in this
offering in short-term, investment grade, interest-bearing instruments.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

In September 2020, we paid a cash dividend to holders of our common stock totaling $50.8 million. We do not currently intend to pay
any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and
development of our business. Any future determination to pay dividends on our common stock will be made at the discretion of our board of
directors subject to applicable laws, and will depend upon, among other factors, our results of operations, financial condition, contractual
restrictions and capital requirements. Our ability to pay cash dividends on our capital stock may also be limited by the terms of our New
Credit Agreement and the terms of any future debt or preferred securities or future indebtedness.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our cash and cash equivalents and capitalization as of December 31, 2020:

 • on an actual basis; and

 • on an as adjusted basis to reflect the sale and issuance of               shares of common stock pursuant to this offering, based on
an assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth
on the cover page of this prospectus and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated
offering expenses payable by us.

The as adjusted information set forth in the table below is illustrative only and will be adjusted based on the actual initial public
offering price and other terms of this offering determined at pricing. You should read the information in this table together with our
consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus and the sections titled “Corporate Reorganization,”
“Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations.”
 
   As of December 31, 2020

   Actual   As Adjusted(1)

   (unaudited)
   (in thousands, except share and per share data)
Cash and cash equivalents  $   $  
Stockholders’ (deficit) equity:  $   $  

Common stock, par value $0.001 per share;            shares
   authorized, shares issued and outstanding, actual,
   shares authorized, issued and outstanding, as adjusted  

 

  

 

 
Additional paid-in capital       
Accumulated other comprehensive loss       
Accumulated deficit       
Total stockholders’ (deficit) equity       

Total capitalization       
 

(1) Each $1.00 increase (decrease) in the assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the
cover page of this prospectus, would increase (decrease) each of cash and cash equivalents, additional paid-in capital, total members’/stockholders’ (deficit) equity and
total capitalization by $          million, assuming that the number of shares offered by us, as set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, remains the same and after
deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us. We may also increase or decrease the number of shares
we are offering. Each increase (decrease) of 1.0 million shares in the number of shares offered by us would increase (decrease) cash and cash equivalents, additional
paid-in capital, total members’/stockholders’ (deficit) equity and total capitalization by $          million, assuming the assumed initial public offering price remains the same
and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us. The as adjusted information discussed above is
illustrative only and will be adjusted based on the actual initial public offering price and other terms of this offering determined at pricing.

If the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of our common stock from us were exercised in full, as adjusted cash, and
cash equivalents, additional paid-in capital, total members’/stockholders’ (deficit) equity and total capitalization would be $          , $          ,
$           and $          , respectively.

The number of shares of our common stock that will be outstanding after this offering is based on an aggregate of               shares of
our common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020, and includes:

 •                shares of our common stock that were outstanding as of December 31, 2020, upon consummation of the Corporate
Reorganization (based on an assumed initial offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering
price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus); and
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 •                shares of our common stock that are issuable upon conversion of               phantom units, in jurisdictions where

permitted, that were outstanding as of December 31, 2020, which conversion will occur in connection with the Corporate
Reorganization (based on an assumed initial offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering
price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus).

The number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020 excludes the following:

 •                shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under our equity compensation plans, consisting of:

 ○                shares of common stock, reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Plan (including shares of common
stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options and vesting and settlement of RSUs which we intend to grant in
connection with this offering as set forth below), as well as any annual increases in the number of shares of common
stock reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Plan, which plan will become effective in connection with the
completion of this offering;

 ○                shares reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Plan include               shares of common stock (based on
an assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range
set forth on the cover page of this prospectus) issuable upon the exercise of stock options which we intend to grant in
connection with this offering; and

 ○                additional shares of common stock, subject to increase on an annual basis, reserved for future issuance
under our 2021 ESPP, which plan will become effective in connection with the completion of this offering.
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DILUTION

If you invest in our common stock in this offering, your ownership interest will be immediately diluted to the extent of the difference
between the amount per share paid by purchasers of shares of common stock in this offering and the as adjusted net tangible book value per
share of our common stock immediately after the completion of this offering. Dilution in net tangible book value per share to new investors
represents the difference between the amount per share paid by purchasers of shares of our common stock in this offering and the as
adjusted net tangible book value per share of our common stock immediately after completion of this offering.

After giving effect to the Corporate Reorganization, our net tangible book deficit as of December 31, 2020 was approximately $          ,
or $          per share, based on               shares of our common stock deemed to be outstanding as of December 31, 2020.

After giving effect to our sale in this offering of            shares of our common stock, at an assumed initial public offering price of
$            per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, and after
deducting the estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us, our as adjusted net
tangible book value as of December 31, 2020, would have been approximately $            million, or $            per share. This represents an
immediate increase in net tangible book value of $            per share to our existing stockholders and an immediate dilution of $            per
share to investors purchasing common stock in this offering at the assumed initial public offering price.

The following table illustrates this dilution to new investors on a per share basis:
 
Assumed initial public offering price per share    $

Net tangible book value per share
   as of December 31, 2020  $   
Increase in net tangible book value
   per share attributable to investors purchasing
   shares of our common stock in this offering     
As adjusted net tangible book value
   per share of our common stock immediately
   after the completion of this offering     

Dilution in net tangible book value per
   share to investors purchasing shares in
   this offering    $
 

If the underwriters’ option to purchase additional shares of our common stock from us were exercised in full, the as adjusted net
tangible book value would be $          per share, the increase in the net tangible book value per share for existing stockholders would be
$          per share and the dilution to new investors participating in this offering would be $          per share.

Each $1.00 increase (decrease) in the assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated
offering price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, would increase (decrease) the as adjusted net tangible book value by
$          per share and the dilution per share to new investors by $          per share, assuming the number of shares offered by us, as set forth
on the cover page of this prospectus, remains the same and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and
estimated offering expenses payable by us.
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We may also increase or decrease the number of shares we are offering. Each increase (decrease) of 1.0 million shares in the
number of shares offered by us would increase (decrease) our as adjusted net tangible book value by approximately $          , or $          per
share, and the dilution per share to investors in this offering by $          per share, assuming the assumed initial public offering price remains
the same and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.

The information discussed above is illustrative only and will change based on the actual initial public offering price, number of shares
and other terms of this offering determined at pricing.

The table below summarizes, as of December 31, 2020, after giving effect to the sale by us of shares of our common stock in this
offering, the number of shares of our common stock, the total consideration and the average price per share (i) paid to us by our existing
stockholders and (ii) to be paid by new investors participating in this offering at an assumed initial public offering price of $          per share,
which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, before deducting estimated
underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering expenses payable by us.
 

  Shares Purchased   Total Consideration   Average Price
  Number  Percent   Amount   Percent   Per Share

Existing stockholders    %  $ —  %  $
Investors purchasing shares of our common
   stock in this offering                 
Total     100% $ —   100%  
 

Each $1.00 increase (decrease) in the assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated
offering price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus, would increase (decrease) the total consideration paid by new investors
and total consideration paid by all stockholders by $          million, assuming that the number of shares offered by us, as set forth on the cover
page of this prospectus, remains the same, after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering
expenses payable by us. We may also increase or decrease the number of shares we are offering. Each increase (decrease) of 1.0 million in
the number of shares offered by us would increase (decrease) total consideration paid by new investors by $          , assuming the assumed
initial price to the public remains the same and after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and commissions and estimated offering
expenses payable by us.

Except as otherwise indicated, the above discussion and tables assume no exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase additional
shares of our common stock from us. If the underwriters exercise in full their option to purchase additional shares of our common stock from
us, our existing stockholders would own           %  and our new investors would own           % of the total number of shares of our common
stock outstanding upon completion of this offering.

The number of shares of our common stock that will be outstanding after this offering is based on an aggregate of                shares of
our common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020, and includes:

 •                shares of our common stock that were outstanding as of December 31, 2020, upon consummation of the Corporate
Reorganization (based on an assumed initial offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering
price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus); and

 •                shares of our common stock that are issuable upon conversion of               phantom units, in jurisdictions where
permitted, that were outstanding as of December 31, 2020, which conversion will occur in connection with the Corporate
Reorganization (based on an assumed initial offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering
price range set forth on the cover page of this prospectus).
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The number of shares of our common stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020 excludes the following:

 •                shares of common stock reserved for future issuance under our equity compensation plans, consisting of:

 ○                shares of common stock, reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Plan (including shares of common
stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options and vesting and settlement of RSUs which we intend to grant in
connection with this offering as set forth below), as well as any annual increases in the number of shares of common
stock reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Plan, which plan will become effective in connection with the
completion of this offering;

 ○                shares reserved for future issuance under our 2021 Plan include                shares of common stock (based on
an assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range
set forth on the cover page of this prospectus) issuable upon the exercise of stock options which we intend to grant in
connection with this offering; and

 ○                additional shares of common stock, subject to increase on an annual basis, reserved for future issuance
under our 2021 ESPP, which plan will become effective in connection with the completion of this offering.
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

The following tables present selected historical financial and other data for the periods indicated. The selected consolidated
statements of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019 and the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31,
2018 and 2019 are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. Our
historical results are not necessarily indicative of our future results. The following selected consolidated financial and other data below should
be read in conjunction with the section titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and
the consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. The last day of our fiscal year is December
31.
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:  (in thousands)  
Revenue:         

Connected machines  $ 147,081  $ 198,144 
Subscriptions   31,300   53,829 
Accessories and materials   161,407   234,581 

Total revenue   339,788   486,554 
Cost of revenue:         

Connected machines(1)   127,546   176,894 
Subscriptions(1)   5,027   8,827 
Accessories and materials(1)   96,119   158,483 

Total cost of revenue   228,692   344,204 
Gross profit   111,096   142,350 
Operating expenses:         

Research and development(1)   24,056   26,674 
Sales and marketing(1)   30,698   40,110 
General and administrative(1)   18,363   22,005 

Total operating expenses   73,117   88,789 
Income from operations   37,979   53,561 
Other income (expense):         

Interest income (expense), net   (1,934)   (3,291)
Other income (expense), net   108   (2)

Total other income (expense), net   (1,826)   (3,293)
Income before provision for income taxes   36,153   50,268 
Provision for income taxes   8,721   11,057 
Net income  $ 27,432  $ 39,211 
Net income attributable to Class A common stockholders(2)   49,337   39,211 
Earnings per share attributable to Class A common stockholders,
   basic and diluted  $ 15.23  $ 12.11 
Weighted-average Class A common shares outstanding used to
   compute earnings per share attributable to common stockholders,
   basic and diluted(2)   3,238,427   3,238,427

 

 

(1) Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows:
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  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

  (in thousands)  
Cost of revenue:         

Connected machines  $ 11  $ 2 
Subscriptions   51   11 
Accessories and materials   —   — 

Total cost of revenue   62   13 
Research and development   5,467   881 
Sales and marketing   2,843   623 
General and administrative   2,006   328 

Total stock-based compensation expense   10,378   1,845
 

 

(2) See Note 1, Note 2 and Note 15 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus for an explanation of the methods used to calculate basic
and diluted net loss per share.

 
  As of December 31,  
  2018   2019  

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:  (in thousands)  
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 6,016  $ 6,653 
Working capital   72,787   111,604 
Total assets   241,618   317,645 
Term loan, net of current portion   11,667   17,843 
Total liabilities   161,852   196,503 
Total stockholders’ equity   79,766   121,142

 

 

Key Business Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures
In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements, we use the following key business metrics and non-

GAAP financial measures to help us evaluate our business, identify trends affecting our business, formulate business plans and make
strategic decisions. For more information regarding our use of these key business metrics see the section titled “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Key Business Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures.”
 
  As of December 31,  

  2018   2019  
Users (in thousands)   1,685   2,525 
Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days  N/A   64%
Paid Subscribers (in thousands)         
         
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
Subscription ARPU  $ 23.19  $ 25.57 
Accessories and Materials ARPU  $ 119.61  $ 111.44 
EBITDA (in millions)  $ 46.10  $ 62.67

 

 
EBITDA and EBITDA Margin

We calculate EBITDA as net income adjusted to exclude: interest expense, net; income taxes and depreciation and amortization
expense. EBITDA Margin is calculated by dividing EBITDA by total revenue.

-77-



 

We use EBITDA and EBITDA Margin as a measure of operating in our business. We believe this non-GAAP financial measure is
useful to investors for period-to-period comparisons of our business and in understanding and evaluating our results of operations for the
following reasons:

 • EBITDA and EBITDA Margin are widely used by investors and securities analysts to measure a company’s operating
performance without regard to items such as depreciation and amortization expense, interest expense and income taxes that
can vary substantially from company to company depending upon their financing and the method by which assets were
acquired;

 • our management uses EBITDA and EBITDA Margin in conjunction with financial measures prepared in accordance with GAAP
for planning purposes, including the preparation of our annual operating budget, as a measure of our core results of operations
and the effectiveness of our business strategy and in evaluating our financial performance; and

 • EBITDA and EBITDA Margin provide consistency and comparability with our past financial performance, facilitate period-to-
period comparisons of our core results of operations and also facilitate comparisons with other peer companies, many of which
use similar non-GAAP financial measures to supplement their GAAP results.

Our use of EBITDA and EBITDA Margin has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider these measures in isolation
or as substitutes for analysis of our financial results as reported under GAAP. Some of these limitations are, or may in the future be, as
follows:

 • although depreciation and amortization expense are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized may have
to be replaced in the future, and EBITDA and EBITDA Margin do not reflect cash capital expenditure requirements for such
replacements or for new capital expenditure requirements;

 • EBITDA and EBITDA Margin do not reflect the portion of software development costs that we capitalize under GAAP, which
has recently been, and will continue to be for the foreseeable future, a significant recurring expense for our business and an
important part of our investment in new products;

 • EBITDA and EBITDA Margin do not reflect: (i) changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs, (ii) interest
expense, or the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal payments on our debt, which reduces cash
available to us or (iii) tax payments that may represent a reduction in cash available to us.

Because of these limitations, we believe EBITDA and EBITDA Margin should be considered along with other operating and financial
performance measures presented in accordance with GAAP.  

The following table presents a reconciliation of EBITDA to net income, the most directly comparable financial measure prepared in
accordance with GAAP, for each of the periods indicated:

 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Net income  $ 27,432  $ 39,211 
Interest expense, net   1,934   3,291 
Depreciation and amortization   8,016   9,108 
Provision for income taxes   8,721   11,057 
EBITDA  $ 46,103  $ 62,667
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read together with our
consolidated financial statements and related notes and other financial information appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion
and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results could differ materially
from these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, including those discussed in the sections titled “Risk Factors” and “Special
Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Overview of Our Business and History
 

At Cricut, our mission is to help people lead creative lives. We have designed and built a creativity platform that enables our engaged
and loyal community of            million users to turn ideas into professional-looking handmade goods. With our highly versatile connected
machines, design apps and accessories and materials, our users create everything from personalized birthday cards, mugs and t-shirts to
large-scale interior decorations.

Our users’ journeys typically begin with the purchase of a connected machine. We currently sell a portfolio of connected machines
that cut, write, score and create other decorative effects using a wide variety of materials including paper, vinyl, leather and more. Our
connected machines are designed for a wide range of uses and are available at a variety of price points:

 • Cricut Joy for personalization on-the-go, $179.99 MSRP

 • Cricut Explore for cutting, writing and scoring, $249.99 MSRP

 • Cricut Maker for cutting, writing, scoring and adding decorative effects to a wider range of materials, $399.99 MSRP

Our software integrates our connected machines and design apps, allowing our users to create and share seamlessly. Our software is
cloud-based, meaning that users can access and work on their projects anywhere, at any time, across desktops or mobile devices. We
enable our users to be inspired, to create and share projects with the Cricut community and to follow others doing the same. On our apps,
users can find inspiration, purchase or upload content like fonts and images, design a project from scratch or find a vast array of ready-to-
make projects.

Users can leverage the full power of our platform by using our connected machines together with our free design apps, in-app
purchases and subscription offerings to design and complete projects. All users can access a select number of free images, fonts and
projects from our design apps or upload their own. In addition we offer a wider selection of images, fonts and projects for purchase à la carte,
including licensed content from partners with well-known brands and characters, like major motion picture studios. We also have two
subscription offerings: Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium. Cricut Access provides a subscription to images, fonts and projects as well
as other member benefits, such as discounts and priority Cricut Member Care. Cricut Access is billed monthly for $9.99 per month or
annually for $95.88 per year. Cricut Access Premium includes all of the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and
preferred shipping and is billed annually for $119.88 per year. As of December 31, 2020, we had nearly             Paid Subscribers to Cricut
Access and Cricut Access Premium.

We sell a broad range of accessories and materials that bring our users’ designs to life, from advanced tools like heat presses to
Cricut-branded rulers, scoring tools, pens, paper and iron-on vinyl, all designed to work seamlessly with our connected machines. Designing
and completing projects drives repeat purchases of Cricut-branded accessories and materials.

We design and develop our software and hardware products, and we work with third-party contract manufacturers to source
components and finished goods and with third-party logistics companies to warehouse and distribute our products.
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We sell our connected machines and accessories and materials through our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, as well as
through our website at cricut.com. Our partners include Amazon, Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann, Michaels, Target, Walmart and many others.
We also sell our products, including subscriptions to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium, on cricut.com. In 2019, 52% of our revenue
was generated through brick-and-mortar sales, and 48% was generated through online channels.

We have experienced rapid and profitable growth in our business. In 2018 and 2019, we generated:

 • Total revenue of $340 million and $487 million, respectively, representing 43% year-over-year growth

 • Net income of $27 million and $39 million, respectively, representing 43% year-over-year growth

 • EBITDA of $46 million and $63 million, respectively, representing 36% year-over-year growth

The graphic below shows key milestones in our recent history as well as the annual number of users and annual total revenue since
2014.

Our Recent History and Milestones
 

 

Our Business Model
Our business model thrives because our products unlock creativity, which then in turn drives the engagement of our users.

Our             million users’ journeys typically begin with the purchase of a connected
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machine and expand across our family of products as users harness the power of our platform. Our business model is characterized by
strong engagement and diversified sales across product categories. This engagement has led to rapid growth and strong profitability.

Attracting and Engaging New Users through Connected Machine Sales
Since launching our first connected machine, we have built a loyal and growing community of users that has reached substantial

scale. As of December 31, 2019 and 2020, we had          million and          million users, respectively, representing          % year-over-year
growth. See the section titled “—Key Business Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for the definition of users. We believe we are in
the early stages of our growth and that we have a significant untapped opportunity in the United States and Canada, as well as globally.
Our            million users as of December 31, 2020, represent less than          % of our estimated SAM in the United States and Canada and
less than           % of our total SAM including our primary international target markets of Australia, France, Germany and the United Kingdom.

We have been able to efficiently acquire new users and drive sales of our products because of the powerful network effects of our
community. To date, word-of-mouth referrals, as well as effective use of low-cost marketing channels like social media, have driven our
success. In 2020, 42% of new users indicated that they first heard about Cricut from friends and family. Another 21% of our users first heard
about Cricut from other low cost or free marketing channels including YouTube, DIY blogs and press coverage. Sales and marketing
expenses represented 9% and 8% of revenue in 2018 and 2019, respectively.

Once we acquire a user, we see strong engagement with them over time. We drive engagement through a highly interactive and
fulfilling product experience and the strength of our community. We continuously innovate and improve our connected machines, design apps
and accessories and materials, giving our users more to create. Once they have purchased connected machines, users inspire one another
to create and use more of our digital content, subscriptions and accessories and materials. In turn, we learn from our users’ creativity, and
launch new products to help expand their creative horizons. We measure engagement by the Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90
Days. See the section titled “—Key Business Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for the definition of Percentage of Users Creating
in Trailing 90 Days. As of September 30, 2020, 63% of our 3.7 million users created on their connected machines in the last 90 days. User
engagement has been relatively consistent over time, demonstrating how our platform becomes a regular part of the creative lives of our
users.

The chart below shows the Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days for the periods indicated.
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Percentage of Users Creating on Their Connected Machines

in the Trailing 90 Days as of Each Quarter End
 

 
Many of our users choose to pay for our subscription offerings which include a subscription to images, fonts and projects as well as

other member benefits, such as discounts, priority Cricut Member Care and, in the case of Cricut Access Premium, preferred shipping. By
subscribing to our offerings, users have access to a curated and growing design library of over 125,000 images, 6,000 ready-to-make
projects and hundreds of fonts. We believe that the number of Paid Subscribers is an indicator of the depth of our users’ engagement. See
the section titled “—Key Business Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for the definition of Paid Subscribers. As of                        ,
2020, we had Paid Subscribers, representing           % year-over-year growth. As of                        , 2020,           % of our users were also
Paid Subscribers. We aim to increase the number of our users that are Paid Subscribers over time.

Growing With Users Over Time
The vast majority of the connected machines we sell are first-time Cricut purchases. We launch software enhancements and new

tools for our connected machines, as well as new accessories and materials SKUs, to enhance the capabilities of our connected machines
over time. We grow with our users as they continue to create on their connected machines, subscribe to Cricut Access and Cricut Access
Premium and purchase à la carte items and our accessories and materials repeatedly.

The chart below is a summary of our average Connected Machine revenue per net new user in 2019 from purchases of connected
machines, together with our Subscription ARPU and Accessories and Materials ARPU in 2019. We define Connected Machine revenue per
net new user as connected machine revenue in a period divided by the number of net new users in that period. We define net new users as
the difference between the number of users as of the end of the current and prior periods. In addition, excluding Connected Machine
revenue, in 2019 we generated, on average, approximately $137 combined from subscriptions and accessories and materials per user. Our
users purchase subscriptions and accessories and materials, our higher gross margin categories, long after they first purchase a connected
machine. In 2019, the gross margin of our subscriptions and accessories and materials categories was 84% and 32%, respectively,
compared to 11% for our connected machines category.

We review Connected Machine revenue per net new user as an indicator of revenue generated by first-time purchases of connected
machines. We review this in connection with Subscription ARPU and Accessories and Material ARPU as an indicator of the monetization of
the journey of our users. Connected Machine revenue fluctuates as we introduce new connected machines at various price points and as the
mix of connected machines purchased changes.
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Monetization of the User Journey, Year Ended December 31, 2019
 

 
We define Accessories and Materials ARPU as Accessories and Materials revenue divided by average users in a period. Accessories

and Materials ARPU fluctuates over time as we introduce new accessories and materials at various price points and as the volume and mix
of accessories and materials purchased changes. We aim to continue to engage our users and maintain consistency and growth in this
metric over time.

The chart below shows our current mix of accessories and materials SKUs and price points. We currently sell nearly 3,000 SKUs
within accessories and materials ranging from an MSRP of $0.99 to $279.99.

2019 Accessories and Materials Sales by Item Category
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Factors Affecting Our Performance
Our financial condition and results of operations have been, and will continue to be, affected by a number of factors, including the

following:

Attracting New Users and Driving Connected Machine Sales
Our growth depends in part on our ability to drive continued growth in users and connected machine sales. We believe we are in the

early stages of growth in our addressable market. We have been successful in attracting new users by delivering positive product
experiences and due to the powerful network effects associated with our large and loyal user community. We plan to continue to grow our
number of users through word-of-mouth referrals, by investing in sales and marketing initiatives and by broadening our partnerships with new
and existing brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors. We expect that our efforts to attract new users outside of the United
States and Canada will require us to spend additional resources, particularly in marketing. If we cannot attract new users, our results of
operations would be adversely affected. While we have seen an increase in demand of our products and subscriptions during the COVID-19
pandemic, there is no guarantee that such trends will continue at the same rate in the future or at all.

Engaging and Expanding With our Existing Users
Our success is driven by engagement of our users, as well as our ability to sell additional products to our users after their first

connected machine purchase. Our users are engaged when they create with connected machines, design apps and accessories and
materials. It is therefore important that users find our products intuitive and easy to use. As users create on their connected machines, they
are more likely to purchase subscriptions and accessories and materials. Historically we find that our users continue to be engaged over
time. As of September 30, 2020, 63% of our users created on their connected machines in the last 90 days. This durable relationship is
motivated by new software and products that we launch to expand the capabilities of existing connected machines as well as through the
inspiration derived from our large and passionate community. If our users engage with their connected machines less over time, the overall
growth in our business may slow.

Scaling our Product Offerings
We have historically enjoyed strong demand for our products, driving methodical growth. Our growth depends in part on our ability to

design and introduce new products and enhance existing products that meet the preferences of our users. To continue to grow, we must
employ the right personnel to execute our product roadmap and effectively work with third-party suppliers and manufacturers. If we fail to
expand our products or maintain high quality standards in our products, our brand, business and results of operations will be adversely
affected.

Managing our Supply Chain
We rely on third-party suppliers, contract manufacturers and third-party logistics partners to produce and distribute our products. Our

ability to grow depends largely on the ability of these third-party companies to scale with us, provide high quality services and deliver
components and finished products on time and at reasonable costs. While we are working to diversify our supply chain, some of our third-
party suppliers and manufacturers are sole-source suppliers, including one manufacturer for the majority of our connected machines. Our
concentration of suppliers could lead to supply shortages, long lead times for components and supply changes. Much of our supply chain
originates in China and Malaysia. We expect to pursue additional geographic diversification in our supply chain to mitigate tariffs and other
supply chain challenges. We must continue to build relationships with strong third-party suppliers, contract manufacturers and third-party
logistics companies and continue to diversify our supply chain to improve operational results. We manage our inventory levels to account for
the complexity of our supply chain, resulting in significant working capital risks and elevated obsolescence risks.
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Driving Innovation
We focus on understanding our users and their needs. We engage with our users through our customer service channels, as well as

through regularly conducted surveys, ethnographies and focus groups. Social media serves as an additional conversational channel where
we learn from our users. We then seek to methodically translate these insights into elegant solutions that serve the needs of our users,
including through new products and enhancements to existing products. In particular, we are continually driving innovation in our software,
connected machines, design apps, accessories and materials. While all of these offerings are designed to work seamlessly with each other,
they each require significantly different strengths and talents, and so we have built our research and development teams with the unique
needs of each offering in mind. Improving our software, expanding the capabilities of our connected machines and subscriptions and
releasing new accessories and materials will require continued investment and expenses. Research and development expenses were $27
million in 2019. Capitalized software development represented $8.9 million, or 51%, of our capital expenditures in 2019. As a result, our
reported capital expenditures and research and development expenses should be viewed in tandem to understand our investments in
innovation.

Balancing Operating Discipline and Investment for Growth
We seek to balance investments for long-term growth with operating discipline and the profitability of our business. We have been

EBITDA profitable in every year of operations since 2014. In 2019, we had an EBITDA Margin of 13% and grew EBITDA 36% compared to
2018. We have a strong focus on the unit economics of each of our products and consistency in how we operate the business. Our
investments to date have been critical to our success and have allowed us to reach             million users as of December 31, 2020, and
launch nearly 3,000 SKUs since the launch of our first connected machine. We will continue to prioritize our investments in technology
innovation including software and hardware development, content and accessories and materials. In addition, we are investing in sales and
marketing and operations as appropriate to support our growth. Our expenses may also increase as we hire additional personnel and
continue to attract technical talent. While we expect to continue or increase our spending in these investments in the future, we cannot be
certain they will result in the growth of our number of users or increase engagement with existing users.

Growing Internationally
Expanding internationally, including by entering new geographic markets and increasing our sales in markets that we have already

entered, requires us to invest in sales and marketing, distribution partnerships, infrastructure and personnel. Our international growth will
depend on our ability to create brand awareness, attract new users, develop retail and distribution partnerships and sell connected machines,
subscriptions and accessories and materials. Our international expansion has resulted in, and will continue to result in, increased costs and
is subject to a variety of risks, including content localization, multilingual customer support, potentially complex delivery logistics and
compliance with foreign laws and regulations.

Seasonality
Historically, we have experienced the highest revenue levels in the fourth quarter of the year, coinciding with the holiday shopping

season in the United States. For example, in 2019 and 2020, our fourth quarter represented          % and          % of total revenue for the
year, respectively. Our promotional discounting activity is higher in the fourth quarter as well, which negatively impacts gross margin during
this period. For example, gross margin in the fourth quarter of 2020 was          %, compared to gross margin of          % for all of 2020.
Additionally, sales of accessories and materials typically slow in the second quarter of the year in connection with school summer holidays.
As we continue to grow internationally, we expect we may experience seasonality in additional markets, which may differ from the seasonality
experienced in the United States.
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Key Business Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures
In addition to the measures presented in our consolidated financial statements, we use the following key metrics to evaluate our

business, measure our performance, identify trends and make strategic decisions.
 
  As of December 31,  

  2018   2019  
Users (in thousands)   1,685   2,525 
Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days  N/A   64%
Paid Subscribers (in thousands)        

 

 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
Subscription ARPU  $ 23.19  $ 25.57 
Accessories and Materials ARPU  $ 119.61  $ 111.44 
EBITDA (in millions)  $ 46.10  $ 62.67

 

 

Users
We define a User as a registered user of at least one registered connected machine as of the end of a period. One user may own

multiple registered connected machines, but is only counted once if that user registers those connected machines by using the same email
address. If possession of a connected machine is transferred to a new owner and registered by that new owner, the new owner is added to
the total user count and the prior owner is removed from the total user count if the prior owner does not own any other registered connected
machines. User count is a key indicator of the health of our business, because changes in the number of users reflects changes in connected
machine sales and also represents opportunities for us to drive additional sales of subscriptions and accessories and materials. There are
certain limitations associated with this metric. For example, this metric does not capture whether a User is active in using a connected
machine and does not indicate whether a User is purchasing subscriptions or accessories and materials. We compensate for these
limitations by also reviewing other metrics that capture portions of this information, including the metrics below.

Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days
We define the Percentage of Users Creating in Trailing 90 Days as the percentage of users who have used a connected machine for

any activity, such as cutting, writing or any other activity enabled by our connected machines, in the past 90 days. This metric is a key
indicator of our engagement with users, which helps drive sales of subscriptions and accessories and materials. We began tracking this
metric in July 2019 and therefore do not have information for the full year 2019 or for any prior periods. There are certain limitations
associated with this metric. For example, this metric does not capture whether a User is purchasing subscriptions or accessories and
materials. We compensate for these limitations by also reviewing other metrics that capture portions of this information, including the metrics
below.

Paid Subscribers
We define Paid Subscribers as the number of users with a subscription to Cricut Access or Cricut Access Premium, excluding

cancelled, unpaid or free trial subscriptions, as of the end of a period. Paid Subscribers is a key metric to track growth in our subscriptions
revenue and potential leverage in our gross margin.
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Subscription ARPU
We define Subscription ARPU as Subscriptions revenue divided by average users in a period. Subscription ARPU allows us to

forecast Subscriptions revenue over time and is an indicator of our ability to expand with users and of user engagement with our subscription
offerings.

Accessories and Materials ARPU
We define Accessories and Materials ARPU as Accessories and Materials revenue divided by average users in a period. Accessories

and Materials ARPU allows us to forecast Accessories and Materials revenue over time and is an indicator of our ability to expand with users,
particularly the volume of projects created by our users.

EBITDA
We define EBITDA as net income adjusted to exclude: interest expense, net; income taxes and depreciation and amortization. See

the section titled “Selected Consolidated Financial and Other Data—Key Business Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for
information regarding our use of EBITDA and EBITDA Margin.

Components of our Results of Operations
We operate and manage our business in three reportable segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and Accessories and

Materials. We identify our reportable segments based on the information used by management to monitor performance and make operating
decisions. See Note 16 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus for additional information regarding
our reportable segments.

Revenue
Connected Machines

We generate Connected Machines revenue from sales of our portfolio of connected machines, currently consisting of Cricut Maker,
Cricut Explore and Cricut Joy, net of sales discounts, incentives and returns. Connected Machines revenue is recognized at the point in time
when control is transferred, which is either upon shipment or delivery to the customer in accordance with the terms of each customer
contract.

Subscriptions

We generate Subscriptions revenue primarily from sales of subscriptions to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium and a minimal
amount of revenue allocated to the unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and access to our cloud-
based services. For a monthly or annual subscription fee, Cricut Access includes a subscription to images, fonts and projects as well as other
member benefits, including discounts and priority Cricut Member Care. For an annual subscription fee, Cricut Access Premium includes all of
the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and preferred shipping. Subscriptions revenue excludes à la carte digital content
purchases. Subscriptions revenue is recognized on a ratable basis over the subscription term.

Accessories and Materials

We generate Accessories and Materials revenue from sales of ancillary products, such as Cricut EasyPress, hand tools, machine
replacement tools and blades, project materials such as vinyl and iron-on and sales of à la carte digital content purchases, including fonts,
images and projects. Accessories and Materials revenue is recognized for sales of such items, net of sales discounts, incentives and returns.
Accessories and Materials revenue is recognized at the point in time when control is transferred, which is either upon shipment or delivery to
the customer in accordance with the terms of each customer contract.
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Cost of Revenue
Connected Machines

Cost of revenue related to Connected Machines consists of product costs, including costs of components, costs of contract
manufacturers for production, inspecting and packaging, shipping, receiving, handling, warehousing and fulfillment, duties and other
applicable importing costs, warranty replacement, excess and obsolete inventory write-downs, tooling and equipment depreciation and
royalties. We expect our cost of revenue related to Connected Machines as a percentage of revenue to fluctuate in the near term as we
address global supply chain challenges created by the COVID-19 pandemic and continue to invest in the growth of our business and
decrease over the long term as we drive greater scale and efficiency in our business.

Subscriptions

Cost of revenue related to Subscriptions consists primarily of hosting fees, digital content costs, amortization of capitalized software
development costs and software maintenance costs. We expect our cost of revenue related to Subscriptions as a percentage of revenue to
fluctuate in the near term as we expand our content offerings, including localized content for international target markets, and decrease over
time as we drive greater scale and efficiency in our business.

Accessories and Materials

Costs of revenue related to Accessories and Materials consists of product costs, including costs of components, costs of contract
manufacturers for production, inspecting and packaging, shipping, receiving, handling, warehousing and fulfillment, duties and other
applicable importing costs, warranty replacement, excess and obsolete inventory write-downs, tooling and equipment depreciation and
royalties. We expect our cost of revenue related to Accessories and Materials as a percentage of revenue to fluctuate in the near term as we
address global supply chain challenges created by the COVID-19 pandemic and continue to invest in the growth of our business and
decrease over the long term as we drive greater scale and efficiency in our business.  

Operating Expenses
Research and Development

Research and development expenses consist primarily of costs associated with the development of our connected machines,
software and accessories and materials, including personnel-related expenses for engineering, product development and quality assurance,
as well as prototype costs, service fees incurred by contracting with vendors and allocated overhead. We expect our research and
development expenses to grow in the near term as we begin developing and investing in more new products to support growth further into
the future. Longer term, we expect research and development expense to decline as a percentage of revenue to levels somewhat higher
than historical levels.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of the advertising and marketing of our products and personnel-related expenses,
including salaries and bonuses, benefits and stock-based compensation expense, as well as sales incentives, professional services and
allocated overhead costs. We expect our sales and marketing expenses as a percentage of revenue to increase in the near and long term as
we expand internationally and launch new products.

General and Administrative

General and administrative expenses consist of personnel-related expenses for our finance, legal, human resources and
administrative personnel, including salaries and bonuses, benefits and stock-based compensation expense, as well as the costs of
professional services, any allocated overhead, information
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technology and other administrative expenses. We expect our general and administrative expenses as a percentage of revenue to increase
in the near term as we expand our operations and incur expenses to become a public company, and to decline over the long term as we
drive greater scale and efficiency in our business.

Interest Expense

Interest expenses consist primarily of interest expenses associated with our debt financing arrangements and amortization of debt
issuance costs.

Provision for Income Taxes

Provision for income taxes consists of income taxes in the United States and certain state and foreign jurisdictions in which we
conduct business. We have not recorded a valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets as we have concluded that it is more likely
than not that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

Results of Operations
The following tables set forth the components of our consolidated statements of operations for each of the periods presented and as a

percentage of our revenue for those periods. The period-to-period comparison of results of operations is not necessarily indicative of results
of future periods.

The following table is presented in thousands:
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

Revenue:         
Connected machines  $ 147,081  $ 198,144 
Subscriptions   31,300   53,829 
Accessories and materials   161,407   234,581 

Total revenue   339,788   486,554 
Cost of revenue:         

Connected machines(1)   127,546   176,894 
Subscriptions(1)   5,027   8,827 
Accessories and materials(1)   96,119   158,483 

Total cost of revenue   228,692   344,204 
Gross profit   111,096   142,350 
Operating expenses:         

Research and development(1)   24,056   26,674 
Sales and marketing(1)   30,698   40,110 
General and administrative(1)   18,363   22,005 

Total operating expenses   73,117   88,789 
Income from operations   37,979   53,561 
Other income (expense):         

Interest income (expense), net   (1,934)   (3,291)
Other income (expense), net   108   (2)

Total other income (expense), net   (1,826)   (3,293)
Income before provision for income taxes   36,153   50,268 
Provision for income taxes   8,721   11,057 
Net income  $ 27,432  $ 39,211
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(1) Includes stock-based compensation expenses as follows:
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

Cost of revenue:         
Connected machines  $ 11  $ 2 
Subscriptions   51   11 
Accessories and materials   —   — 

Total cost of revenue   62   13 
Research and development   5,467   881 
Sales and marketing   2,843   623 
General and administrative   2,006   328 

Total stock-based compensation expenses   10,378   1,845
 

 

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2019
Revenue
 

  Year Ended December 31,   Change  
  2018   2019   $   %  
  (dollars in thousands)      

Revenue:                 
Connected machines  $ 147,081  $ 198,144  $ 51,063   35%
Subscriptions   31,300   53,829   22,529   72%
Accessories and materials   161,407   234,581   73,174   45%

Total revenue  $ 339,788  $ 486,554  $ 146,766   43%
 

Connected Machines revenue increased by $51.1 million, or 35%, from $147.1 million in 2018 to $198.1 million in 2019. The increase
was primarily driven by significant growth in the number of connected machines sold during the period, especially unit sales of Cricut Maker,
which grew by 67% from 2018 to 2019.

Subscriptions revenue increased by $22.5 million, or 72%, from $31.3 million in 2018 to $53.8 million in 2019. The increase was
primarily driven by a          % increase in the number of Paid Subscribers from to             from 2018 to 2019.

Accessories and Materials revenue increased by $73.2 million, or 45%, from $161.4 million in 2018 to $234.6 million in 2019. The
increase was primarily driven by growth in sales of accessories, particularly EasyPress units, which increased 74% from 2018 to 2019, and
materials units, which increased 49% from 2018 to 2019.  
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Cost of Revenue, Gross Profit and Gross Margin
 

  Year Ended December 31,   Change  
  2018   2019   $   %  
  (dollars in thousands)      

Cost of Revenue:                 
Connected machines  $ 127,546  $ 176,894  $ 49,348   39%
Subscriptions   5,027   8,827   3,800   76%
Accessories and materials   96,119   158,483   62,364   65%

Total cost of revenue  $ 228,692  $ 344,204  $ 115,512   51%
Gross Profit:                 

Connected machines  $ 19,535  $ 21,250  $ 1,715   9%
Subscriptions   26,273   45,002   18,729   71%
Accessories and materials   65,288   76,098   10,810   17%

Total gross profit  $ 111,096  $ 142,350  $ 31,254   28%
Gross Margin:                 

Connected machines   13%   11%         
Subscriptions   84%   84%         
Accessories and materials   40%   32%        

 

 
Connected Machines cost of revenue increased by $49.3 million, or 39%, from $127.5 million in 2018 to $176.9 million in 2019. The

increase was primarily driven by growth in connected machines sold during the period, especially unit sales of our highest cost connected
machine, Cricut Maker, which grew by 67% from 2018 to 2019.

Gross margin for Connected Machines decreased from 13% in 2018 to 11% in 2019. Gross margin decreased due to the increases in
tariff costs that began in the second quarter to 2019 when U.S. foreign policy changes increased tariffs from 10% in 2018 to 25% in 2019 on
connected machines produced by our China-based manufacturer. We have moved, and may continue to move, an increasing portion of our
connected machine manufacturing to Malaysia and as a result may experience reduced tariff costs. The negative impact from tariffs was
partially offset by supplier cost reductions on connected machines and fewer sales discounts as a percentage of revenue.

Subscriptions cost of revenue increased by $3.8 million, or 76%, from $5.0 million in 2018 to $8.8 million in 2019. The increase was
primarily driven by a $1.8 million increase in amortization of capitalized software development costs, $1.4 million in increased digital content
costs and a $0.6 million increase in hosting fees to support our growing base of subscribers.

Gross margin for Subscriptions was consistent at 84% in 2018 and 2019.

Accessories and Materials cost of revenue increased by $62.4 million, or 65%, from $96.1 million in 2018 to $158.5 million in 2019.
The increase was primarily driven by growth in accessories and materials sold from 2018 to 2019.

Gross margin for Accessories and Materials decreased to 32% in 2019 from 40% in 2018. Gross margin primarily decreased due to
the negative impact from tariffs along with inventory adjustments in 2019 to write off certain accessories and materials inventories deemed
obsolete. We did not experience inventory adjustments for write offs of accessories and materials inventories in 2018.
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Operating Expenses
Research and Development
 

  Year Ended December 31,   Change  
  2018   2019   $   %  
  (dollars in thousands)      

Research and development  $ 24,056  $ 26,674  $ 2,618   11%
As a percentage of total revenue   7%   5%        

 

 
Research and development expenses increased by $2.6 million, or 11%, from $24.1 million in 2018 to $26.7 million in 2019. The

increase was primarily due to a $4.8 million increase in personnel-related expenses due to headcount increasing during the period, and a
$2.1 million increase in product development expenses related to prototypes and consulting. The increases were partially offset by a $4.5
million decrease in stock-based compensation expense.

Sales and Marketing
 

  Year Ended December 31,   Change  
  2018   2019   $   %  
  (dollars in thousands)      

Sales and marketing  $ 30,698  $ 40,110  $ 9,412   31%
As a percentage of total revenue   9%   8%        

 

 
Sales and marketing expenses increased by $9.4 million, or 31%, from $30.7 million in 2018 to $40.1 million in 2019. The increase

was primarily due to an increase in personnel-related expenses of $4.2 million due to headcount increasing during the period, increases in
advertising and other marketing costs of $4.9 million, increases in credit card processing fees for our direct-to-consumer business of $1.3
million and $0.8 million related to the impairment of a legacy trade name. The increases were offset by a $2.2 million decrease in stock-
based compensation expense.

General and Administrative
 

  Year Ended December 31,   Change  
  2018   2019   $   %  
  (dollars in thousands)      

General and administrative  $ 18,363  $ 22,005  $ 3,642   20%
As a percentage of total revenue   5%   5%        

 

 
General and administrative expenses increased by $3.6 million, or 20%, from $18.4 million in 2018 to $22.0 million in 2019. The

increase was primarily due to an increase in personnel-related expenses of $2.7 million due to headcount increasing during the period, $1.0
million increase in general operating expenses, and a $0.8 million increase in software subscription fees. The increases were offset by a $1.7
million decrease in stock-based compensation expenses.

Interest Income (Expenses), Net and Other Income (Expense), Net
 

  Year Ended December 31,   Change  
  2018   2019   $   %  
  (dollars in thousands)      

Interest income (expense), net  $ (1,934)  $ (3,291)  $ (1,357)   70%
Other income (expense), net   108   (2)   (110)   (102)%
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Interest income (expense), net increased by $1.4 million, or 70%, from $1.9 million in 2018 to $3.3 million in 2019. The increase was

primarily due to an increase in interest expense incurred under our credit facilities.

Provision for Income Taxes
 

  Year Ended December 31,   Change  
  2018   2019   $   %  
  (dollars in thousands)      

Provision for income taxes  $ 8,721  $ 11,057  $ 2,336   27%
 

Provision for income taxes increased by $2.3 million, or 27%, from $8.7 million in 2018 to $11.1 million in 2019. This represents an
effective tax rate of 24.1% in 2018 and 22% in 2019. The decrease in the effective tax rate is primarily due to a reduction in stock-based
compensation and return to provision adjustments, partially offset by changes in unrecognized tax benefits.
 

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Our operations over all periods have been financed primarily through cash flow from operating activities and borrowings under our

credit facilities. As of December 31, 2019, we had cash and cash equivalents of $6.7 million.

We believe our existing cash and cash equivalents, cash flow from operations and amounts available for borrowing under our New
Credit Agreement will be sufficient to meet our working capital and capital expenditure needs for at least the next 12 months. Our future
capital requirements may vary materially from those currently planned and will depend on many factors, including our rate of revenue growth,
the timing and extent of spending on research and development efforts and other growth initiatives, the expansion of sales and marketing
activities, the timing of new product introductions, market acceptance of our products and overall economic conditions. To the extent that
current and anticipated future sources of liquidity are insufficient to fund our future business activities and requirements, we may be required
to seek additional equity or debt financing. The sale of additional equity would result in additional dilution to our stockholders. The incurrence
of debt financing would result in debt service obligations, and the instruments governing such debt could provide for operating and financing
covenants that would restrict our operations. There can be no assurances that we will be able to raise additional capital. The inability to raise
capital would adversely affect our ability to achieve our business objectives.

Credit Facilities
New Credit Facility

In September 2020, we entered into the New Credit Agreement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Citibank, N.A. and Origin Bank.
The New Credit Agreement replaces our prior amended Credit Agreement with Origin Bank, as described below. The New Credit Agreement
provides for a three-year asset-based senior secured revolving credit facility of up to $150.0 million, maturing on September 4, 2023. In
addition, during the term of the New Credit Agreement, we may increase the aggregate amount of the New Credit Facility by up to an
additional $200.0 million, subject to customary conditions (for maximum aggregate lender commitments of up to $350.0 million), subject to
the satisfaction of certain conditions under the New Credit Agreement, including obtaining the consent of the administrative agent and each
lender being added or increasing its commitment. The New Credit Facility may be used to issue letters of credit, and for other business
purposes, including working capital needs.

The New Credit Facility is a standard asset-based lending facility, meaning that notwithstanding the aggregate lender commitments,
we can only borrow up to an amount equal to our borrowing base at any given time. For example, as of             , we were able to borrow up
to $           . Our borrowing base is determined according to certain percentages of eligible accounts receivable and eligible inventory (which
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may be valued at average cost, market value or net orderly liquidation value), subject to reserves determined by the administrative agent. At
any time that our borrowing base is less than the aggregate lender commitments, we can only borrow revolving loans up to the amount of our
borrowing base and not in the full amount of the aggregate lender commitments.  

Generally, borrowings under the New Credit Agreement will bear interest at the Adjusted LIBO rate or the ABR, plus, in each case, an
applicable margin. The applicable margin will range from (a) with respect to borrowings bearing interest at the ABR, 1.50 to 2.00%, and (b)
with respect to borrowings bearing interest at the ABR (i) if the “REVLIBOR30 Screen Rate” (as defined in the New Credit Agreement) is
available for such period, 1.50 to 2.00%, or (ii) otherwise, 0.0 to 0.50%, in each case for the previous clauses (a) and (b), based on our
“Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio” as defined in the New Credit Agreement.

The New Credit Agreement contains financial covenants during the initial year of the agreement, requiring us to maintain a fixed
charge coverage ratio of at least 1.0 to 1.0, measured monthly on a trailing 12-month basis. We are also subject to this covenant in future
periods if the available commitments, less overdue payables, is less than $15.0 million.

Prior Term Loan and Revolving Credit Loan with Origin Bank
In October 2017, we entered into a syndicated Revolving Credit Loan and Term Loan with Origin Bank to provide a $30.0 million

Revolving Credit Loan, or the Revolving Credit Loan, which was later amended to increase the availability to $80.0 million, and a $20.0
million Term Loan, which was later amended to increase the availability to $25.0 million, or collectively. We borrowed $20.0 million under the
Term Loan in order to repay and cancel loans to a related party, as well as to our previous lender, Sterling National Bank. The New Credit
Agreement described above replaced the Revolving Credit Loan and Term Loan with Origin Bank.

The Revolving Credit Loan and Term Loan initially bore interest at an annual rate equal to the lesser of LIBOR plus 3.0%, or the
maximum rate of interest permitted from day-to-day by any applicable state or federal law, with required monthly principal amortization
payments of $0.3 million, commencing on December 1, 2017, maturing on October 26, 2022. Prior to repayment, the Term Loan bore interest
at an annual rate of LIBOR plus 2.25%, had required monthly principal amortization payments of $0.4 million and a maturity date of July 12,
2024, and the Revolving Credit Loan bore interest at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.0% to 2.4% based on the leverage ratio. During the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2019, the effective interest rate approximated the stated interest rate. As of December 31, 2019, we had drawn
down $32.6 million on and had $47.4 million available for borrowing under the Revolving Credit Loan.

The Revolving Credit Loan and Term Loan included several financial and non-financial debt covenants. As of December 31, 2019, we
were in compliance with all financial and non-financial debt covenants. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this prospectus for additional information.

Cash Flows
 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  

Net cash flows (used in) provided by operating activities  $ (8,304)  $ 3,861 
Net cash flows used in investing activities   (8,114)   (14,095)
Net cash flows provided by financing activities   17,442   10,896

 

 

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities of $3.9 million for 2019 was primarily due to net income of $39.2 million and non-cash
adjustments of $16.4 million, offset by a decrease in the net change of operating
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assets and liabilities of $51.7 million. Non-cash adjustments primarily consisted of depreciation and amortization of $9.2 million, inventory
write-offs of $5.2 million, stock-based compensation of $1.8 million and impairment of trade name of $0.7 million, provision for doubtful
accounts $0.7 million, partially offset by deferred income tax of $1.3 million. The decrease in the net change of operating assets and liabilities
was primarily due to a $73.2 million increase in inventory levels to support increased demand for our products and a $4.9 million increase in
accounts receivable due to an increase in sales volume. These changes were offset by a $4.6 million decrease in prepaid expenses and
other current assets and a $21.9 million increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses due to increased expenditures to support
general business growth.

Net cash used in operating activities of $8.3 million for 2018 was primarily due to net income of $27.4 million and non-cash
adjustments of $24.0 million, offset by a decrease in the net change of operating assets and liabilities of $59.7 million. Non-cash adjustments
primarily consisted of stock-based compensation of $10.4 million, depreciation and amortization of $8.1 million, inventory write-offs of $1.4
million, deferred income tax of $2.7 million and impairment of trade name of $1.5 million. The decrease in the net change of operating assets
and liabilities was primarily due to a $85.1 million increase in inventory levels to support increased demand for our products, a $15.0 million
increase in accounts receivable due to an increase in sales volume and a $3.5 million increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets.
These changes were offset by a $43.7 million increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses due to increased expenditures to support
general business growth.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities for 2019 of $14.1 million, all of which related to property and equipment acquisition or investment,
software development and investment and product research and development.

Cash used in investing activities for 2018 of $8.1 million, all of which related to property and equipment acquisition or investment,
software development and investment and product research and development.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities of $10.9 million for 2019 was primarily related to net proceeds from the line of credit of $15.0
million and proceeds from capital contributions of $1.3 million, partially offset by payments on the term loan of $4.4 million, repurchases of
compensatory units of $0.7 million and payments on capital leases of $0.1 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities of $17.4 million for 2018 was primarily related to net proceeds from the line of credit of $19.2
million and proceeds from capital contributions of $2.7 million, partially offset by payments on the term loan of $4.0 million, repurchases of
compensatory units of $0.3 million and payments on capital leases of $0.2 million.
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Contractual Obligations and Other Commitments
The following table summarizes our commitments to settle contractual obligations as of December 31, 2019:

 
  Payments due by period  

  Total   
Less Than

1 Year   1-3 Years   3-5 Years   
More than

5 Years  
  (in thousands)  

Debt obligations, including interest(1)  $ 57,904  $ 38,562  $ 11,139  $ 8,203  $ — 
Operating lease commitments(2)   20,050   3,442   7,114   7,354   2,140 
Capital lease commitments   130   87   43   —   — 
Other obligations(3)   14,901   6,364   8,526   11   — 
  $ 92,985  $ 48,455  $ 26,822  $ 15,568  $ 2,140

 

 

(1) As of December 31, 2019, the outstanding principal balance of our Term Loan was $22.9 million and outstanding borrowings on our Revolving Credit Loan were $32.6
million. Future interest on the Term Loan is estimated based on the stated rate as of December 31, 2019, which was 4%. See Note 8 to our consolidated financial
statements included elsewhere in this prospectus for more information regarding the terms of the Term Loan and Revolving Credit Loan. On September 4, 2020, we
prepaid in full the Revolving Credit Loan and Term Loan. See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus for more information
regarding the New Credit Agreement.

(2) Operating lease obligations relate to our office space and warehouses. The remaining lease terms are between one and five years, and the majority of the lease
agreements are renewable at the end of the lease period.

(3) Other obligations include purchase obligations and royalties. Purchase obligations include minimum payments due to third-party logistics for noncancelable periods and
future payments for subscription software services for which we have entered into non-cancelable arrangements. Royalties include minimum commitments for license
arrangements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2019.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We were primarily exposed to changes in interest rates with respect to our cost of borrowing under our Revolving Credit Loan and
Term Loan. We monitor our cost of borrowing, taking into account our funding requirements and our expectations for interest rates in the
future. To date, we have not been exposed, nor do we anticipate being exposed to material risks due to changes in interest rates. A
hypothetical 10% change in interest rates during any of the periods presented would not have had a material impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

Foreign Currency Risk
Our reporting currency is the U.S. dollar and the functional currency of each of our subsidiaries is its local currency. The assets and

liabilities of each of our subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at exchange rates in effect at each balance sheet date. Revenue and
expenses are translated using the average exchange rate for the relevant period. Equity transactions are translated using historical
exchange rates. Decreases in the relative value of the U.S. dollar to other currencies may negatively affect revenue and other results of
operations as expressed in U.S. dollars. Foreign currency translation adjustments are accounted for as a component of accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) within stockholders’ equity. Gains or losses due to transactions in foreign currencies are included in general
and administrative operating expenses in our consolidated statements of operations. As the impact of foreign currency exchange rates was
not material to results of operations during 2018 and 2019, we have not entered into derivative or hedging transactions, but we may do so in
the future if our exposure to foreign currency becomes more significant.

-96-



 

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements,

which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. In preparing the consolidated financial statements, we make estimates and judgments
that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, stockholders’ equity, revenue, expenses and related disclosures. We re-evaluate our
estimates on an on-going basis. Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we believe to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Because of the uncertainty inherent in these matters, actual results may differ from these estimates and
could differ based upon other assumptions or conditions. The critical accounting policies that reflect our more significant judgments and
estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements include those noted below.

Revenue Recognition
We derive the majority of our revenue from the sale of connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials. We market

and sell our products to customers, which include brick-and-mortar and online retail partners as well as users that purchase from our website
at cricut.com.

We determine revenue recognition through the following steps:

 • Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

 • Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

 • Determination of the transaction price;

 • Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

 • Recognition of revenue when, or as, we satisfy a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to our customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration we expect to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recorded at the net sales price, which includes
estimates of variable consideration such as product returns, volume rebates and other incentive adjustments or discounts. The estimates of
variable consideration are based on historical return experience, historical and projected sales data and current contract terms.

Taxes collected from customers relating to product sales and remitted to governmental authorities are excluded from revenue. We
account for shipping and handling activities performed after a customer obtains control of the goods as activities to fulfill the promise to
transfer the good. We do not incur significant costs to obtain contracts with customers.

The following describes the nature of our primary types of revenue and the revenue recognition policies and significant payment terms
as they pertain to the types of transactions with our customers.

Connected Machines

Connected machines include Cricut Joy, Cricut Explore and Cricut Maker. Payment for sale of products online through the online
channel at cricut.com is collected at point of sale in advance of shipping the products. Payment by traditional brick-and-mortar retail partners,
including their online channels, is due under customary fixed payment terms. Our contracts with customers for a connected machine contain
multiple promises that include hardware, software, unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the software and access to our
cloud-based services. Determining whether products and services are considered distinct performance obligations that should be accounted
for separately requires significant judgment. The software that enables users to design, cut and complete projects can be accessed offline or
with our cloud-based services at no charge. When accessed with the cloud-based services, users are also able to sync projects across
various devices. The connected machines are not able to function without the software, inclusive of firmware and the downloadable software.
Together, the hardware and software are
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inputs into providing the essential functionality of the connected machines and are accounted for as a single performance obligation.
Revenue is recognized for the single performance obligation of hardware with essential software at a point-in-time when control is
transferred, which is either upon shipment or delivery of goods, in accordance with the terms of each contract with the customer.

The promise to provide the customer with unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and the
promise to provide access to our cloud-based services are both distinct performance obligations that provide incremental benefits to the
connected machines and are recognized using a time-based output measure over the service period as the customer consumes the benefit
of the service each day. As the service period is not contractually stated, we consider past history, plans to continue to provide services,
expected technological developments, obsolescence, competition and other factors in developing the estimated period of providing future
services. The estimated service period may change in the future in response to competition, technology developments and our business
strategy.

Judgment is required to determine the SSP for each distinct performance obligation. We allocate revenue to each performance
obligation based on their relative standalone selling price, or SSP. We estimate SSP for items that are not sold separately, which include the
connected machines and related software, unspecified software upgrades and cloud-based services using information that may include the
range of prices for the bundle of products and services and the cost of providing the products or services plus a reasonable margin. In
developing SSP estimates, we also consider the nature of the products and services and the expected level of future services. SSP of the
hardware and essential software reflects our best estimate of the selling price if it was sold regularly on a standalone basis and comprises
the majority of the contract value.

Subscriptions

Our paid subscriptions provide subscribers unlimited access to images, fonts and ready-to-make projects within our software, which is
in addition to the free service of unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and access to our cloud-
based services noted above. The paid subscription services are offered on a month-to-month or annual basis. Payments for subscription
services are due month-to-month or annually in advance. Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium are generally sold in standalone
contracts and reallocations are not required. Revenue related to subscriptions is recognized ratably over the length of the subscription using
a time-based output measure as the customer consumes the benefit of the service each day.

Accessories and Materials

We also sell accessories and materials which generally consist of a single performance obligation, and reallocations are not required.
Revenue from accessories and materials is recognized at a point-in-time when control is transferred, either upon shipment or delivery of
goods, in accordance with the terms of each contract with the customer, or in the case of digital goods, at a point-in-time when the goods are
made available to the customer. Payment for sale of accessories and materials online through the online channel at cricut.com is collected at
point of sale in advance of shipping the products. Payment by traditional brick-and-mortar retail partners, including their online channels, due
under customary fixed payment terms.

Customer Rebates
We participate in promotional and rebate programs with our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to enhance the sale of our

products. These promotional programs consist of incentives or entitlements to our customers, such as advertising allowances, volume and
growth incentives, business development, product damage allowances and point-of-sale support. Sales incentives are considered to be
variable consideration, which we estimate using the expected value method or most likely amount, based upon the nature of the incentive.
Sales are reduced by the cost of these promotional and rebate programs and we record a related customer rebate liability in our consolidated
balance sheets at the date of the transaction.
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In limited cases where the customer rebate is specifically for co-operative marketing or advertising campaigns, we will classify these
expenditures as selling and marketing expenses only if they meet the criteria of being a distinct good or service, are distinct within the context
of the contract and the fair value is readily estimable.

Sales Refund Liability
We provide our customers a limited right of return with the sale of our products. We estimate sales returns and record reserves at the

time the related sales are recorded based on historical data and current economic trends. Actual sales returns could differ from these
estimates. We regularly assess and adjust the estimate of accrued sales returns by updating the return rates for actual trends and projected
costs. We classify the estimated sales returns as a current liability as they are expected to be paid out in less than one year using the
expected-value method. The estimated sales returns are recorded as a reduction of revenue at the time of sale and recorded as a liability on
the consolidated balance sheets. At the same time the liability is recorded, a right of recovery asset is also recorded within inventory.

Warranty Reserves
We provide an assurance-type limited warranty on most of the products sold. The estimated warranty costs, which are expensed at

the time of sale and included in cost of revenue, are based on the results of product testing, industry and historical trends and warranty claim
rates incurred and are adjusted for any current or expected trends as appropriate. Actual warranty claim costs could differ from these
estimates. We regularly assess and adjust the estimate of accrued warranty claims by updating claims rates for actual trends and projected
claim costs. 

Inventories
Inventories, which primarily consist of finished goods, are valued at the lower of average cost or net realizable value. Net realizable

value is defined as estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and
transportation. Assessments to value the inventory at the lower of the average cost to purchase the inventory, or the net realizable value of
the inventory, are based upon assumptions about future demand, physical deterioration, changes in price levels and market conditions. As a
result of our assessment, when the net realizable value of inventory is less than the carrying value, the inventory cost is written down to the
net realizable value and the write down is recorded as a charge to cost of revenue. Inventories include indirect acquisition and production
costs that are incurred to bring the inventories to their present condition and location. Inventories are recorded net of reserves for
obsolescence. Once established, the original cost of the inventory less the related inventory reserve represents the new cost basis of such
products. 

Impairment of Long-lived Assets
We assess potential impairments to our long-lived assets, including intangible assets subject to amortization, on an annual basis or

when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered. We
regularly evaluate whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate possible impairment and rely on a number of factors,
including results of operations, business plans, economic projections and anticipated future cash flows. An impairment loss is recognized
when the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset is
not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the asset.
Any required impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset exceeds its fair value and is
recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and a charge to the statement of operations.
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Stock-Based and Stock-Equivalent Compensation
Cricut Holdings has granted to certain of our employees common incentive units, which include incentive units with a participation

threshold and zero strike price incentive units, or CIUs. CIUs entitle recipients certain interests in Cricut Holdings upon satisfaction of service,
performance or market conditions. The awards are equity classified awards. As of December 31, 2019, all outstanding equity-based awards
are in our parent company, Cricut Holdings. As the awards are issued by Cricut Holdings, we record a capital contribution from Cricut
Holdings commensurate with the amount of compensation expenses recorded. We record compensation expenses for all stock-based
awards granted based on the fair value of the award at the time of the grant. Stock-based compensation costs are recognized as expenses
over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, on a straight-line basis for awards with only a service condition. The
graded vesting method is used for awards that have service and other conditions. Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur.

Cricut Holdings has granted to certain of our employees incentive unit equivalents (phantom units), which entitle the recipient to
receive future compensation based upon satisfaction of service conditions. The amount of compensation is determined by the change in the
underlying value of Cricut Holdings common units. The awards are liability classified awards. Since the awards also have a market condition,
we record stock-based compensation expenses over the requisite service period using the graded vesting method. The stock-based
equivalent awards are recorded at fair value and are required to be re-measured at fair value at each reporting period during the period from
the date of grant through the settlement date. Fair value re-measurement increases and decreases will be recognized as compensation cost
over the requisite service period.

We estimate the fair value of awards with time-based or performance-based vesting provisions using the Black-Scholes method. The
fair value of awards subject to market conditions is estimated using a Geometric Brownian Motion Stock Path Monte Carlo Simulation, or
Monte Carlo Simulation. The determination of the grant date fair value of the awards issued is affected by a number of variables, including
the fair value of Cricut Holding’s units, the expected unit price volatility over the expected life of the awards, the expected term of the award,
risk-free interest rates, the expected dividend yield of Cricut Holding’s units and the likelihood of termination. We derive our volatility from the
average historical stock volatilities of peer public companies over a period equivalent to the expected term of the awards. We estimate the
expected term based on the expected time to a liquidation event or other transaction that would result in settlement of the award. The risk-
free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. Expected dividend yield is 0.0% as Cricut Holdings
has not paid and does not anticipate paying dividends on its common units other than a one-time dividend paid in September 2020.
Likelihood of termination for the Monte Carlo Simulation is estimated based upon both historical turnover and anticipated turnover based
upon Company or market pressures.

The fair value of equity classified incentive units was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions:
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
Fair value of unit  $ 0.48  $ 0.80 
Participation threshold  $ 0.14  $ 0.78 
Expected life (in years)   3.7   3.5 
Expected volatility   38.1%   42.9%
Risk-free interest rate   2.5%   2.3%
Expected dividend yield   0%   0%
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The fair value of liability classified incentive units was estimated using a Monte Carlo Simulation with the following weighted-average

assumptions:
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
Fair value of unit  $ 0.77  $ 1.85 
Participation threshold  $ 0.58  $ 0.58 - 0.86 
Expected life (in years)  3 - 5  3 - 5 
Expected volatility   46.8%   40.2%
Risk-free interest rate   2.5%   1.6%
Expected dividend yield   0%   0%
Likelihood of termination   10%   10%
 

Common Unit Valuations
Given the absence of a public trading market, the fair value of the underlying common units of Cricut Holdings has historically been

determined by Cricut Holdings’ Board of Managers, or Holdings’ Board, on the date of grant for all awards granted. In the absence of a public
trading market, Holdings’ Board, with input from us, exercises significant judgment and considers numerous objective and subjective factors
to determine the fair value of Cricut Holdings’ common units as of the date of each award grant, including:

 • relevant precedent transactions involving Cricut Holdings’ capital units;

 • Cricut Holdings’ actual consolidated operating and financial performance;

 • current business conditions and projections;

 • Cricut Holdings’ stage of development;

 • the likelihood and timing of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering, given prevailing market conditions;

 • any adjustment necessary to recognize a lack of marketability of the common units;

 • the market performance of comparable publicly traded companies; and

 • U.S. and global capital market conditions.

In addition, Holdings’ Board considers the independent valuations completed by a third-party valuation consultant. The valuations of
Cricut Holdings’ common units are determined in accordance with the guidelines outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Practice Aid, Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation.

We performed valuations of our common units using various valuation methods including combinations of income and market
approaches with input from management. The income approach estimates the fair value based on the expectation of future cash flows that
we will generate. These future cash flows are discounted to their present values using an appropriate discount rate to reflect the risks
inherent in us achieving these estimated cash flows. The market approach estimates value considering an analysis of guideline public
companies. The guideline public companies method estimates value by applying a representative revenue multiple from a peer group of
companies in similar lines of business to our forecasted revenue. Our peer group of companies was selected based on operational and
economic similarities to us and factors considered included but were not limited to industry, business model, growth rates, customer base,
capitalization, size, profitability and stage of development.

Following this offering, it will not be necessary to determine the fair value of our common units using these valuation approaches as
shares of our common stock will be traded in the public market.
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Based upon the assumed initial public offering price of $          per share, the midpoint of the price range set forth on the cover page of
this prospectus, the aggregate intrinsic value of CIUs and incentive unit equivalents (phantom units) outstanding as of               was
$          million, of which $          million related to vested units and $          million related to unvested units.

Income Taxes
We utilize the asset and liability method for computing our income tax provision. Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the expected

future consequences of temporary differences between the financial reporting and tax bases of assets and liabilities as well as operating
loss, capital loss and tax credit carryforwards, using enacted tax rates. We make estimates, assumptions and judgments to determine our
provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against deferred tax assets. We assess
the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and, to the extent we believe that recovery is not
likely, we establish a valuation allowance.

We recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on
examination by the taxing authorities, based on the technical merits of the position. The tax benefits recognized from such positions are then
measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon settlement. Interest and penalties
related to unrecognized tax benefits, which to date have not been material, are recognized within the provision for income taxes.

Legal Contingencies
We are involved in legal proceedings, claims and regulatory, tax and government inquiries and investigations that arise in the ordinary

course of business. Certain of these matters include claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages. We record a liability when
we believe that it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated. If we determine that a loss is
reasonably possible and the loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated, we disclose the possible loss in the accompanying notes to
the consolidated financial statements. If we determine that a loss is reasonably possible but the loss or range of loss cannot be reasonably
estimated, we state that such an estimate cannot be made.

We review the developments in our contingencies that could affect the amount of the provisions that have been previously recorded,
and the matters and related reasonably possible losses disclosed. We make adjustments to our provisions and changes to our disclosures
accordingly to reflect the impact of negotiations, settlements, rulings, advice of legal counsel and updated information. Significant judgment is
required to determine both the probability and the estimated amount of loss. These estimates have been based on our assessment of the
facts and circumstances at each balance sheet date and are subject to change based on new information and future events.

The outcome of litigation is inherently uncertain. Therefore, if one or more of these matters were resolved against us for amounts in
excess of management’s expectations, our results of operations and financial condition, including in a particular reporting period in which any
such outcome becomes probable and estimable, could be materially adversely affected.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this prospectus for recently adopted accounting

pronouncements and recently issued accounting pronouncements not yet adopted as of the dates of the statement of financial position
included in this prospectus.
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Emerging Growth Company Status
We are an “emerging growth company,” as defined in the JOBS Act. Under the JOBS Act, emerging growth companies can delay

adopting new or revised accounting standards issued subsequent to the enactment of the JOBS Act until such time as those standards apply
to private companies. We have elected to use this extended transition period to enable us to comply with new or revised accounting
standards that have different effective dates for public and private companies until the earlier of the date we are no longer an emerging
growth company or affirmatively and irrevocably opt out of the extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act. As a result, our financial
statements may not be comparable to companies that comply with new or revised accounting pronouncements as of public company
effective dates.
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BUSINESS

At Cricut, our mission is to help people lead creative lives.

We have designed and built a creativity platform that enables our engaged and loyal community of  million users to turn ideas
into professional-looking handmade goods. With our highly versatile connected machines, design apps and accessories and materials, users
create everything from personalized birthday cards, mugs and t-shirts to large-scale interior decorations and more. Our cloud-based software
enables us to update the functionality and features of existing physical and digital products, and to release new products that seamlessly
integrate with our platform. This makes our platform broadly extensible and empowers our users to unlock ever-expanding creative potential.

Cricut often becomes a huge part of our users’ creative lives, serving as the foundation for their journey of creativity. Our users’
journeys typically begin with the purchase of a connected machine and expand across our family of products as users harness the power of
our platform. Our users have demonstrated continued engagement with their connected machines over time, which results in purchases of
subscriptions and accessories and materials long after they first purchase a connected machine. As of September 30, 2020, 63% of our
users created on their connected machines in the last 90 days.

We enable users to be inspired, create and share projects with the Cricut community and to follow others doing the same. Our users
join the Cricut community to share projects and inspire others, both on our platform and across social media. Our community of users has
scaled significantly over time, and our number of users grew by 50% from December 31, 2018 to December 31, 2019.

Our software integrates our connected machines and design apps, allowing our users to create and share seamlessly. Our software is
cloud-based meaning that users can access and work on their projects anywhere, at any time, across any desktop or mobile device. Our
software aggregates billions of data points of our users’ contributions, giving us valuable insights into our users’ preferences and behaviors.
We use our data science capabilities to continuously improve our software and products, driving further engagement. As a result, our
business model is characterized by strong user engagement and diversified sales across product categories. 

Our portfolio of connected machines cut, write, score and create decorative effects using a wide variety of materials including paper,
vinyl, leather and more. We strive for our users’ journeys to be both inspiring and intuitive, so we take great care to design connected
machines that are beautiful and easy to use. Our connected machines are designed for a wide range of uses and available at a variety of
price points:

 • Cricut Joy for personalization on-the-go, $179.99 MSRP

 • Cricut Explore for cutting, writing and scoring, $249.99 MSRP

 • Cricut Maker for cutting, writing, scoring and adding decorative effects to a wider range of materials, $399.99 MSRP

We offer free design apps, in-app purchases and subscription offerings that enable our users to create and complete projects. On our
apps, users can find inspiration, purchase or upload content like fonts and images, design a project from scratch or find a vast array of ready-
to-make projects on both mobile and desktop devices. All users can access a select number of free images, fonts and projects from our
design apps or upload their own. In addition, we offer a wider selection of images, fonts and projects for purchase à la carte, including
licensed content from partners with well-known brands and characters, like major motion picture studios. We also provide two subscription
offerings, Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium. Cricut Access provides users with a subscription to a curated and growing design
library of over 125,000 images, 6,000 ready-to-make projects and hundreds of fonts, as well as other member benefits, such as discounts
and priority Cricut Member Care. Cricut Access Premium includes all of the benefits of Cricut Access as well as additional discounts and
preferred shipping. As of                        , 2020, we had nearly               Paid Subscribers to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium.
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We also sell a broad range of accessories and materials that help bring designs to life, from advanced tools like heat presses to
Cricut-branded rulers, scoring tools, pens, paper and iron-on vinyl. These products are designed to work seamlessly and easily with our
connected machines, which is why we see many of our users purchase Cricut-branded accessories and materials. Creating projects often
drives repeat purchases of accessories and materials for years after a user first buys a connected machine, demonstrating ongoing
engagement with our platform.

Many of our users share a love of our brand, products and mission, which fosters a loyal community of users who are deeply engaged
with Cricut. Every project is an opportunity to start a conversation, both with us and with each other. We often see our users inspire, teach
and create together. Users are passionate about sharing Cricut tips, tricks and personal stories and this engagement carries over into social
media and into everyday life. There are over three million Cricut followers and many independently-run Cricut groups across social media.
Users often self-organize, host independent events and meet up in person across the globe.

Our community creates a reinforcing network effect. As the number of our users grow, so does the number of projects made and
shared physically or digitally. This generates even more shared projects and word-of-mouth that in turn helps to grow our community. This
community network effect has allowed us to efficiently acquire new users and drive sales of connected machines, subscriptions and
accessories and materials. To date, our success has been driven by word-of-mouth referrals as well as effective use of low-cost marketing
channels like social media, which we then complement with our targeted sales and marketing efforts.

We generate revenue from the sale of our connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials. We sell our products
through brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, including Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann, Michaels, Target and Walmart, as well as through
online channels such as Amazon and cricut.com.

We are a fast-growing, scaled and profitable business. For 2018 and 2019, we generated:

 • Total revenue of $340 million and $487 million, respectively, representing 43% year-over-year growth

 • Net income of $27 million and $39 million, representing 43% year-over-year growth

 • EBITDA of $46 million and $63 million, respectively, representing 36% year-over-year growth

Our Industry
We both influence and benefit from powerful secular tailwinds:

 • Personalization is a Global Mega Trend. Today, more and more people want to be surrounded by personalized items.
According to a study by Deloitte, one in four consumers are willing to pay more to receive a personalized product or service.
Additionally, over 35% of consumers expressed interest in purchasing customized products or services in furniture, homeware
and DIY goods. We empower individuals to personalize. The number one reason why people buy our connected machines is
personalization.

 • Digitization of Tools. Consumers have access to more tools in the digital world than ever before. They are easier to use,
more powerful and available on every device. The power to create and manipulate content – text, audio or video – can now be
done from anyone’s smartphone or laptop. Cricut has built on this trend by offering both digital and physical tools and, more
importantly, bridging these two worlds together.
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 • Technology is Enabling a New Generation of Entrepreneurs. The rapid growth of marketplaces and commerce enablement

platforms creates economic opportunities for millions of creative entrepreneurs. Individual entrepreneurs value supplemental
income, flexibility and the opportunity to do what they love for a living. According to Upwork’s 2019 “Freelancing in America”
report, 15 million Americans are freelancers who sell goods, and 75% of arts and design professionals are freelancers. Cricut
enables the shift in production of physical goods from factory floors to kitchen tables and provides manufacturing solutions for
small scale businesses. Twenty-nine percent of our users make projects to sell. Women, who represent 96% of our users as of
September 2020 and are at the forefront of this trend, created businesses more than twice as fast as national average.

 • Social Media is Enabling a New Wave of Creativity. The ubiquity of social media is a key driver of global consumer
engagement with new creative endeavors. Billions of people globally engage on social media every month and spend an
average of more than two hours per day on social networks and messaging apps. Through social media, people can be
inspired by new ideas or projects anywhere and anytime. We help our users turn virtual inspiration into beautiful, physical
things. We have over three million followers across social media, and our users have shared thousands of projects on our
platform.

Our Opportunity
We believe that everyone is innately creative and thus anyone can be a part of the Cricut community of users. This presents us with a

large untapped market opportunity in addition to our current user base.

We quantify our market opportunity in terms of SAM, which includes active creatives who we address with our current products and
price points, and TAM, which includes potential creatives who we believe we can reach over the long term as we make products for new uses
and products that are more accessible, even easier to use and available at a broad set of price points.

We commissioned a study from YouGov America in September 2020 across multiple countries. The sample size of those surveyed in
each country included over 1,000 individuals ages 18 and older. To calculate our SAM and TAM, we extrapolate these survey results across
the general population ages 18 and older in each country.

Our SAM consists of the portion of individuals surveyed who said they have made at least one creative project in categories
addressed by our current products in the last 12 months, whom we call “active creatives.” Our TAM includes the individuals in our SAM as
well as the portion of individuals surveyed who said they like, buy, used to make or are interested in creating personalized, handmade or
custom items, whom we call “potential creatives” but who have not made at least one creative project in categories addressed by our current
products in the last 12 months.

We assess our SAM and TAM in the United States and Canada and internationally. Today, a small portion of our revenue is generated
from countries outside the United States and Canada. We currently classify four of these countries, Australia, France, Germany and the
United Kingdom, as our primary international target markets and include them in our international SAM and TAM.

Based in part on the YouGov study, we estimate that our SAM consists of over 85 million people in the United States and Canada. As
of December 31, 2020, we have             million users, the vast majority of whom are in the United States and Canada, implying less
than            % penetration of our SAM in those markets. We estimate that our SAM among our primary international target markets consists
of over 44 million people. Accordingly, we estimate our total SAM is over 129 million individuals.

We estimate that there are over 163 million potential creatives in the United States and Canada and over 109 million potential
creatives in our primary international target markets. We estimate that our United States and Canada TAM includes over 248 million
individuals, which reflects our belief that all people, regardless of demographic, can be creative and a part of the Cricut community. Our TAM
among our
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primary international target markets includes over 153 million individuals, for a combined TAM of approximately 402 million individuals. We
believe our products could achieve broader adoption in a number of countries beyond our primary international target markets that also have
large populations engaging in creative activities and represent a similar product-market fit.

 

 
 

Because our products make creativity accessible, we believe our opportunity is much larger than the estimates of the size of the
traditional craft market. We put production power into the hands of our users by allowing them to create their own professional-looking
homemade goods instead of purchasing manufactured goods from a third party opening up a broad array of markets for our users that go
beyond the traditional craft market.

The Cricut User Journey
As Brené Brown said, “We are born makers. We move what we’re learning from our heads to our hearts through our hands.”

Creative individuals come to Cricut and quickly become engaged users who can express themselves both individually and as part of a
large and passionate community. As of September 30, 2020, 96% of our users are women. Many users also earn income through products
they create on Cricut. According to a survey that we conducted in October 2020:

 • 88% of new users want to make a broad range of products

 • 29% make projects to sell

 • 78% say crafting helps them with their mental well-being

 • 87% say crafting inspires feelings of accomplishment

A user’s journey evolves after their first purchase. New users typically intend to create a broad range of products but may start with
one or two intended uses and grow with Cricut over time. For example, a user may buy a connected machine and begin by making cards but
later branch out to t-shirts, wall decals and more. As we launch new software and products, and as our community continues to grow and
share on our platform and on social media, we have the opportunity to continually refresh this relationship and expand the versatility of our
platform.
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Our large and loyal community of users engage with Cricut and each other across our design apps and on social media. Users can
share projects they created, and other users can be inspired and access and create that same project. These teaching and inspiration
moments enhance our monetization opportunities, as projects often lead users to purchase images, fonts, accessories and materials. There
are over three million Cricut followers and many independently-run Cricut groups across social media.

Our Software
Our software integrates our connected machines and design apps, allowing our users to create and share seamlessly. Our software is

cloud-based meaning that users can access and work on their projects anywhere, at any time, across desktops or mobile devices. We
enable our users to be inspired, create and share projects with the Cricut community, and follow others doing the same. Each user’s
credentials, profile, machine registration data, pressure settings for various materials and tools, uploaded images, designs, projects,
community networks and more are stored in the cloud. Our software aggregates billions of data points of our users’ contributions, giving us
valuable insights into our users’ preferences and behaviors. We use our data science capabilities to continuously improve our software and
products, driving further engagement. For example, as we monitor how users engage with a certain feature, we can continue to improve it or
choose to sunset it if it is no longer useful. We have the ability to release new connected machines with new uses that can seamlessly
integrate with our software, allowing us to grow with existing users.

Connected Machines
Our connected machines currently include Cricut Joy, Cricut Explore and Cricut Maker.

Our portfolio of connected machines cut, write, score and create decorative effects using a wide variety of materials including paper,
vinyl, leather and more. Our connected machines are designed for various uses ranging from quick, everyday projects like handmade cards
or signs to professional-level DIY projects like home décor, quilts and tables. Each of our connected machines provides users with different
capabilities. For example, Cricut Joy can work with over 50 different materials – from the most popular craft materials like cardstock, vinyl
and iron-on to specialty materials like glittery paper, polished foils and bonded fabric. Cricut Maker incorporates even more material
capabilities from the most delicate paper and fabric to harder materials such as matboard, leather and basswood. Our connected machines
also incorporate different tools, attachments, accessories and capabilities. For example, Cricut Explore Air pioneered a calligraphy pen, while
Cricut Maker cuts fabric and can also engrave metal. Machine connectivity is enabled through Bluetooth and USB. All Cricut connected
machines come with Design Space, a free, easy-to-learn and easy-to-use, cloud-based design software available on Android, iOS, Mac and
PC devices.

 
Design Apps and Subscriptions. Users can leverage the full power of our platform by using our connected machines together with

our free design apps for our connected machines, including our Design Space app that works with all connected machines and our Cricut
Joy-specific app. Users download our apps, create a profile and design and share their Cricut projects from both desktop and mobile devices.
All users can access a select number of free images, fonts and projects from our design apps or upload their own. In addition, we offer a
wider selection of images, fonts and projects for purchase à la carte, including licensed content from partners like major motion picture
studios. Ready-to-make projects, from cards to holiday décor, each come with instructions and recommendations for the ideal materials to
use. Users can share their designs on our apps to teach and inspire others. If one user shares a project that uses images from the Cricut
library, another user can download and create that same project – as long as they are subscribed to Cricut Access or Cricut Access Premium
or have purchased those images.
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Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium are our subscription offerings that include a large selection of images, fonts and projects
as well as other member benefits, such as discounts, priority Cricut Member Care and, in the case of Cricut Access Premium, preferred
shipping. Paid Subscribers are granted access to a curated and growing design library of over 125,000 images, 6,000 ready-to-make projects
and hundreds of fonts. Cricut Access is billed monthly for $9.99 per month or annually for $95.88 per year. Cricut Access Premium, which
includes all of the benefits of Cricut Access and additional discounts and preferred shipping, is billed annually for $119.88 per year. As of
                       , 2020, we reached nearly                        Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium subscribers, representing nearly           %
of our total users.

Cricut Accessories and Materials. We sell a broad range of accessories and materials that help bring designs to life, such as Cricut
EasyPress, various hand tools, machine replacement tools and blades and project materials. These products are designed to work
seamlessly with our connected machines. This interconnectedness is important to our users, who choose to buy Cricut-branded accessories
and materials because they find them easy to use and trust our brand. Some products, like our mats and blades, attach to a connected
machine. Mats hold materials in place as they are cut by the connected machine. Our mats are sold in different grip strengths that are
appropriate for the material being used. For example, a light-grip mat is perfect for paper, while a strong-grip mat is optimal for materials that
need stronger adhesive to secure in place, such as matboard and leather. Blades are inserted into Cricut connected machines. For example,
a Premium Fine Point Blade works well with cardstock, a Rotary Blade is perfect for fabric and a Knife Blade is optimal for leather and wood
products. We have also created a portfolio of both complex and basic accessories. For instance, Cricut EasyPress is a portable heat press
with a variety of heat transfer uses for oddly-shaped, non-uniform surfaces. Cricut BrightPad illuminates fine lines to ensure precision for
removing the unneeded pieces of a cut image. We also sell a wide range of project materials including vinyl, iron-on vinyl, deluxe paper,
Infusible Ink (sublimation), machine tools and accessories and more. We offer nearly 3,000 total SKUs within our Cricut accessories and
materials, ranging in price from a $0.99 digital image to the $279.99 EasyPress.

How We Go to Market
Many of our users hear about our products through word-of-mouth. With 91% of our users creating products for their friends and

family, word-of-mouth marketing continues to be one of the most efficient and effective ways we attract new users. In 2020, 42% of new
users first heard about Cricut through friends and family. We also use digital and social media marketing to attract users.

We sell our connected machines and accessories and materials through our brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, as well as
through our website at cricut.com. Our partners include Amazon, Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann, Michaels, Target, Walmart and many others.
We also sell our products, including subscriptions to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium, on cricut.com. In 2019, 52% of our revenue
was generated through brick-and-mortar sales and 48% was generated through online channels.

Our Competitive Strengths
Our competitive strengths include:

Our Vertically Integrated Platform Encourages Continual Engagement. Our platform accompanies a user from an idea to a
finished project, with Cricut providing the connected machines, design apps and accessories and materials to make this a seamless journey.
All of the content our users purchase and the projects they spend hours designing are stored in the cloud. This allows our users to access
their designs from their Android, iOS, Mac and PC devices seamlessly. This content can only be accessed through Cricut’s design apps and
is optimized to a proprietary Cricut format for a great experience. As of December 31, 2020,          % of our          million users created on
their connected machines in the last 90 days.

We Build Beautiful, Inspiring and Easy-to-Use Products. Our mission is rooted in our passion for design, and this passion comes
to life in the beautiful products we build and experiences we create. We take great pride in marrying design and functionality for each SKU –
from our connected machines to design
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apps to content to accessories and materials. Every touchpoint is an opportunity to engage the customer and exceed expectations. Our goal
is to provide users with an experience that is both inspiring and intuitive, and we take great care to make our products easy to use. Our
elegant products are backed by deep user experience, software, technology and engineering expertise.

We Designed our Platform to be Able to Constantly Evolve so We Can Find New Ways to Delight Users. We constantly
innovate and offer new products and functionality to provide users with new capabilities for their existing connected machines. We have
introduced eight additional tools for Cricut Maker since its August 2017 launch. For example, in 2020, we launched a foil transfer tool, giving
users the ability to include a letter foil effect in their projects. This tool allowed us to then launch ten materials SKUs in addition to the tool.
New products are integrated seamlessly into existing connected machines with updates to our software, infrastructure and content. We aim
to give our users the freedom to create without limitations while improving their experience along the way.

We Have a Strong and Loyal Community of Users. Many of our users become deeply engaged in our creative community and
loyal to our brand. Each project becomes an opportunity to create a conversation – our users share, inspire and teach each other. Our
community of          million users as of December 31, 2020, creates a reinforcing network effect. As the number of our users grow, so does
the number of projects made and shared physically or digitally. This engagement generates even more shared projects and word-of-mouth
that in turn helps to grow our community.

We Have a Positive Impact on Our Users, in Good Times and in Bad. When users design with our products, they feel creative and
self-accomplished. When they personalize an object or make something for someone as a gift, they feel good about themselves. Our
products make people feel accomplished and confident – powerful emotions that help create a relationship and love between our brand and
our users. Crafting allows people to save money by creating their own gifts or to earn income selling handmade goods. Given the positive
emotions connected with crafting, our users create to celebrate and as a respite during difficult times.

Our Growth Strategy
These are key elements of our growth strategy:

Reach More Users. As of December 31, 2020, we have             million users, representing less than 5% of the 85 million addressable
active creatives in our United States and Canada SAM. We have a significant opportunity to bring more users to our platform by enhancing
our brand and product awareness in both the United States and Canada and in the other geographies where we currently sell our products.
We intend to pursue this opportunity in part through digital and social media marketing, retail partners and word-of-mouth referrals.

Increase Monetization from Current Users. We keep our users engaged by applying what we learn on our platform to launch new
software and products. We believe that by finding new ways to inspire our users with their existing connected machines, we can sell more
content and accessories and materials. By enhancing our subscription offerings, we also believe we can grow our subscription base over
time.

Continuously Improve Ease of Use and User Experience. We plan to continue to broaden our demographic appeal by making our
products even easier to use and educating users on our products and their capabilities. We believe that reducing the barriers to entry for
active creatives and potential creatives can help us both further penetrate our SAM and continue to expand and penetrate a portion of our
TAM.

Launch New Products in New Categories. New products help us extend our impact with new and existing users. Our deeply
engaged base of users gives us unique insights into what new products are going to be most successful. Our strategy for keeping current
users engaged is focused on launching new products and services that attach seamlessly to our existing platform, whether accessories and
materials or connected machines. We plan on expanding our offerings to serve a larger portion of our SAM, including
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new connected machine offerings with new uses to capture additional customer segments. Our ability to launch new services and new
products will allow us to diversify our channels and bring on new brick-and-mortar and online retail partners.

Expand Internationally. We believe there is a significant opportunity for Cricut to grow internationally. We began our international
expansion by launching in Australia, Canada, France, Germany and the United Kingdom. We have also localized our design apps in several
languages such as French, German, Portuguese and Spanish. We offer country-specific content and continue to add local content for
markets where we are in various stages of launch. We will continue to pursue disciplined international expansion by targeting countries with
large populations of active creatives where we believe the Cricut value proposition will resonate. We expect to leverage a combination of
brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to go to market internationally.

Technology and Content
Our core technology and content that support our platform are critical competitive advantages and are purpose-built to leverage the

tools and capabilities of our connected machines. These solutions utilize a myriad of factors and elements unique to Cricut and are highly
differentiated.

 • Cutting-Edge Innovation, Beautiful Design and Ease of Use. We invest substantial resources in research and development
to enhance our platform, develop new products and features and improve our user experience. Our hardware innovation
harnesses the power of technologies typically found only in professional robotics, computer numerical control machinery and
other automated commercial devices. One example of our cutting-edge innovation is our Cricut Joy, a connected machine that
is both powerful and portable. Our software integrates our connected machines with the rest of our platform and enables a
seamless creative experience for our users. Our hardware and software are beautifully designed to be easy-to-use, so that
users can be their creative best.

 • Proprietary Technology. Our platform benefits from our proprietary intellectual property. Servo motors in our connected
machines operate with feedback control to ensure ultra-precise cutting and drawing paths are generated each time a user
clicks “Make It.” The uniform heat plate technology in our EasyPress family of products allows our users to more evenly adhere
iron-on vinyl and films onto t-shirts, totes or tags. The ability to control the amount of machine pressure used by Cricut Maker
was an industry first in such a compact form factor and allows our users to not only cut thicker materials like matboard, leather
and basswood but also to deboss heavy chipboard or even engrave metal. While assorted machine tools are required to
create these decorative effects, our connected machines also have the capability to automatically detect whether the proper
tool is installed in order to safeguard proper operation and help our users achieve their desired effect.

 • Cloud-Based Architecture Which Allows for Simplicity, Scalability and Security. Our distributed and scalable technology
architecture allows our users to access inspiration and create anytime they want from almost any computing device,
maximizing utilization of our platform. Our users can get inspired on the go using Design Space on their phone, continue
designing on their tablet, and then finish creating using their desktop; or stay on one device during their all-night crafting
session. Design Space maintains an expanding list of materials and a corresponding database. As every creative project is
unique, this database aids our users in understanding which materials are compatible with or optimized for their connected
machine. Our materials database also houses, maintains and controls the precise pressure, speed and machine tools needed
to ensure a unified experience when a connected machine communicates with our cloud-based, highly-scalable, microservice-
designed APIs. Our software and apps are built and continually maintained using the industry’s latest technology like Swift for
iOS, Kotlin for Android and Electron Framework for Mac and Windows. We benefit from and leverage the AWS security
frameworks to provide our users an infrastructure that is consistent with information security best practices so that our users’
information, creative projects and account are safe and secure.
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 • Cut Smart Technology, Adaptive Tool System and QuickSwap Housings. Years ago we transformed the household

electronic cutting machine market with the introduction of our Cut Smart technology on Cricut Explore. This allows our
connected machines to cut and draw on materials through machine mat and carriage plot movements, while our servo motors
apply a precise amount of cut force tailored to each material so there is no need for users to manually adjust blade depth, cut
force or speed. Later on, with the release of Cricut Maker, we further innovated by introducing our Adaptive Tool System, which
deepens and enhances our connected machine movements by adding additional control from the drive housing itself. Through
the interlocking of gears with the machine carriage, our Adaptive Tool System (currently available only on Cricut Maker) can
additionally lift and turn the blade during operation. This third juncture point allows Cricut Maker to intelligently control the
direction of the blade and cut pressure to match the material, enabling experiences like machine cutting fabric with a rotary
blade or using our knife blade to machine cut thicker materials like matboard and basswood. In addition to this multi-
dimensional movement, our Adaptive Tool System also allows our users to install one machine tool housing that can be easily
changed to have varying tips, something we aptly call QuickSwap. While Cricut Maker was released with only four tools
initially, together with our Adaptive Tool System and QuickSwap housings, we have since empowered Cricut Maker users with
the use of over 10 tools. Our connected machines are durable, built to last and designed with this level of extensibility to
quickly enable new uses as they are designed and brought to market.

 • Optimized Accessories and Materials. While our connected machines work with a wide variety of accessories and materials
regardless of brand, using Cricut-branded products brings added benefits. For example, with the recent introduction of our new
Smart Materials line for Cricut Joy (including Smart Vinyl, Smart Iron-On and Smart Label), our users can now load these
materials into their connected machines without the need for a separate cutting mat. Our sourcing, quality assurance and
materials teams go to great lengths to ensure all Cricut-branded accessories and materials (including Smart Materials, as well
as cardstock, vinyl, transfer tape, leather, hand tools and others) are calibrated and purpose-built to work hand-in-hand with
Cricut connected machines, as well as interplay well with other Cricut products. Our materials database works best with these
Cricut-branded accessories and materials, thereby allowing our users to create quicker with more predictable results.

 • Content Development and Production. The breadth and depth of our growing content library comes as a direct result of the
data-driven approach we use to gain insights into our users’ preferences and behavior. Using real-time data points, we observe
the use patterns and other aggregated data to predict future trends or gaps in our content offering. Using these key learnings,
we select ideas, themes and content categories that ultimately inform and shape our product development cycle. By partnering
with professional illustrators, project designers and subject matter experts, both internally and externally, we create tailor-made
content offerings that beautifully complement our platform. Whether through the creation, acquisition or licensing of varied
creative assets, our content teams then use a proprietary process to convert these images and projects into content
specifically optimized to integrate with our connected machines and Cricut-branded accessories and materials seamlessly. The
output of this content lifecycle results in authentic, on-trend and high-quality images and projects we offer our users for à la
carte purchase or as a part of our Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium subscriptions. As we diversify our content
categories and further expand internationally, we will continue to develop localized and meaningful content shaped to meet the
language, needs and preferences of our growing global user base.

 • Unified Integration Between Hardware, Software and Content. Our design, engineering, product and content teams work
hand-in-hand to bring our products to life, from conception and validation to implementation. We work hard to build strong
synergies across teams in order to successfully launch products that address new creative categories. One such example was
evident in the successful launch of Cricut Joy together with its companion Cricut Joy Insert Cards. Collaborating with our
hardware engineering and machine teams, our materials team launched a colorful array of newly designed pre-scored and pre-
cut cardstock greeting cards,
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 complete with decorative inserts and envelopes. Utilizing a patent-pending card mat to hold these cards in place during

operation, Cricut Joy can cut and draw professional-looking handmade cards for any occasion while easily pulling from
hundreds of ready-to-make greeting card projects in Design Space. This type of unified integration by and between our
hardware, software, content and accessories and materials provides an outcome to our users with a value much greater than
the sum of its individual parts.

Mission, Values and Employees
Our mission is to help people lead creative lives. To help us fulfill that mission, our employees focus on the following Cricut values and

mantras:
 

 

 
We have created our values and mantras on the foundation of the five behaviors of a cohesive team (trust, conflict, commitment,

accountability and results) introduced by a pioneer of the organizational health movement, Patrick Lencioni.

As of September 30, 2020, we had over 510 employees. We also engage contractors and consultants. To our knowledge, none of our
employees is represented by a labor union or covered by a collective bargaining agreement. We have not experienced any work stoppages,
and we believe that our employee relations are good.

Competition
We compete in a number of market segments with our business, separately and together.

We experience competition in connected machines; for example, Brother, Graphtec and Silhouette America sell cutting machines. We
expect significant competition to continue, both from current competitors as well as new entrants into the market, some of which may become
significant competitors in the future.
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The accessories and materials DIY market is highly competitive with few barriers to entry. We face heightened competition in
providing accessories and materials that we sell for use with our connected machines. We compete against well-established, well-known
companies, many of which are also our retail partners, including Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann and Michaels. Many of these companies have
substantial market share, diversified product lines, well-established supply and distribution systems, strong brand recognition and significant
financial, marketing, research and development and other resources. These brick-and-mortar and online retail partners often have their own
brands of products that we compete against, particularly in accessories and materials. We believe that our brand, technology and software
set us apart. We provide a superior value proposition and benefit from our deeply engaged community of users.

The areas in which we compete include:

 • Product Offering. We compete with producers of DIY design and crafting tools, materials and accessories and work to ensure
that our connected machines maintain the most innovative technology and user-friendly features. Our products, materials and
accessories allow our users to produce professional-looking projects.

 • Engagement. We compete for consumers to purchase our products, and we seek to retain them through our connected
machines, subscriptions and accessories and materials, as well as our engaged community.

 • Talent. We compete for talent in every vertical across our company including technology, design, marketing, finance, legal and
retail. As our platform is highly dependent on technology and software, we require a significant base of engineers to continue
innovating.

The principal competitive factors that companies in our industry need to consider include but are not limited to total cost of product,
manufacturing efficiency and supply chain management, product vision, product innovation, digital content (original and licensed), product
quality and safety, pricing, user engagement, strength of sales and marketing efforts, technological advances and brand awareness and
reputation. We believe we compete favorably across these factors and we have developed a business model that is difficult to replicate.

For additional information, see the section titled “Risk Factors—Risks Related to Our Industry and Business—We operate in a highly
competitive market and we may be unable to compete successfully against existing and future competitors.”

Intellectual Property
We believe that our intellectual property rights are valuable and important to our business. Our practice is to seek protection for our

intellectual property as appropriate, and we rely on a combination of patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secrets, license agreements,
confidentiality procedures, non-disclosure agreements, employee disclosure and invention assignment agreements, as well as other legal
and contractual rights, to establish and protect our proprietary rights. Although we rely in part upon these legal and contractual protections,
we believe that factors such as the skills and ingenuity of our employees and the functionality and frequent enhancements to our platform are
larger contributors to our success in the market.

As of                        , 2020, we had                        issued patents in the United States, which expire at various times between
                       and                        , as well as                        issued patents in non-U.S. jurisdictions, which expire at various times between
                       and                        . As of                        , 2020, we also hold                        pending patents in the United States and
                       pending patents in non-U.S. jurisdictions. These patents are intended to protect our proprietary inventions that are relevant to
our business. We continually review our development efforts to assess the existence and patentability of new intellectual property.

We have an ongoing trademark and service mark registration program pursuant to which we register our brand names and product
names, taglines and logos in the United States and other jurisdictions to the
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extent we determine appropriate and cost-effective. We also have common law rights in some unregistered trademarks that were established
over years of use. As of                        , 2020, we have a total of                        registered trademarks in the United States and                       
registered trademarks in non-U.S. jurisdictions. We also have registered domain names for websites that we use in our business, such as
cricut.com and other variations.

We intend to pursue additional intellectual property protection to the extent we believe it would be beneficial and cost-effective.
Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property rights, they may not be respected in the future or may be invalidated, circumvented or
challenged. In addition, as we continue to expand internationally, the laws of certain foreign countries may not protect our intellectual property
rights to the same extent as laws in the United States. We expect that infringement claims may increase as the number of products and
competitors in our market increase. In addition, to the extent that we gain greater visibility and market exposure as a public company, we face
a higher risk of being the subject of intellectual property infringement claims from third parties. Any third-party intellectual property claims
against us could significantly increase our expenses and could have a significant and negative impact on our business, results of operations
and financial condition. For additional information, see the section titled “Risk factors—Risks Related to our Intellectual Property.”

Manufacturing, Supply Chain and Fulfillment
We currently outsource the manufacturing of our products to third-party contract manufacturers located primarily in China and

Malaysia. We believe outsourcing our manufacturing function promotes more flexibility and scalability in our operations.

We primarily use one contract manufacturer in China, Intretech, to produce our connected machines, which are built based on our
quality and performance standards and specifications. Our agreement with Intretech is on a purchase order basis, and Intretech is not
otherwise obligated to supply our connected machines in any specific quantity or at any specific price. The Intretech agreement has an initial
five-year term beginning August 2018 and thereafter automatically renews for one additional year unless earlier terminated by the parties for
breach or upon 60 days’ prior written notice.

Our contract manufacturers procure nearly all of the components that are used in the production of our products from approved third-
party suppliers. In certain circumstances, we purchase components directly from suppliers which are then provided to our manufacturers, but
we generally do not have long-term contractual agreements with those suppliers. Certain highly specialized components and raw materials,
such as Bluetooth components, microchips and certain alloys that are critical to the performance of our connected machines, are sourced
from very limited component suppliers. These components have unique performance profiles, and, as a result, it is not commercially practical
to support multiple sources for these components for our products.

To streamline e-commerce logistics, inventory management, warehousing and fulfillment, we engage a small number of third-party
logistics partners, including last mile warehousing and delivery partners, located in the United States, China and Europe to receive and
distribute our products. Our third-party logistics partners complete a substantial percentage of our deliveries to brick-and-mortar and online
retail partners, distributors and online sales channels. Our products generally arrive at our third-party logistics partner facilities via ocean
shipping services from our contract manufacturers. Direct shipments to users are then typically ground shipped for U.S. users and air- or
ocean-freighted for our international users. Most brick-and-mortar and online retail partners and distributors generally use their own freight
carriers for shipments from our third-party logistics partner facilities.

As we grow and scale, we continue to evaluate and assess the need for existing and new manufacturers, suppliers and partners. To
mitigate the risks of having a limited number of suppliers, we have currently-qualified alternative contract manufacturers in place; however,
we do not currently have alternative suppliers for certain key components. As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, we have experienced
certain delays in component and raw material sourcing, manufacturing and shipping. For additional information, see the section titled “Risk
Factors—Risks Related to Manufacturing, Supply Chain and Fulfillment.”
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Sales and Marketing
Sales Channels

We sell our products primarily through our third-party brick-and-mortar and online retail partners, as well as through our website at
cricut.com. We also sell to a network of distributors in over 20 countries who resell our products primarily to international brick-and-mortar
and online retail partners and on a limited basis to U.S. brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. In 2019, 48% of our revenue was
generated through online channels. Our sales and channels team located in the United States support both the onboarding of new brick-and-
mortar and online retail partners as well as account management of existing brick-and-mortar and online retail partners. We also have an
international sales and marketing force working remotely in Australia, continental Europe and the United Kingdom to drive sales and whose
reach spans into many jurisdictions across the globe.

Many of our products are sold through traditional brick-and-mortar retail partners, varying in size, including on their websites, as
follows:

 • Specialized Craft Retailers. We sell to specialized arts and crafts supply retailers with large regional or national presence,
such as Hobby Lobby, HSN, Jo-Ann and Michaels.

 • National Retailers. We sell to large, mass merchant retailers with national and international presence, such as Amazon,
Target and Walmart.

 • Independent Retailers. We sell to a network of smaller, independent retailers in targeted locations or in specialty markets.

Each of Amazon, Jo-Ann and Michaels represented 10% or more of our consolidated revenue in the years ended 2018 and 2019. We
also currently offer our products through our website at cricut.com, which can be purchased directly by users in the United States and
Canada. Users can also purchase subscriptions to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium through our website or through Cricut’s design
apps on Android and iOS devices. Additionally, users can make in-app purchases of images, fonts and projects à la carte on our platform and
through our design apps. We drive consumers to our website and platform primarily through word-of-mouth marketing channels and the use
of low-cost marketing channels like social media.

We believe our omni-channel strategy enables us to target a diverse consumer base.

Marketing
We focus our marketing efforts on building brand and product awareness and community engagement to attract new users and retain

existing users. We believe our platform and loyal community of            million users as of December 31, 2020, are our best and most effective
marketing tools, helping to generate robust word-of-mouth referrals, which have been significant drivers of our growth. With 91% of our users
creating products for their friends and family, word-of-mouth marketing continues to be paramount to our operational success. Crafting
inspires feelings of accomplishment in our users, which promotes repeat use of our products and reengagement in our platform and
community.

Users in our community are deeply engaged and are passionate about sharing inspiration, Cricut tips, tricks and personal stories
online on social media, which promotes discovery and adoption. Users across the globe often also connect offline, self-organizing and
hosting in-person meet-up events to create together, which reinforces the community network effect. As the number of users grow, the
number of projects and content created and shared physically and digitally multiply.

Additionally, our users’ ongoing engagement on our data-driven platform enables us to learn more about their preferences and
behaviors, which we harness to continually improve our platform and to predict what new products will be successful, driving a cycle of
further community engagement.
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We intend to continue to invest significant resources to build our brand and community engagement, including from time to time
employing traditional online advertising as well as third-party social media. We also spend significant time and resources training our Cricut
Member Care team to resolve any technical and operational issues relating to our products and services so that our users’ experience with
our platform is not negatively impacted.

Research and Development
Our research and development efforts focus on enabling our users to express their creativity. Technical direction is derived from our

data science capabilities and feedback from our deeply engaged user community. This focus enables the development of a robust platform
architected to ensure a simple and intuitive user experience, centered around our connected machines, subscriptions and accessories and
materials. Our design, product, engineering and customer support teams collaborate extensively with our user community. Our platform is
primarily built and maintained in-house by a team of professionals across design, product management and engineering disciplines.

As of September 30, 2020, we had over 150 employees in our research and development organization. We intend to continue to
invest in our research and development capabilities to further improve our software, and the ease of use and functionality of our connected
machines and platform and to expand our accessories and materials offerings.

Government Regulation
We are subject to a variety of U.S. federal and state laws and foreign laws and regulations that involve matters central to our

business, many of which are still evolving and could be interpreted in ways that could harm our business. These laws and regulations include
laws governing, among other areas, privacy, data protection, content regulation, intellectual property, competition, consumer protection, e-
commerce, product liability, marketing, advertising, trade (e.g., sanctions, export controls and tariffs) and taxation. These laws and
regulations are often complex, sometimes contradict other laws, and are frequently still evolving. Laws and regulations may be interpreted,
applied, created, amended and enforced in different ways in various locations around the world, posing a significant challenge to our
increasingly global business.

As we grow and expand our geographical reach and our offerings, we may become subject to additional regulations, in the United
States and internationally.

In the EU, the GDPR became effective on May 25, 2018. The GDPR is intended to create a single legal framework that applies
across all EU member states. However, there are certain areas where EU member states can deviate from the requirements in their own
legislation. It is therefore likely that we will need to comply with these local regulations in addition to the GDPR. Local supervisory authorities
are able to impose fines for non-compliance and have the power to carry out audits, require companies to cease or change processing,
request information and obtain access to premises. The GDPR created more stringent operational requirements for processors and
controllers of personal data, including, for example, requiring enhanced disclosures to data subjects about how personal data is processed
(including information about the profiling of individuals and automated individual decision-making), limiting retention periods of personal data,
requiring mandatory data breach notification and requiring additional policies and procedures to comply with the accountability principle
under the GDPR. In addition, data subjects have more robust rights with regard to their personal data. Similarly, other jurisdictions are
instituting privacy and data security laws, rules and regulations, which could increase our risk and compliance costs.

The CCPA also affords consumers expanded privacy protections. Additionally, the California Attorney General issued CCPA
regulations that may add additional requirements on businesses. The potential effects of this legislation and the related CCPA regulations are
far-reaching and may require us to modify our data processing practices and policies and to incur substantial costs and expenses in an effort
to comply. For example, the CCPA gives California residents (including employees, thought only in limited circumstances until January 1,
2023) expanded rights to transparency access and require deletion of their personal information, opt out of certain personal information
sharing and receive detailed information about
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how their personal information is collected and used. The CCPA also provides for civil penalties for violations, as well as a private right of
action for data breaches that may increase data breach litigation. Additionally, a new privacy law, the CPRA, was approved by California
voters in the November 3, 2020 election. The CPRA significantly modifies the CCPA, potentially resulting in further uncertainty and requiring
us to incur additional costs and expenses in efforts to comply. The enactment of the CCPA is prompting similar legislative developments in
other states in the United States, which could create the potential for a patchwork of overlapping but different state laws, and is inspiring
federal legislation.

Further, some countries also are considering or have passed legislation requiring local storage and processing of data, or similar
requirements, which could increase the cost and complexity of operating our products and services and other aspects of our business.  

Additionally, we are subject to laws, rules and regulations regarding cross-border transfers of personal data, including laws relating to
the transfer of personal data outside the EEA and the United Kingdom (after Brexit). We rely on transfer mechanisms permitted under these
laws, including the standard contract clauses, which have been subject to regulatory and judicial scrutiny. If these existing mechanisms for
transferring personal data from the EEA, the United Kingdom or other jurisdictions are unavailable, we may be unable to transfer personal
data of employees or users in those regions to the United States.

See the section titled “Risk Factors” for additional information about the laws and regulations we are subject to and the risks to our
business associated with such laws and regulations.

Legal Proceedings
We are not presently a party to any material pending legal proceedings. We are, from time to time, subject to legal proceedings and

claims arising from the normal course of business activities, and an unfavorable resolution of any of these matters could materially affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

Future litigation may be necessary, among other things, to defend ourselves or our users by determining the scope, enforceability and
validity of third-party proprietary rights or to establish our proprietary rights. The results of any current or future litigation cannot be predicted
with certainty, and regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on us because of defense and settlement costs,
diversion of management resources and other factors.

In September 2020, we joined NXN LLC and dozens of other plaintiffs in a complaint against the U.S. federal government in the
United States Court of International Trade alleging unlawful actions by the federal government on the imposition of the third and fourth round
of tariffs on products covered in the United States Trade Representative’s Section 301 Action Concerning China’s Act’s, Policies, and
Practices Related to Technology Transfer, Intellectual Property, and Innovation. The complaint seeks declaratory judgment that the United
States Trade Representative’s actions were beyond its delegated authority under the Trade Act of 1974 and in violation of the Administrative
Procedure Act and the United States Constitution.

Our Facilities
Our corporate headquarters occupies approximately 94,000 square feet in South Jordan, Utah under operating leases that expire at

various times through 2025. We also lease offices elsewhere in Utah, China and Malaysia. All of our offices are leased and we do not own
any real property.

We believe that our existing facilities are sufficient for our current needs. In the future, we may need to add new facilities and expand
our existing facilities as we add employees, grow our infrastructure and evolve our business, and we believe that suitable additional or
substitute space will be available on commercially reasonable terms to meet our future needs.
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MANAGEMENT

Executive Officers and Directors
The following table sets forth information regarding our executive officers and directors as of                 .

 
Name  Age  Position(s)
Executive Officers     
Ashish Arora    Chief Executive Officer and Director
Martin F. Petersen    Chief Financial Officer
Donald B. Olsen    Executive Vice President, General Counsel
Gregory Rowberry    Executive Vice President, Sales
Non-Employee Directors     
Jason Makler    Director and Chair of the Board of Directors
Len Blackwell    Director
Steven Blasnik    Director
Russell Freeman    Director
Billie Williamson    Director
 

Executive Officers
Ashish Arora has served as our Chief Executive Officer since     and as the Chief Executive Officer of Cricut Holdings since

February 2012. Mr. Arora has also served as a member of our board of directors since             and as a member of the board of managers of
Cricut Holdings since February 2012. From July 2009 to February 2012, he served as the General Manager, Digital Home – Software
Platforms and Products for Logitech International S.A., a global manufacturer of computer peripherals and other devices. Mr. Arora holds a
B.S. in Electronics Engineering from Thapar Institute of Engineering and Technology and an M.B.A. from the University of Kansas Graduate
School of Business.

We believe Mr. Arora is qualified to serve as a member of our board of directors because of his perspective and experience as our
Chief Executive Officer and his extensive experience in business development and project management.

Martin F. Petersen has served as our Chief Financial Officer since    and as the Chief Financial Officer of Cricut Holdings
since April 2018 and from May 2012 to January 2017. Mr. Petersen previously served as the Chief Operating Officer of Cricut Holdings from
February 2015 to May 2019. From January 2010 to May 2012, he served as the Chief Financial Officer of certain of the Morell Companies, a
U.S. government contractor. Earlier, Mr. Petersen was Vice President and Treasurer of Huntsman Corporation and a Vice President in the
Investment Banking Division of Merrill Lynch & Co. Mr. Petersen holds a B.A. in International Relations from Brigham Young University and
an M.B.A. from the University of Chicago Booth School of Business.

Donald B. Olsen has served as our General Counsel since          and as the Executive Vice President of Cricut Holdings since
July 2016. Mr. Olsen previously also served as Head of Human Resources of Cricut Holdings from July 2013 to November 2020 and as
Secretary of Cricut Holdings from June 2011 to the present. Mr. Olsen holds a B.A. in English from Brigham Young University and a J.D. from
Brigham Young University’s J. Reuben Clark Law School.

Gregory Rowberry has served as our Executive Vice President, Sales since      and as the Executive Vice President, Sales of
Cricut Holdings since July 2017. Mr. Rowberry joined Cricut Holdings in September 2008 and served as the Executive Vice President of
Sales, Customer Service and Quality of Cricut Holdings from July 2013 to July 2017, as the Vice President of Finance, Customer Service and
Quality of Cricut Holdings from July 2012 to July 2013, as the Vice President of Finance of Cricut Holdings from March 2010 to July 2012 and
as the Director of Finance of Cricut Holdings from September 2008 to March 2010. Mr. Rowberry holds a B.S. in Health Sciences from
Brigham Young University and an M.B.A. from Brigham Young University.
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Non-Employee Directors
Jason Makler has served as our Chair since                   , as a member of the board of directors since                    and as a member of

the board of managers of Cricut Holdings since September 2011. Mr. Makler has served as a Corporate Analyst for Petrus Asset
Management Co., or Petrus Asset Management or its predecessors, since March  2002. Mr. Makler holds a B.B.A. in Accounting from the
University of Texas at Austin and an M.B.A. from Yale University.

We believe Mr. Makler is qualified to serve as a member of our board of directors because of his perspective as a representative of
our largest stockholder and his extensive financial background and expertise.

Len Blackwell has served as a member of the board of directors since                    and as a member of the board of managers of
Cricut Holdings since March 2013. Mr. Blackwell has served as Chairman of Paranet Solutions, a managed services and IT consulting firm,
since February 2019. Mr. Blackwell previously served as Managing Director at Sorenson Capital, a private equity firm, from August 2006 to
December 2019. Mr. Blackwell served as Chairman of RTC Aerospace, a manufacturer of precision flight-critical components, from August
2017 to January 2020, and remains a board member. Mr. Blackwell served as a board member and subsequently as Chairman of
International Development LLC, a lighting products company, from December 2011 until its sale in June 2017. Mr. Blackwell holds a B.A. in
Economics from Duke University and is a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA) charter holder.

We believe Mr. Blackwell is qualified to serve as a member of our board of directors because of his extensive leadership experience
in multiple industries and his experience in the private equity industry.

Steven Blasnik has served as a member of the board of directors since                    and as a member of the board of managers of
Cricut Holdings since February 2018. Mr. Blasnik has served as a Director at the Petrus Trust Company since April 2008 and as Senior
Advisor to Petrus Asset Management, the investment management division of Petrus Trust Company, since March 2019. Mr. Blasnik served
as President of Petrus Asset Management from April 2008 to March 2019. Mr. Blasnik also served as a member of the board of directors of
Perot Systems Corp. from September 1994 to November 2009. Mr. Blasnik holds a B.S.E. in Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering from
Princeton University and a J.D. from Harvard Law School.

We believe Mr. Blasnik is qualified to serve as a member of our board of directors because of his perspective as a representative of
our largest stockholder and his extensive financial background and expertise.

Russell Freeman has served as a member of the board of directors since                    and as a member of the board of managers of
Cricut Holdings since September 2015. Since January 2014, Mr. Freeman has served as the Chief Executive Officer of Hillwood Energy and
its subsidiary, HKN Energy, for which he also serves as a board member. Mr. Freeman has served on the board of managers of GuideIT, LLC
since February 2013. Mr. Freeman has also served as Vice Chairman for the Petrus Trust Company since March 2010, and previously
served as its Chief Financial Officer from April 2011 to April 2019. Mr. Freeman previously served as Chief Operating Officer of Perot
Systems Corp. from August 2007 to November 2009, and Chief Financial Officer from August 2000 to August 2007. Mr. Freeman holds a
B.B.A. in Accounting from Texas Tech University.

We believe Mr. Freeman is qualified to serve as a member of our board of directors because of his perspective as a representative of
our largest stockholder and his extensive financial background and expertise.

Billie Williamson has served as a member of the board of directors since                    and as a member of the board of managers of
Cricut Holdings since August 2020. Ms. Williamson has over three decades of experience auditing public companies as an employee and
partner of Ernst & Young LLP, a global accounting firm, where she served most recently as Senior Assurance Partner from March 1998 to
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December 2011. She also served as Ernst & Young’s Americas Inclusiveness Officer, a member of its Americas Executive Board, which
functions as the Board of Directors for Ernst & Young dealing with strategic and operational matters, and a member of the Ernst & Young
U.S. Executive Board responsible for partnership matters for the firm. Ms. Williamson currently serves as a member of the board of directors
of Cushman & Wakefield plc since July 2018, Kraton Corporation since September 2018 and Pentair plc since May 2014. She previously
served as a member of the board of directors of numerous public companies including Exelis, Inc., Annie’s Inc., Janus Capital Group Inc.,
from June 2015 to May 2017, CSRA, Inc. from November 2015 to May 2018, XL Group plc, and Pharos Capital BDC, Inc. from January 2018
to March 2020, as well as on the board of directors of a number of private company boards. Ms. Williamson holds a B.B.A. in Accounting
from the Southern Methodist University’s Cox School of Business.

We believe Ms. Williamson is qualified to serve as a member of our board of directors because of her extensive board service for both
public and private companies and her financial knowledge and expertise.

Family Relationships
There are no family relationships among any of our executive officers or directors.

Board of Directors
Our business and affairs are managed under the direction of our board of directors. The number of directors will be fixed by our board

of directors, subject to the terms of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws that will
become effective immediately prior to the completion of this offering. Following the completion of this offering, our board of directors will
consist of                    directors,                    of whom qualify as “independent” under the Exchange’s listing standards.

Upon completion of this offering, Petrus, together with its affiliates, will control a majority of the voting power of our outstanding capital
stock. As a result, Petrus will be able to control any action requiring the general approval of our stockholders, including the election of our
board of directors.

Director Independence
Our board of directors has undertaken a review of the independence of each director. Based on information provided by each director

concerning his or her background, employment and affiliations, our board of directors has determined that each of                   ,                    
and                    does not have a relationship that would interfere with the exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the
responsibilities of a director and that each of these directors is “independent” as that term is defined under the rules of the Exchange.

In making these determinations, our board of directors considered the current and prior relationships that each non-employee director
has with our company and all other facts and circumstances our board of directors deemed relevant in determining their independence,
including the beneficial ownership of our capital stock by each non-employee director and their affiliates, and the transactions involving them
described in the section titled “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions.”

Board Oversight of Risk
One of the key functions of our board of directors is informed oversight of our risk management process. In particular, our board of

directors is responsible for monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure. Our executive officers are responsible for the day-to-day
management of the material risks we face. Our board of directors administers its oversight function directly as a whole, as well as through
various standing committees of our board of directors that address risks inherent in their respective areas of oversight. For example, our
Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the management of risks
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associated with our financial reporting, accounting and auditing matters, and our Compensation Committee oversees the management of
risks associated with our compensation policies and programs.

Controlled Company Exemption
After the completion of this offering, Petrus will continue to control a majority of the voting power of our outstanding common stock. As

a result, we will be a “controlled company” within the meaning of the Exchange’s corporate governance standards. Under the Exchange’s
rules, a company of which more than 50% of the voting power is held by an individual, group or another company is a “controlled company”
and may elect not to comply with certain corporate governance standards, including requirements that:

 • a majority of our board of directors consist of “independent directors” as defined under the rules of the Exchange;

 • our board of directors have a compensation committee that is composed entirely of independent directors with a written charter
addressing the committee purpose and responsibilities; and

 • our director nominations be made, or recommended to the full board of directors, by our independent directors or by a
nominations committee that is composed entirely of independent directors and that we adopt a written charter or board
resolution addressing the nominations process.

Following this offering, we intend to utilize some or all of these exemptions. In addition, for so long as we are a “controlled company”
we may not have a majority of independent directors on our board of directors and our compensation committee may not consist entirely of
independent directors or be subject to annual performance evaluations. Accordingly, for so long as we are a “controlled company” you will not
have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that are subject to all of the Exchange’s corporate governance
requirements. In the event that we cease to be a “controlled company” and our shares continue to be listed on the Exchange, we will be
required to comply with these provisions within the applicable transition periods.

The “controlled company” exception does not modify the independence requirements for the audit committee, and we currently
comply with the audit committee requirements of Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act and the Exchange rules. Pursuant to such rules, we
are allowed to have a majority of independent directors on our audit committee until one year from the date of effectiveness of the registration
statement for this offering. Thereafter, our Audit Committee is required to be comprised entirely of independent directors.

Board Committees
Prior to the completion of this offering, our board of directors will establish an Audit Committee and a Compensation Committee. Our

board of directors may establish other committees to facilitate the management of our business. Our board of directors and its committees
set schedules for meeting throughout the year and can also hold special meetings and act by written consent from time to time, as
appropriate. Our board of directors will delegate various responsibilities and authority to its committees as generally described below. The
committees will regularly report on their activities and actions to the full board of directors. Members serve on these committees until their
resignation or until otherwise determined by our board of directors.
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Audit Committee
Prior to the completion of this offering, we will create an Audit Committee that will consist of                   ,                     and                   ,

with                    serving as Chairperson, each of whom meets the requirements for independence under the listing standards of the
Exchange and SEC rules and regulations. Each member of our Audit Committee also meets the financial literacy and sophistication
requirements of the listing standards of the Exchange. In addition, our board of directors has determined that                    is an audit
committee financial expert within the meaning of Item 407(d) of Regulation S-K under the Securities Act. Following the completion of this
offering, our Audit Committee will be responsible for, among other things:

 • selecting a qualified firm to serve as the independent registered public accounting firm to audit our financial statements;

 • helping to ensure the independence of the independent registered public accounting firm;

 • overseeing and evaluating the performance of the independent registered public accounting firm;

 • discussing the scope and results of the audit with the independent registered public accounting firm, and reviewing with
management and the independent registered public accounting firm, our interim and year-end results of operations;

 • reviewing our financial statements and our critical accounting policies and estimates;

 • reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of our internal controls;

 • developing procedures for employees to submit concerns anonymously about questionable accounting, internal accounting
controls or audit matters;

 • reviewing our policies on risk assessment and risk management;

 • reviewing and approving related party transactions; and

 • approving or, as required, pre-approving, all audit and all permissible non-audit services to be performed by the independent
registered public accounting firm.

Our Audit Committee will operate under a written charter, to be effective prior to the completion of this offering, which satisfies the
applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and the listing standards of the Exchange.

Compensation Committee
Prior to the completion of this offering, we will create a Compensation Committee that will consist of                   ,                    

and                    serving as Chairperson. Each member of our Compensation Committee is also a non-employee director, as defined pursuant
to Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act, or Rule 16b-3. Following the completion of this offering, our Compensation Committee
will be responsible for, among other things:

 • reviewing, approving and determining, or making recommendations to our board of directors, or the independent members of
our board of directors, regarding the compensation of our executive officers;

 • administering our equity compensation plans;

 • reviewing, approving and making recommendations to our board of directors regarding incentive compensation and equity
compensation plans;

 • establishing and reviewing general policies relating to the compensation and benefits of our employees; and

 • making recommendations regarding non-employee director compensation to our full board of directors.
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Our Compensation Committee will operate under a written charter, to be effective prior to the completion of this offering, which
satisfies the applicable rules and regulations of the SEC and the listing standards of the Exchange.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics
Our board of directors will adopt a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, or the Ethics Code. The Ethics Code will apply to all of our

employees, officers, directors, contractors, consultants, suppliers and agents. Upon the completion of this offering, the full text of our code of
conduct will be posted on our website at cricut.com under the Investor Relations section. We intend to disclose future amendments to, or
waivers of, our Ethics Code as and to the extent required by SEC regulations, at the same location on our website identified above or in
public filings. Information contained on our website is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus, and you should not consider
information contained on our website to be part of this prospectus or in deciding whether to purchase shares of our common stock.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
None of our executive officers serves, or in the past year has served, as a member of the board of directors or compensation

committee of any other entity that has or has had one or more executive officers serving as a member of our board of directors or our
Compensation Committee.

Non-Employee Director Compensation
Prior to this offering, we had not implemented a formal policy with respect to compensation payable to our non-employee directors for

service as directors. We have a policy of reimbursing all of our non-employee directors for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses in
connection with attending board of directors and committee meetings. From time to time, we have granted incentive units to certain of our
non-employee directors, typically in connection with a non-employee director’s initial appointment to our board of directors.

We intend to approve a non-employee director compensation program to become effective following this offering. Pursuant to this
program, our non-employee directors will receive compensation for their service as directors.

We did not compensate any of our directors who were not serving as an executive officer during 2019. Mr. Arora did not receive any
compensation for his services as a director in 2019. In connection with Ms. Williamson’s board appointment in August 2020, we intend on
granting her an award of 100,000 incentive units in Cricut Holdings with a distribution threshold of $0.00, which award vests in equal annual
installments over five years from the date she joined our board of directors, subject to her continued service. In the event of her death or a
“change in control” (as defined in the award agreement), 100% of the then-unvested portion of her award shall vest. During the term of her
board service, she will be required to hold a minimum number of equity interests in Cricut Holdings. Currently this limit is 50,000.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This section discusses the material components of the executive compensation program for our executive officers who are named in
the section titled “—2019 Summary Compensation Table” below. The table summarizes the compensation paid to our principal executive
officer and each of our other named executive officers determined under 402(m)(2) of Regulation S-K during 2019. We refer to these
individuals as our “named executive officers.” In fiscal year 2019, our named executive officers and their positions were as follows:

 • Ashish Arora, our Chief Executive Officer;

 • Martin F. Petersen, our Chief Financial Officer; and

 • Donald B. Olsen, our Executive Vice President, General Counsel.

This discussion may contain forward-looking statements that are based on our current plans, considerations, expectations and
determinations regarding future compensation programs. Actual compensation programs we adopt following the completion of this offering
may differ materially from the currently planned programs summarized in this discussion.

2019 Summary Compensation Table
The following table sets forth information concerning the compensation of our named executive officers for the year ended

December 31, 2019:
 

Name and Principal Position  Year  
Salary

($)   
Bonus(1)

($)   

Equity
Awards(2)

($)   

Non-Equity
Incentive

Plan
Compensation(3)

($)   

All Other
Compensation(4)

($)   
Total
($)  

Ashish Arora  2019   446,600   —   916,284   1,515,340   12,340   2,890,564 
Chief Executive Officer                           

Martin F. Petersen  2019   281,763   30,000   52,660   350,862   13,075   728,360 
Chief Financial Officer                           

Donald B. Olsen  2019   209,107   15,000   26,330   79,052   535   330,024 
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel                          

 

 

(1) The amounts in the “Bonus” column reflect annual cash bonuses earned by our named executive officers in 2019 as determined by us based on a qualitative
assessment of such named executive officer’s performance in 2019 and contribution towards achievement of key initiatives.

(2) The amounts in the “Equity Awards” column reflect the aggregate grant-date fair value of incentive units in Cricut Holdings granted to our named executive officers during
2019 computed in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 718, rather than the amounts paid or realized by the named executive officer. We provide information regarding the
assumptions used to calculate the value of all incentive unit awards made to our named executive officers in Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included
elsewhere in this prospectus.

(3) The amounts in the “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” column reflect the annual cash bonuses earned by our named executive officers in 2019 under our 2019
bonus plan. The amount for Mr. Arora also includes an additional cash bonus earned by him in 2019 under our 2019 special CEO bonus plan. For additional information
on our bonus program, see section titled “—Narrative Disclosure to 2019 Summary Compensation Table—2019 Bonus Program.”

(4) The amounts in the “All Other Compensation” column include matching contributions made to our named executive officers’ accounts under our 401(k) plan in 2019
($11,674 for Mr. Arora and $12,500 for Mr. Petersen), and life insurance premiums paid by us in 2019 for the benefit of the named executive officer ($667 for Mr. Arora,
$575 for Mr. Petersen and $535 for Mr. Olsen).
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Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2019 Year-End
The following table sets forth information regarding outstanding unvested and unearned equity awards held by each of our named

executive officers as of December 31, 2019:
 
    Equity Awards  

Name  
Grant
Date  

Number
of Units

That
Have Not
Vested(1)

(#)   

Threshold
Price Per

Unit(2)
($)   

Market
Value of

Units
That

Have Not
Vested(3)

($)   

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:
Number

of
Unearned

Units
that Have

Not
Vested

(#)   

Threshold
Price Per

Unit(2)
($)   

Equity
Incentive

Plan
Awards:
Market

or
Payout
Value of

Unearned
Units

that Have
Not

Vested(3)
($)  

Ashish Arora  3/1/2019(4)   3,480,000   0.62   4,280,400   —   —   — 
Chief Executive Officer  10/1/2018(5)   2,250,000   1.85   —   6,000,000   1.85   — 
  3/1/2018(6)   2,714,438   0.20   4,478,823   —   —   — 

Martin F. Petersen  3/1/2019(7)   200,000   0.62   246,000   —   —   — 
Chief Financial Officer  3/1/2018(8)   186,216   0.20   307,256   —   —   — 

Donald B. Olsen  3/1/2019(9)   100,000   0.62   123,000   —   —   — 
Executive Vice President,
General Counsel  

3/1/2018(10)   106,875   0.20   176,344   —   —   —
 

 

(1) These amounts reflect time-based incentive units granted pursuant to the existing limited liability company agreement of Cricut Holdings with such vesting terms as
amended effective January 1, 2020.

(2) These amounts reflect a $0.15 adjustment for partial satisfaction of the threshold price as a result of the September 2020 cash dividend described elsewhere in this
prospectus.

(3) Because we were not publicly traded during 2019, there is no ascertainable public market value for these incentive units. The market value reported in this table is based
upon our board of directors’ determination of the fair market value of our equity, $1.85 per common unit, which was determined taking into account an independent
valuation analysis performed in October 2019, the closest valuation date to fiscal year-end. Where applicable, the fair market value of an incentive unit reflects the value
of a common unit less any unsatisfied return threshold reported under the heading “Threshold Price Per Unit.”

(4) 3,480,000 incentive units granted to Mr. Arora vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years from March 1, 2019 and fully vest in the event of a change in
control, in each case subject to continued employment through each vesting date.

(5) This amount reflects time- and performance-based incentive units of Cricut Holdings. With respect to 9,000,000 incentive units granted to Mr. Arora, the first group of
3,000,000 incentive units vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years from July 1, 2018, subject to continued employment through each applicable
vesting date. The second and third groups of 3,000,000 incentive units will become eligible to vest upon achievement of the applicable vesting triggers, subject to
continued employment through each applicable vesting date. These incentive units are subject to accelerated vesting upon a change in control as described below. For
narrative description of the vesting terms of these incentive units, see the section titled “—Narrative Disclosure to 2019 Summary Compensation Table—CEO
Performance Equity Awards.”

(6) 3,619,251 incentive units granted to Mr. Arora vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years from March 1, 2018 and fully vest in the event of a change in
control, in each case subject to continued employment through each vesting date.

(7) 200,000 incentive units granted to Mr. Petersen vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years from March 1, 2019 and fully vest in the event of a change in
control, in each case subject to continued employment through each vesting date.

(8) 248,288 incentive units granted to Mr. Petersen vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years from March 1, 2018 and fully vest in the event of a change in
control, in each case subject to continued employment through each vesting date.

(9) 100,000 incentive units granted to Mr. Olsen vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years from March 1, 2019 and fully vest in the event of a change in
control, in each case subject to continued employment through each vesting date.

(10) 142,500 incentive units granted to Mr. Olsen vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years from March 1, 2018 and fully vest in the event of a change in
control, in each case subject to continued employment through each vesting date.

Narrative Disclosure to 2019 Summary Compensation Table
2019 Bonus Program

In 2019, we adopted a bonus plan, or our 2019 bonus plan, for our executive and non-executive employees. Under our 2019 bonus
plan, eligible employees were able to earn cash bonuses based on our achievement of 2019 annual targets for the following key
performance objectives (and weighted as follows): revenue (20%), EBITDA (20%), new owner net promoter score (NPS) (10%), existing
owner NPS (10%),
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machine sales (20%), and individual performance goals (20%). If the weighted average achievement of the performance objectives was at
least 80%, the 2019 bonus plan funded at 80% of target increasing on a straight-line basis up to funding at 160% for 160% or greater
achievement of the performance targets. In addition, if we achieved 120% or more of the performance targets, the 2019 bonus plan provided
for funding accelerators, which increased the size of the bonus pool. The maximum accelerator was 38% for achievement of 160% or more
of the performance targets.

Following the end of 2019, we determined that we achieved 135% of the 2019 bonus plan performance targets resulting in a payout
percentage of approximately 135% plus a 12% accelerator for an overall funding percentage of approximately 152%. Each named executive
officer’s bonus payment under the 2019 bonus plan was equal to approximately 152% of his 2019 target bonus opportunity.

In 2019, we also adopted a special CEO bonus plan, or the 2019 special CEO bonus plan, for Mr. Arora to provide additional
incentives for him to drive performance in two specific areas of our business in 2019: connected machine sales and subscriptions. Mr. Arora’s
target bonus amount under the 2019 special CEO bonus plan was $840,000, which was set by our board, in its discretion, after taking into
account such factors as it determined appropriate, including Mr. Arora’s other 2019 cash compensation opportunities. Following the end of
2019, we determined that we exceeded the maximum levels for each performance target under our 2019 special bonus plan, resulting in the
maximum payout to Mr. Arora under the 2019 special CEO bonus plan of $840,000.

The amounts in the Summary Compensation Table under the column “Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation” represent the sum of
the named executive officer’s bonus payments under the 2019 bonus plan, and, in the case of Mr. Arora, plus his bonus payment under the
2019 special CEO bonus plan.

CEO Performance Equity Awards
In October 2018, Mr. Arora was granted an award of 9,000,000 incentive units in Cricut Holdings. This award is grouped into three

separate categories of 3,000,000 incentive units:

 • The first group of these incentive units vests in equal annual installments over a period of four years from July 1, 2018, subject
to Mr. Arora’s continued employment through each vesting date. If a change in control occurs and Mr. Arora remains
continuously employed through the date of the change in control, all of the then-unvested incentive units from this first group
will vest immediately before the change in control.

 • The second and third group of these incentive units will become eligible to vest upon achievement of the applicable vesting
trigger, which requires the fair market value of an equity interest to exceed a specified threshold for the following number of
days within 10 years from the date the incentive units were issued: (i) if the equity interests are then publicly traded, for at least
100 of the previous 120 trading days, (ii) if the equity interests are not then‑publicly traded, for two consecutive meetings of our
board of directors or (iii) if our board of directors has determined that the fair market value of an equity interest exceeded the
specified threshold at one meeting of our board of directors and, before the following meeting of our board of directors, the
equity interests begin trading publicly, for at least 50 of the 60 trading days following the date on which the equity interests
begin trading publicly. The specified threshold is $2.85 for the second group of incentive units and $3.85 for the third group of
incentive units, in each case, reflecting a $0.15 adjustment as a result of the September 2020 cash dividend described
elsewhere in this prospectus. The 10-year deadline for achievement of the vesting trigger will be subject to a one-time
extension of six months if (i) the equity interests are publicly traded and the closing price of an equity interest exceeds the
specified threshold for at least one day or (ii) the equity interests are not publicly traded and the fair market value of an equity
interest exceeds the specified threshold in the meeting of our board directors immediately before the 10-year deadline. If a
change in control occurs, Mr. Arora remains continuously employed through the date of the change in control, and the then-
current fair market value of an equity interest exceeds the specified threshold for the second or third group, all of the then-
unvested incentive units for
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 such group will vest immediately before such change in control. It is not expected that this offering will constitute a change in

control for purposes of this incentive unit award.

Upon termination of Mr. Arora’s employment with us, his unvested incentive units will be immediately forfeited, and his vested units
will be subject to our right to redeem such incentive units at their then-current fair market value if such termination occurs for any other
reason.

As described above under “Corporate Reorganization—Treatment of Outstanding Equity Awards,” Mr. Arora’s unvested incentive
units in Cricut Holdings will be converted into shares of restricted stock of Cricut, Inc., subject to the same vesting conditions that apply to the
unvested incentive units, and his vested incentive units in Cricut Holdings will be converted into shares of common stock of Cricut Inc.

Executive Compensation Arrangements
Ashish Arora Employment Letter

Prior to the completion of this offering, we intend to enter into a new employment letter with Mr. Arora. The employment letter is not
expected to have a specific term and will provide that Mr. Arora’s employment is at-will. Mr. Arora’s current base salary is $          .

Martin F. Petersen Employment Letter
Prior to the completion of this offering, we intend to enter into a new employment letter with Mr. Petersen. The employment letter is

not expected to have a specific term and will provide that Mr. Petersen’s employment is at-will. Mr. Petersen’s current base salary is $          .

Donald B. Olsen Employment Letter
Prior to the completion of this offering, we intend to enter into a new employment letter with Mr. Olsen. The employment letter is not

expected to have a specific term and will provide that Mr. Olsen’s employment is at-will. Mr. Olsen’s current base salary is $          .

Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control
The time-based incentive unit awards held by our named executive officers will fully vest in the event of a change in control. In

addition, Mr. Arora’s performance incentive unit award granted in October 2018 is subject to certain treatment upon a change in control as
set forth in the section titled “—Narrative Disclosure to 2019 Summary Compensation Table—CEO Performance Equity Award.” It is not
expected that this offering will constitute a change in control for purposes of the incentive unit awards held by our named executive officers.

Prior to the completion of this offering, we intend to enter into new arrangements with our named executive officers providing for
termination and change in control benefits following the completion of this offering.

Equity Plans and Arrangements
The principal features of our equity plans and arrangements are summarized below. These summaries are qualified in their entirety by

reference to the actual verbiage of the plans, which are filed as exhibits to the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part.
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Incentive Unit Awards
We have granted our employees and directors awards of incentive units in Cricut Holdings, which are intended to qualify as profits

interests for U.S. federal tax purposes and pursuant to which the holder may receive certain distributions with respect to any such incentive
units that have vested once such distributions payable to holders or common units or incentive units in Cricut Holdings exceed the specified
participation threshold for the specific award of incentive units.

The incentive units vest according to the approved vesting schedule. In general, the incentive units vest in equal annual installments
over a period of four years, subject to the holder’s continued employment or service through each vesting date. If a change in control occurs
and the holder remains continuously employed or in service through the date of the change in control, all of his or her then-unvested
incentive units will vest immediately before such change in control. Any termination in connection with a change in control as a result of any
action of, or direction by, the acquirer will not be taken into account for purposes of determining continuous employment through the date of
the change in control.

Upon termination of the holder’s employment or service, his or her unvested incentive units will be immediately forfeited, and his or
her vested units will be (i) immediately forfeited if such termination is for cause or (ii) subject to our right to redeem such incentive units at
their then-current fair market value if such termination occurs for any other reason.

We have granted each of our named executive officers awards of incentive units in Cricut Holdings in 2019. For additional information
on these awards, see the footnotes in the section titled “—Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2019 Year-End.”

As described above under “Corporate Reorganization—Treatment of Outstanding Equity Awards,” unvested incentive units in Cricut
Holdings will be converted into shares of restricted stock of Cricut, Inc., subject to the same vesting conditions that apply to the unvested
incentive units, and vested incentive units in Cricut Holdings will be converted into shares of common stock of Cricut, Inc.

Zero Strike Price Incentive Unit Awards
We have granted certain employees awards of zero strike price incentive units in Cricut Holdings, pursuant to which the employee

may receive distributions with respect to any such zero strike price incentive units that have vested.

The zero strike price incentive units vest according to the approved vesting schedule. In general, the zero strike price incentive units
vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years, subject to the holder’s continued employment through each vesting date. If a
change in control occurs and the employee remains continuously employed through the date of the change in control, all of his or her then-
unvested zero strike price incentive units will vest immediately before such change in control. Any termination in connection with a change in
control as a result of any action of, or direction by, the acquirer will not be taken into account for purposes of determining continuous
employment through the date of the change in control.

Upon termination of the holder’s employment, his or her unvested zero strike price incentive units (i) will be subject to our right to
redeem such zero strike price incentive units at their then-current fair market value if such termination is due to the holder’s permanent
disability or death or (ii) will be immediately forfeited if such termination is for any other reason.

As described above under “Corporate Reorganization—Treatment of Outstanding Equity Awards,” unvested incentive units in Cricut
Holdings will be converted into restricted stock units of Cricut, Inc., subject to the same vesting conditions that apply to the unvested
incentive units, and vested incentive units in Cricut Holdings will be converted into shares of common stock of Cricut, Inc.
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Phantom Unit Awards
We have granted our employees awards of incentive unit equivalents, which are phantom units pursuant to which the employee may

receive certain distributions with respect to any such incentive unit equivalents that have vested once the distributions to holders or common
units, incentive units or incentive unit equivalents exceed the specified participation threshold. None of our named executive officers have
been granted phantom units.

The phantom units vest according to the terms approved by the board of managers of Cricut Holdings. In general, the incentive unit
equivalents vest in equal annual installments over a period of four years, subject to the holder’s continued employment through each vesting
date. If a change in control occurs and the holder remains continuously employed through the date of the change in control, all of the then-
unvested portion of his or her phantom unit will vest immediately before the change in control. Any termination in connection with a change in
control as a result of any action of, or direction by, the acquirer will not be taken into account for purposes of determining continuous
employment through the date of the change in control.

Upon termination of the holder’s employment, all of his or her phantom units (whether vested or unvested) will be immediately
forfeited.

As described above under “Corporate Reorganization—Treatment of Outstanding Equity Awards,” outstanding phantom units will be
equitably adjusted and converted into either shares of restricted stock of Cricut, Inc. or paid in cash, to the extent permitted in each
applicable jurisdiction.

2021 Equity Incentive Plan
Prior to the completion of this offering, our board of directors intends to adopt, and we expect our stockholders will approve, our 2021

Plan. We expect that our 2021 Plan will be effective on the business day immediately prior to the effective date of the registration statement
of which this prospectus forms a part and will not be used until after the completion of this offering. Our 2021 Plan will provide for the grant of
incentive stock options, within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code, to our employees and any of our parent and subsidiary corporations’
employees, and for the grant of nonstatutory stock options, restricted stock, restricted stock units, stock appreciation rights, performance
units and performance shares to our employees, directors and consultants and our parent and subsidiary corporations’ employees and
consultants.

Authorized Shares. A total of                     shares of our common stock will be reserved for issuance pursuant to our 2021 Plan. In
addition, the number of shares available for issuance under our 2021 Plan will also include an annual increase on the first day of each fiscal
year beginning with our 2022 fiscal year, equal to the least of:

 •               shares;

 •                % of the outstanding shares of our capital stock as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal year; or

 • such other amount as our board of directors may determine.

If an award expires or becomes unexercisable without having been exercised in full, is surrendered pursuant to an exchange
program, or, with respect to restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance units or performance shares, is forfeited to or repurchased by
us due to failure to vest, the unpurchased shares (or for awards other than stock options or stock appreciation rights, the forfeited or
repurchased shares) will become available for future grant or sale under our 2021 Plan (unless our 2021 Plan has terminated). With respect
to stock appreciation rights, only the net shares actually issued will cease to be available under our 2021 Plan and all remaining shares under
stock appreciation rights will remain available for future grant or sale under our 2021 Plan (unless our 2021 Plan has terminated). Shares that
have actually been issued under our 2021 Plan will not be returned to our 2021 Plan, except if shares issued
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pursuant to awards of restricted stock, restricted stock units, performance shares or performance units are repurchased by or forfeited to us,
such shares will become available for future grant under our 2021 Plan. Shares used to pay the exercise price of an award or satisfy the tax
withholding obligations related to an award will become available for future grant or sale under our 2021 Plan. To the extent an award is paid
out in cash rather than shares, such cash payment will not result in a reduction in the number of shares available for issuance under our
2021 Plan.

Plan Administration. Our board of directors or one or more committees appointed by our board of directors will administer our 2021
Plan. We expect that the compensation committee of our board of directors will initially administer our 2021 Plan. In addition, if we determine
it is desirable to qualify transactions under our 2021 Plan as exempt under Rule 16b-3, such transactions will be structured to satisfy the
requirements for exemption under Rule 16b-3. Subject to the provisions of our 2021 Plan, the administrator will have the power to administer
our 2021 Plan and make all determinations deemed necessary or advisable for administering our 2021 Plan, such as the power to determine
the fair market value of our common stock, select the service providers to whom awards may be granted, determine the number of shares
covered by each award, approve forms of award agreements for use under our 2021 Plan, determine the terms and conditions of awards
(such as the exercise price, the time or times at which awards may be exercised, any vesting acceleration or waiver or forfeiture restrictions
and any restriction or limitation regarding any award or the shares relating to the award), construe and interpret the terms of our 2021 Plan
and awards granted under it, prescribe, amend and rescind rules relating to our 2021 Plan (including creating sub-plans), modify or amend
each award, such as the discretionary authority to extend the post-termination exercisability period of awards (except no option or stock
appreciation right will be extended past its original maximum term), and allow a participant to defer the receipt of payment of cash or the
delivery of shares that would otherwise be due to such participant under an award. The administrator also has the authority to institute an
exchange program by which outstanding awards may be surrendered or cancelled in exchange for awards of the same type (which may have
a higher or lower exercise price and/or different terms), awards of a different type and/or cash, by which participants would have the
opportunity to transfer outstanding awards to a financial institution or other person or entity selected by the administrator, or by which the
exercise price of an outstanding award is increased or reduced. The administrator’s decisions, interpretations and other actions are final and
binding on all participants.

Stock Options. We will be able to grant stock options under our 2021 Plan. The per share exercise price of options granted under our
2021 Plan must be at least equal to the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the date of grant. The term of an incentive stock
option may not exceed ten years. With respect to any incentive stock option granted to an employee who owns more than 10% of the voting
power of all classes of our (or any parent or subsidiary of ours) outstanding stock, the term of the incentive stock option must not exceed five
years and the per share exercise price of the incentive stock option must equal at least 110% of the fair market value of a share of our
common stock on the grant date. The administrator will determine the methods of payment of the exercise price of an option, which may
include cash, shares or other property acceptable to the administrator to the extent permitted by applicable law. After the termination of
service of a participant, he or she will be able to exercise the vested portion of his or her option for the period of time stated in his or her
option agreement. In the absence of a specified time in an award agreement, if termination is due to death or disability, the vested portion of
the option will remain exercisable for 12 months following the termination of service. In all other cases, in the absence of a specified time in
an award agreement, the vested portion of the option will remain exercisable for three months following the termination of service. In addition,
an option agreement may provide for an extension of the option post-termination exercise period if the participant’s service is terminated for
reasons other than his or her death or disability and the exercise of the option following the termination of the participant’s service would
result in liability under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act or would violate the registration requirements under the Securities Act. An option,
however, may not be exercised later than the expiration of its term. Subject to the provisions of our 2021 Plan, the administrator will
determine the other terms of options.

Stock Appreciation Rights. We will be able to grant stock appreciation rights under our 2021 Plan. Stock appreciation rights allow the
recipient to receive the appreciation in the fair market value of the underlying shares of our common stock between the exercise date and the
date of grant. Stock appreciation
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rights may not have a term exceeding ten years. After the termination of service of an employee, director or consultant, he or she will be able
to exercise his or her stock appreciation right for the period of time stated in his or her stock appreciation rights agreement. In the absence of
a specified time in an award agreement, if termination is due to death or disability, the stock appreciation rights will remain exercisable for 12
months following the termination of service. In all other cases, in the absence of a specified time in an award agreement, the stock
appreciation rights will remain exercisable for three months following the termination of service. However, in no event may a stock
appreciation right be exercised later than the expiration of its term. Subject to the provisions of our 2021 Plan, the administrator will
determine the other terms of stock appreciation rights, including when such rights become exercisable and whether to pay any increased
appreciation in cash or with shares of our common stock, or a combination thereof, except that the per share exercise price for the shares to
be issued pursuant to the exercise of a stock appreciation right will be no less than 100% of the fair market value of a share of our common
stock on the date of grant.

Restricted Stock. We will be able to grant restricted stock under our 2021 Plan. Restricted stock awards are grants of shares of our
common stock that vest in accordance with terms and conditions established by the administrator.

The administrator will determine the number of shares of restricted stock granted to any employee, director or consultant and, subject
to the provisions of our 2021 Plan, will determine the terms and conditions of such awards. The administrator will be able to impose whatever
vesting conditions it determines to be appropriate (for example, the administrator may set restrictions based on the achievement of specific
performance goals or continued service to us), except the administrator, in its sole discretion, may accelerate the time at which any
restrictions will lapse or be removed. Recipients of restricted stock awards generally will have voting and dividend rights with respect to such
shares upon grant without regard to vesting, unless the administrator provides otherwise. Shares of restricted stock that do not vest are
subject to our right of repurchase or forfeiture.

Restricted Stock Units. We will be able to grant restricted stock units under our 2021 Plan. Restricted stock units are bookkeeping
entries representing an amount equal to the fair market value of one share of our common stock. Subject to the provisions of our 2021 Plan,
the administrator will determine the terms and conditions of restricted stock units, including the vesting criteria and the form and timing of
payment. The administrator may set vesting criteria based upon the achievement of company-wide, divisional, business unit or individual
goals (such as continued employment or service), applicable federal or state securities laws or any other basis determined by the
administrator in its discretion. The administrator, in its sole discretion, may pay earned restricted stock units in the form of cash, in shares or
in some combination thereof. In addition, the administrator, in its sole discretion, may accelerate the time at which any restrictions will lapse
or be removed.

Performance Units and Performance Shares. We will be able to grant performance units and performance shares under our 2021
Plan. Performance units and performance shares are awards that will result in a payment to a participant only if performance objectives
established by the administrator are achieved or the awards otherwise vest. The administrator will establish performance objectives or other
vesting criteria in its discretion, which, depending on the extent to which they are met, will determine the number or the value of performance
units and performance shares to be paid out to participants. The administrator may set performance objectives based on the achievement of
company-wide, divisional, business unit or individual goals (such as continued employment or service), applicable federal or state securities
laws or any other basis determined by the administrator in its discretion. After the grant of a performance unit or performance share, the
administrator, in its sole discretion, may reduce or waive any performance objectives or other vesting provisions for such performance units
or performance shares. Performance units will have an initial value established by the administrator on or prior to the grant date.
Performance shares will have an initial value equal to the fair market value of the underlying shares of our common stock on the grant date.
The administrator, in its sole discretion, may pay out earned performance units or performance shares in cash, shares or in some
combination thereof.

Outside Directors. All outside (non-employee) directors will be eligible to receive all types of awards (except for incentive stock
options) under our 2021 Plan. In order to provide a maximum limit on the cash

-132-



 

compensation and equity awards that can be made to our outside directors, our 2021 Plan provides that in any given fiscal year, an outside
director will not be granted cash compensation and equity awards with an aggregate value greater than $          (increased to $          in the
fiscal year of his or her initial service as an outside director), with the value of each equity award based on its grant date fair value as
determined according to GAAP for purposes of this limit. Any cash compensation paid or awards granted to an individual for his or her
services as an employee or consultant (other than as an outside director) will not count toward this limit.

Non-Transferability of Awards. Unless the administrator provides otherwise, our 2021 Plan generally will not allow for the transfer of
awards and only the recipient of an award may exercise an award during his or her lifetime. If the administrator makes an award
transferrable, such award will contain such additional terms and conditions as the administrator deems appropriate.

Certain Adjustments. In the event of certain changes in our capitalization, to prevent diminution or enlargement of the benefits or
potential benefits available under our 2021 Plan, the administrator will adjust the number and class of shares that may be delivered under our
2021 Plan and/or the number, class and price of shares covered by each outstanding award and the numerical share limits set forth in our
2021 Plan.

Dissolution or Liquidation. In the event of our proposed liquidation or dissolution, the administrator will notify participants as soon as
practicable prior to the effective date of such proposed transaction, and to the extent not exercised, all awards will terminate immediately
prior to the consummation of such proposed transaction.

Merger or Change in Control. Our 2021 Plan will provide that in the event of a merger or change in control, as defined under our 2021
Plan, each outstanding award will be treated as the administrator determines, without a participant’s consent. The administrator is not
required to treat all awards, all awards held by a participant or all awards of the same type similarly.

If a successor corporation does not assume or substitute for any outstanding award, then the participant will fully vest in and have the
right to exercise all of his or her outstanding options and stock appreciation rights, all restrictions on restricted stock and restricted stock units
will lapse, and for awards with performance-based vesting, unless specifically provided for otherwise under the applicable award agreement
or other agreement or policy applicable to the participant, all performance goals or other vesting criteria will be deemed achieved at 100% of
target levels and all other terms and conditions met. If an option or stock appreciation right is not assumed or substituted in the event of a
change in control, the administrator will notify the participant in writing or electronically that such option or stock appreciation right will be
exercisable for a period of time determined by the administrator in its sole discretion and the option or stock appreciation right will terminate
upon the expiration of such period.

For awards granted to an outside director, in the event of a change in control, the outside director will fully vest in and have the right to
exercise all of his or her outstanding options and stock appreciation rights, all restrictions on restricted stock and restricted stock units will
lapse and, for awards with performance-based vesting, unless specifically provided for otherwise under the applicable award agreement or
other agreement or policy applicable to the participant, all performance goals or other vesting criteria will be deemed achieved at 100% of
target levels and all other terms and conditions met.

Clawback. Awards will be subject to any clawback policy of ours, and the administrator also may specify in an award agreement that
the participant’s rights, payments and/or benefits with respect to an award will be subject to reduction, cancellation, forfeiture and/or
recoupment upon the occurrence of certain specified events. Our board of directors may require a participant to forfeit, return or reimburse us
all or a portion of the award and/or shares issued under the award, any amounts paid under the award, and any payments or proceeds paid
or provided upon disposition of the shares issued under the award in order to comply with such clawback policy or applicable laws.
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Amendment; Termination. The administrator will have the authority to amend, alter, suspend or terminate our 2021 Plan, provided
such action does not materially impair the rights of any participant, unless mutually agreed to in writing between the participant and the
administrator. Our 2021 Plan will continue in effect until terminated by the administrator, but (i) no incentive stock options may be granted
after ten years from the date our 2021 Plan was adopted by our board of directors and (ii) the annual increase to the number of shares
available for issuance under our 2021 Plan will operate only until the tenth anniversary of the date our 2021 Plan was adopted by our board
of directors.

2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
Prior to the completion of this offering, our board of directors intends to adopt, and we expect our stockholders will approve, our 2021

ESPP. We expect that our 2021 ESPP will be effective on the business day immediately prior to the effective date of the registration
statement of which this prospectus forms a part. We believe that allowing our employees to participate in our 2021 ESPP will provide them
with a further incentive towards promoting our success and accomplishing our corporate goals.

Authorized Shares. A total of               shares of our common stock will be available for sale under our 2021 ESPP. The number of
shares of our common stock that will be available for sale under our 2021 ESPP also includes an annual increase on the first day of each
fiscal year beginning with our 2022 fiscal year, equal to the least of:

 •             shares;

 •            % of the outstanding shares of all classes of our capital stock as of the last day of the immediately preceding fiscal
year; or

 • such other amount as the administrator may determine.

2021 ESPP Administration. We expect that the compensation committee of our board of directors will administer our 2021 ESPP. The
administrator will have full and exclusive discretionary authority to construe, interpret, and apply the terms of our 2021 ESPP, delegate
ministerial duties to any of our employees, designate separate offerings under our 2021 ESPP, designate our subsidiaries and affiliates as
participating in our 2021 ESPP, determine eligibility, adjudicate all disputed claims filed under our 2021 ESPP, and establish procedures that
it deems necessary for the administration of our 2021 ESPP, including, but not limited to, adopting such procedures and sub-plans as are
necessary or appropriate to permit participation in our 2021 ESPP by employees who are foreign nationals or employed outside the United
States. The administrator’s findings, decisions and determinations will be final and binding on all participants to the full extent permitted by
law.

Eligibility. Generally, all of our employees will be eligible to participate if they are customarily employed by us, or any participating
subsidiary or affiliate, for at least 20 hours per week and more than five months in any calendar year. The administrator, in its discretion, may,
prior to an enrollment date, for all options to be granted on such enrollment date in an offering, determine that an employee who (i) has not
completed at least two years of service (or a lesser period of time determined by the administrator) since his or her last hire date, (ii)
customarily works not more than 20 hours per week (or a lesser period of time determined by the administrator), (iii) customarily works not
more than five months per calendar year (or a lesser period of time determined by the administrator), (iv) is a highly compensated employee
within the meaning of Section 414(q) of the Code or (v) is a highly compensated employee within the meaning of Section 414(q) of the Code
with compensation above a certain level or is an officer or subject to disclosure requirements under Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, is or
is not eligible to participate in such offering period.
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However, an employee may not be granted rights to purchase shares of our common stock under our 2021 ESPP if such employee:

 • immediately after the grant would own capital stock and/or hold outstanding options to purchase such stock possessing 5%
or more of the total combined voting power or value of all classes of capital stock of ours or of any parent or subsidiary of
ours; or

 • holds rights to purchase shares of our common stock under all employee stock purchase plans of ours or any parent or
subsidiary of ours that accrue at a rate that exceeds $25,000 worth of shares of our common stock for each calendar year
in which such rights are outstanding at any time.

Offering Periods. Our 2021 ESPP will include a component that allows us to make offerings intended to qualify under Section 423 of
the Code and a component that allows us to make offerings not intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Code to designated companies,
as described in our 2021 ESPP. Our 2021 ESPP will provide for consecutive, overlapping   -month offering periods. The offering periods will
be scheduled to start on the first trading day on or after               and               of each year, except the first offering period will commence on
the first trading day on or after the effective date of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part and will end on the last
trading day on or before                           , and the second offering period will commence on the first trading day on or after                           .

Contributions. Our 2021 ESPP will permit participants to purchase shares of our common stock through contributions (in the form of
payroll deductions or otherwise to the extent permitted by the administrator) of up to       % of their eligible compensation, which includes a
participant’s base straight time gross earnings but excludes payments for incentive compensation, bonuses, payments for overtime and shift
premium, equity compensation income and other similar compensation. Unless otherwise determined by the administrator, a participant may
make a one-time decrease (but not increase) to the rate of his or her contributions to 0% during an offering period.

Exercise of Purchase Right. Amounts contributed and accumulated by the participant will be used to purchase shares of our common
stock at the end of each offering period. A participant may purchase a maximum of            shares of our common stock during an offering
period. The per share purchase price of the shares will be     % of the lower of the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the
first trading day of the offering period or on the exercise date. If the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the exercise date is
less than the fair market value of a share of our common stock on the first trading day of the offering period, participants will be withdrawn
from that offering period following their purchase of shares of our common stock on the exercise date and will be automatically re-enrolled in
a new offering period. Participants may end their participation at any time during an offering period and will be paid their accrued
contributions that have not yet been used to purchase shares of our common stock. Participation ends automatically upon termination of
employment with us.

Non-Transferability. A participant will not be permitted to transfer contributions credited to his or her account or rights granted under
our 2021 ESPP (other than by will, the laws of descent and distribution or as otherwise provided under our 2021 ESPP).

Merger or Change in Control. Our 2021 ESPP will provide that in the event of a merger or change in control, as defined under our
2021 ESPP, a successor corporation (or a parent or subsidiary of the successor corporation) may assume or substitute each outstanding
purchase right. If the successor corporation refuses to assume or substitute for the outstanding purchase right, the offering period with
respect to which the purchase right relates will be shortened, and a new exercise date will be set that will be before the date of the proposed
merger or change in control. The administrator will notify each participant that the exercise date has been changed and that the participant’s
option will be exercised automatically on the new exercise date unless prior to such date the participant has withdrawn from the offering
period.

Amendment; Termination. The administrator will have the authority to amend, suspend or terminate our 2021 ESPP. Our 2021 ESPP
automatically will terminate in 2041, unless we terminate it sooner.
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Executive Incentive Compensation Plan
Prior to the effectiveness of the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part, the board of directors intends to adopt an

Executive Incentive Compensation Plan, or the Incentive Compensation Plan. Our Incentive Compensation Plan will allow us to grant
incentive awards, generally payable in cash, to employees selected by the administrator of the Incentive Compensation Plan, including our
named executive officers, based upon performance goals established by the administrator.

Under our Incentive Compensation Plan, the administrator will determine the performance goals applicable to any award, which goals
may include, without limitation, (i) revenue, (ii) operating income, (iii) earnings (including, but not limited to, earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization), (iv) marketing efficiency, (v) segment and/or division revenue, (vi) company brand penetration, (vii) individual
performance, (viii) gross margin, (ix) return on investment capital, (x) budget management, (xi) earnings per share, (xii) cash flow, (xiii) net
income, (xiv) customer satisfaction metrics like NPS, (xv) management of expenses (including, but not limited to, labor or payroll expenses),
(xvi) operational efficiency, (xvii) safety, (xviii) return on invested capital, (xix) inventory turn, (xx) total shareholder return, (xxi) cash flow
growth and (xxii) other subjective or objective criteria. The performance goals may differ from participant to participant and from award to
award.

A committee appointed by our board of directors (which, until our board of directors determines otherwise, will be our compensation
committee) administers our Incentive Compensation Plan. The administrator of our Incentive Compensation Plan may, in its sole discretion
and at any time, increase, reduce or eliminate a participant’s actual award and/or increase, reduce or eliminate the amount allocated to the
bonus pool for a particular performance period. The actual award may be below, at or above a participant’s target award, in the discretion of
the administrator. The administrator may determine the amount of any increase, reduction or elimination on the basis of such factors as it
deems relevant, and it is not required to establish any allocation or weighting with respect to the factors it considers.

Actual awards generally will be paid in cash (or its equivalent) only after they are earned, and, unless otherwise determined by the
administrator, to earn an actual award a participant must be employed by us through the date the actual award is paid. The administrator
reserves the right to settle an actual award with a grant of an equity award under our then-current equity compensation plan, which equity
award may have such terms and conditions, including vesting, as the administrator determines. Payment of awards occurs after they are
earned, but no later than the dates set forth in our Incentive Compensation Plan.

All awards under our Incentive Compensation Plan will be subject to reduction, cancellation, forfeiture or recoupment in accordance
with any clawback policy that we (or any parent or subsidiary of ours) are required to adopt pursuant to the listing standards of any national
securities exchange or association on which our securities are listed or as is otherwise required by the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act or other applicable laws. In addition, our compensation committee may impose such other clawback, recovery or
recoupment provisions with respect to an award under the Incentive Compensation Plan as it determines necessary or appropriate, including
without limitation a reacquisition right in respect of previously acquired cash, stock or other property provided with respect to an award.
Recovery of compensation under a clawback policy generally will not give the participant the right to resign for “good reason” or “constructive
termination” (or similar term) under any agreement with us or any parent or subsidiary of ours. Additionally, our compensation committee may
specify when providing for an award under the Incentive Compensation Plan that the participant’s rights, payments and benefits with respect
to the award will be subject to reduction, cancellation, forfeiture or recoupment upon the occurrence of specified events, in addition to any
otherwise applicable vesting or performance conditions of the award.

Our board of directors and the administrator have the authority to amend, suspend or terminate our Incentive Compensation Plan,
provided such action does not impair the existing rights of any participant with respect to any earned awards.
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401(k) Plan
We maintain a 401(k) retirement savings plan for the benefit of our employees, including our named executive officers, who satisfy

certain eligibility requirements. Under the 401(k) plan, eligible employees may elect to defer a portion of their compensation, within the limits
prescribed by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, on a pre-tax or after-tax (Roth) basis, through contributions to
the 401(k) plan. The 401(k) plan permits us to make discretionary matching contributions of up to 50% of the first 12% of eligible
compensation. The 401(k) plan is intended to qualify under Sections 401(a) and 501(a) of the Code. As a tax-qualified retirement plan, pre-
tax contributions to the 401(k) plan and earnings on those pre-tax contributions are not taxable to the employees until distributed from the
401(k) plan, and earnings on Roth contributions are not taxable when distributed from the 401(k) plan.

-137-



 
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the compensation arrangements, including employment, termination of employment and change in control arrangements
and indemnification arrangements, discussed in the sections titled “Management” and “Executive Compensation,” the following is a
description of each transaction since January 1, 2018 and each currently proposed transaction in which:

 • we, Cricut Holdings or any subsidiaries thereof have been or will be a participant;

 • the amount involved exceeded or will exceed $120,000; and

 • any of our directors, executive officers or beneficial holders of more than 5% of any class of our capital stock, or their affiliates,
or any immediate family member of, or person sharing the household with, any of these individuals, had or will have a direct or
indirect material interest.

Corporate Reorganization
Prior to the consummation of this offering, we will consummate the Corporate Reorganization described under the section titled

“Corporate Reorganization.”

Registration Rights
Prior to the completion of this offering, we will enter into a Registration Rights Agreement with certain Cricut Holdings members with

respect to the registration of our securities and holders of at least 75% of the outstanding common units of Cricut Holdings immediately prior
to the completion of this offering; provided that such registration rights agreement shall provide for (i) long-form and short-form demand
registration rights to the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding common units of Cricut Holdings immediately prior to the completion
of this offering, (ii) piggyback registration rights to all holders of common units with any registration of the securities of our successor under
the Securities Act and (iii) such piggyback registration rights granted to the members to be allocated on a pro rata basis subject to customary
cutback provisions.

Equity Investments in Cricut Holdings
The following table sets forth the number of units and purchase price paid for all purchases of equity interests in Cricut Holdings by

our directors, executive officers and beneficial owners of more than 5% of any class of our capital stock, or their respective affiliates.
 

Name  Date Acquired  

Number of
Units

Purchased   

Aggregate
Purchase

Price  
Ashish Arora  March 1, 2018   4,571,429  $ 1,600,000  

 

Repurchase of Incentive Units
In March 2020, we repurchased incentive units from each of Mr. Arora and Mr. Petersen at a purchase price of $1.85 per unit for an

aggregate purchase price of $312,676 and $318,148, respectively.

Executive and Director Compensation
We have granted certain equity awards to our executive officers and certain of our directors. See the sections titled “Executive

Compensation—Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal 2019 Year-End” and “Management—Non-Employee Director Compensation” for a
description of these equity awards.

Other than as described above under this section titled “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions,” since January 1,
2018, we have not entered into any transactions, nor are there any currently proposed transactions, between us and a related party where
the amount involved exceeds, or would
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exceed, $120,000, and in which any related person had or will have a direct or indirect material interest. We believe the terms of the
transactions described above were comparable to terms we could have obtained in arm’s-length dealings with unrelated third parties.

From time to time, we do business with other companies affiliated with certain holders of our capital stock. We believe that all such
arrangements have been entered into in the ordinary course of business and have been conducted on an arm’s-length basis.

Limitation of Liability and Indemnification of Officers and Directors
We expect to adopt an amended and restated certificate of incorporation, which will become effective immediately prior to the

completion of this offering, and which will contain provisions that limit the liability of our directors for monetary damages to the fullest extent
permitted by Delaware law. Consequently, our directors will not be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for any
breach of fiduciary duties as directors, except liability for the following:

 • any breach of their duty of loyalty to our company or our stockholders;

 • any act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

 • unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the DGCL; or

 • any transaction from which they derived an improper personal benefit.

Any amendment to, or repeal of, these provisions will not eliminate or reduce the effect of these provisions in respect of any act,
omission or claim that occurred or arose prior to that amendment or repeal. If the DGCL is amended to provide for further limitations on the
personal liability of directors of corporations, then the personal liability of our directors will be further limited to the greatest extent permitted
by the DGCL.

In addition, we expect to adopt amended and restated bylaws, which will become effective immediately prior to the completion of this
offering, and which will provide that we will indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any person who is or was a party or is threatened
to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was one of our directors or officers or is or was
serving at our request as a director or officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. Our amended and
restated bylaws are expected to provide that we may indemnify to the fullest extent permitted by law any person who is or was a party or is
threatened to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was one of our employees or agents
or is or was serving at our request as an employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. Our
amended and restated bylaws will also provide that we must advance expenses incurred by or on behalf of a director or officer in advance of
the final disposition of any action or proceeding, subject to limited exceptions.

Further, we have entered into or will enter into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers that may
be broader than the specific indemnification provisions contained in the DGCL. These indemnification agreements require us, among other
things, to indemnify our directors and executive officers against liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service. These
indemnification agreements also require us to advance all expenses incurred by the directors and executive officers in investigating or
defending any such action, suit or proceeding. We believe that these agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified individuals to
serve as directors and executive officers.

The limitation of liability and indemnification provisions that are expected to be included in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation, amended and restated bylaws and in indemnification agreements that we have entered into or will enter into with our directors
and executive officers may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against our directors and executive officers for breach of their
fiduciary duties. They may also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against our directors and

-139-



 

executive officers, even though an action, if successful, might benefit us and other stockholders. Further, a stockholder’s investment may be
adversely affected to the extent that we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and executive officers as required
by these indemnification provisions. At present, we are not aware of any pending litigation or proceeding involving any person who is or was
one of our directors, officers, employees or other agents or is or was serving at our request as a director, officer, employee or agent of
another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, for which indemnification is sought, and we are not aware of any
threatened litigation that may result in claims for indemnification.

We have obtained insurance policies under which, subject to the limitations of the policies, coverage is provided to our directors and
executive officers against loss arising from claims made by reason of breach of fiduciary duty or other wrongful acts as a director or executive
officer, including claims relating to public securities matters, and to us with respect to payments that may be made by us to these directors
and executive officers pursuant to our indemnification obligations or otherwise as a matter of law.

Certain of our non-employee directors may, through their relationships with their employers, be insured and/or indemnified against
certain liabilities incurred in their capacity as members of our board of directors.

The underwriting agreement will provide for indemnification by the underwriters of us and our officers and directors for certain
liabilities arising under the Securities Act or otherwise.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers or persons controlling
our company pursuant to the foregoing provisions, we have been informed that, in the opinion of the SEC, such indemnification is against
public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.

Policies and Procedures for Related Party Transactions
Following the completion of this offering, our Audit Committee will have the primary responsibility for reviewing and approving or

disapproving “related party transactions,” which are transactions between us and related persons in which the aggregate amount involved
exceeds or may be expected to exceed $120,000 and in which a related person has or will have a direct or indirect material interest. Upon
completion of this offering, our policy regarding transactions between us and related persons will provide that a related person is defined as a
director, executive officer, nominee for director or beneficial owner of greater than 5% of any class of our capital stock, or their respective
affiliates. Our Audit Committee charter that will be in effect upon completion of this offering will provide that our Audit Committee shall review
and approve or disapprove any related party transactions.
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our capital stock, as of                    , and
assuming completion of the Corporate Reorganization, for:

 • each of our named executive officers;

 • each of our directors;

 • all of our current directors and executive officers as a group; and

 • each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock.

The number of shares of common stock beneficially owned and percentage of beneficial ownership before this offering set forth below
are based on the number of shares to be issued and outstanding after giving effect to the Corporate Reorganization. See the section titled
“Corporate Reorganization” for additional information. The number of shares of common stock beneficially owned and percentages of
beneficial ownership after this offering set forth below are based on (i) the number of shares to be issued and outstanding after this offering
and (ii) an assumed initial public offering price of $             per share, which is the midpoint of the estimated offering price range set forth on
the cover page of this prospectus.

We have based our calculation of the percentage of beneficial ownership after this offering on                  shares of our common stock
outstanding immediately after the completion of this offering, assuming that the underwriters will not exercise their option to purchase up to
an additional                  shares of our common stock from us in full. We have deemed shares of our common stock subject to incentive units,
zero strike price incentive units, purchased units and phantom units that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days, or the
Beneficial Ownership Date, to be outstanding and to be beneficially owned by the person holding the incentive units, zero strike price
incentive units, purchased units or phantom units for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of that person. We did not deem
these shares outstanding, however, for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

Unless otherwise indicated below, to our knowledge, the persons and entities named in the table have sole voting and sole
investment power with respect to all shares that they beneficially owned, subject to community property laws where applicable. The
information does not necessarily indicate beneficial ownership for any other purpose, including for purposes of Sections 13(d) and 13(g) of
the Securities Act.
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Unless otherwise indicated below, the address of each beneficial owner listed in the table below is c/o Cricut, Inc., 10855 South River
Front Parkway, South Jordan, Utah 84095.
 

    
Percentage of Shares Beneficially

Owned  

Executive Officers and Directors:  

Number of
Shares

of Common
Beneficially

Owned  
Before the
Offering  After the Offering  

Ashish Arora     %  %
Martin F. Petersen     %  %
Jason Makler     %  %
Len Blackwell     %  %
Steven Blasnik     %  %
Russell Freeman     %  %
Donald B. Olsen     %  %
Billie Williamson     %  %
All directors and executive officers as a group
   (9 persons)     %  %
5% Stockholders:        
Entities affiliated with Petrus     % %
 

* Represents beneficial ownership or voting power of less than 1% of the outstanding shares of our common stock.
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

General
The following description summarizes certain important terms of our capital stock, as they are expected to be in effect immediately

prior to the completion of this offering. We expect to adopt an amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated
bylaws that will become effective immediately prior to the completion of this offering, and this description summarizes the provisions that are
expected to be included in such documents. Because it is only a summary, it does not contain all the information that may be important to
you. For a complete description of the matters set forth in this section titled “Description of Capital Stock,” you should refer to our amended
and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, which are included as exhibits to the registration statement of
which this prospectus forms a part, and to the applicable provisions of Delaware law.

Immediately following the completion of this offering, our authorized capital stock will consist of            shares of capital stock of
which:

 •           shares of which are designated as common stock, par value $0.001 per share; and

 •            shares of which are designated as preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share.

Assuming the completion of the Corporate Reorganization which will occur prior to this offering, as of December 31, 2020, there
were            shares of our common stock outstanding, held by            stockholders of record. Pursuant to our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation, our board of directors will have the authority, without stockholder approval except as required by the listing
standards of the Exchange, to issue additional shares of our capital stock.

Common Stock
Dividend Rights

Subject to preferences that may apply to any shares of preferred stock outstanding at the time, the holders of our common stock are
entitled to receive dividends out of funds legally available if our board of directors, in its discretion, determines to issue dividends and then
only at the times and in the amounts that our board of directors may determine. See the section titled “Dividend Policy” for additional
information.

Voting Rights
Holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. We have

not provided for cumulative voting for the election of directors in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation.

No Preemptive or Similar Rights
Our common stock is not entitled to preemptive rights, and is not subject to conversion, redemption or sinking fund provisions.

Right to Receive Liquidation Distributions
If we become subject to a liquidation, dissolution or winding-up, the assets legally available for distribution to our stockholders would

be distributable ratably among the holders of our common stock and any participating preferred stock outstanding at that time, subject to prior
satisfaction of all outstanding debt and liabilities and the preferential rights of and the payment of liquidation preferences, if any, on any
outstanding shares of preferred stock.
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Preferred Stock
Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation that will become effective immediately prior to the completion of this

offering, our board of directors will have the authority, subject to limitations prescribed by Delaware law, to issue preferred stock in one or
more series, to establish from time to time the number of shares to be included in each series, and to fix the designation, powers,
preferences and rights of the shares of each series and any of its qualifications, limitations or restrictions, in each case without further vote or
action by our stockholders. Our board of directors can also increase or decrease the number of shares of any series of preferred stock, but
not below the number of shares of that series then outstanding, without any further vote or action by our stockholders. Our board of directors
may authorize the issuance of preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of
the holders of our common stock. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and
other corporate purposes, could, among other things, have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing a change in control of our company
and might adversely affect the market price of our common stock and the voting and other rights of the holders of our common stock. We
have no current plan to issue any shares of preferred stock.

Incentive Units
As of December 31, 2020, we had an aggregate of                     incentive units outstanding with a weighted-average exercise price of

approximately $          per share.

Registration Rights
Prior to the completion of this offering, we will enter into a Registration Rights Agreement with certain Cricut Holdings members with

respect to the registration of our securities and holders of at least 75% of the outstanding common units of Cricut Holdings immediately prior
to the completion of this offering; provided that such registration rights agreement shall provide for (i) long-form and short-form demand
registration rights to the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding common units of Cricut Holdings immediately prior to the completion
of this offering, (ii) piggyback registration rights to all holders of common units with any registration of the securities of our successor under
the Securities Act and (iii) such piggyback registration rights granted to the members to be allocated on a pro rata basis subject to customary
cutback provisions.

Anti-Takeover Provisions
Delaware Law

We will be governed by the provisions of Section 203 of the DGCL. In general, Section 203 prohibits a public Delaware corporation
from engaging in a “business combination” with an “interested stockholder” for a period of three years after the date of the transaction in
which the person became an interested stockholder, unless:

 • the transaction was approved by the board of directors prior to the time that the stockholder became an interested stockholder;

 • upon consummation of the transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder, the interested
stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced,
excluding shares owned by directors who are also officers of the corporation and shares owned by employee stock plans in
which employee participants do not have the right to determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be
tendered in a tender or exchange offer; or

 • at or subsequent to the time the stockholder became an interested stockholder, the business combination was approved by the
board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of the stockholders, and not by written consent, by the
affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock which is not owned by the interested stockholder.
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In general, Section 203 defines a “business combination” to include mergers, asset sales and other transactions resulting in financial
benefit to a stockholder and an “interested stockholder” as a person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years
did own, 15% or more of the corporation’s outstanding voting stock. These provisions may have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing
changes in control of our company.

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated Bylaw Provisions
Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws will include a number of provisions that

could deter hostile takeovers or delay or prevent changes in control of our board of directors or management team.

Exclusive Forum
Our amended and restated bylaws, which will become effectively immediately prior to the completion of this offering, will provide that,

unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the sole and exclusive forum for
(i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fiduciary duty owed by, or other
wrongdoing by, any of our directors, officers or other employees to us or our stockholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim against us or any
of our directors or officers arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL or (iv) any other action asserting a claim that is governed by the
internal affairs doctrine shall be a state or federal court located within the State of Delaware, in all cases subject to the court’s having
jurisdiction over indispensable parties named as defendants. This provision would not apply to suits brought to enforce a duty or liability
created by the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the U.S. federal courts have exclusive jurisdiction. Our amended and restated
bylaws will also provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United
States shall be the sole and exclusive forum for any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to the Securities Act. Any person or entity
purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in our shares of capital stock shall be deemed to have notice of and consented to these
provisions. Although we believe these provisions benefit us by providing increased consistency in the application of Delaware and federal law
for the specified types of actions and proceedings, the provisions may have the effect of discouraging lawsuits against us or our directors and
officers.

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Upon the completion of this offering, the transfer agent and registrar for our common stock will be                    The transfer agent and

registrar’s address is                   , and its telephone number is                   .

Limitations of Liability and Indemnification
See the section titled “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions—Limitation of Liability and Indemnification of Officers

and Directors” for additional information.

Listing
We intend to apply to list our common stock on the Exchange under the symbol “CRCT.”
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Prior to this offering, there has been no public market for our common stock, and we cannot predict the effect, if any, that market sales
of shares of our common stock or the availability of shares of our common stock for sale will have on the market price of our common stock
prevailing from time to time. Future sales of our common stock in the public market, or the availability of such shares for sale in the public
market, could adversely affect market prices prevailing from time to time. As described below, only a limited number of shares of our common
stock will be available for sale shortly after this offering due to contractual and legal restrictions on resale. Nevertheless, sales of our common
stock in the public market after such restrictions lapse, or the perception that those sales may occur, could adversely affect the prevailing
market price at such time and our ability to raise equity capital in the future.

Following the completion of this offering, based on the number of shares of our capital stock outstanding as of December 31, 2020,
we will have a total of                     shares of our common stock outstanding. Of these outstanding shares, all                    shares of our
common stock sold in this offering will be freely tradable, except that any shares purchased in this offering by our affiliates, as that term is
defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act, would only be able to be sold in compliance with the Rule 144 limitations described below.

The remaining outstanding shares of our common stock will be deemed “restricted securities” as defined in Rule 144 under the
Securities Act. Restricted securities may be sold in the public market only if they are registered under the Securities Act or if they qualify for
an exemption from registration under Rule 144 or Rule 701 under the Securities Act, which rules are summarized below. As a result of the
lock-up agreements and market standoff agreements described below, and subject to the provisions of Rule 144 or Rule 701, shares of our
common stock will be available for sale in the public market as follows:

 • beginning on the date of this prospectus, the                    shares of our common stock sold in this offering will be immediately
available for sale in the public market; and

 • beginning days after the date of this prospectus, subject to the terms of the lock-up and market standoff agreements described
below,                     additional shares (excluding                     shares of our common stock assuming that all outstanding Cricut
Holdings units that are exchangeable for shares of common stock are so exchanged) will become eligible for sale in the public
market, of which                     shares will be held by affiliates and subject to the volume and other restrictions of Rule 144, as
described below.

Lock-Up and Market Standoff Agreements
We, our executive officers, directors and certain other holders of our capital stock and securities convertible into or exchangeable for

our capital stock (including shares of common stock issuable upon exchange of Cricut Holdings units) have agreed or will agree that, subject
to certain exceptions, for a period of 180 days after the date of this prospectus, we and they will not, without the prior written consent of
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC, dispose of or hedge any shares or any securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of our capital stock.
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC may, in its discretion, release any of the securities subject to these lock-up agreements at any time. See the
section titled “Underwriters” for additional information.

Rule 144
In general, Rule 144 provides that once we have been subject to the public company reporting requirements of Section 13 or

Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act for at least 90 days, a person who is not deemed to have been one of our affiliates for purposes of the
Securities Act at any time during the 90 days preceding a sale and who has beneficially owned the shares of our common stock proposed to
be sold for at least six months is entitled to sell those shares without complying with the manner of sale, volume limitation or notice provisions
of Rule 144, subject to compliance with the public information requirements of Rule 144. If such a person has beneficially owned the shares
proposed to be sold for at least one year,
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including the holding period of any prior owner other than our affiliates, then that person would be entitled to sell those shares without
complying with any of the requirements of Rule 144.

In general, Rule 144 provides that our affiliates or persons selling shares of our common stock on behalf of our affiliates are entitled to
sell upon expiration of the lock-up agreements described above, within any three-month period, a number of shares of our common stock
that does not exceed the greater of:

 • 1% of the number of shares of our common stock then outstanding, which will equal            shares immediately after the
completion of this offering; or

 • the average weekly trading volume of our common stock during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a notice on
Form 144 with respect to that sale.

Sales of common stock made in reliance upon Rule 144 by our affiliates or persons selling shares of our common stock on behalf of
our affiliates are also subject to certain manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and to the availability of current public information
about us.

Rule 701
Rule 701 generally allows a stockholder who purchased shares of our capital stock pursuant to a written compensatory plan or

contract and who is not deemed to have been an affiliate of our company during the immediately preceding 90 days to sell these shares in
reliance upon Rule 144, but without being required to comply with the public information, holding period, volume limitation or notice
provisions of Rule 144. Rule 701 also permits affiliates of our company to sell their Rule 701 shares under Rule 144 without complying with
the holding period requirements of Rule 144. All holders of Rule 701 shares, however, are required to wait until 90 days after the date of this
prospectus before selling those shares pursuant to Rule 701.

Registration Rights
 

Prior to the completion of this offering, we expect that the holders of up to         shares of our common stock (after giving effect to the
Corporate Reorganization), or certain transferees, will be entitled to certain rights to the registration of the offer and sale of those shares
under the Securities Act. See the section titled “Description of Capital Stock—Registration Rights” for a description of these registration
rights. If the offer and sale of these shares is registered, the shares will be freely tradeable without restriction under the Securities Act and a
large number of shares may be sold into the public market.

Registration Statement on Form S-8
We intend to file a registration statement on Form S-8 under the Securities Act promptly after the completion of the registration

statement of which this prospectus forms a part to register shares of our common stock subject to incentive units and other awards issuable
as well as reserved for future issuance under our equity compensation plans. The registration statement on Form S-8 is expected to become
effective immediately upon filing, and shares of our common stock covered by the registration statement will then become eligible for sale in
the public market, subject to the Rule 144 limitations applicable to affiliates, vesting restrictions and any applicable market standoff
agreements and lock-up agreements. See the section titled “Executive Compensation—Equity Plans” for a description of our equity
compensation plans.
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MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES TO NON-U.S. HOLDERS OF OUR COMMON STOCK

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to certain non-U.S. holders (as defined below) of
the acquisition ownership and disposition of our common stock but does not purport to be a complete analysis of all the potential tax
considerations relating thereto. This summary is based upon the provisions of the Code, Treasury Regulations promulgated thereunder,
administrative rulings and judicial decisions, all as of the date hereof. These authorities may be changed, possibly retroactively, so as to
result in U.S. federal income tax consequences different from those set forth below. No ruling from the Internal Revenue Service, or IRS, has
been, or will be, sought with respect to the tax consequences discussed herein, and there can be no assurance that the IRS will not take a
position contrary to the tax consequences discussed below or that any position taken by the IRS would not be sustained.

This summary applies only to common stock acquired in this offering. It does not address the tax considerations arising under the
laws of any non-U.S., state or local jurisdiction, or under U.S. federal gift and estate tax laws. In addition, this discussion does not address
the application of the Medicare contribution tax on net investment income or any tax considerations applicable to a non-U.S. holder’s
particular circumstances or to non-U.S. holders that may be subject to special tax rules, including, without limitation:

 • banks, insurance companies or other financial institutions (except to the extent specifically set forth below), regulated
investment companies or real estate investment trusts;

 • persons subject to the alternative minimum tax;

 • tax-exempt organizations or governmental organizations;

 • controlled foreign corporations, passive foreign investment companies or corporations that accumulate earnings to avoid U.S.
federal income tax;

 • brokers or dealers in securities or currencies;

 • traders in securities or other persons that elect to use a mark-to-market method of accounting for their holdings in our stock;

 • U.S. expatriates or certain former citizens or long-term residents of the United States;

 • partnerships or entities classified as partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes or other pass-through entities (and
investors therein);

 • persons who hold our common stock as a position in a hedging transaction, “straddle,” “conversion transaction” or other risk
reduction transaction or integrated investment;

 • persons who hold or receive our common stock pursuant to the exercise of any employee stock option or otherwise as
compensation;

 • persons subject to special tax accounting rules as a result of any item of gross income with respect to our common stock being
taken into account in an “applicable financial statement” as defined in Section 451(b) of the Code;

 • persons that own, or are deemed to own, more than five percent of our common stock (except to the extent specifically set
forth below);

 • persons who do not hold our common stock as a capital asset within the meaning of Section 1221 of the Code; or

 • persons deemed to sell our common stock under the constructive sale provisions of the Code.
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In addition, if a partnership or entity classified as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds our common stock, the tax
treatment of a partner generally will depend on the status of the partner and upon the activities of the partnership. Accordingly, partnerships
that hold our common stock, and partners in such partnerships, should consult their tax advisors.

You are urged to consult your tax advisor with respect to the application of the U.S. federal income tax laws to your
particular situation, as well as any tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition of our stock arising under the
U.S. federal estate or gift tax rules or under the laws of any state, local, non-U.S. or other taxing jurisdiction or under any
applicable tax treaty.
Non-U.S. Holder Defined

For purposes of this discussion, you are a non-U.S. holder if you are a holder of our stock that is not a partnership (or entity or
arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes) and is not any of the following:

 • an individual who is a citizen or resident of the United States (for U.S. federal income tax purposes);

 • a corporation or other entity taxable as a corporation created or organized in the United States or under the laws of the United
States or any political subdivision thereof or other entity treated as such for U.S. federal income tax purposes;

 • an estate whose income is subject to U.S. federal income tax regardless of its source; or

 • a trust (x) whose administration is subject to the primary supervision of a U.S. court and which has one or more “U.S. persons”
(within the meaning of Section 7701(a)(30) of the Code) who have the authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust
or (y) which has made a valid election to be treated as a U.S. person.

Distributions
As described in the section titled “Dividend Policy,” we paid a cash dividend to Cricut Holdings in September 2020, but we do not

anticipate paying any dividends on our capital stock in the foreseeable future. However, if we do make distributions on our common stock in
the future, those payments will constitute dividends for U.S. tax purposes to the extent paid from our current or accumulated earnings and
profits, as determined under U.S. federal income tax principles. To the extent those distributions exceed both our current and our
accumulated earnings and profits, they will constitute a return of capital and will first reduce your basis in our common stock, but not below
zero, and then will be treated as gain from the sale of stock as described below under the section titled “—Gain on Disposition of Our
Common Stock.”

Except as otherwise described below in the discussions of effectively connected income (in the next paragraph), backup withholding
and FATCA (as defined below), any dividend paid to you generally will be subject to U.S. withholding tax either at a rate of 30% of the gross
amount of the dividend or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty. In order to receive a reduced treaty rate,
you must provide us with an IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E or other appropriate version of IRS Form W-8, including any required
attachments and your taxpayer identification number, if required, certifying qualification for the reduced rate; additionally, you will be required
to update such forms and certifications from time to time as required by law. A non-U.S. holder eligible for a reduced rate of U.S. withholding
tax pursuant to an income tax treaty may obtain a refund of any excess amounts withheld by timely filing an appropriate claim for refund with
the IRS. If the non-U.S. holder holds the stock through a financial institution or other agent acting on the non-U.S. holder’s behalf, the non-
U.S. holder will be required to provide appropriate documentation to the agent, which then will be required to provide certification to us or our
paying agent, either directly or through other intermediaries. Non-U.S. holders should consult their tax advisors regarding their entitlement to
benefits under an applicable income tax treaty.

Dividends received by you that are effectively connected with your conduct of a U.S. trade or business (and, if required by an
applicable income tax treaty, attributable to a permanent establishment maintained
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by you in the United States) are generally exempt from such withholding tax. In order to obtain this exemption, you must provide us with an
IRS Form W-8ECI or other applicable IRS Form W-8, including any required attachments and your taxpayer identification number;
additionally, you will be required to update such forms and certifications from time to time as required by law. Such effectively connected
dividends, although not subject to U.S. federal withholding tax, are includable on your U.S. income tax return and generally taxed to you at
the same graduated rates applicable to U.S. persons, net of certain deductions and credits. If you are a corporate non-U.S. holder, dividends
you receive that are effectively connected with your conduct of a U.S. trade or business may also be subject to a branch profits tax at a rate
of 30% or such lower rate as may be specified by an applicable income tax treaty. You should consult your tax advisor regarding any
applicable tax treaties that may provide for different rules.

Gain on Disposition of Our Common Stock
Except as otherwise described below in the discussions of backup withholding and FATCA, you generally will not be subject to U.S.

federal income tax on any gain realized upon the sale or other disposition of our common stock unless:

 • the gain is effectively connected with your conduct of a U.S. trade or business (and, if required by an applicable income tax
treaty, the gain is attributable to a permanent establishment maintained by you in the United States);

 • you are a non-resident alien individual who is present in the United States for a period or periods aggregating 183 days or
more during the calendar year in which the sale or disposition occurs, and other conditions are met; or

 • our common stock constitutes a U.S. real property interest by reason of our status as a “U.S. real property holding
corporation,” or USRPHC, for U.S. federal income tax purposes at any time within the shorter of the five-year period preceding
your disposition of, or your holding period for, our common stock, and, in the case where shares of our common stock are
“regularly traded” (as defined by the applicable Treasury Regulations) on an established securities market, you own, or are
treated as owning, more than 5% of our common stock at any time during the foregoing period.

Generally, a corporation is a USRPHC if the fair market value of its “U.S. real property interests” equals or exceeds 50% of the sum of
the fair market value of its worldwide real property interests and its other assets used or held for use in a trade or business (all as determined
for U.S. federal income tax purposes). We believe that we are not currently and will not become a USRPHC for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, and the remainder of this discussion assumes this is the case. However, because the determination of whether we are a USRPHC
depends on the fair market value of our U.S. real property relative to the fair market value of our other business assets, there can be no
assurance that we will not become a USRPHC in the future. Even if we become a USRPHC, however, as long as our common stock is
regularly traded on an established securities market, such common stock will be treated as U.S. real property interests only if you actually or
constructively hold more than 5% of such regularly traded common stock at any time during the shorter of the five-year period preceding your
disposition of, or your holding period for, our common stock. If we are determined to be a USRPHC and the foregoing exception does not
apply, you generally will be taxed on the net gain derived from the disposition of our common stock at the graduated U.S. federal income tax
rates applicable to U.S. persons and, in addition, a purchaser of our common stock may be required to withhold tax with respect to that
obligation. No assurance can be provided that our common stock will be regularly traded on an established securities market at all times for
purposes of the rules described above.

If you are a non-U.S. holder described in the first bullet above, you will generally be required to pay tax on the net gain derived from
the sale under regular graduated U.S. federal income tax rates applicable to U.S. persons (and a corporate non-U.S. holder described in the
first bullet above also may be subject to the branch profits tax at a 30% rate), unless otherwise provided by an applicable income tax treaty. If
you are a non-U.S. holder described in the second bullet above, you will generally be required to pay a flat 30% tax (or such lower rate
specified by an applicable income tax treaty) on the gain derived from the sale, which gain may be offset by U.S. source capital losses for the
year (provided you have timely filed U.S.
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federal income tax returns with respect to such losses). You should consult your tax advisor with respect to whether any applicable income
tax or other treaties may provide for different rules.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting
Generally, we must report annually to the IRS the amount of dividends paid to you, your name and address and the amount of tax

withheld, if any. A similar report will be sent to you. Pursuant to applicable income tax treaties or other agreements, the IRS may make these
reports available to tax authorities in your country of residence.

Payments of dividends or of proceeds on the disposition of stock made to you may be subject to information reporting and, depending
on the circumstances, backup withholding (at a current rate of 24%) unless you establish an exemption, for example, by properly certifying
your non-U.S. status on an IRS Form W-8BEN, IRS Form W-8BEN-E or another appropriate version of IRS Form W-8. Proceeds of a
disposition of our common stock conducted through a non-U.S. office of a non-U.S. broker that does not have certain enumerated
relationships with the United States generally will not be subject to backup withholding or information reporting. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, backup withholding and information reporting may apply if either we or our paying agent has actual knowledge, or reason to know,
that you are a U.S. person as defined under the Code.

Backup withholding is not an additional tax; rather, the U.S. federal income tax liability of persons subject to backup withholding will be
reduced by the amount of tax withheld. If withholding results in an overpayment of taxes, a refund or credit may generally be obtained from
the IRS, provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS in a timely manner.

FATCA
The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, collectively, FATCA, generally

imposes withholding tax at a rate of 30% on and, dividends on, and, subject to the discussion of certain proposed Treasury Regulations
below, gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of our common stock paid to “foreign financial institutions” (as specially defined
under these rules), unless such institution enters into an agreement with the U.S. government to withhold on certain payments and to collect
and provide to the U.S. tax authorities substantial information regarding the U.S. account holders of such institution (which includes certain
equity and debt holders of such institution, as well as certain account holders that are foreign entities with U.S. owners) or otherwise
establishes an exemption. FACTA also generally imposes a U.S. federal withholding tax of 30% on dividends on and, subject to the
discussion of certain proposed Treasury Regulations below, gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of our common stock paid to a
“non-financial foreign entities” (as specifically defined under these rules) unless such entity provides the withholding agent with a certification
identifying a certain substantial direct and indicated U.S. owners of the entity and provides certain information with respect to such U.S.
owners, certifies that there are none or otherwise establishes and certifies to an exemption. The withholding provisions under FATCA
generally apply to dividends on our common stock. The U.S. Secretary of the Treasury has issued proposed regulations providing that the
withholding provisions under FATCA do not apply with respect to the gross proceeds from the sale or other disposition of our common stock,
which may be relied upon by taxpayers until final regulations are issued. There can be no assurance that final Treasury Regulations would
provide an exemption from withholding taxes under FATCA for gross proceeds. An intergovernmental agreement between the United States
and your country of tax residence may modify the requirements described in this paragraph. If a dividend payment is both subject to
withholding under FATCA and subject to the withholding tax discussed above under the section titled “—Distributions,” the withholding under
FATCA may be credited against, and therefore reduce, such other withholding tax. Non-U.S. holders should consult their own tax advisors
regarding the possible implications of FATCA on their investment in our common stock.

Each prospective investor should consult its own tax advisor regarding the particular U.S. federal, state and local and non-
U.S. tax consequences of purchasing, holding and disposing of our common stock, including the consequences of any proposed
change in applicable laws.
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UNDERWRITERS

We and the underwriters named below have entered into an underwriting agreement with respect to the shares being offered. Subject
to certain conditions, each underwriter has severally agreed to purchase the number of shares indicated in the following table. Goldman
Sachs & Co. LLC and Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC are the representatives of the underwriters.

 
Underwriters  Number of Shares
Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC   
Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC   
Total   
 

The underwriters are committed to take and pay for all of the shares being offered, if any are taken, other than the shares covered by
the option described below unless and until this option is exercised.

The underwriters have an option to buy up to an additional                shares from us to cover sales by the underwriters of a greater
number of shares than the total number set forth in the table above. They may exercise that option for 30 days. If any shares are purchased
pursuant to this option, the underwriters will severally purchase shares in approximately the same proportion as set forth in the table above.

The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions to be paid to the underwriters by us. Such
amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters’ option to purchase                     additional shares.
 
Paid by us  No Exercise   Full Exercise  
Per Share  $ —  $ — 
Total  $ —  $ —

 

 
Shares sold by the underwriters to the public will initially be offered at the initial public offering price set forth on the cover of this

prospectus. Any shares sold by the underwriters to securities dealers may be sold at a discount of up to $       per share from the initial public
offering price. After the initial offering of the shares, the representatives may change the offering price and the other selling terms. The
offering of the shares by the underwriters is subject to receipt and acceptance and subject to the underwriters’ right to reject any order in
whole or in part.

We and our officers, directors and holders of substantially all of our common stock have agreed with the underwriters, subject to
certain exceptions, not to dispose of or hedge any of their common stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of common
stock during the period from the date of this prospectus continuing through the date 180 days after the date of this prospectus, except with
the prior written consent of the representatives. This agreement does not apply to any existing employee benefit plans. See the section titled
“Shares Available for Future Sale” for a discussion of certain transfer restrictions.

Prior to the offering, there has been no public market for the shares. The initial public offering price has been negotiated among us
and the representatives. Among the factors to be considered in determining the initial public offering price of the shares, in addition to
prevailing market conditions, will be our historical performance, estimates of the business potential and earnings prospects, an assessment
of our management and the consideration of the above factors in relation to market valuation of companies in related businesses.

We intend to apply to list the common stock on the Exchange under the symbol “CRCT.”  

In connection with the offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell shares of common stock in the open market. These
transactions may include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the
sale by the underwriters of a greater number
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of shares than they are required to purchase in the offering, and a short position represents the amount of such sales that have not been
covered by subsequent purchases. A “covered short position” is a short position that is not greater than the amount of additional shares for
which the underwriters’ option described above may be exercised. The underwriters may cover any covered short position by either
exercising their option to purchase additional shares or purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to cover
the covered short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market
as compared to the price at which they may purchase additional shares pursuant to the option described above. “Naked” short sales are any
short sales that create a short position greater than the amount of additional shares for which the option described above may be exercised.
The underwriters must cover any such naked short position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to
be created if the underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the common stock in the open market
after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in the offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of various bids for or
purchases of common stock made by the underwriters in the open market prior to the completion of the offering.

The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when a particular underwriter repays to the underwriters a portion of the
underwriting discount received by it because the representatives have repurchased shares sold by or for the account of such underwriter in
stabilizing or short covering transactions.

Purchases to cover a short position and stabilizing transactions, as well as other purchases by the underwriters for their own
accounts, may have the effect of preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of our stock, and together with the imposition of the
penalty bid, may stabilize, maintain or otherwise affect the market price of the common stock. As a result, the price of the common stock may
be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open market. The underwriters are not required to engage in these activities and
may end any of these activities at any time. These transactions may be effected on                   , in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

We estimate that the total expenses of the offering, excluding underwriting discounts and commissions, will be approximately
$                   .

We have agreed to indemnify the several underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include
sales and trading, commercial and investment banking, advisory, investment management, investment research, principal investment,
hedging, market making, brokerage and other financial and non-financial activities and services. Certain of the underwriters and their
respective affiliates have provided, and may in the future provide, a variety of these services to the issuer and to persons and entities with
relationships with the issuer, for which they received or will receive customary fees and expenses.

In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates, officers, directors and
employees may purchase, sell or hold a broad array of investments and actively traded securities, derivatives, loans, commodities,
currencies, credit default swaps and other financial instruments for their own account and for the accounts of their customers, and such
investment and trading activities may involve or relate to assets, securities and/or instruments of the issuer (directly, as collateral securing
other obligations or otherwise) and/or persons and entities with relationships with the issuer. The underwriters and their respective affiliates
may also communicate independent investment recommendations, market color or trading ideas and/or publish or express independent
research views in respect of such assets, securities or instruments and may at any time hold, or recommend to clients that they should
acquire, long and/or short positions in such assets, securities and instruments.
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Selling Restrictions
European Economic Area and United Kingdom

In relation to each member state of the EEA and the United Kingdom, each a Relevant State, no shares of our common stock have
been offered or will be offered pursuant to the offering to the public in that Relevant State prior to the publication of a prospectus in relation to
the shares which has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant
State and notified to the competent authority in that Relevant State, all in accordance with the Prospectus Regulation (as defined below),
except that offers of the shares may be made to the public in that Relevant State at any time under the following exemptions under the
Prospectus Regulation:

 (a) to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined under the Prospectus Regulation;

 (b) to fewer than 150 natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined under the Prospectus Regulation), subject
to obtaining the prior consent of the representatives for any such offer; or

 (c) in any other circumstances falling within Article 1(4) of the Prospectus Regulation,

provided that no such offer of the shares shall require us or any representative to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the
Prospectus Regulation or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 23 of the Prospectus Regulation.

For the purposes of this provision, the expression an “offer to the public” in relation to any shares in any Relevant State means the
communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and any shares to be offered so as to enable
an investor to decide to purchase or subscribe for any shares, and the expression “Prospectus Regulation” means Regulation (EU)
2017/1129.

This EEA and the United Kingdom selling restriction is in addition to any other selling restrictions set out below.

United Kingdom

Each underwriter has represented and agreed that:

 (a) it has only communicated or caused to be communicated and will only communicate or cause to be communicated an
invitation or inducement to engage in investment activity (within the meaning of Section 21 of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000, as amended, or the FSMA), received by it in connection with the issue or sale of the shares in
circumstances in which Section 21(1) of the FSMA does not apply to us or the selling stockholders; and

 (b) it has complied and will comply with all applicable provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to the
shares in, from or otherwise involving the United Kingdom.

Canada

The securities may be sold in Canada only to purchasers purchasing, or deemed to be purchasing, as principal that are accredited
investors, as defined in National Instrument 45-106 Prospectus Exemptions or subsection 73.3(1) of the Securities Act (Ontario), and are
permitted clients, as defined in National Instrument 31-103 Registration Requirements, Exemptions and Ongoing Registrant Obligations. Any
resale of the securities must be made in accordance with an exemption form, or in a transaction not subject to, the prospectus requirements
of applicable securities laws.
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Securities legislation in certain provinces or territories of Canada may provide a purchaser with remedies for rescission or damages if
this prospectus (including any amendment thereto) contains a misrepresentation, provided that the remedies for rescission or damages are
exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province or territory. The purchaser
should refer to any applicable provisions of the securities legislation of the purchaser’s province or territory of these rights or consult with a
legal advisor.

Pursuant to section 3A.3 of National Instrument 33-105 Underwriting Conflicts (NI 33-105), the underwriters are not required to
comply with the disclosure requirements of NI 33-105 regarding underwriter conflicts of interest in connection with this offering.

Hong Kong

The shares may not be offered or sold in Hong Kong by means of any document other than (i) in circumstances which do not
constitute an offer to the public within the meaning of the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), or Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance, or which do not constitute an invitation to the
public within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), or Securities and Futures
Ordinance, (ii) to “professional investors” as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance and any rules made thereunder or (iii) in other
circumstances which do not result in the document being a “prospectus” as defined in the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance, and no advertisement, invitation or document relating to the shares may be issued or may be in the possession of any
person for the purpose of issue (in each case whether in Hong Kong or elsewhere), which is directed at, or the contents of which are likely to
be accessed or read by, the public in Hong Kong (except if permitted to do so under the securities laws of Hong Kong) other than with
respect to shares which are or are intended to be disposed of only to persons outside Hong Kong or only to “professional investors” in Hong
Kong as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance and any rules made thereunder.

Singapore

This prospectus has not been registered as a prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Accordingly, this prospectus and
any other document or material in connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the shares may not be
circulated or distributed, nor may the shares be offered or sold, or be made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, whether
directly or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor (as defined under Section 4A of the Securities and
Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore, or the SFA) under Section 274 of the SFA, (ii) to a relevant person (as defined in Section 275(2) of
the SFA) pursuant to Section 275(1) of the SFA, or any person pursuant to Section 275(1A) of the SFA, and in accordance with the
conditions specified in Section 275 of the SFA or (iii) otherwise pursuant to, and in accordance with the conditions of, any other applicable
provision of the SFA, in each case subject to conditions set forth in the SFA.

Where the shares are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which is a corporation (which is
not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share
capital of which is owned by one or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor, the securities (as defined in Section 239(1) of
the SFA) of that corporation shall not be transferable for six months after that corporation has acquired the shares under Section 275 of the
SFA except: (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person (as defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA), (ii)
where such transfer arises from an offer in that corporation’s securities pursuant to Section 275(1A) of the SFA, (iii) where no consideration is
or will be given for the transfer, (iv) where the transfer is by operation of law, (v) as specified in Section 276(7) of the SFA or (vi) as specified
in Regulation 32 of the Securities and Futures (Offers of Investments) (Shares and Debentures) Regulations 2005 of Singapore, or
Regulation 32.

Where the shares are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person which is a trust (where the trustee
is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) whose sole purpose is to hold investments and each beneficiary of the
trust is an accredited investor, the
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beneficiaries’ rights and interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transferable for six months after that trust has acquired the
shares under Section 275 of the SFA except: (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the SFA or to a relevant person (as defined
in Section 275(2) of the SFA), (ii) where such transfer arises from an offer that is made on terms that such rights or interest are acquired at a
consideration of not less than S$200,000 (or its equivalent in a foreign currency) for each transaction (whether such amount is to be paid for
in cash or by exchange of securities or other assets), (iii) where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer, (vi) where the transfer is
by operation of law, (v) as specified in Section 276(7) of the SFA or (vi) as specified in Regulation 32.

Japan

The securities have not been and will not be registered under the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act of Japan (Act No. 25 of
1948, as amended), or the FIEA. The securities may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to or for the benefit of any
resident of Japan (including any person resident in Japan or any corporation or other entity organized under the laws of Japan) or to others
for reoffering or resale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or to or for the benefit of any resident of Japan, except pursuant to an exemption from
the registration requirements of the FIEA and otherwise in compliance with any relevant laws and regulations of Japan.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of our common stock being offered by this prospectus will be passed upon for us by Wilson Sonsini
Goodrich & Rosati, P.C., Palo Alto, California, which has acted as our counsel in connection with this offering. Gibson, Dunn & Crutcher LLP,
Dallas, Texas, is counsel for the underwriters in connection with this offering.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018 and 2019 and for the years then ended included in this prospectus
and in the registration statement have been so included in reliance on the report of BDO USA, LLP, an independent registered public
accounting firm, appearing elsewhere herein and in the registration statement, given on the authority of said firm as experts in auditing and
accounting.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We have submitted with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act with respect to the shares of our
common stock offered by this prospectus. This prospectus, which constitutes a part of the registration statement, does not contain all of the
information set forth in the registration statement, some of which is contained in exhibits to the registration statement as permitted by the
rules and regulations of the SEC. For further information with respect to us and our common stock, we refer you to the registration statement,
including the exhibits filed as a part of the registration statement. Statements contained in this prospectus concerning the contents of any
contract or any other document is not necessarily complete. If a contract or document has been filed as an exhibit to the registration
statement, please see the copy of the contract document that has been filed. Each statement in this prospectus relating to a contract or
document filed as an exhibit is qualified in all respects by the filed exhibit. The SEC maintains an internet website that contains reports, proxy
statements and other information about issuers, like us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that website is www.sec.gov.

As a result of this offering, we will become subject to the information and reporting requirements of the Exchange Act and, in
accordance with this law, will file periodic reports, proxy statements and other information with the SEC. These periodic reports, proxy
statements and other information will be available for inspection and copying at the website for the SEC referred to above. We also maintain
a website at www.cricut.com. Upon completion of this offering, you may access these materials free of charge as soon as reasonably
practicable after they are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. Information contained on our website is not a part of this
prospectus, and the inclusion of our website address in this prospectus is an inactive textual reference only.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Stockholder and Board of Directors
Cricut, Inc.
South Jordan, Utah

Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Cricut, Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2018 and 2019,

the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes (collectively referred to as the “consolidated financial statements”). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company at December 31, 2018 and 2019, and the results of its operations
and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion
These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (“PCAOB”) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and
the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB and in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits we are required to
obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
 
/s/ BDO USA, LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2012.
 
Salt Lake City, Utah
November 10, 2020
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Cricut, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

 
  As of December 31,  

  2018   2019  
Assets         
Current assets:         

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 6,016  $ 6,653 
Accounts receivable, net   61,255   65,435 
Inventories   145,149   213,190 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   6,458   1,909 

Total current assets   218,878   287,187 
Property and equipment, net   16,026   25,311 
Intangible assets   4,547   3,040 
Deferred tax assets   1,645   1,418 
Other assets   522   689 

Total assets  $ 241,618  $ 317,645 
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity         
Current liabilities:         

Accounts payable  $ 82,273  $ 95,829 
Accrued expenses   30,429   42,052 
Revolving loan   29,135   32,593 
Term loan, current portion   4,000   4,979 
Other current liabilities   254   130 

Total current liabilities   146,091   175,583 
Term loan, net of current portion   11,667   17,843 
Other non-current liabilities   1,848   2,315 
Deferred tax liabilities   2,246   762 

Total liabilities   161,852   196,503 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)         
Stockholders’ equity:         

Class A Common Stock, par value $0.01 per share, 4,000,000
   shares authorized, 3,238,427 shares issued and outstanding   32   32 
Additional paid-in capital   457,556   459,749 
Accumulated deficit   (377,822)   (338,611)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss   —   (28)

Total stockholders’ equity   79,766   121,142 
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity  $ 241,618  $ 317,645

 

 
See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Cricut, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income
(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

Revenue:         
Connected machines  $ 147,081  $ 198,144 
Subscriptions   31,300   53,829 
Accessories and materials   161,407   234,581 

Total revenue   339,788   486,554 
Cost of revenue:         

Connected machines   127,546   176,894 
Subscriptions   5,027   8,827 
Accessories and materials   96,119   158,483 

Total cost of revenue   228,692   344,204 
Gross profit   111,096   142,350 
Operating expenses:         

Research and development   24,056   26,674 
Sales and marketing   30,698   40,110 
General and administrative   18,363   22,005 

Total operating expenses   73,117   88,789 
Income from operations   37,979   53,561 
Other income (expense):         

Interest income (expense), net   (1,934)   (3,291)
Other income (expense), net   108   (2)

Total other income (expense), net   (1,826)   (3,293)
Income before provision for income taxes   36,153   50,268 
Provision for income taxes   8,721   11,057 
Net income  $ 27,432  $ 39,211 
Other comprehensive loss:         

Foreign currency translation adjustment   —   (28)
Comprehensive income  $ 27,432  $ 39,183 
Net income attributable to Class A common stockholders   49,337   39,211 
Earnings per share attributable to Class A common stockholders,
   basic and diluted  $ 15.23  $ 12.11 
Weighted-average Class A common shares outstanding used to
   compute earnings per share attributable to common stockholders,
   basic and diluted   3,238,427   3,238,427

 

 
See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Cricut, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity
(in thousands, except share amounts)

 
  Common Stock   Additional       

Accumulated
Other   Total  

  Class A   Class L   Paid-In   Accumulated  Comprehensive  Stockholders’ 
  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount   Capital   Deficit   Loss   Equity  
Balance as of January 1,
2018   3,238,427  $ 32   333,639  $ 3  $ 444,409  $ (405,254)  $ —  $ 39,190 
Net income   —   —   —   —   —   27,432   —   27,432 
Capital contributions   —   —   —   —   2,675   —   —   2,675 
Stock-based
compensation   —   —   —   —   10,766   —   —   10,766 
Compensatory units
   repurchased   —   —   —   —   (297)   —   —   (297)
Cancellation of Class L
   Common Stock   —   —   (333,639)   (3)   3   —   —   — 
Balance as of December
31,
   2018   3,238,427  $ 32   —  $ —  $ 457,556  $ (377,822)  $ —  $ 79,766 
Net income   —   —   —   —   —   39,211   —   39,211 
Capital contributions   —   —   —   —   1,296   —   —   1,296 
Stock-based
compensation   —   —   —   —   1,625   —   —   1,625 
Compensatory units
   repurchased   —   —   —   —   (728)   —   —   (728)
Other comprehensive loss   —   —   —   —   —   —   (28)   (28)
Balance as of December
31,
   2019   3,238,427  $ 32   —  $ —  $ 459,749  $ (338,611)  $ (28)  $ 121,142

 

 
See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Cricut, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(in thousands)

 

  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

Cash flows from operating activities:         
Net income  $ 27,432  $ 39,211 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and cash equivalents
   provided by (used in) operating activities:         

Depreciation and amortization (including amortization of debt
   issuance costs)   8,055   9,178 
Impairment of trade name   1,453   747 
Stock-based compensation   10,378   1,845 
Deferred income tax   2,708   (1,257)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment   5   16 
Provision for inventory obsolescence   1,405   5,193 
Provision for doubtful accounts   6   699 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:         
Accounts receivable   (15,023)   (4,876)
Inventories   (85,148)   (73,233)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets   (3,484)   4,550 
Other assets   185   (79)
Accounts payable   30,059   10,340 
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities   13,665   11,527 

Net cash and cash equivalents (used in) provided by operating
   activities   (8,304)   3,861 

Cash flows from investing activities:         
Acquisitions of property and equipment, including costs capitalized
   for development of internal use software   (8,114)   (14,095)

Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities   (8,114)   (14,095)
Cash flows from financing activities:         

Proceeds from capital contributions   2,675   1,296 
Repurchase of compensatory units   (297)   (728)
Payments on term loan   (4,000)   (4,417)
Drawdowns on revolving loan   356,826   502,730 
Payments on revolving loan   (337,582)   (487,755)
Payments on capital leases   (180)   (127)
Payments for debt issuance costs   —   (103)

Net cash provided by financing activities   17,442   10,896 
Effect of exchange rate on changes on cash and cash equivalents   —   (25)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents   1,024   637 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   4,992   6,016 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 6,016  $ 6,653 
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:         
Cash paid during the year for interest  $ 1,945  $ 3,301 
Cash paid during the year for taxes  $ 5,800  $ 6,652 
Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investing and financing
   activities:         
Property and equipment included in accounts payable  $ 776  $ 4,245 
Refinance of credit facility  $ —  $ 11,667 
Stock-based compensation capitalized for software development costs  $ 413  $ 85

 

 

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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Cricut, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Description of Business and Basis of Presentation
Nature of Business

Cricut, Inc. (“Cricut” or the “Company”) is a designer and marketer of a creativity platform that enables users to turn ideas into
professional-looking handmade goods. Using the Company’s versatile connected machines, design apps and accessories and materials,
users create everything from personalized birthday cards, mugs and t-shirts to large-scale interior decorations. The Company’s connected
machines and related accessories and materials and subscription services are primarily marketed under the Cricut brand in the United
States, as well as Europe and other countries of the world. Headquartered in South Jordan, Utah, the Company is an innovator in its industry,
focused on bringing innovative technology (automation and consumerization of industrial tools) to the craft, DIY and home décor categories.
The Company’s consolidated financial statements include the operations of its wholly owned subsidiaries, Cricut, UK Limited and Cricut ANZ
Pty Ltd, both formed during the year ended December 31, 2019.

The Company designs, markets and distributes the Cricut family of products, including connected machines, design apps and
accessories and materials. In addition, Cricut sells a broad line of images, fonts and projects for purchase à la carte.

Cricut is wholly owned by Cricut Holdings, LLC (“Cricut Holdings”).

The Company organizes its business into the following three reportable segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and
Accessories and Materials. See Note 16, Segment Information, for further discussion of the Company’s segment reporting structure.

Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States (“GAAP”).

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Cricut, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany

accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.
 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. For revenue recognition,
examples of estimates and judgments include: determining the nature and timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, determining the
standalone selling price (“SSP”) of performance obligations, estimating variable consideration such as sales incentives and product returns.
Other estimates include the warranty reserve, allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory reserve, intangible assets and other long-lived
assets valuation, legal contingencies, stock-based compensation, income taxes, deferred tax assets valuation and internally developed
software, among others. These estimates and assumptions are based on the Company’s best estimates and judgment. Management
evaluates its estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other factors, including the economic
environment, which management believes to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management adjusts such estimates and assumptions
when facts and circumstances dictate. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

F-7



Cricut, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 

Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income consists of two components: net income and other comprehensive loss. Other comprehensive loss refers to

net gains and losses that are recorded as an element of stockholders’ equity but are excluded from net income. The Company’s other
comprehensive loss consists of foreign currency translation adjustments from those subsidiaries not using the U.S. dollar as their functional
currency.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash

equivalents.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are recorded at original invoice amounts less estimates for doubtful accounts. Management determines the

allowance for doubtful accounts by specifically identifying troubled accounts and by using historical write off experience applied to an aging of
all other accounts. Accounts receivable are written off when deemed uncollectible. Provisions for uncollectable accounts are recorded based
upon historical data and estimates. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off are recorded when received. Accounts
receivable consist of the following:
 
  December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Trade accounts receivable  $ 60,849  $ 65,197 
Other receivables   431   490 
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts   (25)   (252)

Total accounts receivable, net  $ 61,255  $ 65,435
 

 
The movements in the allowance for doubtful accounts were not material for any of the periods presented.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents in deposit accounts at financial institutions that, at times, may significantly exceed

federally insured limits. Historically, the Company has not experienced any losses related to such accounts. The Company’s non-interest
bearing cash balances at December 31, 2018 and 2019 were fully insured up to $250,000 per depositor at each financial institution, and the
Company’s non-interest bearing cash balances may significantly exceed federally insured limits.
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Cricut, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of trade receivables. In
the normal course of business, the Company provides credit terms to its customers. Accordingly, the Company performs ongoing credit
evaluations of its customers, generally does not require collateral and considers the credit risk profile of the customer from which the
receivable is due in further evaluating collection risk. The Company maintains allowances for possible losses which, when realized, have
been within the range of management’s expectations. If one or more of the Company’s significant customers were to become insolvent or
were otherwise unable to pay for product purchased, it would have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition and results
of consolidated operations. Customers that accounted for 10% or greater of accounts receivable, net at December 31, 2018 and 2019 were
as follows:
 
  December 31,  

  2018   2019  
Customer A   24%  27%
Customer B   20%  19%
Customer C   17%  17%
Customer D   26%  14%
 

Customers with revenue equal to or greater than 10% of total revenue were as follows:
 
  Year Ended December 31,  

  2018   2019  
Customer A   15%  17%
Customer B   14%  11%
Customer D   22%  21%
 

The revenue from these customers is associated with the Connected Machines and Accessories and Materials segments.

Supplier Concentration
The Company relies on third parties for the supply and manufacture of its products, as well as third-party logistics providers. In

instances where these parties fail to perform their obligations, the Company may be unable to find alternative suppliers or satisfactorily
deliver its products to its customers on time, if at all.

We rely on single source, or a small number of suppliers. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the Company’s top three
vendors accounted for approximately 82% of total finished goods purchases. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, the Company’s
top two vendors accounted for approximately 84% of total finished goods purchases.

Inventories
Inventories, which primarily consist of finished goods, are valued at the lower of average cost or net realizable value. Net realizable

value is defined as estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal and
transportation. Assessments to value the inventory at the lower of the average cost to purchase the inventory, or the net realizable value of
the inventory, are based upon assumptions about future demand, physical deterioration, changes in price levels and market conditions. As a
result of the Company’s assessments, when the net realizable value of inventory is less than the carrying value, the inventory cost is written
down to the net realizable value and the write down is recorded as a charge to cost of revenue. Inventories include indirect acquisition and
production costs that are incurred to bring the inventories to their present condition and location. Inventories are recorded net of reserves for
obsolescence. Once established, the original cost of the inventory less the related inventory reserve represents the new cost basis of such
products. 
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Cricut, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Major additions and improvements are

capitalized, while minor repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. Manufacturing tools include tools and molds used in the
production process. Expenditures for tools and molds are capitalized and depreciated over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
Company capitalizes eligible costs to develop or acquire internal-use software and those capitalized costs are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations.
Depreciation and amortization are calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets.

The Company uses the following estimated useful lives:
 
Computer software, internal-use software and equipment  3-5 years 
Furniture and fixtures  5-7 years 
Manufacturing tools and equipment  3-5 years 
Vehicles  5 years 
Leasehold improvements  Shorter of lease term or remaining life of the asset 
 

Legal Contingencies
Liabilities for legal contingencies arising from claims, assessments, litigation, fines and penalties and other sources are recorded

when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the assessment can be reasonably estimated. If a loss is reasonably
possible and the loss or range of loss can be reasonably estimated, the Company discloses the possible loss or states that such an estimate
cannot be made. See Note 12.

Debt Issuance Costs
Third-party costs incurred to obtain debt financing have been capitalized and are being amortized using the effective interest method

over the life of the debt instruments.

Costs incurred by the lender and paid by the Company for term debt are recorded as a reduction of the debt proceeds (debt discount)
and are amortized to interest expense (see Note 8). Costs incurred by the lender and paid by the Company for the revolver debt are recorded
as other assets and amortized over the term of the revolver.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets
The Company assesses potential impairments to its long-lived assets, including intangible assets subject to amortization, on an

annual basis or when there is evidence that events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recovered. The Company regularly evaluates whether events or circumstances have occurred that indicate possible impairment and relies on
a number of factors, including results of operations, business plans, economic projections and anticipated future cash flows. An impairment
loss is recognized when the carrying amount of the long-lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of a
long-lived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. Any required impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount of a long-lived asset
exceeds its fair value and is recorded as a reduction in the carrying value of the related asset and a charge to the statement of operations.
During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, the Company recorded $1.5 million and $0.7 million in impairment relating to its
amortized intangible assets, respectively (see Note 6). During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, the Company recorded no
impairments for certain long-lived property and equipment (see Note 5).
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Cricut, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company’s financial instruments include cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and notes payable. At December 31, 2018

and 2019, the carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and term and revolving loan approximate fair values
because of the short-term nature of these instruments or based on the contractual terms of the long-term debt instruments and market-based
expectations.

Fair Value Measurement
The Company measures at fair value certain of its financial and non-financial assets and liabilities by using a fair value hierarchy that

prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, essentially an exit price, based on the
highest and best use of the asset or liability. Fair value is affected by a number of factors, including the type of asset or liability, the
characteristics specific to the asset or liability and the state of the marketplace including the existence and transparency of transactions
between market participants. The Company estimates fair value for the assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value on a
recurring or non-recurring basis by applying the following hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs used to measure fair value into three levels
and bases the categorization within the hierarchy upon the lowest level of input that is available and significant to the fair value
measurement.

 • Level I – Quoted prices are available in active markets for identical assets and liabilities as of the reporting date.

 • Level II – Significant other observable inputs (e.g. quoted prices for similar items in active markets, quoted prices for identical
or similar items in markets that are not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable, such as interest rate and
yield curves and market-corroborated inputs). Pricing inputs are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date,
and fair value is determined through the use of models or other valuation methodologies.

 • Level III – Pricing inputs are unobservable for the assets and liabilities and includes situations where there is little, if any,
market activity for the assets and liabilities. The inputs into the determination of fair value require significant management
judgment or estimation.

The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment
and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

The Company’s non-financial assets and liabilities, which include intangible assets and property and equipment, are not required to
be carried at fair value on a recurring basis. However, if certain triggering events occur such that a non-financial instrument is required to be
evaluated for impairment, based upon a comparison of the non-financial instrument’s fair value to its carrying value, an impairment is
recorded to reduce the carrying value to the fair value, if the carrying value exceeds the fair value. The inputs for fair value calculations of
intangible assets and property and equipment, would be based on Level 3 inputs as data used for such fair value calculations would be
based on discounted cash flows that are not observable from the market, directly or indirectly. The key variables that drive the discounted
cash flow analysis are estimated revenue growth rates, levels of profitability, the terminal value growth rate assumptions and the weighted
average cost of capital rate applied, among others.

No long-lived assets were measured at fair value on a recurring basis, and financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring
basis were not material at each of December 31, 2018 and 2019.

Earnings Per Share
For 2018, the Company computed net income per share using the two-class method required for participating securities as its

outstanding stock was comprised of both Class A common stock and Class L common stock prior to the cancellation of Class L common
stock during the year ended December 31,
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2018. The two-class method requires income available to common stockholders for the period to be allocated between common stock and
participating securities based upon their respective rights to receive dividends as if all income for the period had been distributed. In
calculating earnings per share, the Company’s Class L common stock was considered preferred stock due to its cumulative dividend,
liquidation preference and no voting rights. Shares of Class L common stock were participating securities as Class L common stockholders
would have participated ratably in dividends paid to Class A common stockholders.

Basic earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of outstanding shares of common stock during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed using the weighted-average number of outstanding shares of common stock and, when dilutive,
potential shares of common stock outstanding during the period. Undistributed earnings allocated to participating securities, including
undeclared current period cumulative dividends are subtracted from net income in determining net income attributable to common
stockholders. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018, the Class L common stock was extinguished and the difference between the
carrying value of Class L common stock at the time of cancellation and the consideration received by Class L common stockholders was
treated as a deemed contribution and has been added to net income to arrive at net income attributable to Class A common stockholders.

Revenue Recognition
The Company derives the majority of its revenue from the sale of connected machines, digital content subscriptions and accessories

and materials. The Company markets and sells its products to customers, which include brick-and-mortar and online retail partners as well as
users that purchase from the Company’s website at cricut.com.

The Company determines revenue recognition through the following steps:

 • Identification of the contract, or contracts, with a customer;

 • Identification of the performance obligations in the contract;

 • Determination of the transaction price;

 • Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

 • Recognition of revenue when, or as, the Company satisfies a performance obligation.

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to the Company’s customers, in an amount that
reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recorded at the net
sales price, which includes estimates of variable consideration such as product returns, volume rebates and other incentive adjustments or
discounts. The estimates of variable consideration are based on historical return experience, historical and projected sales data and current
contract terms.

Taxes collected from customers relating to product sales and remitted to governmental authorities are excluded from revenue. The
Company accounts for shipping and handling activities performed after a customer obtains control of the goods as activities to fulfill the
promise to transfer the good. The Company does not incur significant costs to obtain contracts with customers.

The following describes the nature of the Company’s primary types of revenue and the revenue recognition policies and significant
payment terms as they pertain to the types of transactions with its customers.
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Connected Machines

Connected machines include Cricut Joy, Cricut Explore and Cricut Maker. Payment for sale of products online through the online
channel at cricut.com is collected at point of sale in advance of shipping the products. Payment by traditional brick-and-mortar retail partners,
including their online channels, is due under customary fixed payment terms. The Company’s contracts with customers for a connected
machine contain multiple promises that include hardware, software, unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the software
and access to the Company’s cloud-based services. Determining whether products and services are considered distinct performance
obligations that should be accounted for separately requires significant judgment. The software that enables users to design, cut and
complete projects can be accessed offline or with the cloud-based services at no charge. When accessed with the cloud-based services,
users are also able to sync projects across various devices. The connected machines are not able to function without the software, inclusive
of firmware and the downloadable software. Together the hardware and software are inputs into providing the essential functionality of the
connected machines and are accounted for as a single performance obligation. Revenue is recognized for the single performance obligation
of hardware with essential software at a point-in-time when control is transferred, which is either upon shipment or delivery of goods, in
accordance with the terms of each contract with the customer.

The promise to provide the customer with unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and the
promise to provide access to the Company’s cloud-based services are both distinct performance obligations that provide incremental benefits
to the connected machines and are recognized using a time-based output measure over the service period as the customer consumes the
benefit of the service each day. As the service period is not contractually stated, the Company considers past history, plans to continue to
provide services, expected technological developments, obsolescence, competition and other factors in developing the estimated period of
providing future services. The estimated service period may change in the future in response to competition, technology developments and
the Company’s business strategy.

Judgment is required to determine the SSP for each distinct performance obligation. The Company allocates revenue to each
performance obligation based on their relative SSP. The Company estimates SSP for items that are not sold separately, which include the
connected machines and related software, unspecified software upgrades and cloud-based services using information that may include the
range of prices for the bundle of products and services and the cost of providing the products or services plus a reasonable margin. In
developing SSP estimates, the Company also considers the nature of the products and services and the expected level of future services.
SSP of the hardware and essential software reflects the Company’s best estimate of the selling price if it was sold regularly on a standalone
basis and comprises the majority of the contract value.

Subscriptions

The Company’s paid subscription services relate to Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium which provide users access to images,
fonts and projects, which is in addition to the free service of unspecified future upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software
and access to the Company’s cloud-based services noted above. The paid subscription services are offered on a month-to-month or annual
basis. Payments for subscription services are due month-to-month or annually in advance. Cricut Access and Cricut Access Premium are
generally sold in standalone contracts and reallocations are not required. Revenue related to subscriptions is recognized ratably over the
length of the subscription using a time-based output measure as the customer consumes the benefit of the service each day.

Accessories and Materials

The Company also sells accessories and materials (both physical and digital) which generally consist of a single performance
obligation and reallocations are not required. Revenue from accessories and materials is recognized at a point-in-time when control is
transferred, either upon shipment or delivery of goods, in accordance with the terms of each contract with the customer, or in the case of
digital goods, at a point-in-time when the goods are made available to the customer. Payment for sale of accessories and

F-13



Cricut, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
materials through the online channel at cricut.com is collected at point of sale in advance of shipping the products. Payment by traditional
brick-and-mortar retail partners, including their online channels, is due under customary fixed payment terms.

Cost of Revenue
Connected Machines

Cost of revenue related to Connected Machines consists of product costs, including costs of contract manufacturers for production,
inspecting and packaging, shipping, receiving, handling, warehousing and fulfillment, duties and other applicable importing costs, warranty
replacement, excess and obsolete inventory write-downs, tooling and equipment depreciation and royalties.

Subscriptions

Cost of revenue related to Subscriptions consists primarily of hosting fees, digital content costs, amortization of capitalized software
development costs and software maintenance costs.

Accessories and Materials

Costs of revenue related to Accessories and Materials consists of product costs, including costs of components, costs of contract
manufacturers for production, inspecting and packaging, shipping, receiving, handling, warehousing and fulfillment, duties and other
applicable importing costs, warranty replacement, excess and obsolete inventory write-downs, tooling and equipment depreciation and
royalties.

Customer Rebates
The Company participates in promotional and rebate programs with our key brick-and-mortar and online retail partners to enhance the

sale of its products. These promotional programs consist of incentives to the Company’s customers, such as advertising allowances, volume
and growth incentives, business development, product damage allowances and point-of-sale support. Sales incentives are considered to be
variable consideration, which the Company estimates using the expected value method or most likely amount, based upon the nature of the
incentive. Sales are reduced by the cost of these promotional and rebate programs and the Company records a related customer rebate
liability in its consolidated balance sheets at the date of the transaction.

In limited cases where the customer rebate is specifically for co-operative marketing or advertising campaigns, the Company
classifies these expenditures as selling and marketing expenses only if they meet the criteria of being a distinct good or service, are distinct
within the context of the contract and the fair value is readily estimable.

Sales Refund Liability
The Company provides its customers a limited right of return with the sale of its products. The Company estimates sales returns and

records reserves at the time the related sales are recorded based on historical data and current economic trends. Actual sales returns could
differ from these estimates. The Company regularly assesses and adjusts the estimate of accrued sales returns by updating the return rates
for actual trends and projected costs. The Company classifies the estimated sales returns as a current liability as they are expected to be
paid out in less than one year using the expected-value method. The estimated sales returns are recorded as a reduction of revenue at the
time of sale and recorded as a liability on the consolidated balance sheets. At the same time this is recorded, a right of recovery asset is also
recorded within inventory. The movements in the sales refund liability were not material for any of the periods presented.
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Warranty Reserves
The Company provides an assurance-type limited warranty on most of the products sold. The estimated warranty costs, which are

expensed at the time of sale and included in cost of revenue, are based on the results of product testing, industry and historical trends and
warranty claim rates incurred and are adjusted for any current or expected trends as appropriate. Actual warranty claim costs could differ
from these estimates. The Company regularly assesses and adjusts the estimate of accrued warranty claims by updating claims rates for
actual trends and projected claim costs. 

Changes in the reserve for product warranties were as follows:
 
  December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Warranty reserve, beginning of period  $ 399  $ 510 
Additions charged to cost of revenue   827   1,014 
Repairs and replacements   (716)   (891)
Warranty reserve, end of period  $ 510  $ 633

 

 

Income Taxes
The Company uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. The Company recognizes deferred tax liabilities

and assets for the expected future income tax consequences of events that have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements. As such, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on temporary differences between the financial carrying
amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect in the years in which the temporary differences are
expected to reverse. On a periodic basis, the Company assesses the probability that its deferred tax assets, if any, will be recovered. If after
evaluating all of the positive and negative evidence, a conclusion is made that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be recovered, a valuation allowance is provided by a charge to tax expense to reserve the portion of the deferred tax
assets which are not expected to be realized.

Under literature related to uncertain tax provisions, the Company reviews its filing positions for all open tax years in all U.S. federal
and state jurisdictions where the Company is required to file. The Company recognizes a liability for each uncertain tax position at the
amount estimated to be required to settle the issues.

The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. For the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, interest or penalties related to income tax matters included in the provision for income taxes have not
been material.

Sales Taxes
South Dakota v. Wayfair is a U.S. Supreme Court case that was decided on June 21, 2018 that nullified the physical presence

precedent established by Quill Corp. v North Dakota in 1992. The overarching effect of the Wayfair case was that state governments were
given the power to impose sales tax on the shipment of goods to customers located within their state boundary even if the seller did not have
a physical presence within the state. As such, the Company is required by certain governmental authorities to collect sales taxes on certain
transactions. The Company currently collects and reports on sales tax in all states in which it does business. However, the application of
existing, new or revised taxes on our business, in particular, sales taxes, VAT and similar taxes would likely increase the cost of doing
business online and decrease the attractiveness of selling products over the Internet. The application of these taxes on our business could
also create significant increases in internal costs necessary to capture data and collect and remit taxes. There have been, and will continue
to be, substantial ongoing costs associated with complying with the various indirect tax requirements in the numerous markets in which we
conduct or will
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conduct business. The Company conducts ongoing analysis on state sales tax nexus regulations to determine where collection is necessary.
The Company accounts for sales taxes as part of accrued expenses and excludes them from revenue.

Stock-Based and Stock-Equivalent Compensation
Cricut Holdings has granted to certain of the Company’s employees common incentive units, which include incentive units with a

participation threshold and zero strike price incentive units (“CIUs”). CIUs entitle recipients certain interests in Cricut Holdings upon
satisfaction of service, performance or market conditions. The awards are equity classified awards. As of December 31, 2019, all outstanding
equity-based awards are in the parent company, Cricut Holdings. As the awards are issued by Cricut Holdings, the Company records a
capital contribution from Cricut Holdings commensurate with the amount of compensation expense recorded by the Company. The Company
records compensation expense for all stock-based awards granted based on the fair value of the award at the time of the grant. Stock-based
compensation costs are recognized as expense over the requisite service period, which is generally the vesting period, on a straight-line
basis for awards with only a service condition. The graded vesting method is used for awards that have service and other conditions.
Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur.

Cricut Holdings has granted to certain of the Company’s employees incentive unit equivalents (phantom units) which entitle the
recipient to receive future compensation based upon satisfaction of service conditions. The amount of compensation is determined by the
change in the underlying value of Cricut Holdings common units. The awards are liability classified awards. Since the awards also have a
market condition, the Company records stock-based compensation expense over the requisite service period using the graded vesting
method. The stock-based equivalent awards are recorded at fair value and are required to be re-measured at fair value at each reporting
period during the period from the date of grant through the settlement date. Fair value re-measurement increases and decreases will be
recognized as compensation cost over the requisite service period.

The Company estimates the fair value of awards with time-based or performance-based vesting provisions using the Black-Scholes
method. The fair value of awards subject to market conditions is estimated using a Geometric Brownian Motion Stock Path Monte Carlo
Simulation (“Monte Carlo Simulation”). The determination of the grant date fair value of the awards issued is affected by a number of
variables, including the fair value of Cricut Holding’s units, the expected unit price volatility over the expected life of the awards, the expected
term of the award, risk-free interest rates, the expected dividend yield of Cricut Holding’s units and the likelihood of termination. The
Company derives its volatility from the average historical stock volatilities of peer public companies over a period equivalent to the expected
term of the awards. The Company estimates the expected term based on the expected time to a liquidation event or other transaction that
would result in settlement of the award. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant.
Expected dividend yield is 0.0% as Cricut Holdings has not paid and does not anticipate paying dividends on its common units other than a
one-time dividend paid in 2020. Likelihood of termination for the Monte Carlo Simulation is estimated based upon both historical turnover and
anticipated turnover based upon Company or market pressures.

Common Unit Valuations
Fair value of the underlying common units of Cricut Holdings’ has historically been determined by Cricut Holdings’ Board of Managers

(“Board of Managers”) on the date of grant for all awards granted. In the absence of a public trading market, the Board of Managers, with
input from management, exercises significant judgment and consider numerous objective and subjective factors to determine the fair value of
Cricut Holdings’ common units as of the date of each award grant, including:

 • relevant precedent transactions involving Cricut Holdings’ capital units;

 • Cricut Holdings’ actual consolidated operating and financial performance;

 • current business conditions and projections;
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 • Cricut Holdings’ stage of development;

 • the likelihood and timing of achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial public offering, given prevailing market conditions;

 • any adjustment necessary to recognize a lack of marketability of the common units;

 • the market performance of comparable publicly traded companies; and

 • U.S. and global capital market conditions.

In addition, Cricut Holdings’ Board of Managers considers the independent valuations completed by a third-party valuation consultant.
The valuations of Cricut Holdings’ common units are determined in accordance with the guidelines outlined in the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Practice Aid, Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation.

Shipping and Handling Revenue and Expenses
Shipping and handling revenue for orders placed by customers is recognized at the time of the sale. Shipping and handling expenses

incurred by the Company related to these sales are considered fulfilment costs and reported as costs of revenue at the time of the sale.

Advertising Costs
The Company incurs advertising costs associated with print, digital and other related broadcast advertisements. Advertising costs are

expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019 was $2.7 million and $4.2 million, respectively.
Advertising costs include expenditures for shared advertising costs that the Company incurs under its co-operative advertising programs to
the extent the fair value of the distinct good or service can reasonably be estimated.

Research and Development (“R&D”)
R&D expense consists of costs associated primarily with engineering, product development, quality assurance, service fees incurred

by contracting with vendors and allocated overhead costs. R&D costs are expensed as incurred.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards
Recent accounting standards not yet adopted

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2016-02,
“Leases” (Topic 842). The core principle of Topic 842 is that a lessee should recognize the assets and liabilities that arise from leases,
including operating leases. Under the new requirements, a lessee will recognize in the statement of financial position a liability to make lease
payments (the lease liability) and the right-of-use asset representing the right to the underlying asset for the lease term. For leases with a
term of 12 months or less, the lessee is permitted to make an accounting policy election by class of underlying asset not to recognize lease
assets and lease liabilities. The recognition, measurement and presentation of expenses and cash flows arising from a lease by a lessee
have not significantly changed from previous GAAP. The standard is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2021, and to
interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. The Company is currently evaluating the standard and the impact on
its consolidated financial statements and footnote disclosures.
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In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, “Financial Instruments – Credit Losses” (Topic 326). ASU 2016-13 modifies the
measurement of expected credit losses of certain financial instruments, requiring entities to estimate an expected lifetime credit loss on
financial assets. This update is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those years beginning after December 15, 2022, with early
adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this update will have on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements and footnote disclosures.    

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU No. 2019-12, “Income Taxes” (Topic 740). ASU 2019-12 removes certain exceptions for
investments, intraperiod allocations and interim calculations and adds guidance to reduce complexity in accounting for income taxes. ASU
2019-12 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2021, with early adoption is
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact this update will have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and
footnote disclosures.

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU No. 2020-04, “Reference Rate Reform” (Topic 848). This guidance provides temporary optional
expedients and exceptions to accounting guidance on contract modifications and hedge accounting to ease entities’ financial reporting
burdens as the market transitions from the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) and other interbank offered rates to alternative
reference rates. The guidance was effective upon issuance and generally can be applied through December 31, 2022. The Company is
currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this new accounting guidance but does not expect the adoption of the standard to have a
material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Recent accounting standards which have been adopted

In May 2014, in addition to several amendments issued during 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts
with Customers (Topic 606). Topic 606 outlines a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance, including industry-specific guidance. The Company
adopted this ASU effective January 1, 2018 on a full retrospective basis. Adoption of this standard did not result in significant changes to the
Company’s accounting policies, business processes, systems or controls, or have a material impact on the Company’s financial position,
results of operations or cash flows. Additional disclosures have been included in accordance with the requirement of Topic 606.

3. Revenue and Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue relates to performance obligations for which payments have been received by the customer prior to revenue

recognition. Deferred revenue primarily consists of deferred subscription-based services. Deferred revenue also includes amounts allocated
to the unspecified upgrades and enhancements and the Company’s cloud-based services. The Company had no material contract assets.

The following table summarizes the changes in the deferred revenue balance (in thousands):
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Deferred revenue, beginning of period  $ 6,068  $ 10,494 
Recognition of revenue included in beginning of period
   deferred revenue   (5,408)   (9,424)
Revenue deferred, net of revenue recognized on contracts in the
   respective period   9,834   13,496 
Deferred revenue, end of period  $ 10,494  $ 14,566
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As of December 31, 2019, the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to remaining performance obligations was equal to

the deferred revenue balance. The Company expected the following recognition of deferred revenue as of December 31, 2019:
 
  Year Ending December 31,  

  2020   2021   2022   Total  
  (in thousands)  

Revenue expected to be recognized  $ 13,114  $ 1,057  $ 395  $ 14,566
 

 
The Company’s revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated by major product lines, excluding sales-based taxes, are

included in Note 16 under the heading “Segment Information.”

The following table presents the total revenue by geography based on the ship-to address for the periods indicated:
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
North America*  $ 330,050  $ 469,110 
International   9,738   17,444 

Total revenue  $ 339,788  $ 486,554 
*Consists of United States and Canada        

 

 

4. Inventories
Inventories of finished goods are comprised of the following:

 
  December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Inventories held by the Company  $ 143,835  $ 212,911 
Inventories on consignment held at third party locations   1,314   279 

Total inventories   145,149   213,190
 

 

5. Property and Equipment
The composition of property and equipment is as follows:

 
  December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Computer software, internal-use software and equipment  $ 29,712  $ 39,436 
Furniture and fixtures   4,170   4,825 
Leasehold improvements   1,046   1,932 
Manufacturing tools and equipment   6,564   11,486 
Vehicles   22   22 
Assets under construction   1,922   3,366 

Total cost of property and equipment   43,436   61,067 
Less: accumulated depreciation   (27,410)   (35,756)

Property and equipment, net  $ 16,026  $ 25,311
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Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019 was $5.0 million and $8.3 million, respectively. The cost of

assets held under capital leases was $1.8 million at each of December 31, 2018 and 2019 and the related accumulated depreciation for
capital lease assets at December 31, 2018 and 2019 was $1.5 million and $1.6 million, respectively. Property and equipment, along with all
other Company assets, including inventory, are pledged as collateral on the term and revolving loan (see Note 8).
 

6. Intangible Assets

The following is a summary of the Company’s intangible assets:
 
  December 31, 2018  

  
Gross

Carrying
Amount   

Accumulated
Amortization

and Impairment   Net  
  (in thousands)  
Trade names and trademarks  $ 43,768  $ (39,221)  $ 4,547 

Total intangible assets  $ 43,768  $ (39,221)  $ 4,547
 

 
  December 31, 2019  

  
Gross

Carrying
Amount   

Accumulated
Amortization

and Impairment   Net  
  (in thousands)  
Trade names and trademarks  $ 42,301  $ (39,261)  $ 3,040 

Total intangible assets  $ 42,301  $ (39,261)  $ 3,040
 

 
The Company’s trade names and trademarks have useful lives ranging from 11 to 15 years. Amortization is expensed on a straight-

line basis for all intangible assets, as this is the Company’s best estimate of the period of economic benefit to be received.

The Company performed an evaluation of its intangible assets and determined there was an impairment of $1.5 million and $0.7
million during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively, associated with the Company’s former trade name and a product
trade name which are no longer in use. These impairment charges were recognized within sales and marketing expense on the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations. Amortization expense of intangible assets totaled $3.0 million and $0.8 million for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively.

Estimated future amortization of intangible assets is as follows:
 
Year Ending December 31,  Amount  
  (in thousands)  
2020  $ 760 
2021   760 
2022   760 
2023   760 

Total  $ 3,040
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7. Accrued Expenses
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

 
  December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Customer rebates  $ 16,562  $ 16,512 
Corporate income taxes   284   4,524 
Sales taxes   776   4,176 
Deferred revenue, current   9,425   13,114 
Other accrued liabilities   3,382   3,726 

Total accrued expenses  $ 30,429  $ 42,052
 

 

8. Term and Revolving Loan
During October 2017, the Company entered into a syndicated Credit Agreement with Origin Bank to provide a Revolving Credit Loan

and Term Loan. The amount that could be borrowed under the Revolving Credit Loan was $30.0 million and the amount that could be
borrowed under the Term Loan was $20.0 million for a total credit facility of $50.0 million. The Company borrowed $20.0 million under the
Term Loan in order to repay and cancel loans to a related party, as well as to its previous lender, Sterling National Bank.

The Term Loan with Origin Bank bore interest at an annual rate equal to the lesser of LIBOR plus 3.0%, or the maximum rate of
interest permitted from day-to-day by any applicable state or federal law, with required monthly principal amortization payments of $0.3
million, commencing on December 1, 2017, maturing on October 26, 2022.

On September 7, 2018, the Company amended the Revolving Credit Loan and Term Loan with Origin Bank to increase the amount
that could be borrowed under the Revolving Credit Loan from $30.0 million to $50.0 million.

On April 17, 2019, the Company further amended the Credit Agreement with Origin Bank to remove the seasonality restriction on the
amount that could be borrowed under the Revolving Credit Loan.

On July 12, 2019, the Company further amended the Credit Agreement with Origin Bank (the “Third Amendment”) to increase the
amount that could be borrowed under the Revolving Credit Loan to $80.0 million and the Term Loan commitment to $25.0 million and to
amend the interest rates on the Revolving Credit Loan and Term Loan to be LIBOR plus 2.0% to 2.4% and LIBOR plus 2.25%, respectively.
The Term Loan has required monthly principal amortization payments of $0.4 million and matures on July 12, 2024. During the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2019, the effective interest rate approximated the stated interest rate. The stated interest rate as of December 31,
2019 on the Term Loan was 4.28%.

Additionally, as part of the Third Amendment, the Company wrote off to interest expense $32,000 in debt issuance costs related to a
single lender no longer part of the syndicated loan and third-party fees paid to modify the Term Loan on July 12, 2019. On this date, $0.1
million in new debt issuance costs were also added to the balance. Following the Third Amendment, total debt issuance costs were $0.2
million, of which $0.1 million related to the term loan and $0.1 million related to the Revolving Credit Loan.

The Company’s borrowing capacity on the Revolving Credit Loan is limited to the sum of (a) 85% of eligible accounts receivable as
defined by the agreement, (b) 60% of eligible inventory as defined by the agreement and (c) a $7.5 million credit for property and equipment
which decreases by $1.0 million annually. The Revolving Credit Loan is subject to availability limitations based on outstanding accounts
receivable and inventory balances as reported to Origin Bank and is due on July 12, 2022. The Revolving Credit Loan bears interest at an
annual rate equal to the lesser of LIBOR plus a range of 2.0% to 2.4%, or

F-21



Cricut, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 

the maximum rate of interest permitted from day-to-day by any applicable state or federal law, and is subject to certain fees including an
unused commitment fee of 0.25% which is assessed quarterly. There is no minimum LIBOR rate that may be used for interest calculation
purposes. As of December 31, 2018 and 2019, the Company had drawn down $29.3 million and $32.6 million, respectively, on the Revolving
Credit Loan. As of December 31, 2019, the Company had $47.4 million available for borrowing under the Revolving Credit Loan.

The Credit Agreement includes several financial and non-financial debt covenants. Management has determined that the Company
was in compliance with all financial and non-financial debt covenants as of December 31, 2018 and 2019.

During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, $39,000 and $70,000 of debt issuance costs were amortized and included in
interest expense in the statement of operations. As of December 31, 2018 and 2019, unamortized debt issuance costs netted against the
Revolving Credit Loan were $0.1 million and $0.2 million, respectively.

The Term Loan balance consists of the following:
 
  December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Term loan  $ 15,667  $ 22,916 
Unamortized debt issuance costs   —   (94)

Total Term Loan  $ 15,667  $ 22,822
 

 
Future maturities of the Term Loan as of December 31, 2019 are as follows:

 
Year Ending December 31,  Amount  
  (in thousands)  
2020  $ 5,000 
2021   5,000 
2022   5,000 
2023   5,000 
2024   2,916 

Total future maturities  $ 22,916
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9. Income Taxes
Differences between the Company’s effective tax rate and the statutory tax rate relate primarily to state income taxes, non-deductible

expenses, tax credits, changes in unrecognized tax benefits and changes in tax estimates recorded during the period. A reconciliation from
the U.S. statutory federal income tax rate to the effective income tax rate is as follows for the periods indicated:
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018  2019  
  (in thousands)  
Income tax provision at statutory rate  21.0% 21.0%
State taxes, net  3.2 2.4 
Stock-based compensation  6.0 0.7 
Tax credits  (2.5) (2.8) 
Rate impact from tax reform  (2.2) - 
Return to provision adjustments  (2.4) 0.3 
Other  1.0 0.4 

Total provision for income taxes  24.1% 22.0%
 

Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of the temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting and the amount used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s net deferred tax assets are
comprised of the following:
 
  December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Noncurrent deferred tax assets:         

Inventories  $ 834  $ 2,903 
Deferred rent   179   207 
Accounts receivable   6   59 
Sales refund liability   135   219 
Net operating loss carryforwards   1,382   442 
Tax credits   759   1,162 
Other   359   433 

Gross noncurrent deferred tax assets   3,654   5,425 
Valuation allowance   —   — 
Total noncurrent deferred tax assets   3,654   5,425 
Noncurrent deferred tax liabilities:         

Depreciation and amortization   (4,255)   (4,769)
Total noncurrent deferred tax liabilities   (4,255)   (4,769)
Net noncurrent deferred tax assets (liabilities)  $ (601)  $ 656
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The provision for income tax consists of the following:

 
  December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Current:         

Federal  $ 5,282  $ 11,070 
State   730   1,244 

Total current   6,012   12,314 
Deferred:         

Federal   2,129   (1,535)
State   580   278 

Total deferred   2,709   (1,257)
Income tax provision  $ 8,721  $ 11,057

 

 
Federal and state net operating loss carryforwards of $0.3 million and $9.6 million expire through 2036. The Company reviews its

deferred tax assets for realization based upon historical taxable income, prudent and feasible tax planning strategies, the expected timing of
the reversals of existing temporary differences and expected future taxable income. The Company has concluded that it is more likely than
not that the net operating loss deferred tax asset and other net deferred tax assets will be realized. Accordingly, the Company has not
recorded a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019.

The total balance of unrecognized gross tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019 resulting primarily from fixed
asset and inventory basis differences were as follows (in thousands):
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Unrecognized tax benefits at beginning of year  $ 133  $ 881 
Additions based on prior year tax provisions   538   2,780 
Additions based on current year tax provisions   210   328 

Unrecognized tax benefits at end of year  $ 881  $ 3,989
 

 
As of December 31, 2018 and 2019, $0.9 million and $1.8 million, respectively, of unrecognized tax benefits would affect our effective

tax rate if recognized.

The Company’s practice is to recognize interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. For the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, interest or penalties related to income tax matters included in the provision for income taxes have not
been material.

The Company is currently under examination by the IRS for the 2017 tax year. The Company does not anticipate material
adjustments will result from this examination. The Company is subject to U.S. federal and state income tax examination for tax years 2016
and forward.

Impact of Federal Tax Changes
On December 22, 2017, the U.S. government enacted comprehensive tax legislation commonly referred to as the Tax Cuts and Jobs

Act (the “Tax Act”). The Tax Act, which is generally effective for tax years beginning on January 1, 2018, makes broad and complex changes
to the U.S. tax code, including, but not limited to, (i) reducing the U.S. federal corporate tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent, (ii) eliminating
the corporate alternative minimum tax (“AMT”), (iii) bonus depreciation that will allow for full expensing of qualified property, (iv) creating a
new limitation on deductible interest expense and (v)
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changing rules related to uses and limitation of net operating loss carryforwards created in tax years beginning after December 31, 2017,
including limiting utilization of net operating loss carryforwards to 80% of taxable income.

Pursuant to the relief provided by accounting standards, given the amount and complexity of the changes in the tax law resulting from
the Tax Act, the Company had not finalized the accounting for the income tax effects of the Tax Act as of December 31, 2017.

In 2018, the Company completed its accounting for the impacts of the Tax Act and as a result the Company recorded an additional
$0.7 million tax benefit to correct the provisional amounts recorded in 2017.
 

10. Capital Structure
As of each of December 31, 2018 and 2019, the Company had 4,000,000 shares of Class A common stock authorized and 3,238,427

shares of Class A common stock outstanding. The holders of shares of Class A common stock have one vote on all matters submitted to the
stockholders for each share held. Prior to its cancellation in 2018, the Company also had an additional class of common stock, Class L.
Class L common stock included cumulative dividends (if declared and authorized), and a return of invested capital prior to distributions to
Class A stockholders. Additionally, Class L stockholders participated equally with Class A stockholders in any remaining distributions and had
no voting rights. In 2018, the Company and the Class L stockholders reached an agreement in which the Class L stock was cancelled for no
consideration as Cricut Holdings was the sole holder of the Company’s Class A shares and Class L shares. At the time of cancelation, there
were no deemed or declared distributions authorized or announced.

11. Stock-Based Compensation
On February 2, 2016, the Company’s parent, Cricut Holdings, authorized an Incentive Unit Compensation Plan (the “IU Plan”) that

allows for issuances of CIUs. The IU Plan was authorized to award 84,734,482 and 104,003,706 of CIUs at December 31, 2018 and 2019,
respectively. The participation threshold of the awards granted under the IU Plan is typically equal to the fair market value of Cricut Holdings’
membership units at the date of the grant, except zero strike price incentive unit awards which have no participation threshold. Each grant
made prior to June 22, 2018 contained a performance condition for a portion of the award and a service condition for the remaining portion of
the award that impacted vesting.

On June 22, 2018, the Board of Managers approved an amendment to the IU Plan amending the vesting conditions for all awards
previously issued under the IU Plan. The amendment resulted in changing the performance condition to a service-based condition. The
change in vesting conditions under the June 22, 2018 amendment was accounted for as a Type III modification under ASC 718 wherein, for
accounting purposes, the portion of the award previously subject to the performance condition was effectively cancelled and a new award
was granted subject to service-based conditions. The fair value of the new awards issued as a result of the modification was determined on
the modification date. The stock-based compensation cost from these new awards was $10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2018.
All awards issued after the amendment to the IU Plan only have service-based conditions.
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Stock-based Compensation Cost
The following table shows the stock-based compensation cost related to the equity incentive plans by award type for the year ended

December 31, 2018 and 2019:
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Equity classified incentive units  $ 10,766  $ 1,625 
Liability classified incentive unit equivalents   25   305 

Total stock-based compensation  $ 10,791  $ 1,930
 

 
The following table sets forth the total stock-based compensation expense included in the Company’s consolidated statements of

operations and comprehensive income for the periods indicated:
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Cost of revenue         

Connected machines  $ 11  $ 2 
Subscriptions   51   11 
Accessories and materials   —   — 

Total cost of revenue   62   13 
Research and development   5,467   881 
Sales and marketing   2,843   623 
General and administrative   2,006   328 
Total stock-based compensation expense  $ 10,378  $ 1,845

 

 
As of December 31, 2019, there was $5.2 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to equity classified

incentive units which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.4 years.

As of December 31, 2019, there was $0.6 million of unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to liability classified
incentive unit equivalents which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.9 years.

Equity Classified Units
The Company’s parent, Cricut Holdings, has granted CIUs to employees of the Company. These awards generally vest 12.5%

annually for each of the first four years of service and 50% after the fifth year of service. The Company has also granted a performance-
based incentive unit, which is discussed later. These awards are collectively referred to as equity classified incentive units. All equity
classified incentive units have indefinite contract terms and, once vested, will remain outstanding until liquidation of Cricut Holdings or until
repurchased by Cricut Holdings.
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A summary of the equity classified incentive units activity for the year ended December 31, 2019 is as follows:
 

  Equity
Incentive

Units   

Weighted-
Average

Participation
Threshold   

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value  
          (in thousands)  
Outstanding at December 31, 2018   68,278,186  $ 0.52  $ 36,986 
Granted   11,475,000  $ 0.78     
Exercised   (412,500)  $ 0.19     
Forfeited / Cancelled   (2,194,375)  $ 0.36     
Outstanding at December 31, 2019   77,146,311  $ 0.57  $ 109,281 
Vested at December 31, 2019   42,779,991  $ 0.10  $ 74,724

 

 
The following table summarizes the unvested equity classified incentive units activity for the year ended December 31, 2019:

 

  Number of
Awards   

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date Fair
Value Per Unit  

Unvested at December 31, 2018   28,231,583  $ 0.17 
Granted   11,475,000  $ 0.28 
Vested   (3,145,888)  $ 0.22 
Forfeited   (2,194,375)  $ 0.26 
Unvested at December 31, 2019   34,366,320  $ 0.20

 

 
The weighted-average grant date fair value of equity classified incentive units granted during 2018 and 2019 was $0.13 and $0.28,

respectively. The total intrinsic value of equity classified incentive units exercised during 2018 and 2019 was $0.2 million and $0.3 million,
respectively. The total fair value of equity classified incentive units vested during 2018 and 2019 was $3.0 million and $0.4 million,
respectively.

The fair value of CIUs was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions
for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019:
 
  2018   2019  
Fair value of unit  $ 0.48  $ 0.80 
Expected life (in years)   3.7   3.5 
Expected volatility   38.1%  42.9%
Risk-free rate   2.5%  2.3%
Expected dividend yield   0.0%  0.0%
 

During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company issued performance-based incentive units to an employee under the Plan.
The recipient was awarded nine million incentive equity units comprised of three distinct tranches each containing three million units. The first
tranche is subject to service conditions wherein vesting for 50% of the award is ratable over years 1-4 with the remaining 50% vesting upon
the fifth anniversary of the award. The second and third tranches are subject to the same service vesting conditions as tranche one; however,
they are also subject to a market vesting condition wherein the fair value of the Cricut Holdings common units must exceed a determined
price threshold. In the absence of a public trading market, the fair value of a common unit is derived through a valuation technique allowed
under ASC 718. The fair value of the common unit must exceed the determined price threshold for two consecutive board meetings. If the
Company becomes publicly traded, the fair market value of the common unit (or stock equivalent) must exceed the fair value threshold for
100 out of 120 consecutive trading days. The determined price thresholds are $3.00 and $4.00 for the second and third tranches. In the
event of a
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change in control, all unvested units would immediately vest subject to the recipient being employed through the date of the event. In the
event the recipient was terminated for cause, all incentive units, whether unvested or vested are immediately forfeited.

The incentive units represent a net profits interest and only pay out upon the occurrence of a liquidation event such as a change in
control transaction. In addition, the units do not participate until the sum of distributions and capital appreciation of the common units from the
date of grant of the incentive units equals $2.00 per unit.

On the date of grant, the Company determined the fair value of this award to be $0.3 million based upon a Monte Carlo Simulation.
The significant assumptions used in the Monte Carlo Simulation were as follows:
 
Fair value of unit  $ 0.58 
Participation threshold  $ 2.00 
Risk-free rate   2.96%
Volatility   46.3%
Fair value thresholds  $ 3.00 - 4.00 
Timing of liquidity event  3-5 years 
Likelihood of termination   10.0%
 
Liability Classified Incentive Unit Equivalents

The Company has issued incentive unit equivalents (phantom units) to various employees under the Plan. The incentive unit
equivalents pay out upon the occurrence of a liquidation event such as a change in control transaction. In addition, the units do not
participate until the sum of distributions and capital appreciation of the common units from the date of grant of the incentive units equals a
specified participation threshold per unit. The incentive unit equivalents do not represent any kind of legal equity interest in the Company or
the parent Company and require cash settlement. Accordingly, the incentive unit equivalent awards are accounted for as liability classified
awards and require initial and subsequent measurement at fair value.

These awards generally vest over a five-year period with 12.5% of such incentive unit equivalents vesting after year one, two, three
and four, respectively, with the remaining 50% vesting after year five. All liability classified incentive units have indefinite contract terms and,
once vested, will remain outstanding until liquidation of Cricut Holdings or until repurchased by the Cricut Holdings.

A summary of the liability classified incentive unit equivalents activity for the year ended December 31, 2019 is as follows:
 

  Liability
Incentive

Equivalents   

Weighted-
Average

Participation
Threshold   

Aggregate
Intrinsic

Value  
          (in thousands)  
Outstanding at December 31, 2018   550,000  $ 0.60  $ 96 
Granted   308,961  $ 0.83  $ - 
Outstanding at December 31, 2019   858,961  $ 0.68  $ 1,006 
Exercisable at December 31, 2019   —  $ -  $ - 
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2019   858,961  $ 0.68  $ 1,006

 

 

F-28



Cricut, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

 
The following table summarizes the unvested liability classified incentive unit equivalents activity for the year ended December 31,

2019:
 

  Number of
Awards   

Weighted-
Average

Grant Date Fair
Value Per Unit  

Unvested at December 31, 2018   550,000  $ 1.17 
Granted   308,961  $ 1.01 
Vested   —   — 
Forfeited   —   — 
Unvested at December 31, 2019   858,961  $ 1.11

 

 
The weighted-average fair value of liability classified incentive unit equivalents granted during 2018 and 2019 was $1.17 and $1.01,

respectively.

The Company estimates the fair value of liability classified incentive unit equivalents at each reporting date using the Monte Carlo
Simulation. The significant assumptions used in the Monte Carlo Simulation during 2018 and 2019 were as follows:
 
  2018   2019  
Fair value of unit  $ 0.77  $ 1.85 
Expected life (in years)  3 - 5  3 - 5 
Expected volatility   46.8%  40.2%
Risk-free rate   2.5%  1.6%
Expected dividend yield   0.0%  0.0%
Likelihood of termination   10.0%  10.0%
 

Liability classified incentive unit equivalents are included in accrued expenses per the Company’s consolidated balance sheets and
the rollforward of this liability is as follows (in thousands):
 
Balance at December 31, 2017  $ — 
Stock-based compensation during year   25 
Balance at December 31, 2018   25 
Stock-based compensation during year   305 
Purchased unit equivalents during year   30 
Balance at December 31, 2019  $ 360

 

 

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Lease commitments

The Company leases certain equipment and furniture under capital leases. These capital leases generally contain a discounted
buyout option at the end of the initial lease terms, which range between 36 and 60 months.

Operating lease payments primarily relate to the Company’s lease of office and warehousing space and leases of computer
equipment under operating leases. The leases provide for monthly payments with expirations through July 31, 2025. Certain of these
arrangements include free rent, landlord incentives, escalating lease payments, renewal provisions and other provisions which require the
Company to pay taxes, insurance, maintenance costs or defined rent increases.

The Company’s operating lease for its corporate headquarters in South Jordan, Utah originally commenced in 2015 and extends
through July 2025 and may be renewed for an additional five-year period. As of December 31, 2019, future minimum lease payments under
this lease were $15.4 million.
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In October 2019, the Company entered into an operating lease for Cricut Member Care facilities in Provo, Utah which commenced in
January 2020 and extends through July 2025 with a renewal option for an additional five years. The lease contains a tenant improvement
allowance amounting to $0.7 million and a rent abatement period through September 2020. This allowance will be reflected as a reduction in
rent expense over the life of the lease on a straight-line basis in the consolidated statements of operations and as a leasehold improvement
and other liability in the consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2019, future minimum lease payments under this lease were $3.9
million.

Amortization expense for the assets under capital lease is computed using the straight-line method over the shorter of the estimated
useful life or term of each lease and is included in depreciation expense. Accumulated amortization is included in property and equipment,
net, on the consolidated balance sheets.

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable capital and operating leases and future minimum payments to be
received under non-cancellable subleases at December 31, 2019 were as follows:
 

Year Ending December 31,  Capital
Leases   

Operating
Leases  

  (in thousands)  
2020  $ 87  $ 3,442 
2021   43   3,576 
2022   —   3,538 
2023   —   3,630 
2024   —   3,724 
Thereafter   —   2,140 
Less: minimum payments to be received from
   non-cancellable subleases   —   (188)
Total minimum lease payments, net   130   19,862 
Less: amount representing interest (at 15%)   (11)     
Present value of future minimum lease payments   119     
Less: current portion   (81)     
Non-current portion  $ 38    

 

 
The future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases include the expense for one location that is subleased. Rent

expense totaled $3.3 million and $4.2 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively. Sublease rental income was
$0.8 million and $0.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively.

Royalties
As of December 31, 2019, the Company has minimum royalty commitments with three companies for a total of $0.3 million that will

expire at various dates during 2020 and 2021.

Litigation
The Company is subject to certain outside claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. Management is not aware

of any contingencies which it believes will have a material effect on its financial position, results of operations or liquidity.
 
13. Related Party Transactions

During 2018 and 2019, the Company received $2.7 million and $1.3 million, respectively, of capital contributions from its parent
company, Cricut Holdings, as a result of additional common units issued by Cricut Holdings at the estimated fair value of the underlying units.
The equity offering was purchased by a subset of current common unitholders of Cricut Holdings and new common unitholders employed by
the Company.
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14. Employee Benefit Plan
The Company sponsors a 401(k) plan for the benefit of its employees who have attained at least 18 years of age. The Company

matches 50% of the first 12% of an employee’s salary contributed to the plan on the first day of the month following their hire date. The
Company contributed $0.7 million and $1.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2019, respectively.

15. Net Income Per Share
The computation of net income per share is as follows:

 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  

  
(in thousands except share

and per share amounts)  
Basic and diluted earnings per share         

Net income  $ 27,432  $ 39,211 
Less: Earnings allocated to participating securities   (5,120)   — 
Plus: Deemed contribution on cancellation of Class L shares   27,025   — 

Net income attributable to Class A common stockholders, basic
   and diluted  $ 49,337  $ 39,211 
Weighted-average Class A common shares outstanding used to
   compute earnings per share attributable to common
   stockholders, basic and diluted   3,238,427   3,238,427 
Earnings per share attributable to Class A common stockholders,
   basic and diluted  $ 15.23  $ 12.11

 

 
During the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company cancelled all outstanding shares of Class L common stock. In calculating

earnings per share, Class L common stock is considered preferred stock due its cumulative dividend, liquidation preference and no voting
rights. Therefore, the carrying value of Class L common stock was considered a deemed contribution and added to net income in arriving at
earnings available to Class A common stockholders, since Class L common stockholders received no consideration in exchange for the
shares.
 
16. Segment Information

The Company applies ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting, in determining reportable segments for its financial statement disclosure.
The Company’s operating segments are generally organized by the type of product or service offered. Similar operating segments have been
aggregated into three reportable segments: Connected Machines, Subscriptions and Accessories and Materials. Segment information is
presented in the same manner that the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) reviews the results of operations in assessing
performance and allocating resources. The CODM reviews revenue and gross profit for each of the reportable segments. Gross profit is
defined as revenue less cost of revenue incurred by the segment. The Company does not allocate assets at the reportable segment level as
these are managed on an entity wide group basis. As of December 31, 2018 and 2019, long-lived assets located outside the United States,
primarily located in China, were $2.1 million and $6.9 million, respectively.

The Connected Machines segment derives revenue from the sale of its connected electronic systems. The Subscriptions segment
derives revenue primarily from monthly and annual subscription fees and a minimal amount of revenue allocated to the unspecified future
upgrades and enhancements related to the essential software and access to the Company’s cloud-based services. The Accessories and
Materials segment primarily consists of craft, DIY and home décor products. There are no internal revenue transactions between the
Company’s segments.
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Key financial performance measures of the segments including revenue, cost of revenue and gross profit are as follows:
 
  Year Ended December 31,  
  2018   2019  
  (in thousands)  
Connected Machines:         
Revenue  $ 147,081  $ 198,144 
Cost of revenue   127,546   176,894 
Gross profit  $ 19,535  $ 21,250 
         
Subscriptions:         
Revenue  $ 31,300  $ 53,829 
Cost of revenue   5,027   8,827 
Gross profit  $ 26,273  $ 45,002 
         
Accessories and Materials:         
Revenue  $ 161,407  $ 234,581 
Cost of revenue   96,119   158,483 
Gross profit  $ 65,288  $ 76,098 
         
Consolidated:         
Revenue  $ 339,788  $ 486,554 
Cost of revenue   228,692   344,204 
Gross profit  $ 111,096  $ 142,350

 

 
 

17. Subsequent Events
Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 10, 2020 which is the date the consolidated financial statements

were available to be issued.

During February, March and August of 2020, the Company issued 663,886 common units in the Company’s parent entity, Cricut
Holdings, to certain employees in exchange for total cash proceeds of $1.2 million.

Since January 1, 2020, the Company has repurchased 1,662,169 common units in the Company’s parent entity, Cricut Holdings, from
current and former employees for total cash payout of $3.0 million.

In January 2020, the Board of Managers amended the vesting schedule for all stock-based awards issued prior to May 6, 2019 from
12.5% of the awards vesting after year one, two, three and four, with the remaining 50% vesting after year five to 25% of the awards vesting
after year one, two, three and four.

COVID-19
On January 30, 2020, the World Health Organization (“WHO”) announced a global health emergency because of a new strain of

coronavirus originating in Wuhan, China (the “COVID-19 outbreak”) and the risks to the international community as the virus spreads globally
beyond its point of origin. In March 2020, the WHO classified the COVID-19 outbreak as a pandemic, based on the rapid increase in
exposure globally.

In response to the pandemic, the Company reduced its operating expenses through targeted reductions in force, reductions in
executive compensation and eliminating discretionary spending during the pandemic. Many of these reductions were later reversed. The
Company does not have any brick-and-
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mortar locations but sells to multiple resellers and distributors who operate physical locations. The majority of these customers are still open
but have seen varying levels of business interruption due to hour restrictions, government directives and other various factors. The
Company’s online, direct-to-consumer business remains active to serve its customers. Additionally, the Company contracts with third parties
in the United States, Europe and China to warehouse and ship goods and in China and Malaysia to produce goods. While there has not
been significant, complete and prolonged closures of the warehouses and production facilities, the Company cannot rule out the possibility of
this occurring.

Although it is not possible to reliably estimate the length or severity of this outbreak and hence its financial impact, any prolonged
closing of the stores operated by resellers and distributors and/or its warehouse and production facilities may adversely affect the Company’s
sales levels, results of operations, financial condition and liquidity for fiscal year 2020 and beyond.

On March 27, 2020, President Trump signed into law the “Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security (CARES) Act.” The CARES
Act, among other things, includes provisions relating to refundable payroll tax credits, deferment of employer side social security payments,
net operating loss carryback periods, alternative minimum tax credit refunds, modifications to the net interest deduction limitations, increased
limitations on qualified charitable contributions and technical corrections to tax depreciation methods for qualified improvement property.

Debt Transactions
On September 4, 2020, the Company entered into a credit agreement (the “New Credit Agreement”) with JP Morgan Bank. The New

Credit Agreement replaces the Company’s prior amended Revolving Credit Loan and Term Loan with Origin Bank. The New Credit
Agreement provides for a three-year asset-based senior secured revolving credit facility (“Credit Facility”) of up to $150 million, maturing on
September 4, 2023. In addition, during the term of the New Credit Agreement, the Company may increase the aggregate amount of the
Credit Facility by up to an additional $200 million, subject to customary conditions, including obtaining a commitment from participating
lenders (or another lender, if applicable) to such increase. Costs related to the New Credit Agreement and may be used to issue letters of
credit, and for other business purposes, including working capital needs.

The New Credit Agreement contains financial covenants during the initial year of the agreement, requiring the Company to maintain a
fixed charge coverage ratio of at least 1.0 to 1.0, measured monthly on a trailing 12-month basis. The Company is also subject to this
covenant in future periods if the available commitments, less overdue payables, is less than $15 million.

Dividend
In September 2020, the Company declared and paid a dividend to Class A common stockholders totaling $50.8 million.
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PART II

INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS

Item 13. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distribution.
The following table sets forth all expenses to be paid by us, other than underwriting discounts and commissions, upon completion of

this offering. All amounts shown are estimates except for the SEC registration fee, the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority, Inc., or
FINRA, filing fee and the Exchange listing fee.
 
  

Amount
to be Paid  

SEC registration fee  $ * 
FINRA filing fee   * 
Exchange listing fee   * 
Printing and engraving expenses   * 
Legal fees and expenses   * 
Accounting fees and expenses   * 
Transfer agent and registrar fees   * 
Miscellaneous   * 

Total  $ *
 

 

* To be filed by amendment.

Item 14. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.
Section 145 of the DGCL authorizes a corporation’s board of directors to grant, and authorizes a court to award, indemnity to officers,

directors and other corporate agents.

We expect to adopt an amended and restated certificate of incorporation, which will become effective immediately prior to the
completion of this offering, and which will contain provisions that limit the liability of our directors for monetary damages to the fullest extent
permitted by Delaware law. Consequently, our directors will not be personally liable to us or our stockholders for monetary damages for any
breach of fiduciary duties as directors, except liability for the following:

 • any breach of their duty of loyalty to our company or our stockholders;

 • any act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

 • unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the DGCL; or

 • any transaction from which they derived an improper personal benefit.

Any amendment to, or repeal of, these provisions will not eliminate or reduce the effect of these provisions in respect of any act,
omission or claim that occurred or arose prior to that amendment or repeal. If the DGCL is amended to provide for further limitations on the
personal liability of directors of corporations, then the personal liability of our directors will be further limited to the greatest extent permitted
by the DGCL.

In addition, we expect to adopt amended and restated bylaws, which will become effective immediately prior to the completion of this
offering, and which will provide that we will indemnify, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any person who is or was a party or is threatened
to be made a party to any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was one of our directors or officers or is or was
serving at our request as a director or officer of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. Our amended and
restated bylaws are expected to provide that we may indemnify to the fullest extent permitted by law any person who is or was a party or is
threatened to be made a party to
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any action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he or she is or was one of our employees or agents or is or was serving at our
request as an employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise. Our amended and restated
bylaws will also provide that we must advance expenses incurred by or on behalf of a director or officer in advance of the final disposition of
any action or proceeding, subject to limited exceptions.

Further, we have entered into or will enter into indemnification agreements with each of our directors and executive officers that may
be broader than the specific indemnification provisions contained in the DGCL. These indemnification agreements require us, among other
things, to indemnify our directors and executive officers against liabilities that may arise by reason of their status or service. These
indemnification agreements also require us to advance all expenses incurred by the directors and executive officers in investigating or
defending any such action, suit or proceeding. We believe that these agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified individuals to
serve as directors and executive officers.

The limitation of liability and indemnification provisions that are expected to be included in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation, amended and restated bylaws, and the indemnification agreements that we have entered into or will enter into with our
directors and executive officers may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against our directors and executive officers for breach
of their fiduciary duties. They may also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against our directors and executive officers, even though
an action, if successful, might benefit us and other stockholders. Further, a stockholder’s investment may be adversely affected to the extent
that we pay the costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and executive officers as required by these indemnification
provisions. At present, we are not aware of any pending litigation or proceeding involving any person who is or was one of our directors,
officers, employees or other agents or is or was serving at our request as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation,
partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, for which indemnification is sought, and we are not aware of any threatened litigation that
may result in claims for indemnification.

We have obtained insurance policies under which, subject to the limitations of the policies, coverage is provided to our directors and
executive officers against loss arising from claims made by reason of breach of fiduciary duty or other wrongful acts as a director or executive
officer, including claims relating to public securities matters, and to us with respect to payments that may be made by us to these directors
and executive officers pursuant to our indemnification obligations or otherwise as a matter of law.

Certain of our non-employee directors may, through their relationships with their employers, be insured and/or indemnified against
certain liabilities incurred in their capacity as members of our board of directors.

The underwriting agreement that will be filed as Exhibit 1.1 to this registration statement will provide for indemnification by the
underwriters of us and our officers and directors for certain liabilities arising under the Securities Act or otherwise.

Item 15. Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities.
Since January 1, 2017, we have issued the following unregistered securities:

Incentive Unit Issuances
From January 1, 2017 through December 18, 2020, we issued to our officers, directors, employees, consultants and other service

providers an aggregate of 56,386,692 incentive units ranging from $0.00 to $7.00 per unit, for a weighted-average threshold price of $1.56
per unit.
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Purchased Unit Issuances
From January 1, 2017 through December 18, 2020, we issued and sold to our officers, directors, employees, consultants and other

service providers an aggregate of 18,328,492 purchased units ranging from $0.00 to $1.85 per unit, for a weighted-average purchase price of
$0.29 per unit.

Option Issuances
On November 23, 2020, we issued to our employees, consultants and other service providers an aggregate of 1,156,000 options to

purchase zero strike price incentive units at an exercise price of $4.52 per unit.

None of the foregoing transactions involved any underwriters, underwriting discounts or commissions or any public offering. We
believe the offers, sales and issuances of the above securities were exempt from registration under the Securities Act including by virtue of
Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act (or Regulation D or Regulation S promulgated thereunder) because the issuance of securities to the
recipients did not involve a public offering, or in reliance on Rule 701 because the transactions were pursuant to compensatory benefit plans
or contracts relating to compensation as provided under such rule. The recipients of the securities in each of these transactions represented
their intentions to acquire the securities for investment only and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof, and
appropriate legends were placed upon the share certificates issued in these transactions. All recipients had adequate access, through their
relationships with us, to information about us. The sales of these securities were made without any general solicitation or advertising.

Item 16. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.
 (a) Exhibits.

See the Exhibit Index immediately before the signature page hereto for a list of exhibits filed as part of this registration statement on
Form S-1, which Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by reference.

 (b) Financial Statement Schedules.
All financial statement schedules are omitted because the information called for is not required or is shown either in the consolidated

financial statements or in the notes thereto.

Item 17. Undertakings.
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons

of the registrant pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, the registrant has been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment by the registrant of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or
controlling person of the registrant in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by such director, officer or
controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has
been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against
public policy as expressed in the Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:

 (i) For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as
part of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant
pursuant to Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as
of the time it was declared effective.
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 (ii) For the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each post-effective amendment that contains a form of

prospectus shall be deemed to be a new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of
such securities at that time shall be deemed to be the initial bona fide offering thereof.
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EXHIBIT INDEX

 
Exhibit
Number

 
Description

   
1.1*  Form of Underwriting Agreement.

   

3.1*  Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the registrant, as currently in effect.
   

3.2*  Form of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the registrant, to be in effect immediately prior to the completion
of this offering.

   

3.3*  Bylaws of the registrant, as currently in effect.
   

3.4*  Form of Amended and Restated Bylaws of the registrant, to be in effect immediately prior to this offering.
   

4.1*  Form of common stock certificate of the registrant.
   

5.1*  Opinion of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C.
   

10.1+*  Form of Indemnification Agreement between the registrant and each of its directors and executive officers.
   

10.2+*  Outside Director Compensation Policy.
   

10.3+*  Form of Incentive Unit Award Agreement.
   

10.4+*  Form of Incentive Unit Purchase Agreement.
   

10.5+*  Form of Incentive Unit Subscription Agreement.
   

10.6+*  Form of Zero Strike Incentive Unit Subscription Agreement.
   

10.7+*  Form of Announcement of Bonus Award and Bonus Award Agreement.
   

10.8+*  Form of Announcement of Bonus Purchase and Bonus Purchase Agreement.
   

10.9+*  Cricut, Inc. 2021 Equity Incentive Plan and related form agreements.
   

  10.10+*  Confirmatory Employment Letter between the registrant and Ashish Arora, dated as of          , 2021.
   

  10.11+*  Confirmatory Employment Letter between the registrant and Martin F. Petersen, dated as of          , 2021.
   

  10.12+*  Confirmatory Employment Letter between the registrant and Donald B. Olsen, dated as of          , 2021.
   

  10.13+*  Confirmatory Employment Letter between the registrant and Gregory Rowberry, dated as of          , 2021.
   

10.14*  Office Lease, dated as of November 20, 2014, between the registrant and Riverpark Five, LLC.
   

10.15*  First Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of January 6, 2017, between the registrant and Riverpark Five, LLC.
   

10.16*  Second Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of January 18, 2018, between the registrant and Riverpark Five, LLC.
   

10.17*  Amended and Restated Third Amendment to Office Lease, dated as of March 16, 2018, between the registrant and Riverpark
Five, LLC.
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Exhibit
Number

 
Description

   
10.18*  Credit Agreement dated as of September 4, 2020, among the registrant, the other loan parties party thereto, the lenders party

thereto and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Citibank, N.A. and Origin Bank.
   

10.19*  Supply Agreement between the registrant and Xiamen Intretech, Inc., dated August 19, 2018.
   

10.20*  Cricut, Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and related form agreements.
   

21.1*  List of subsidiaries of the registrant.
   

23.1*  Consent of BDO USA, LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, as to the registrant.
   

23.2*  Consent of Wilson Sonsini Goodrich & Rosati, P.C. (included in Exhibit 5.1).
   

24.1*  Power of Attorney (included on signature page to this registration statement on Form S-1).
   

99.1#  Consent of YouGov America.
 

* To be filed by amendment.
+ Indicates management contract or compensatory plan.
# Previously filed.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, the registrant has duly caused this registration statement on Form S-1 to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in South Jordan, Utah, on the              day of             , 2021.
 
 CRICUT, INC.
 By: 
  Ashish Arora
  Chief Executive Officer
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POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Ashish
Arora, Martin F. Petersen and Donald B. Olsen, and each of them, as his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of
substitution and resubstitution, for him or her and in their name, place and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments
(including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement, and to sign any registration statement for the same offering covered by
this registration statement that is to be effective on filing pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, and all post-effective amendments
thereto, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other documents in connection therewith, with the SEC, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and
necessary to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he or she might or could do in person, hereby ratifying
and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or any of them, or his or her substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be
done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, this registration statement on Form S-1 has been signed by the following persons
in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
 

Signature  Title  Date
     

 
Ashish Arora

 Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

  

     

 
Martin F. Petersen

 Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

  

     

  Controller   
Ryan Harmer  (Principal Accounting Officer)   

     

 
Len Blackwell

 Director   

     

 
Steven Blasnik

 Director   

     

 
Russell Freeman

 Director   

     

 
Jason Makler

 Director and Chair of Board of Directors   

     

 
Billie Williamson

 Director   
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